Rosh Ha’ayin, Israel
June 20, 2013

PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.

NOTICE OF

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Notice is hereby given that a general meeting of shareholders constituting an
Annual General Meeting (the “AGM?”) of Partner Communications Company Ltd.
(the “Company”, “Partner” or “we”) will be held on Thursday July 25, 2013 at
10:00 a.m. (Israel time), at our offices, 8 Ha’amal Street, Rosh Ha’ayin, Israel or at
any adjournment thereof.

It is proposed at the AGM to adopt the following resolutions:

1)

(@)

©)

(4)

()
(6)

(7)

to re-appoint Kesselman & Kesselman, independent certified public
accountants in Israel and a member of PricewaterhouseCoopers
International Limited group, as the Company's auditor for the period
ending at the close of the next annual general meeting;

to discuss the auditor’s remuneration for the year ended December 31,
2012, as determined by the Audit Committee and by the Board of
Directors, and the report of the Board of Directors with respect to the
remuneration paid to the auditor and its affiliates for the year ended
December 31, 2012;

to discuss the Company’s audited financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2012 and the report of the Board of Directors for
such period;

to re-elect the following directors to the Company’s Board of Directors
until the close of the next annual general meeting: Mr. Shlomo Rodav,
Mr. llan Ben-Dov, Mr. Adam Chesnoff, Mr. Fred Gluckman, Mr.
Sumeet Jaisinghani, Mr. Yoav Rubinstein, Mr. Arieh Saban, Mr. Yahel
Shachar, Mr. Elon Shalev and Mr. Arie (Arik) Steinberg (collectively,
the “Directors”); to approve that no change will be made to the
compensation terms of the Directors (not including Mr. Shlomo
Rodav) and of Ms. Osnat Ronen; to approve that the Directors and Ms.
Osnat Ronen will continue to benefit from the Company's D&O
insurance policy; and to approve and ratify (subject to the adoption of
Resolution 7 below) indemnification of the Directors (not including
Mr. Arie (Arik) Steinberg).

to approve a compensation policy for the Company's office holders;

to approve a registration rights agreement between the Company and
S.B. Israel Telecom Ltd.; and

to approve and ratify the grant of Indemnification Letters to the
following directors: (i) Mr. Shlomo Rodav, (ii) Mr. llan Ben-Dov, (iii)



Mr. Adam Chesnoff, (iv) Mr. Fred Gluckman, (v) Mr. Sumeet
Jaisinghani, (vi) Mr. Yoav Rubinstein, (vii) Mr. Arieh Saban, (viii) Mr.
Yahel Shachar, and (ix) Mr. Elon Shalev.

The vote of the holders of a majority of the Ordinary Shares, par value NIS
0.01 per share (the “Ordinary Shares™) participating in the AGM and voting on the
matter is required for the approval of any of items no. 1, 4(i) and 4(iii) on the agenda.
No vote is required in connection with the discussion of items 2-3 on the agenda.

The vote of the holders of a majority of the Ordinary Shares participating in
the AGM and voting on the matter is required for the approval of any of items no.
4(ii), 4(iv), 5, 6 and 7(i)-7(ix) on the agenda; provided, that one of the following
conditions is fulfilled: (i) the majority of votes in favor of the matter shall include at
least a majority of the votes of shareholders not constituting Controlling Parties (as
stated in the Israeli Companies Law (1999), as amended (the “Israeli Companies
Law”), “Controlling Parties”) in the Company, or those having a Personal Interest
(as defined in the Israeli Companies Law, a “Personal Interest”) in the approval of
the pertinent item, participating in the vote; which votes shall not include abstaining
votes; or (ii) the total number of objecting votes of the shareholders mentioned in
clause (i) does not exceed 2% of the total voting rights in the Company.

Only shareholders of record at the close of business on June 26, 2013 (the
“Record Date”) will be entitled to participate in and vote at the AGM, subject to the
restrictions in the Company’s Articles of Association, as set forth in the attached
Proxy Statement. All shareholders are cordially invited to attend the AGM in person.

The Israeli Companies Regulations (Deeds of Vote and Position Notices)
(2005) state that shareholders who will not attend the AGM in person may vote with
respect to items no. 4-7 on the agenda by completing the second part of the Hebrew
form of the Deed of Vote (ktav hatzba'a). For the shareholders' convenience, items no.
1-3 on the agenda are also included in the Deed of Vote (although said items are not
subject to the provisions of such regulations), and an English convenience translation
of the Deed of Vote is included. Under such regulations, the shareholders may also
submit a position notice (hodaat emda) to the Company’s office (envelope marked
clearly as “position notice”, to the Company Secretary, at the address stated above) in
respect of items no. 4-7 on the agenda, no later than ten (10) days following the
Record Date (July 6, 2013). The deadline for submission of the Board of Directors’
response to such position notices is July 13, 2013. The Hebrew form of the Deed of
Vote and position notices (if any) are available on the websites:
www.magna.isa.gov.il or www.maya.tase.co.il; and an English convenience
translation of the documents is available on Form 6-K at the U.S. Securities and
Exchange Commission’s EDGAR System http://www.sec.gov/edgar.shtml.

Shareholders who will not attend the AGM in person are requested to
complete, date and sign the aforementioned form of Deed of Vote (either the Hebrew
or the English version) distributed herewith and to return it promptly (and in any
event at least seventy two (72) hours prior to the time of the AGM) to the Company at
its address above.

The Company’s Articles of Association also allow shareholders registered in
the Company’s Shareholders Register to appoint a proxy to vote in their stead
(whether personally or by means of a Deed of Vote) at the AGM, by means of a Deed



of Authorization in the form attached to this Proxy Statement, so long as the Deed of
Authorization is delivered to the Company at least seventy two (72) hours prior to the
time of the AGM. Shareholders may revoke their Deeds of Authorization by written
notice received at the offices of the Company prior to the commencement of the
AGM, and vote their shares in person.

Two or more shareholders holding Ordinary Shares conferring in the
aggregate at least one-third of our voting rights, present in person or by proxy at the
AGM, or who have delivered to us a Deed of Vote, will constitute a lawful quorum at
the AGM. Should no lawful quorum be present one half hour following the time set
for the AGM, the AGM shall be adjourned to Thursday August 1, 2013, at the same
time and place.

A shareholder is entitled to contact the Company directly and receive the text
of the Deed of Vote (ktav hatzba'a) and the Position Notices (hodaot emda) (if any).

A shareholder, whose shares are registered with a member of the Tel-Aviv
Stock Exchange Ltd. (the “Exchange”), is required to prove his share ownership to
vote at the AGM. Such shareholder shall provide the Company with an ownership
certificate (as of the Record Date) from that Exchange member and is entitled to
receive the ownership certificate in the branch of the Exchange member or by mail to
his address (in consideration of mailing fees only), if the shareholder so requested.
Such a request will be made in advance for a particular securities account.

A shareholder, whose shares are registered with an Exchange member, is
entitled to receive from the Exchange member who holds the share on the
shareholder’s behalf, by e-mail, for no charge, a link to the text of the Deed of Vote
and to the Position Notices posted on the Israel Securities Authority website, unless
the shareholder notified that the shareholder is not so interested; provided, that the
notice was provided with respect to a particular securities account, prior to the Record
Date.

Copies of the proposed resolutions are available at our offices, 8 Ha’amal

Street, Rosh Ha’ayin, Israel, every business day from 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. (Israel time),
following prior coordination at telephone number +972-54-7814191.

By Order of the Board of Directors

ROLY KLINGER, ADV.

Company Secretary



PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.
8 Ha’amal Street

Rosh Ha’ayin 48103, Israel

PROXY STATEMENT

This Proxy Statement is furnished to the holders of Ordinary Shares, par value
NIS 0.01 per share (the “Ordinary Shares”), including holders of American
Depositary Shares (each representing one Ordinary Share, the “ADSs”) of Partner
Communications Company Ltd. (the “Company”, “Partner” or “we”) in connection
with the solicitation by the Board of Directors of proxies for use at a general meeting
of shareholders constituting an Annual General Meeting (the “AGM?”), to be held on
Thursday July 25, 2013 commencing at 10:00 a.m. (Israel time), at our offices, 8
Ha’amal Street, Rosh Ha’ayin, Israel, or at any adjournment thereof.

It is proposed at the AGM to adopt the following resolutions:

1)

)

©)

(4)

(®)
(6)

to re-appoint Kesselman & Kesselman, independent certified public
accountants in Israel and a member of PricewaterhouseCoopers
International Limited group, as the Company's auditor for the period
ending at the close of the next annual general meeting;

to discuss the auditor’s remuneration for the year ended December 31,
2012, as determined by the Audit Committee and by the Board of
Directors, and the report of the Board of Directors with respect to the
remuneration paid to the auditor and its affiliates for the year ended
December 31, 2012;

to discuss the Company’s audited financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2012 and the report of the Board of Directors for
such period;

to re-elect the following directors to the Company’s Board of Directors
until the close of the next annual general meeting: Mr. Shlomo Rodav,
Mr. Illan Ben-Dov, Mr. Adam Chesnoff, Mr. Fred Gluckman, Mr.
Sumeet Jaisinghani, Mr. Yoav Rubinstein, Mr. Arieh Saban, Mr. Yahel
Shachar, Mr. Elon Shalev and Mr. Arie (Arik) Steinberg (collectively,
the “Directors”); to approve that no change will be made to the
compensation terms of the Directors (not including Mr. Shlomo
Rodav) and of Ms. Osnat Ronen; to approve that the Directors and Ms.
Osnat Ronen will continue to benefit from the Company's D&O
insurance policy; and to approve and ratify (subject to the adoption of
Resolution 7 below) indemnification of the Directors (not including
Mr. Arie (Arik) Steinberg).

to approve a compensation policy for the Company's office holders;

to approve a registration rights agreement between the Company and
S.B. Israel Telecom Ltd.; and



(7) to approve and ratify the grant of Indemnification Letters to the
following directors: (i) Mr. Shlomo Rodav, (ii) Mr. llan Ben-Dov, (iii)
Mr. Adam Chesnoff, (iv) Mr. Fred Gluckman, (v) Mr. Sumeet
Jaisinghani, (vi) Mr. Yoav Rubinstein, (vii) Mr. Arieh Saban, (viii) Mr.
Yahel Shachar, and (ix) Mr. Elon Shalev.

A form of a Deed of Vote (Hebrew and English versions) for use at the AGM
(either the Hebrew or the English version) is distributed herewith. With respect to
Items no. 4-7 on the agenda, the Deed of Vote shall also be deemed as a Deed of Vote
(Ktav Hatzba'a) under the Israeli Companies Law (1999), as amended (the “Israeli
Companies Law”) and Israeli Companies Regulations (Deeds of Vote and Position
Notices) (2005). Shareholders may withdraw their Deed of Vote by contacting the
Company at its address above and duly proving their identity, at least 24 hours prior
to the AGM and vote their shares in person. Ordinary Shares represented by any Deed
of Vote in the Hebrew or the English version distributed herewith, if properly
executed and delivered to the Company at the address above at least seventy two (72)
hours prior to the time of the AGM, will be voted as indicated on the form.

In parallel to distribution of this Notice and Proxy Statement, the afore-
mentioned Hebrew version of the Deed of Vote (ktav hatzba'a) per Israeli
requirements and an English version of the Deed of Vote will be distributed among
the shareholders. The shareholders are requested to send only one version of the Deed
of Vote (the Hebrew version or the English version, but not both). If both versions
will be sent by shareholders, in case of contradiction between the two versions (as
determined by the Company Secretary), the vote shall be disqualified.

Proxies for use at the AGM are being solicited by the Board of Directors of
the Company. Only shareholders of record at the close of business on June 26, 2013,
will be entitled to participate in and vote at the AGM. Proxies are being distributed to
shareholders on or about June 20, 2013; however, certain of our officer holders,
directors, employees and agents, none of whom will receive additional compensation
therefor, may solicit proxies by telephone, e-mail or other personal contact. Partner
will bear the cost of the solicitation of the proxies by the Board of Directors, including
postage, printing and handling, and will reimburse the reasonable expenses of
brokerage firms and others for forwarding material to beneficial owners of Ordinary
Shares.

On June 19, 2013, the Company had outstanding 155,652,529 Ordinary
Shares, excluding 4,467,990 treasury shares. The holder of each Ordinary Share is
entitled to one vote upon each of the matters to be presented at the AGM.

Registered joint holders of shares should take note that, pursuant to the
Company's Articles of Association, only the first named joint holder of any share
shall vote, either in person, by proxy or by Deed of Vote, without taking into account
the other registered joint holder(s) of the share. For this purpose, the first named joint
holder shall be the person whose name is registered first in the Shareholders Register.

Holders of ADSs are not registered in the Company’s Shareholders Register
but may instruct the Depositary, Citibank, N.A., as to the exercise of the voting rights
pertaining to the Ordinary Shares evidenced by their ADSs in the manner and to the
extent provided in the Depositary Agreement governing the ADSs.

* Kk kX %k



ITEMS 1 AND 2

RE-APPOINTMENT OF AUDITOR AND DISCUSSION OF ITS
REMUNERATION

Under the Israeli Companies Law and the Company’s Articles of Association,
the shareholders of the Company are authorized to appoint the Company’s auditor,
and the Board of Directors is authorized to determine the auditor’s remuneration.
Under the Company’s Articles of Association, the Board of Directors is required to
report the auditor’s remuneration to the shareholders and the shareholders are required
to discuss that report. In addition, the approval by the Audit Committee of the
auditor’s re-appointment and remuneration is required under the Nasdagq Corporate
Governance Rules.

The Audit Committee has approved, and the Board of Directors has
recommended, to re-appoint Kesselman & Kesselman, independent certified public
accountants in Israel and a member of the PricewaterhouseCoopers International
Limited group (“Kesselman & Kesselman”), as auditor of the Company for the
period ending at the close of the next annual general meeting.

The Audit Committee and the Board of Directors have determined that the
remuneration of Kesselman & Kesselman, the Company’s auditor, for the year ended
December 31, 2012, and its affiliates will be NIS 2,905 thousand for audit fees
(including SOX audit), NIS 340 thousand for audit-related fees, and NIS 355
thousand for tax fees. Partner has agreed to indemnify Kesselman & Kesselman, and
their personnel from any and all third party claims, liabilities, costs and expenses,
including reasonable attorney’s fees, arising from or relating to services rendered
under the Tax Services engagement letter for the year 2012, except to the extent
finally determined to have resulted from the gross negligence, willful misconduct or
fraudulent behavior of Kesselman & Kesselman relating to such services.

It is proposed that at the AGM the following resolution be adopted:

1. “RESOLVED: to re-appoint the Company’s auditor, Kesselman &
Kesselman, as the auditor of the Company for the period ending at
the close of the next annual general meeting.”

The vote of the holders of a majority of the Ordinary Shares participating in
the AGM and voting on the matter is required for the approval of this resolution.

The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR approval of this proposed
resolution.

It is proposed that at the AGM the following matter be discussed:

2. “The remuneration of the auditor and its affiliates for the year 2012
as determined by the Audit Committee and by the Board of Directors
and the report by the Board of Directors of the remuneration of the
auditor and its affiliates for the same period are hereby noted.”

No vote of the holders of Ordinary Shares is required in connection with
discussion of this item 2.



ITEM 3

DISCUSSION OF THE COMPANY’S AUDITED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Audit Committee has approved (pursuant to the Nasdagq Corporate
Governance Rules) and recommended, and the Board of Directors has approved
(pursuant to the lIsraeli Companies Law), the audited financial statements of the
Company for the year ended December 31, 2012, attached hereto as Annex “A”.
Under the Israeli Companies Law and the Company’s Articles of Association,
shareholders’ discussion is required for both the financial statements and the related
report of the Board of Directors, which is attached hereto as Annex “B”. A
representative of the Company’s auditor, Kesselman & Kesselman, is expected to be
present at the AGM, and will be available to respond to appropriate questions of
shareholders.

It is proposed that at the AGM the following matter be discussed:

“The audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended
December 31, 2012 and the report of the Board of Directors for such
period are hereby noted.”

No vote of the holders of Ordinary Shares is required in connection with
discussion of this item 3.

ITEM4

RE-ELECTION OF THE COMPANY’S DIRECTORS, APPROVAL OF
COMPENSATION AND RELATED MATTERS

Under the Israeli Companies Law, the directors of the Company (other than the
external directors (Dahatzim) who generally serve for three year terms) shall be
appointed at the annual general meeting unless otherwise provided in the Company’s
Avrticles of Association. The elected directors shall commence their terms at the close
of the AGM and serve in office until the close of the next annual general meeting,
unless their office becomes vacant earlier in accordance with the provisions of the
Israeli Companies Law and the Company’s Articles of Association or unless
otherwise provided in the Company’s Articles of Association.

In accordance with Section 22.3A of the Company’s General License for the
Provision of Mobile Radio Telephone Services using the Cellular Method in Israel
dated April 7, 1998, as amended (the “License”), and with Article 23.2.6 of the
Company’s Articles of Association, notwithstanding any other provision of the
Articles of Association, a Qualified Israeli Director (as defined in the Articles of
Association) shall be appointed as a member of the Board of Directors, and may be
removed from such office, only upon written notice to the Company Secretary of his
or her appointment or removal by Founding Israeli Shareholders holding Minimum
Israeli Holding Shares (as both terms are defined in the Articles of Association) (the
“Founding Israeli Shareholders”). The Founding Israeli Shareholders have
appointed Ms. Osnat Ronen as a Qualified Israeli Director on or prior to December 8,
2009. Ms. Ronen has been a director in the Company since December 2009 and is



currently a member of the Security Committee. Ms. Ronen served as a General
Partner of Viola Private Equity from January 2008 until March 2013. From 2001 until
2007, Ms. Ronen was the Deputy Chief Executive Officer of Leumi Partners Ltd., the
investment banking services arm of the Leumi Group, where she was responsible for
the Group’s Private Equity portfolio. Between 2004 and 2007, Ms. Ronen led the
strategic planning, deployment and execution of the Bachar Reform, one of Israel’s
largest financial reforms, at Leumi Group. As part of the implementation, Ms. Ronen
managed the sale of Leumi’s holdings in mutual, provident and training funds. Prior
to these positions, Ms. Ronen served as Deputy Head of the Subsidiaries Division of
The Leumi Group from 1999 until 2001. Ms. Ronen served on the Boards of Directors
of the following companies: the Paz Group, Direct-1.D.1. Insurance Company Ltd.,
Leumi Card Ltd., Arab Israeli Bank, Leumi Mortgage Bank and more. Currently Ms.
Ronen serves as a director on the Board of Directors of the following companies:
Orad Hi-tech Ltd., Amiad Filtration Systems Ltd., Aeronautics Ltd., Degania Medical
Ltd., Matomy Media Group Ltd. and Fox-Wizel Ltd. Ms. Ronen holds a B.Sc. degree
in mathematics and computer science and an M.B.A. degree, both from Tel Aviv
University. To the best knowledge of the Company and the Company's Directors, Ms.
Ronen is not a Family Member of another Interested Party (as both terms are defined
in the Israeli Securities Law (1968) (the “Israeli Securities Law) in the Company.
No further notice of appointment or removal of a Qualified Israeli Director was
received by the Company from the Founding Israeli Shareholders. Ms. Ronen's re-
appointment is not brought to the shareholders approval at the AGM and she
continues to be a Qualified Israeli Director, until a contrary notice is duly received by
the Company from the Founding Israeli Shareholders pursuant to the Company’s
Acrticles of Association (unless her office becomes vacant earlier in accordance with
the provisions of the Israeli Companies Law and the Company's Articles of
Association).

Under the Company's Articles of Association, the Board of Directors has the
right to elect any person as a director and to fill an office which becomes vacant. Any
director elected in such manner shall serve in office until the close of the coming
annual general meeting and may be re-elected. Accordingly, following the completion
of the change of control transaction on January 29, 2013 between S.B. Israel Telecom
Ltd. (*S.B.”) and Scailex Corporation Ltd. (“Scailex”) in accordance with the Share
Purchase Agreement entered into on November 30, 2012 between Scailex and S.B.
(the “Share Purchase Agreement”), the Board of Directors has elected Mr. Shlomo
Rodav, Mr. Adam Chesnoff, Mr. Fred Gluckman, Mr. Sumeet Jaisinghani, Mr. Yoav
Rubinstein, Mr. Arieh Saban and Mr. Elon Shalev, as of January 29, 2013, as
directors of the Company (the “New Directors”). The service of the New Directors
was recommended by S.B. As reported in 2012 by Scailex, S.B. and Scailex (and their
respective affiliates) are generally voting in a unified manner (according to a majority
vote among them). Additionally, subject to the provisions of any law, S.B. and
Scailex agreed to take all action, including their voting power in the shareholders
meetings of Partner, to ensure that the composition of Partner's Board of Directors
will generally be: a majority of candidates recommended by S.B. and two candidates
recommended by Scailex (as long as the cumulative holdings of Scailex and its
related parties in Partner is equal to 10% or more of Partner's share capital, or one
candidate if such holdings are less than 10% but equal to or greater than 5%, or no
candidate if such holdings are less than 5%).

All the directors listed below will terminate their office as directors of the
Company as of the end of the AGM. It is proposed to re-elect these directors until the



close of the next annual general meeting, unless their office becomes vacant earlier in
accordance with the provisions of the Israeli Companies Law and the Company's
Acrticles of Association. No change is hereby made to the service of Ms. Osnat Ronen
as a Qualified Israeli Director, to the service of Mr. Barry Ben Zeev (Woolfson) as an
external director (Dahatz) of the Company and to the service of Dr. Michael Anghel
as an external director (Dahatz) of the Company.

The Company's Board of Directors has determined that the board should
include at least three directors who are “accounting and financial experts” under the
Israeli Companies Law and regulations promulgated thereunder. Mr. Shlomo Rodav,
Dr. Michael Anghel, Mr. Ilan Ben-Dov, Mr. Barry Ben Zeev (Woolfson), Mr. Adam
Chesnoff, Mr. Fred Gluckman, Mr. Sumeet Jaisinghani, Ms. Osnat Ronen, Mr. Yoav
Rubinstein, Mr. Yahel Shachar and Mr. Arie Steinberg were determined by the Board
of Directors to be “accounting and financial experts” under the Israeli Companies
Law and regulations promulgated thereunder. Dr. Anghel, Mr. Ben Zeev (Woolfson),
Ms. Ronen and Mr. Steinberg also qualify as independent directors according to U.S.
law and under the Israeli Companies Law and regulations promulgated thereunder
(bilty taluy).

The Compensation Committee and Board of Directors have considered several
factors in connection with the proposed resolutions (in line with recent Amendment
No. 20 to the Israeli Companies Law), including the following: (a) that other than the
Chairman of the Board of Directors (to be considered in the future), the directors'
compensation should, generally, be in unified amounts (or calculated in a unified
manner according to number of meetings, as the case may be) (as customary), and it is
not appropriate to adjust it to the circumstances of each director individually; (b) that
the Compensation (as defined below) proposed to the directors is appropriate
considering their role, the responsibility imposed on them and considering the
education, qualifications, expertise and professional experience and accomplishments
of each of the directors; (c) that the Compensation should be set according to
quantifiable criteria; (d) that as the directors do not hold full-time positions in the
Company and as part of the final amount of the Compensation is not yet known
(calculated based on participation in meetings), it is irrelevant to compare the
Compensation to the compensation of Company employees (or the employees of
manpower contractors who are working for the Company); (e) that the Compensation
currently payable to directors does not include capital or variable components; (f) that
it is meaningless to require a director to repay the Company amounts paid to him
based on data that was later restated in the Company's financial statements, as the
Compensation is dependent only on the number of meetings; and (g) following
approval of the Compensation by the shareholders, it is not appropriate that the
directors will have discretion to reduce or otherwise change their own compensation
without shareholders' approval.

The Compensation Committee and Board of Directors have noted that paying
the proposed Compensation is important to enable the directors to promote the
Company's objectives, its business plan and policy in the long term and to create
proper and balanced incentives to the directors considering, among other things, the
Company's risk-management policy, size and nature of activities. They also noted that
paying the proposed Compensation is essential to ensure the recruitment and service
of appropriate directors, having the qualifications, expertise and experience relevant
to serving on the Company's Board of Directors, considering the high exposure faced



today by directors in public companies and moreover in companies with securities
publicly listed in the USA and in Israel.

It should be noted that the proposed Compensation plan for the Company's
directors is in accordance with the proposed Company's Compensation Policy for
office holders as described in item 5 below and in line with Amendment No. 20 to the
Israeli Companies Law.

The Compensation Committee and Board of Directors have noted the
respective personal interests of the Directors and of Ms. Osnat Ronen.

The Compensation Committee and Board of Directors have resolved and
recommended to the shareholders at the AGM, (a) to approve that no change will be
made to the compensation of Mr. llan Ben-Dov, Mr. Adam Chesnoff, Mr. Fred
Gluckman, Mr. Sumeet Jaisinghani, Ms. Osnat Ronen, Mr. Yoav Rubinstein, Mr.
Arieh Saban, Mr. Yahel Shachar, Mr. Elon Shalev and Mr. Arie (Arik) Steinberg,
commencing from the close of the AGM, for their respective services to the Company
as directors, which is equal to: (i) an annual fee of NIS 180,000 (one hundred and
eighty thousand NIS); and (ii) an attendance fee of NIS 4,000 (four thousand NIS) per
meeting, applicable from the fifth meeting per year (100% thereof for participation in
person, 60% thereof by means of communication, or 50% thereof in writing), in each
such case, linked to the Israeli Consumer Price Index published for December 2007,
but in any event no less than an aggregate amount per annum equal to U.S. $50,000
(U.S. Dollars fifty thousand, payable according to the representative exchange rate on
the payment date) as previously approved by the shareholders, (the
“Compensation”); (b) to approve that no change will be made to the reimbursement
of reasonable expenses in connection with the performance of their role as directors of
Mr. llan Ben-Dov, Mr. Adam Chesnoff, Mr. Fred Gluckman, Mr. Sumeet Jaisinghani,
Ms. Osnat Ronen, Mr. Yoav Rubinstein, Mr. Arieh Saban, Mr. Yahel Shachar, Mr.
Elon Shalev and Mr. Arie (Arik) Steinberg; and (c) to approve that as previously
approved by the shareholders, the Directors and Ms. Osnat Ronen will continue to
benefit from the Company's D&O insurance policy

The Compensation Committee and Board of Directors have approved and
ratified, and recommended to the shareholders at the AGM, to approve and ratify,
subject to the adoption of the pertinent part of Resolution 7 below, that each of the
following directors: Mr. Shlomo Rodav, Mr. llan Ben-Dov, Mr. Adam Chesnoff, Mr.
Fred Gluckman, Mr. Sumeet Jaisinghani, Mr. Yoav Rubinstein, Mr. Arieh Saban, Mr.
Yahel Shachar and Mr. Elon Shalev will be granted an indemnification letter. In
addition, the Compensation Committee and Board of Directors have approved, and
recommended to the shareholders at the AGM, to approve that the indemnification
letters granted to Ms. Osnat Ronen and Mr. Arie (Arik) Steinberg will continue in full
force and effect.

Proxies (other than those directing the proxy holders not to vote for all of the
listed nominees) will be voted for the election of all of the nominees, to hold office
until the close of the next annual general meeting, unless their office becomes vacant
earlier in accordance with the provisions of the Israeli Companies Law and the
Company’s Articles of Association. In the event any one or more of such nominees
shall be unable to serve, the proxies will be voted for the election of such other person
or persons as shall be determined by the proxy holder in accordance with his or her



best judgment. The Company is not aware of any reason why any of the nominees, if
elected, should not be able to serve as a director.

Name Position
Mr. Shlomo Rodav ... Director and Chairman of the
Board of Directors
Mr. llan Ben-Dov Director
Mr. Adam Chesnoff ... Director
Mr. Fred Gluckman ... Director
Mr. Sumeet Jaisinghani ... Director
Mr. Yoav Rubinstein ... Director
Mr. Arieh Saban Director
Mr. Yahel Shachar ... Director
Mr. Elon Shalev Director
Mr. Arie Steinberg Director

Mr. Shlomo Rodav was appointed to the Board of Directors of Partner
effective as of January 29, 2013, following which he was appointed as Chairman of
the Board of Directors and is currently a member of the Security Committee. Mr.
Rodav has served since 1990 and until 2007 as Chairman of the Board of Directors
and as of 2007 as a director of Kerur Holdings Ltd., Jafora-Tabori Ltd., Tapugan
Industries Ltd. (in Tapugan until 2011) and Israel Lighterage & Supply Co. Ltd. and
as a director on the Board of Directors of Metzad Ateret Ltd. From 1994 until 2011
Mr. Rodav served as a director and CEO of Waste Management Israel Ltd. and from
2000 until 2003 as a director and CEO of InirU Israel Ltd. and InirU Wireless Inc.
From 2003 to 2005, Mr. Rodav served as Chairman of the Board of Directors and
CEO (CEO during 2004-2005) of Gilat Satellite Networks Ltd. Between 2007 and
2011, he served as Chairman of the Board of Directors of Bezeq Israel
Telecommunication Company Ltd., Pelephone Communications Ltd., Bezeq
International Company Ltd., Bezeq Online Ltd., DBS Satellite Services (1998) Ltd.
(yes), and Walla Ltd. and between 2011 and 2012 as Chairman of the Board of
Directors of Tnuva Ltd., and its subsidiaries. Mr. Rodav holds a B.A. in Economics
from Tel-Aviv University and an M.B.A. degree from Columbia University. To the
best knowledge of the Company and the Company's Directors, Mr. Rodav is not a
Family Member of another Interested Party (as both terms are defined in the Israeli
Securities Law) in the Company.

Mr. llan Ben-Dov was appointed to the Board of Directors of Partner in
October 2009 and served as Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company since
November 1, 2009 until January 29, 2013. Mr. Ben-Dov serves as Chairman of the



Board of Directors of Scailex Corporation Ltd. and Suny Electronics Ltd. and
previously had served as Suny's Joint Chief Executive Officer for approximately
fifteen years (until May 2009). He also currently serves as a director of Tapuz
Anashim Ltd., Derech HalLotus Ltd., Refuat Halotus Ltd., Tao Tsuot Real Estate Ltd.,
Ben-Dov Investments Ltd., I. Ben-Dov Investments Ltd., Harmony (Ben-Dov) Ltd.,
and of subsidiaries of Suny. Mr. Ben-Dov served as Chairman of the Board of
Directors of Tao Tsuot Ltd. To the best knowledge of the Company and the
Company's Directors, Mr. Ben-Dov is not a Family Member of another Interested
Party (as both terms are defined in the Israeli Securities Law) in the Company.

Mr. Adam Chesnoff was appointed to the Board of Directors of Partner
effective as of January 29, 2013. Mr. Chesnoff serves as the President and Chief
Operating Officer of Saban Capital Group, Inc., responsible for overseeing its
investment and business activities, including private equity and public market
investments. Mr. Chesnoff is a member of the Board of Directors of Univision
Communications Inc., the largest Spanish-language media company in the United
States; a member of the Board of Directors of Celestial Tiger Entertainment Ltd., an
owner and operator of pay television channels across Asia; a member of the Board of
Commissioners of MNC Ltd., an Indonesian media company; and of MNC Sky
Vision Ltd., Indonesia’s largest pay television operator. In addition, Mr. Chesnoff
served as Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors of ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG from
2003 until 2007. From 2005 to 2010, Mr. Chesnoff served on the Board of Directors
of Bezeq Israel Telecommunication Company Ltd. Mr. Chesnoff holds a B.A. in
Economics and Management from Tel-Aviv University and an M.B.A from UCLA’s
Anderson School of Business. To the best knowledge of the Company and the
Company's Directors, Mr. Chesnoff is not a Family Member of another Interested
Party (as both terms are defined in the Israeli Securities Law) in the Company.

Mr. Fred Gluckman was appointed to the Board of Directors of Partner
effective as of January 29, 2013. Mr. Gluckman serves as the Chief Financial Officer
of Saban Capital Group, Inc. In this position, Mr. Gluckman is responsible for all
financial, accounting and tax functions of the firm, and has been an active member of
the firm’s investment team since joining the firm in 2003. Mr. Gluckman is a member
of the Board of Directors of Celestial Tiger Entertainment and serves on its Audit
Committee. Mr. Gluckman’s experience prior to joining Saban Capital Group
includes international and domestic advisory work in the London and Southern
California practices of Deloitte. Mr. Gluckman is actively engaged in the community,
serving on multiple boards of national and local charitable organizations. Mr.
Gluckman is a CPA and holds a BS in Economics from Wharton Business School and
studied at the Hebrew University in Jerusalem. To the best knowledge of the
Company and the Company's Directors, Mr. Gluckman is not a Family Member of
another Interested Party (as both terms are defined in the Israeli Securities Law) in the
Company.

Mr. Sumeet Jaisinghani was appointed to the Board of Directors of Partner
effective as of January 29, 2013. Mr. Jaisinghani is a Director at Saban Capital Group,
Inc. (“*SCG”), is responsible for its principal investment activities in Asia and is head
of its Singapore office. In addition to being on the Board of Directors of Partner, Mr.
Jaisinghani is a member of the Board of Directors of Celestial Tiger Entertainment
(CTE) and an observer on the Board of Directors of Taomee. Mr. Jaisinghani played a
key role in SCG’s investments in Partner, Media Nusantara Citra, MNC Sky Vision,
CTE and Taomee. Mr. Jaisinghani was also involved with SCG’s controlling



investment in Bezeq Telecommunications Company Ltd. until its sale in April 2010.
Prior to joining SCG, Mr. Jaisinghani worked as an investment banker in the Mergers
& Acquisitions Group of J.P. Morgan in New York. Mr. Jaisinghani holds a B.S. in
Finance and Management, with high distinction, from Indiana University's Kelley
School of Business. To the best knowledge of the Company and the Company's
Directors, Mr. Jaisinghani is not a Family Member of another Interested Party (as
both terms are defined in the Israeli Securities Law) in the Company.

Mr. Yoav Rubinstein was appointed to the Board of Directors of Partner
effective as of January 29, 2013. Mr. Rubinstein joined SHL Telemedicine Ltd. as
Senior Vice President, Head of Global Business Development in March 2012.
Previously, Mr. Rubinstein served as an investment professional at Apax Partners for
nine years and as Senior Advisor to Saban Capital Group. Mr. Rubinstein holds a
B.A. in Business Administration from the Interdisciplinary Center in Herzliya. To the
best knowledge of the Company and the Company's Directors, Mr. Rubinstein is not a
Family Member of another Interested Party (as both terms are defined in the Israeli
Securities Law) in the Company.

Mr. Arieh Saban was appointed to the Board of Directors of Partner effective
as of January 29, 2013. Mr. Saban has served since 2010 as Chairman of the Board of
Directors of Saban Brands Israel Ltd. From 1983 until 2002 Mr. Saban served as the
CEO of Israel Audio-Visual Corporation, a media distribution, licensing and
merchandising agency that he founded. From 2000 until 2002 he served as Chairman
of the Board of Directors of Fox Kids Israel, a joint venture with Fox Kids Europe.
From 2005 until 2012, Mr. Saban served on the Board of Directors of the following
companies: Keshet Broadcasting Ltd., Pelephone Communications Ltd., DBS Satellite
Services (1998) Ltd. (yes), Bezeq Israel Telecommunication Company Ltd. and
Bezeq International Company Ltd. To the best knowledge of the Company and the
Company's Directors, Mr. Saban is a Family Member of another Interested Party (as
both terms are defined in the Israeli Securities Law) in the Company.

Mr. Yahel Shachar was appointed to the Board of Directors of Partner in
October 2009 and is currently a member of the Security Committee. Mr. Shachar has
served for the last six and a half years as Chief Executive Officer of Scailex
Corporation Ltd. (he joined Scailex in December 2001 as Chief Financial Officer) and
for the last three years as the Chief Executive Officer of Suny Electronics Ltd. Mr.
Shachar serves as Chairman of the Board of Directors of Tapuz Anashim Ltd. Before
joining Scailex, Mr. Shachar served as Chief Operating Officer at BVR Technologies
Ltd. for three years. Mr. Shachar holds an LL.B. degree from Tel-Aviv University, an
LL.M. degree from Georgetown University in Washington, D.C. and he is a member
of the Israeli and New York bar associations. To the best knowledge of the Company
and the Company's Directors, Mr. Shachar is not a Family Member of another
Interested Party (as both terms are defined in the Israeli Securities Law) in the
Company.

Mr. Elon Shalev was appointed to the Board of Directors of Partner effective
as of January 29, 2013. Mr. Shalev serves as Chairman of the Board of Directors of
SHL Telemedicine Ltd. and as a senior advisor to Saban Capital Group. Mr. Shalev
was the founder of Channel 2 news and from 1993 to 1995 served as its Chief
Executive Officer. From 1996-1999, he served as Editor in Chief of "Yediot
Aharonot", and from 2000-2001 he served as Executive Vice President of Discount
Investment Corporation Ltd. of the IDB group. From 2004-2012, Mr. Shalev served



as Chairman of the Board of Directors of Logia Ltd., a mobile content solutions
provider. Mr. Shalev served in the past on the Board of Directors of Bezeq Israel
Telecommunication Company Ltd., DBS Satellite Services (1998) Ltd. (yes) and
Bezeq International Company Ltd. Mr. Shalev holds a B.A. degree in Political
Science from Tel Aviv University. To the best knowledge of the Company and the
Company's Directors, Mr. Shalev is not a Family Member of another Interested Party
(as both terms are defined in the Israeli Securities Law) in the Company.

Mr. Arie (Arik) Steinberg was appointed to the Board of Directors of Partner
in January 2012 and is currently a member of the Audit Committee and the
Compensation Committee. Mr. Steinberg served from 2006-2010 as Chairman of the
Board of Directors of Psagot Investment House, Ltd., as well as other companies in
the Psagot Group, leading and overseeing the business strategies of the Psagot Group.
Mr. Steinberg served as Chairman on behalf of York Capital. In addition, he served
on the Board of Directors of the Tel-Aviv Stock Exchange. Mr. Steinberg also served
between 1999 - 2003 as Chief Executive Officer of Ilanot Batucha Investment House
from the IDB Group as well as a director of Maalot - Israel’s rating company
(business partner of S&P). Prior to that, Mr. Steinberg served as Managing Director of
Etgar- Portfolio Management Trust Co., owned by Bank Mizrahi. He also served on
the Advisory Boards of Mobileye Technologies and Novatrans Group SA. Mr.
Steinberg studied Economics at Tel-Aviv University. To the best knowledge of the
Company and the Company's Directors, Mr. Steinberg is not a Family Member of
another Interested Party (as both terms are defined in the Israeli Securities Law) in the
Company.

It is proposed that at the AGM the following resolutions be adopted:

0] “RESOLVED: to re-elect Mr. Shlomo Rodav, Mr. Ilan Ben-Dov, Mr.
Adam Chesnoff, Mr. Fred Gluckman, Mr. Sumeet Jaisinghani, Mr.
Yoav Rubinstein, Mr. Arieh Saban, Mr. Yahel Shachar, Mr. Elon
Shalev and Mr. Arie (Arik) Steinberg, to serve as directors of the
Company until the close of the next annual general meeting, unless
their office becomes vacant earlier in accordance with the provisions of
the Israeli Companies Law and the Company’s Articles of Association;

(i) RESOLVED: to approve that (A) no change will be made to the
Compensation of Mr. Ilan Ben-Dov, Mr. Adam Chesnoff, Mr. Fred
Gluckman, Mr. Sumeet Jaisinghani, Mr. Yoav Rubinstein, Mr. Arieh
Saban, Mr. Yahel Shachar and Mr. Elon Shalev; (B) no change will be
made to the reimbursement of reasonable expenses of the directors
listed above; and (C) the directors listed above and Mr. Shlomo Rodav
will continue to benefit from the Company's D&O insurance policy;

(ili) RESOLVED: to approve that (A) no change will be made to the
Compensation of Ms. Osnat Ronen and Mr. Arie (Arik) Steinberg; (B)
no change will be made to the reimbursement of reasonable expenses
of Ms. Osnat Ronen and Mr. Arie (Arik) Steinberg; (C) Ms. Osnat
Ronen and Mr. Arie (Arik) Steinberg will continue to benefit from the
Company's D&O insurance policy; and (D) the indemnification letters
granted to Ms. Osnat Ronen and Mr. Arie (Arik) Steinberg will
continue in full force and effect;



(iv) RESOLVED: to approve and ratify, subject to the adoption of the
pertinent part of Resolution 7 below, the grant of an indemnification
letter to each of the following directors: Mr. Shlomo Rodav, Mr. llan
Ben-Dov, Mr. Adam Chesnoff, Mr. Fred Gluckman, Mr. Sumeet
Jaisinghani, Mr. Yoav Rubinstein, Mr. Arieh Saban, Mr. Yahel
Shachar and Mr. Elon Shalev; and

(v) RESOLVED: these resolutions are in the best interest of the
Company.”

The vote of the holders of a majority of the Ordinary Shares participating in
the AGM and voting on the matter is required for the approval of items no. 4(i) and
4(iii) on the agenda. The vote of the holders of a majority of the Ordinary Shares
participating in the AGM and voting on the matter is required for the approval of
items no. 4(ii) and 4(iv) on the agenda; provided, that one of the following conditions
is fulfilled: (i) the majority of votes in favor of the matter shall include at least a
majority of the votes of shareholders not constituting Controlling Parties (as stated in
the Israeli Companies Law, “Controlling Parties”) in the Company, or those having
a Personal Interest (as defined in the Israeli Companies Law, a “Personal Interest”)
in the approval of this item, participating in the vote; which votes shall not include
abstaining votes; or (ii) the total number of objecting votes of the shareholders
mentioned in clause (i) does not exceed 2% of the total voting rights in the Company.

A shareholder shall notify the Company at the address above at least seventy
two (72) hours prior to the time of the AGM, whether the shareholder is a Controlling
Party in the Company or the shareholder has a Personal Interest in the approval of
items no. 4(ii) and 4(iv) on the agenda or not, as a condition for that shareholder's
right to vote and be counted with respect to these items. A shareholder voting, by
means of a Deed of Vote, may include said notice regarding his Controlling Party
Interest or his Personal Interest on the Deed of Vote (to be submitted to the Company
at least seventy two (72) hours prior to the time of the AGM).

The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR approval of these
proposed resolutions.

ITEMS

APPROVAL OF A COMPENSATION POLICY FOR THE COMPANY'S
OFFICE HOLDERS

The Israeli Companies Law was recently revised by Amendment No. 20
(“Amendment 20”), which has effected substantial revisions in the manner that Israeli
companies like us may compensate directors and other Office Holders (as such term is
defined in the Israeli Companies Law, each an "Office Holder").

We propose adopting hereby, pursuant to the provisions of Amendment 20, a
compensation policy for our Office Holders, substantially in the form attached hereto
as Annex “C” (the ""Compensation Policy” or the *Policy”). For the shareholders'
convenience, attached hereto as Annex “D” is an English convenience translation of
the binding Hebrew Compensation Policy.



The Terms of Office and Employment' of our Office Holders are to be
determined on the basis of the Compensation Policy (the “Compensation™ or the
“Compensation Plan”) and shall be submitted for approval by our Compensation
Committee of the Board of Directors (the "Compensation Committee™), our Board
of Directors and, if applicable, the General Meeting of shareholders, as required under
the Israeli Companies Law.?

At least once every three years, and following our Compensation Committee's
recommendation, our Board of Directors shall discuss and decide whether to approve
a Compensation Policy for our Office Holders that will advance our targets. Our
Compensation Committee and Board of Directors shall also review our Compensation
Policy and the need to amend it to conform to the provisions of the law from time to
time, or in the event that a material change in circumstances occurs from those that
had existed when the Policy was last approved or for other reasons. The
Compensation Policy shall be submitted for the approval of the General Meeting of
shareholders as required pursuant to the Israeli Companies Law.?

The Compensation Policy is based on principles that enable a proper balance
between the desire to reward Office Holders for their achievements and the need to
ensure that the structure of the Compensation is in line with the Company's benefit
and overall strategy over time. The purpose of the Policy is to set guidelines for the
manner of compensation of our Office Holders. We deem our Office Holders as
partners in the Company's success and consequently, derived our comprehensive view
with respect to our Office Holders' Compensation. It is hereby clarified that no
statement in the Policy or herein purports to vest any right to the Office Holders to
whom the principles of the Policy apply, or to any other third party, and not
necessarily will use be made of all of the components and ranges presented in the
Policy (e.g., we are currently at the lower part of these ranges).

The purpose of the Policy is to set guidelines for the compensation manner of
our Office Holders. Therefore, the indices presented in the Policy are intended to
prescribe an adequately broad framework that shall enable our Compensation
Committee and Board of Directors to formulate personal Compensation Plans* for any
Office Holder or a particular compensation component according to individual
circumstances (including unique circumstances), according to the Company’s needs,
in a manner that is congruent with the Company's benefit and the Company’s overall
strategy over time.

As this term is defined in the Israeli Companies Law from time to time. As of the adoption date of this Policy -
the terms of office or employment of an Office Holder, including the granting of an exemption, insurance, an
undertaking to indemnify, or an indemnification under an undertaking to indemnify, Retirement Bonus, and
any benefit, other payment or undertaking of a payment as stated, which are given because of service or
employment as stated. Capitalized terms referring to the Policy that are not defined herein, shall have the
respective meanings ascribed to them in the Policy.

Insofar as the Office Holder is holding office through a company under his/her control, the provisions of the
Compensation Policy shall apply mutatis mutandis: the Compensation to an Office Holder shall be paid against
an invoice and not as a wage, and the components of the Compensation will be normalized so that, in
economic terms, they will conform to that stated in this Policy.

3 However, to the extent permitted by law, if the General Meeting shall oppose approving the Policy, the
Compensation Committee and Board of Directors shall be able to approve the Policy, after having held another
discussion of the Policy and after having determined, on the basis of detailed reasoning, that, notwithstanding
the opposition of the General Meeting, the adoption of the Policy is for the benefit of the Company. This
provision is not currently applicable to us.

4 *“Compensation Plan” - is defined in the Policy as a plan relating to the Terms of Office or Employment of an

Office Holder or a number of Office Holders of the Company, regarding a particular matter or a variety of

matters.



Our Board of Directors is responsible for managing and implementing the
Compensation Policy, and has the authority to interpret the provisions of the
Compensation Policy in any instance of doubt as to how to implement it. Without
derogating from the foregoing and subject to the requirements of the Israeli
Companies Law, following its approval by our Compensation Committee, our Board
of Directors shall formulate and approve Compensation Plans for Office Holders, in
reference to the Compensation Policy and to data presented for this purpose by our
Chief Executive Officer or on his behalf at the relevant time of review.

Notwithstanding anything in the Policy, prior to adopting a resolution
regarding the grant of Compensation pursuant to the Policy, our Board of Directors
(upon the recommendation of the Compensation Committee) may resolve to reduce or
cancel amounts of Bonuses (as defined in the Policy), or part thereof, to be calculated
by virtue of the approved Compensation Plans, for the reasons specified in the Policy
and particularly due to the Company’s results, as well as other considerations, to be
reasoned and specified.

As required pursuant to the provisions of Amendment 20, our Board of
Directors has appointed a board committee for compensation matters, comprised, as
of the date hereof, of three members - all of our serving external directors (Mr. Barry
Ben Zeev (Woolfson), Chairman and Dr. Michael Anghel) and one independent
director (bilty talui) (Mr. Arie (Arik) Steinberg).

Our Board of Directors shall discuss and resolve the supervision manner of the
appropriate implementation of the Compensation Policy, intended to ensure that it is
being implemented. Without derogating from the generality of the foregoing, our
Board of Directors (upon the recommendation of our Compensation Committee) shall
at any time be authorized to instruct that Bonuses shall be calculated in a manner
differing from that specified in a particular Compensation Plan, or to resolve that any
particular Bonus by virtue of a particular Compensation Plan shall not be paid at all,
and shall be authorized to instruct the revision, cancellation or suspension of any
particular Compensation Plan, for reasons deemed fit by it, in light of considerations
of the Company's benefit and subject to any law; provided, that any payment to any of
the relevant Office Holders deriving from the implementation of revisions as stated,
shall not exceed the payment amount that would originally have been paid by virtue
of that particular Compensation Plan were it not for the effected revisions. This
authority of our Board of Directors shall also be exercisable in relation to a
Compensation Plan for which the targets for a particular year have already been
approved by our Board of Directors and brought to the attention of those Office
Holders who are benefitting from it, as long as the payment pursuant thereto has not
yet been paid.

The Compensation Policy was formulated with the aim of advancing the
Company’s objectives, its work plans and its policies with a long-term perspective,
and in a manner that creates appropriate incentives for the Company’s Office Holders,
while taking into account, inter alia, the Company’s risk-management policy, its size,
its financial position and the nature of its activities. The Company designed the
Compensation mechanism for Office Holders in a manner intended to encourage
improvement in the Company’s business processes and mode of operation and to
encourage the increase of the Company’s profitability over time. The Compensation
Policy was set in a manner that will be congruent with the Company’s business
strategy and will constitute an incentive to implement it, and in a manner designed to



enhance the Office Holders’ sense of identification with the Company and its
activities, increase their satisfaction and motivation and ensure that the Company can
retain those Office Holders who have been contributing to the Company over time.
The Compensation Policy prescribes an outline of principles whereby a Compensation
Plan shall be defined for each of the Office Holders, which is generally comprised of
three components - Ongoing Remuneration, annual Bonus and Equity Compensation
(as these terms are defined in the Policy), all pursuant to the principles specified in the
Policy. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Ongoing Remuneration is
generally set within the customary range for Office Holders at similar companies and
the terms thereof in the Policy are a maximum level, not conferring a right to any
employee to demand these terms. Also, the annual Bonus is based on a targets plan at
the level of the Company, the division and a personal evaluation. The targets plan is
usually defined in advance shortly after the Company’s budget is approved for the
following year and before the start of the year for which the annual Bonus is to be
paid. Finally, the Equity Compensation is intended to align the long-term interests of
our Office Holders with those of our shareholders (however the real value thereof at
the time of exercise, if any, is difficult to determine). As we wish to limit our fixed
expenses (the Ongoing Remuneration) while preserving flexibility to attract and retain
high-quality Office Holders, there is a fundamental preference in the Policy for
allowing a relatively wide range of Variable Components for future utilization.

Further details regarding the principles for and outline of Office Holders'
personal Compensation Plans and of various compensation components are detailed in
the Compensation Policy.

The Compensation Policy was not formulated to prejudice existing
compensation of any of the Company's Office Holders (including the Company’s
Chief Executive Officer, as detailed in the Policy), because the Office Holders have
relied thereon during their employment by the Company, and the Company will abide
by all of the existing arrangements that are in effect on the approval date of this
Compensation Policy, as long as these remain in effect. Any existing Compensation
(including Bonuses), where the granting thereof and the method used to determine it
are not discretionary (such as a Bonus deriving from predefined quantitative targets or
calculated according to the period of employment), is not subject to approval
according to the Compensation Policy or Amendment 20; any existing Compensation
where the granting thereof is discretionary (such as a Bonus being awarded in
recognition of overall contribution to the Company) shall require approval as required
pursuant to the Israeli Companies Law.

In the event that an Office Holder of the Company was paid sums on the basis of
data that was subsequently discovered to be erroneous and was restated in the
Company’s financial statements, said Office Holder shall be obligated to return to the
Company, or the Company shall be obligated to pay to the Office Holder (as the case
may be), the difference between the sum actually paid and the sum to which the
Office Holder had been entitled to originally, according to the aforesaid restatement.

The full text of the Compensation Policy is attached hereto as Annex “C”.
The summary above is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the
Policy.

Our Compensation Committee has considered various matters in connection
with our Compensation Policy on four separate occasions. Thereafter, it has approved



the Compensation Policy and recommended that our Board of Directors and our
shareholders approve it. Our Board of Directors has conducted two separate meetings
to consider the Compensation Policy recommended by our Compensation Committee.
In their extensive deliberations, our Compensation Committee and our Board of
Directors have respectively considered numerous factors and aspects (including those
required by Amendment 20) affecting the Policy and discussed the provisions of the
Policy as well as various compensation components included in the Policy.

The directors noted that the Compensation Policy was formulated with the aim
of advancing the Company’s objectives, with a long-term perspective, while
preserving a high management level in the Company, at a challenging time in the
Israeli telecommunication market.

The directors noted that the Compensation Policy is based on principles that
enable a proper balance between the desire to reward Office Holders for their
achievements and the need to ensure that the structure of the Compensation is in line
with the Company's benefit and overall strategy over time. The purpose of the Policy
is to set guidelines for the manner of Compensation of our Office Holders. The
directors deem our Office Holders as partners in the Company's success and
consequently, derived a comprehensive view with respect to our Office Holders'
Compensation.

While setting the Compensation Policy, our Compensation Committee and
Board of Directors discussed the text in the Policy regarding existing agreements and
included a statement in the Policy clarifying that no change should be made to
Compensation Plans already approved before the date of approval of the
Compensation Policy by the shareholders (inclusive).

The Compensation Committee and Board of Directors have respectively
resolved: (i) to approve the Compensation Policy and recommend that our
shareholders approve it; (ii) that the Compensation Policy is based on principles that
enable a proper balance between the desire to reward Office Holders for their
achievements and the need to ensure that the structure of the Compensation is in line
with the Company's benefit and overall strategy over time and that adoption of the
Compensation Policy is important to advance the Company’s objectives, with a long-
term perspective, at a challenging time in the Israeli telecommunication market; and
(iii) that these resolutions are in the best interest of the Company.

The Compensation Committee and Board of Directors have noted the
respective personal interests of all our directors in the resolutions below.

As described above (under item no. 4), Scailex announced in 2012, that S.B.
and Scailex (and their respective affiliates) are generally voting in a unified manner
(according to a majority vote among them).

It is proposed that at the AGM the following resolutions be adopted:

“RESOLVED: to approve the Compensation Policy substantially
in the form attached hereto as Annex “C”; and

RESOLVED: this resolution is in the best interest of the
Company.”



The vote of the holders of a majority of the Ordinary Shares participating in
the AGM and voting on the matter is required for the approval of item no. 5 on the
agenda; provided, that one of the following conditions is fulfilled: (i) the majority of
votes in favor of the matter shall include at least a majority of the votes of
shareholders not constituting Controlling Parties in the Company, or those having a
Personal Interest in the approval of this item, participating in the vote; which votes
shall not include abstaining votes; or (ii) the total number of objecting votes of the
shareholders mentioned in clause (i) does not exceed 2% of the total voting rights in
the Company.

A shareholder shall notify the Company at the address above at least seventy
two (72) hours prior to the time of the AGM, whether the shareholder is a Controlling
Party in the Company or the shareholder has a Personal Interest in the approval of
item no. 5 on the agenda or not, as a condition for that shareholder's right to vote and
be counted with respect to this item. A shareholder voting by means of a Deed of
Vote, may include said notice regarding his Controlling Party interest or his Personal
Interest on the Deed of Vote (to be submitted to the Company at least seventy two
(72) hours prior to the time of the AGM).

The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR approval of these proposed
resolutions.

ITEM6
APPROVAL OF A REGISTRATION RIGHTS AGREEMENT

The U.S. Securities Act of 1933 (“U.S. Securities Act”) requires shares to be
registered with the Security & Exchange Commission (“SEC”) before they can be
sold to the public in the U.S., subject to certain exemptions; a Registration Right
Agreement allows shareholders to require the Company to register their shares under
the U.S. Securities Act and to freely dispose of their shares in the U.S. public market.

On October 26, 1999, the Company entered into a Registration Rights
Agreement with its then principle founding shareholders (Advent Investments Pte.
Ltd. (“Advent”), Matbit Telecommunications Systems Ltd., Tapuz Cellular Systems
Limited Partnership and Matav Investments Ltd.), which granted the above-
mentioned shareholders the right to require the Company to register Ordinary Shares
held by them under the U.S. Securities Act (the “Original RRA”™).

On October 28, 2009, the Company entered into a Registration Rights
Agreement with Scailex Corporation Ltd. (“Scailex™), following the change of control
transaction between Advent and Scailex, according to which Scailex purchased
78,940,104 Ordinary Shares of the Company from Advent (the “Existing RRA”). In
the Existing RRA, which was based on the Original RRA and was substantially
similar to it, the Company agreed that, upon request from any Holders (as this term is
defined in the Existing RRA) (the "Demand Right”), the Company will file a
registration statement under the U.S. Securities Act to register the Ordinary Shares
held by them, subject to a maximum request of one Demand Right in any six-month
period and to certain other limitations. There is no limit to the number of registrations
that can be requested under the Existing RRA. The minimum amount of shares that
must be included in any registration that can be requested under the Existing RRA is



2.65% of the outstanding shares. The Company has also granted to the Holders the
right to include their Ordinary Shares in the registrations made by the Company (the
“Piggy Back Right”). Upon the exercise of the Demand Right or the Piggy Back
Right (the “Registration Rights”), the Company will be required to prepare and file a
registration statement with the SEC, enter into an underwriting agreement in a
customary form (in the case of an underwritten offering) and procure the delivery of
certain customary documents, including legal opinions and comfort letters. In the case
of a Demand Right, the Holders will pay all of their own legal fees and underwriting
discounts and commissions applicable to the securities being offered and the
remaining expenses are shared pro rata by the Company and the Holders. In the case
of a Piggy Back Right, the Company will pay all fees except the underwriting
discount applicable to the shares being sold by the Holders and the Holders' legal fees.
The Existing RRA also provides that the Company will indemnify each selling Holder
and any underwriter against any liability arising as a result of a material misstatement
in, or omission from, the registration statement.

The Existing RRA will terminate with respect to each of the Holders upon the
earlier of (i) October 27, 2014 and (ii) when the Registerable Shares held by such
Holders can be sold in the United States public market pursuant to an exemption from
the registration requirements of the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934, without
regard to a holding period, volume or manner-of-sale limitations.

It is proposed hereby that the Company will enter into a registration rights
agreement with S.B., substantially in the form attached hereto as Annex “E” (the
“Proposed RRA”). The terms and conditions of the Proposed RRA are based on the
Existing RRA and are similar to it, except for the amendments annotated in Annex
“E”, and as follows:

0] the Holders shall also have the right to require the Company to file, if
the Company qualifies, a shelf registration statement relating to the offer
and sale of all Registerable Shares by the Holders from time to time in
accordance with the methods of distribution elected by such Holders.

(i) the Company shall be deemed to have effected a Demand Registration
(1) if the demand registration statement is declared effective by the SEC
and remains effective for not less than one hundred eighty (180) days (or
such shorter period as shall terminate when all Registerable Shares
covered by such demand registration statement have been sold or
withdrawn), or (2) if such registration statement relates to an
underwritten offering, such longer period as, in the opinion of counsel
for the underwriter or underwriters, a prospectus is required by law to be
delivered in connection with sales of Registerable Shares by an
underwriter or dealer (the applicable period, the “Demand Period”) or
(3) if in connection with a shelf registration statement, the shelf
registration statement is continuously effective under the U.S. Securities
Act in order to permit the prospectus forming a part thereof to be usable
by Holders until the date as of which all Registerable Shares have been
sold pursuant to the shelf registration statement or another registration
statement filed under the U.S. Securities Act or the date as of which the
Holders are permitted to sell their Registerable Shares without
registration under the U.S. Securities Act pursuant to Rule 144 under the



U.S. Securities Act without volume limitation or other restrictions on
transfer thereunder.

No Demand Registration shall be deemed to have been effected if (1)
during the Demand Period such registration is interfered with by any
stop order, injunction or other order or requirement of the SEC or other
governmental agency or court or (2) the conditions to closing specified
in the underwriting agreement, if any, entered into in connection with
such registration are not satisfied other than by reason of a wrongful act,
misrepresentation or breach of such applicable underwriting agreement
by the Holders;

(iii)  in case of a Piggyback Registration - if the offering pursuant to a
registration statement is to be underwritten, then each Holder making a
request for a Piggyback Registration must, and the Company shall make
such arrangements with the managing underwriter or underwriters so that
each such Holder may, participate in such underwritten offering. If the
offering pursuant to a registration statement is to be on any other basis,
then each Holder making a request for a Piggyback Registration must,
and the Company shall make such arrangements so that each such Holder
may, participate in such offering on such basis. Each Holder shall be
permitted to withdraw all or part of its Registerable Shares from a
Piggyback Registration at any time prior to the effectiveness of such
registration statement;

(iv)  the term of the Proposed RRA shall terminate with respect to a Holder
on the earlier of: (A) seven (7) years from the Effective Date; and (B)
when the Registerable Shares held by such Holder can be sold in the
United States public market pursuant to an exemption from the
registration requirements of the U.S. Securities Act and without regard
to a holding period, volume or manner-of-sale limitations; and

(v) other changes annotated on Annex “E”.

The Company was informed by Scailex that under the terms of the Share
Purchase Agreement, the parties agreed that subject to any applicable law, each of
Scailex and S.B. undertakes at all times to affirmatively vote all of their Shares for the
approval of the Registration Rights Agreement, as may be amended from time to
time.

The Audit Committee and the Board of Directors have noted the personal
interest (as defined in the Israeli Companies Law) of the directors nominated by S.B.
(Mr. Shlomo Rodav, Mr. Adam Chesnoff, Mr. Fred Gluckman, Mr. Sumeet
Jaisinghani, Mr. Yoav Rubinstein, Mr. Arieh Saban and Mr. Elon Shalev) and the
personal interest of the directors nominated by Scailex (Mr. Ilan Ben-Dov and Mr.
Yahel Shachar) in this matter.

The Audit Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company approved,
and recommended to the shareholders at the AGM to approve, the Proposed RRA and
resolved that the Proposed RRA is in the best interest of the Company since it will
help to facilitate an orderly disposal of the Company's shares by the shareholder who



will become a beneficiary of the Proposed RRA in consultation and coordination with
the Company and will allow the Company to regulate disposals by such a shareholder
not during "blackout” periods, as well as when the Company offers shares in the
market at its initiative.

It is proposed that at the AGM the following resolutions be adopted:

“RESOLVED: to approve the Registration Rights Agreement
between the Company and S.B. Israel Telecom Ltd.

RESOLVED: this resolution is in the best interest of the
Company.”

The vote of the holders of a majority of the Ordinary Shares participating in
the AGM and voting on the matter is required for the approval of item no. 6 on the
agenda; provided, that one of the following conditions is fulfilled: (i) the majority of
votes in favor of the matter shall include at least a majority of the votes of
shareholders not constituting Controlling Parties in the Company, or those having a
Personal Interest in the approval of this item, participating in the vote; which votes
shall not include abstaining votes; or (ii) the total number of objecting votes of the
shareholders mentioned in clause (i) does not exceed 2% of the total voting rights in
the Company.

A shareholder shall notify the Company at the address above at least seventy
two (72) hours prior to the time of the AGM, whether the shareholder is a Controlling
Party in the Company or the shareholder has a Personal Interest in the approval of
item no. 6 on the agenda or not, as a condition for that shareholder's right to vote and
be counted with respect to this resolution. A shareholder voting, by means of a Deed
of Vote, may include said notice regarding his Controlling Party interest or his
Personal Interest on the Deed of Vote (to be submitted to the Company at least
seventy two (72) hours prior to the time of the AGM).

The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR approval of these
proposed resolutions.

ITEM7

APPROVAL AND RATIFICATION OF THE GRANT OF
INDEMNIFICATION LETTERS TO DIRECTORS

The Israeli Companies Law and the Company’s Articles of Association
authorize the Company, subject to the required approvals, to undertake in advance to
indemnify directors and other office holders of the Company for liabilities or
expenses he will incur, or that will be imposed on him, as a result of an action or
inaction by such person (or together with other directors or office holders of the
Company) in his capacity as a director or office holder of the Company. The Israeli
Companies Law combined with the Israeli Securities Law authorize indemnification
for:

0] financial liability incurred or imposed in accordance with a judgment,
including a judgment given in a settlement or a judgment of an



arbitrator approved by a court; provided, that such liability pertains to
one or more of the events set forth in the indemnification letter, which,
in the opinion of the Board of Directors of the company, are anticipated
in light of the company’s activities at the time of the grant of
indemnification and is limited to the sum or measurement of
indemnification determined by the Board of Directors to be reasonable
under the circumstances and set forth in the indemnification letter;

(i) reasonable litigation expenses, including legal fees, incurred or ordered
by a court in the context of proceedings filed by or on behalf of the
company or by a third party, or in a criminal proceeding in which the
director or office holder is acquitted or if convicted, for an offense
which does not require criminal intent;

(iii)  reasonable litigation expenses, including legal fees incurred due to an
investigation or proceeding conducted by an authority authorized to
conduct such investigation or proceeding and which has ended without
the filing of an indictment against the director or office holder and no
financial liability was imposed on the director or office holder in lieu of
criminal proceedings, or has ended without the filing of an indictment
against the director or office holder, but financial liability was imposed
on the director or office holder in lieu of criminal proceedings in an
alleged criminal offense that does not require proof of criminal intent,
within the meaning of the relevant terms in the law or in connection
with a financial fine (Itzum Caspi);

(iv)  Payment to the injured party as a result of a violation set forth in
Section 52.54(a)(1)(a) of the Israeli Securities Law, including by
indemnification in advance; and

(v) Expenses incurred in connection with a proceeding (a “Proceeding” -
halich) under Chapters H3, H4 or 11 of the Israeli Securities Law, or
under Chapter 4 of Part 9 of the Israeli Companies Law, in connection
with any affairs including reasonable legal expenses (e.g., attorney
fees), including by indemnification in advance.

The Israeli Companies Law combined with the Israeli Securities Law provides
that a company may not indemnify a director or an office holder for his liability
including for: (a) a breach of duty of loyalty towards the company, unless the director
or office holder acted in good faith and had reasonable grounds to assume that the
action would not harm the company’s best interest; (b) a breach of duty of care done
intentionally or recklessly (pezizut) except for negligence; (c) an act intended to
unlawfully yield a personal profit; (d) a fine, civil fine (knass ezrahi), financial
sanction (Itzum Caspi) or a penalty (kofer) imposed upon the director or office holder;
and (v) a Proceeding (halich).

On October 22, 2009, the shareholders of the Company approved the grant of
an indemnification letter to each of the Company's then current and future directors.
On May 8, 2012, the shareholders of the Company approved the grant of a new
indemnification letter, which was revised mainly to conform it to the Israeli
Companies Law and to update it for matters anticipated in light of the Company's
current activities and otherwise (the “New Indemnification Letter”), to the



following directors currently serving on the Board of Directors: Dr. Michael Anghel,
Mr. Barry Ben-Zeev (Woolfson), Ms. Osnat Ronen and Mr. Arie (Arik) Steinberg.
The resolutions with respect to the granting of the New Indemnification Letter to the
other directors that were serving on the Board of Directors at that time (Mr. Ilan Ben-
Dov, Dr. Shlomo Nass, Dr. Arie Ovadia and Mr. Yahel Shachar) were not approved
by the required special majority.

At the Extraordinary General Meeting of shareholders held on April 11, 2013
(the “EGM™), the Company proposed to issue the New Indemnification Letter
(which included a clarification with respect to the calculation method of the
maximum indemnity amount and an obligation to repay the Company any amount
paid, in certain circumstances, as explained below) to each of (i) Mr. Shlomo Rodav,
(if) Mr. llan Ben-Dov, (iii) Mr. Adam Chesnoff, (iv) Mr. Fred Gluckman, (v) Mr.
Sumeet Jaisinghani, (vi) Mr. Yoav Rubinstein, (vii) Mr. Arieh Saban, (viii) Mr.
Yahel Shachar and (ix) Mr. Elon Shalev, in each case, serving (including prior to the
date thereof) as the Company's director, or as a director or office holder on behalf of
the Company in other companies (each, an “Indemnified Person”; collectively, the
“Indemnified Persons”). In light of the reservations raised at the EGM with respect
to the approval of the grant of the New Indemnification Letter to the Indemnified
Persons, probably due to the objection to approve the maximum indemnity amount,
as set forth in the New Indemnification Letter (which will not exceed the higher of (i)
25% of shareholders equity (according to the latest reviewed or audited financial
statements approved by Partner's Board of Directors prior to approval of the
indemnification payment) and (ii) 25% of market capitalization (measured at the time
of approval of the indemnification payment by the Board of Directors, according to
the average market capitalization in the 30 trading days immediately preceding the
Board of Directors' resolution), the resolutions with respect to the granting of the
New Indemnification Letter to the Indemnified Persons, were not approved by the
required special majority.

Therefore, the Company is hereby proposing to issue a revised
indemnification letter to each of the Indemnified Persons, substantially in the form
attached hereto as Annex “F” (the “Revised Indemnification Letter”), effective as
of January 29, 2013, except with respect to the indemnification letters of Mr. llan
Ben-Dov and Mr. Yahel Shachar, which will be effective as of April 28, 2013 (the
date of expiration of their previous indemnification letters). According to the Revised
Indemnification Letter, the aggregate indemnification amount payable by the
Company to the Indemnified Persons and all other indemnified persons pursuant to
all letters of indemnification issued to them by the Company on or after July 25,
2013, which indemnification letters include a maximum indemnity amount
substantially similar to the Maximum Indemnity Amount under Section 3.13 of the
Revised Indemnification Letter (the “Maximum Indemnity Amount”), for any
occurrence of an event set out in Schedule | to the Revised Indemnification Letter
(each, an "Event"), will not exceed 25% of shareholders equity (according to the
latest reviewed or audited financial statements approved by Partner's Board of
Directors prior to approval of the indemnification payment); provided, however, that
under the circumstances where indemnification for the same Event is to be made in
parallel to (i) an Indemnified Person and such other indemnified persons under a
Revised Indemnification Letter (or other letters including a maximum indemnity
amount substantially similar to the Maximum Indemnity Amount), and to (ii) one or
more indemnified persons under indemnification letters issued (or to be issued) by
Partner containing a maximum indemnity amount which is the higher of 25% of



shareholders equity and 25% of market capitalization (the “Combined Maximum
Indemnity Amount”), the Maximum Indemnity Amount for any Indemnified Person
and any other indemnified person under a Revised Indemnification Letter (or other
letters including a maximum indemnity amount substantially similar to the
Maximum Indemnity Amount) shall be adjusted so it does not exceed the Combined
Maximum Indemnity Amount to which any other indemnified person is entitled
under any indemnification letter containing the Combined Maximum Indemnity
Amount.

The Revised Indemnification Letter is annotated to show changes made from
the version of the New Indemnification Letter approved by the shareholders on May
8, 2012, (A) to change the Maximum Indemnity Amount, as explained above, and to
clarify the calculation method of the Maximum Indemnity Amount, and (B) to state
that an Indemnified Person shall repay to Partner any amount received pursuant to an
Indemnification Letter, which is based on data or financial results that will later be
found to be erroneous and restated in Partner's financial statements. The description
herein is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the annotated Revised
Indemnification Letter.

The Compensation Committee and Board of Directors have considered several
factors in connection with the proposed resolutions (in line with Amendment 20 to the
Israeli Companies Law as described above), including the following: (a) that
generally, the indemnification letter should be in a uniform manner for all directors
(as customary) at the time of the grant and it is not appropriate to adjust it separately
to the circumstances of each director or to other compensation he receives from the
Company and it should be set according to quantifiable criteria and it is irrelevant to
compare the indemnification letter to the compensation of Company employees (or
the employees of manpower contractors who are working at the Company). In
addition, the essence of the indemnification letter does not allow for the possibility of
retaining discretion with respect to a reduction of the indemnification when it is
actually paid; (b) that the Revised Indemnification Letter was revised so that a
condition was added that clarifies that a director will be required to repay the
Company amounts paid to him based on data that was later restated in the Company's
financial statements; (c) that granting the Revised Indemnification Letter to directors
is important to enable the directors to promote the Company's objectives, its business
plan and policy in the long term and to create proper and balanced incentives to the
directors considering, among other things, the Company's risk-management policy,
size and nature of activities; (d) that granting the Revised Indemnification Letter to
directors is essential to ensure the recruitment and service of appropriate directors,
having the qualifications, expertise and experience relevant to serving on the
Company's Board of Directors, considering the high exposure faced today by
directors in public companies and moreover in companies with securities publicly
listed in the USA and in Israel.

The Compensation Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company
have approved and ratified, and recommended to the shareholders at the AGM to
approve and ratify, the grant of the Revised Indemnification Letter to each
Indemnified Person, resolved that the Maximum Indemnity Amount is reasonable
given the circumstances and that the indemnification events listed in Schedule | of the
Revised Indemnification Letter are anticipated in light of Partner's current activities,
and resolved that such resolutions are in the best interest of the Company. The



Compensation Committee and the Board of Directors have noted that the directors
who are Indemnified Persons have a Personal Interest in this matter.

As announced in 2012 by Scailex, S.B. and Scailex (and their respective
affiliates) are generally voting in a unified manner (according to a majority vote
among them).

It is proposed that at the AGM the following resolutions be adopted:

0] “RESOLVED: to approve and ratify the Company’s
undertaking to indemnify Mr. Shlomo Rodav and to provide him
with the Revised Indemnification Letter;

(i) RESOLVED: to approve and ratify the Company’s undertaking
to indemnify Mr. llan Ben-Dov and to provide him with the
Revised Indemnification Letter;

(ili) RESOLVED: to approve and ratify the Company’s undertaking
to indemnify Mr. Adam Chesnoff and to provide him with the
Revised Indemnification Letter;

(iv) RESOLVED: to approve and ratify the Company’s undertaking
to indemnify Mr. Fred Gluckman and to provide him with the
Revised Indemnification Letter;

(v) RESOLVED: to approve and ratify the Company’s undertaking
to indemnify Mr. Sumeet Jaisinghani and to provide him with
the Revised Indemnification Letter;

(vi) RESOLVED: to approve and ratify the Company’s undertaking
to indemnify Mr. Yoav Rubinstein and to provide him with the
Revised Indemnification Letter;

(vii) RESOLVED: to approve and ratify the Company’s undertaking
to indemnify Mr. Arieh Saban and to provide him with the
Revised Indemnification Letter;

(viii) RESOLVED: to approve and ratify the Company’s undertaking
to indemnify Mr. Yahel Shachar and to provide him with the
Revised Indemnification Letter; and

(ix) RESOLVED: to approve and ratify the Company’s undertaking
to indemnify Mr. Elon Shalev and to provide him with the
Revised Indemnification Letter.

RESOLVED: with respect to each item above, that the Maximum
Indemnity Amount is reasonable given the circumstances and that the

indemnification events listed in Schedule | of the Revised
Indemnification Letter are anticipated in light of Partner's current
activities.

RESOLVED: these resolutions are in the best interest of the
Company.”



The vote of the holders of a majority of the Ordinary Shares participating in
the AGM and voting on the matter is required for the approval of any of items no.
7(i)-7(ix) on the agenda; provided, that one of the following conditions is fulfilled:
(i) the majority of votes in favor of the matter shall include at least a majority of the
votes of shareholders not constituting Controlling Parties in the Company, or those
having a Personal Interest in the approval of the pertinent items participating in the
vote; which votes shall not include abstaining votes; or (ii) the total number of
objecting votes of the shareholders mentioned in clause (i) does not exceed 2% of the
total voting rights in the Company.

A shareholder shall notify the Company at the address above at least seventy
two (72) hours prior to the time of the AGM, whether the shareholder is a Controlling
Party in the Company or the shareholder has a Personal Interest in the approval of any
of items no. 7(i)-(ix) on the agenda or not, as a condition for that shareholder's right to
vote and be counted with respect to these items. A shareholder voting, by means of a
Deed of Vote, may include said notice regarding his Controlling Party Interest or his
Personal Interest on the Deed of Vote (to be submitted to the Company at least
seventy two (72) hours prior to the time of the AGM).

The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR approval of these
proposed resolutions.

RESTRICTIONS ON VOTING RIGHTS

Partner conducts its operations pursuant to licenses granted to Partner (directly
or indirectly) by the Minister of Communications of the State of Israel. Partner’s
Acrticles of Association and, with respect to shareholders other than shareholders of
Partner prior to its public offering, the License contains provisions that may cause the
suspension of voting rights of the holders of Ordinary Shares or ADSs if such voting
rights would breach the ownership limits contained in the License. These limits
prohibit the transfer or acquisition of 10% or more of Partner’s means of control and
acquisition of control of the Company without the consent of the Minister of
Communications of Israel, and restrict cross-control and cross-ownership of other
mobile telephone operators in Israel, and shareholdings and agreements which may
reduce or harm competition. Ordinary Shares or Ordinary Shares represented by
ADSs held in breach of these limits may be considered dormant shares.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Proxy Statement, dormant shares will
not bear any rights to which the holders would otherwise be entitled, other than the
right to receive dividends and other distributions to shareholders (including the right
to participate in rights offerings). Specifically, the holders of dormant shares will not
have voting rights with respect to their dormant shares, nor will they have the right to
participate in general meetings of shareholders.

Any shareholder seeking to vote at the AGM must notify the Company prior to
the vote, or, if the vote is by Deed of Vote, must so indicate on the Deed of Vote, or in
case of appointment of a proxy by means of a Deed of Authorization, must so indicate
on the Deed of Authorization, if any of the shareholder’s holdings in Partner or the
shareholder’s vote require the consent of the Minister of Communications due to a
breach by the shareholder of the restrictions on the transfer or acquisition of means of
control or acquisition of control of Partner, or the provisions regarding cross-



ownership or cross-control of other mobile telephone operators in Israel, in each case
as specified in Sections 21 and 23 of the License (a translation of Sections 21-24 of
the License is attached hereto as Annex “G”). If a shareholder does not provide such
notification, the shareholder shall not vote and, if the shareholder has voted, his vote
shall not be counted.

By Order of the Board of Directors
ROLY KLINGER, ADV.

Company Secretary

Dated: June 20, 2013
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Shareholders of
PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.

We have completed integrated audits of Partner Communications Company Ltd.’s (“the Company” or “Partner”)
consolidated financial statements and of its internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2012, in
accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Our opinions,
based on our integrated audits, are presented below.

Consolidated financial statements

We have audited the consolidated statement of financial position of Partner as of December 31, 2011 and 2012, and
the related consolidated statements of income, of comprehensive income, of changes in equity and of cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2012. These consolidated financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s Board of Directors and management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our integrated audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by the Company’s Board of
Directors and management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above, present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Partner as of December 31, 2011 and 2012, and the results of its operations, of changes in
equity and of its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2012, in conformity with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(“1ASB”).

Internal control over financial reporting
Also, in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over its financial

reporting as of December 31, 2012, based on criteria established in the Internal Control-Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

[Kesselman & Kesselman, Trade Tower, 25 Hamered Street, Tel-Aviv 68125, Israel, P.O Box 452 Tel-Aviv 61003
Telephone: +972 -3- 7954555, Fax:+972 -3- 7954556, www.pwc.co.il



The Company’s Board of Directors and management are responsible for maintaining effective internal control over
financial reporting and management is responsible for the assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting included in the accompanying Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting appearing under Item 15(b). Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our integrated audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control
over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting
includes obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. Our audit also includes performing such other procedures as we consider necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (ii) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (iii) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Tel-Aviv, Israel Kesselman & Kesselman
March 18, 2013 Certified Public Accountants (Isr.)
A member of PricewaterhouseCoopers
International Limited



PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.

(An Israeli Corporation)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents ..........cccccoevvenerinennnn.
Trade receivables.........cooeeveiiiiciie e,
Other receivables and prepaid expenses...............
Deferred expenses — right of USe.........ccccererenene
INVENEOTIES .ot
Income tax receivable..........cccoeveiiiiicie i,
Derivative financial instruments.............cocevevevenne

NON CURRENT ASSETS
Trade Receivables...........ccocoiiiiiicniieccis
Deferred expenses — right of Use.........cccccooerveuene.
Assets held for employee rights upon retirement,

Property and equUipmMeNt.......c.ccceveveiececiecineiieinens
Licenses and other intangible assets......................

(70700 11V |
Deferred income tax aSSet.......coeevrivevevreriieeiinenns

TOTAL ASSETS ..o

* Representing an amount less than 1 million

Convenience

translation

into U.S.

dollars

New Israeli Shekels (note 2a)

December 31,
2011 2012 2012
Note In millions
532 548 147
8 1,518 1,397 375
41 47 13
12 19 22 6
9 162 98 26
12 7 2
7 24 1 *
2,308 2,120 569
8 856 509 136
12 142 138 37
17 3

10 2,051 1,990 533
11 1,290 1,217 326
5, 13(b) 407 407 109
25 30 36 9
4,779 4,297 1,150
7,087 6,417 1,719

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the board of directors on March 18, 2013.

Haim Romano
Chief Executive Officer

Ziv Leitman
Chief Financial Officer

Barry Ben-Zeev (Woolfson)
Director



PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.

(An Israeli Corporation)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current maturities of notes payable and current
DOMTOWINGS ..
Trade payables ...
Parent group - trade........cccooeveieiiieniee e
Payables in respect of employees .........cccccooeieieiciennns
Other payables (mainly institutions) ...........ccccceeeevenene.
Deferred reVENUES..........covvviieiie et
PrOVISIONS ..oviiiciiiieieie sttt
Derivative financial inStruments............ccoceevveneienennen,

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Notes payable.........cccovvveieiiicie e
Bank borrowings........ccccveverieinsn s
Liability for employee rights upon retirement, net .........
Dismantling and restoring sites obligation......................
Other non-current liabilitiesS..........ccocvvevvcvriiiereicie
Deferred tax liability..........ccccoeviiniiiiiceee,

TOTAL LIABILITIES

EQUITY
Share capital - ordinary shares of NIS 0.01 par value:
authorized - December 31, 2011and 2012 -
235,000,000 shares; issued and outstanding -.........
December 31, 2011 — *155,645,708 shares ................
December 31, 2012 — *155,645,708 shares ................
Capital SUIPIUS ....oveveiecicecrce e
Accumulated defiCit........ocoovvervinennireeenn
Treasury shares, at cost - December 31, 2011 and 2012
= 4,467,990 SNAIES .....ovviviieniiiriecc e
TOTAL EQUITY ittt
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY ..o
* Net of treasury shares

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Convenience
translation into
New Israeli U.S. dollars
Shekels (note 2a)
December 31,
2011 2012 2012
Note In millions
15,16 498 306 82
913 866 231
26 142 70 19
143 110 29
73 59 16
52 40 11
14 65 60 16
7 3 14 4
1,889 1,525 408
16 2,605 2,321 622
15 2,068 1,733 464
17 48 50 13
14 25 28 8
10 10 3
25 17 9 2
4,773 4,151 1,112
6,662 5,676 1,520
21
2 2 1
1,100 1,100 295
(326) (10) 3
(351) (351) (94)
425 741 199
7,087 6,417 1,719




PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.
(An Israeli Corporation)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Convenience
translation
into U.S.
Dollars

New Israeli Shekels (note 2a)

Year ended December 31

2010 2011 2012 2012
Note In millions (except earnings per share)

REVENUES, NEL.....ccvveieeiieeecee e, 6 6,674 6,998 5,572 1,493
COSt Of FEVENUES ....veevveeceveccvee e 6, 22 4,093 4,978 4,031 1,080
GrosS Profit ... 2,581 2,020 1,541 413
Selling and marketing expenses..................... 22 479 711 551 148
General and administrative expenses............. 22 306 291 236 63
Impairment of goodwill ............ccccoviiiiinnnns 13(b) 87
Other income, Net..........cooevveieieniie e 23 64 105 111 30
Operating profit.......cccocvcviiiinninieneenen, 1,860 1,036 865 232
Finance iNCOME......cccveverere i 24 28 39 27 7
FiNance eXpenses .......ccccoeveerenneneneesieeane 24 209 333 261 70
Finance costs, Net.........coovvrieiineincrenenns 24 181 294 234 63
Profit before income taX.........c..ccocvvcvvvennnne. 1,679 742 631 169
INCOMe tax eXPENSES......ovvveriieriee e sree i 25 436 299 153 41
Profit for the year ..o 1,243 443 478 128
Earnings per share........c..cccccvevnvececviecienenn,

BaSIC ..ocveieviiieieese e 8.03 2.85 3.07 0.82

Diluted......coooiviiviicees e 27 7.95 2.84 3.07 0.82

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.
(An Israeli Corporation)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Convenience

translation
into U.S.
dollars
New Israeli Shekels (note 2a)
Year ended December 31
2010 2011 2012 2012
Note In millions
Profit for the year.........ccocevv v 1,243 443 478 128
Other comprehensive income (losses) ........
Actuarial losses, net on defined benefit plan . 17 (8) (21) 17) 4)
Income taxes relating to actuarial losses on
defined benefit plan ..........ccocviiiinnnne. 25 2 5 4 1
Other comprehensive income (losses) for
the year, net of income taxes................... (6) (16) (13) ?3)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ...t 1,237 427 465 125

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.
(An Israeli Corporation)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Share capital

Number of Capital Accumulated Treasury
Shares** Amountsurplus deficit shares Total
Note In millions
New Israeli Shekels:
BALANCE AT JANUARY 1, 2010 ..c.ccoviriiererrinininirieereeneneens 154,440,136 2 2,483 (172) (351) 1,962
CHANGES DURING THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010
Total comprehensive income for the year..........c.cccccovveenne 1,237 1,237
Exercise of options granted to employees..........ccoovvvevervrnnnne 809,040 * 16 16
Employee share-based compensation eXpenses............cccu.u.... 23 23
Capital reduction (see note 21(d)) . (1,400) (1,400)
DIVIAENG ... 21 (1,212) (1,212)
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2010 ......ccoovervvvereeeireeireeenn. 155,249,176 2 1,099 (124) (351) 626
CHANGES DURING THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011
Total comprehensive income for the year.... . 427 427
Exercise of options granted to employees..........ccccoevreeiennnne 396,532 * 1 1
Employee share-based compensation expenses............c....... 19 19
DTS2 O 21 (648) (648)
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2011 ......cccovviuvvnicrriiineen. 155,645,708 2 1,100 (326) (351) 425
CHANGES DURING THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012
Total comprehensive income for the year..........c.ccccoevneeiene 465 465
Employee share-based compensation expenses............cc....... 11 11
DT Ts 11T O 21 (160) (160)
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2012 .......cccoooevvinnieinicnennns 155,645,708 2 1,100 (10) (351) 741

Convenience translation into U.S. Dollars (note 2a):
BALANCE AT JANUARY 1, 2012 .....cocccoviireiiienieeieeeienne 155,645,708 1 295 (87) (94) 115
CHANGES DURING THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

Total comprehensive income for the year....... 125 125

Employee share-based compensation eXpenses...................... 3 3

DIVIAENG ... (44) (44)
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2012 ......ccccooviviiireninines 155,645,708 1 295 (3) (94) 199

*Representing an amount less than 1 million.
** Net of treasury shares.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

(Continued) - 1



PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.
(An Israeli Corporation)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Convenience
translation
into U.S.
dollars
New Israeli Shekels (note 2a)
Year ended December 31
2010 2011 2012 2012
Note In millions
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash generated from operations (Appendix A) 2,384 1,881 1,858 499
INCOME taX PRI ... 25 (426) (311) (153) (41)
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,958 1,570 1,705 458
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition of property and equipment ...........c.c.ccuv.. 10 (361) (349) (367) (98)
Acquisition of intangible assets ..........c.cocceeerirnrnnenes 11 (105) (155) (133) (36)
Advance payment in respect of the acquisition of 012
SMIIE et (30)
Acquisition of 012 smile, net of cash acquired of NIS
23 million (AppendiX B) ......cccovereiennnicicienne (597)
INtErest rECRIVE ........ovovieiieieieiirrre e 24 5 12 9 2
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment........... 3 2 1
Proceeds from derivative financial instruments, net... 7 5 1 18 5
Net cash used in investing activities ............cccocovreeene. (486) (1,085) (471) (126)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from exercise of stock options granted to
EMPIOYEES ... 16 1
Non-current bank borrowings received 15 1,000 900
Proceeds from issuance of notes payable, net of
ISSUBNCE COSES ...ttt 16 990 1,136
Dividend paid 21 (1,209) (659) (167) (45)
Capital reduction (see note 21(d))........coccereeererienrnene. (1,400)
Repayment of finance 1ease...........cccocvevrvvvrrecicrnninenns 3) 4 ) 1)
Interest paid ..........ccccoevverniccnnne 24 (118) (235) (200) (54)
Repayment of current borrowings................. 15 (128)
Repayment of non-current bank borrowings ... 15 (699) (455) (122)
Repayment of notes payable ............cccoenuee 16 (756) (586) (394) (106)
Net cash used in financing activities............cccccevvrvrveeeenn (1,480) (274) (1,218) (328)
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS ..ottt (8) 211 16 4
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR........cccooeiinnnnnieeieiiins 329 321 532 143
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF
YEAR ..ot 321 532 548 147

* Representing an amount of less than 1 million.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

(Continued) - 2



PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.

(An Israeli Corporation)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Appendix A- Cash generated from operations and supplemental information

Cash generated from operations:
Profit for the year.........c.coovoiiieieiieee

Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization ....................
Amortization of deferred expenses- Right of

Impairment of goodwill.............ccoccoeeiniee
Impairment of intangible assets....................
Employee share based compensation
EXPENSES. .. eeeevveierereret sttt
Liability for employee rights upon retirement,

Finance costs, Net........c.ccovvireenieiniceane
Gain (loss) from change in fair value of
derivative financial instruments...............
Interest paid.........ccoovvoeieieneieceee e
Interest received ........oooeereieneneeeeee
Deferred inCOMe taxes.........c..covevvervevrernenn
Income tax paid
Capital loss from property and equipment ...
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable:

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and
accruals:

Other payables ........c.coevvvvenevirieiieieen

Provisions ...........cccceevvuene.

Deferred revenues
Increase in deferred expenses - Right of use
Current income tax liability...........cc.cccceeeees
Decrease (increase) in inventories................

* Representing an amount less than 1 million.

Convenience
translation

into
U.S. dollars
New Israeli Shekels (note 2a)
Year ended December 31,
2010 2011 2012 2012
Note In millions
1,243 443 478 128
10,11 669 743 700 188
12 29 26 7
12, 13(a) 148
13(b) 87
13 16 114
21 23 19 11 3
17 8 (26) (12) )
24 53 71 38 10
7 6 (19) 15 4
24 118 235 200 54
24 () (12) €) (2
25 18 2 (10) 2)
25 426 311 153 41
10 3 2 * *
8 (214) (190) 467 125
(40) 44 ®) ey
26 38 70 (72) (19)
(40) (37) (207) (29)
27 (91) (44) (12)
14 (8) 36 (5) ()
() * (11) (3
12 27) (25) @)
25 9) (13) 5 1
9 57 (58) 65 17
2,384 1,881 1,858 499




Supplementary information

At December 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012, trade payables include NIS 220 million, NIS 217 million and NIS 280
million, respectively, in respect of acquisition of intangible assets and property and equipment.

At December 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012, tax withholding related to dividend of approximately NIS 17 million, NIS 6
million and NIS 0 million, respectively is outstanding, see also note 21(c).

These balances are recognized in the cash flow statements upon payment.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.
(An Israeli Corporation)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Appendix B — Acquisition of 012 Smile

On March 3, 2011, the Company acquired 012 Smile. The fair values of assets acquired and
liabilities assumed were as follows (see also note 5):

NIS in millions

CUITENE BSSEES ... .eteeet etttk b bbbt b bbb bbb et e nb e bt b be et e e e enre e 295
Deferred eXpenses — Mgt OF USE.......coiiiiiiiiiie e 282
Property and QUIPIMENT .........oiiii sttt bbb et 159
INTANGIDIE BSSELS ...ttt bbb et 408
GOOAWIL ...t bbbttt a e ee bbbt e bt et e e e e nee e 494
OLher NON=CUITENT BSSELS .....vitiiteitieieiiietie ettt sttt sttt bbb e bt et et et e sb e besbesbesbeaneennens 21
Short term bank borrowings and current maturities of long-term borrowings............cccoceveienene (201)
Accounts payables and PrOVISIONS ........c.coeieiiiiiieie et sre e sr et b e re e re e e enee s (229)
Long term Bank DOITOWINGS .......ccviiieeieicie sttt st s r e te e e neer e s (579)

650
Less: Advance payment in respect of the acquisition of 012 Smile........c.ccccvvevviiviiecicicieeenn, (30)
[T o ] I (o0 V11 (Yo S (23)

Net cash used in the acquisition of 012 SMile iN 2011......ccccoiiiviiiiireee e 597



PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.
(An Israeli Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - GENERAL

a.

Reporting entity

Partner Communications Company Ltd. (“the Company”, “Partner”) is a leading Israeli provider
of telecommunications services under the orange™ brand and under the 012 Smile™ brand. The
address of the Company’s Principal Executive Offices is 8 Amal Street, Afeq Industrial Park,
Rosh-Ha’ayin 48103, Israel.

The Company’s share capital consists of ordinary shares, which are traded on the Tel Aviv Stock
Exchange Ltd. (“TASE”) under the symbol “PTNR”. American Depositary Shares (“ADSs”), each
representing one of the Company’s ordinary shares, are quoted on the NASDAQ Global Select
Market™, under the symbol “PTNR”. See also note 21(a).

On January 29, 2013, S.B. Israel Telecom Ltd., an affiliate of Saban Capital Group Inc.,
completed the acquisition of 44,850,000 ordinary shares of the Company from Scailex
Corporation Ltd. and the acquisition of 3,200,000 ordinary shares of the Company from Leumi
Partners Ltd. As a result, S.B. Israel Telecom Ltd. became the Company’s principal shareholder.

Until January 29, 2013, the ultimate parent company was Suny Electronics Ltd., since it is the
parent company of Scailex Corporation Ltd, which was the Company’s parent company since
October 28, 2009 (“Scailex”, “Parent group”).

On March 3, 2011, the Company completed the acquisition of 012 Smile Telecom Ltd. (“012
Smile”), from Merhav-Ampal Energy Ltd. 012 Smile provides international long distance
services, internet services and local telecommunication fixed-line services (including telephony
services using Voice Over Broadband (“VVOB”)) under the 012 Smile brand. See also note 5.

These consolidated financial statements of the Company as of December 31, 2012, are comprised
of the Company and its subsidiaries and partnerships (the “Group™). See the list of subsidiaries
and partnerships and principles of consolidation in note 2(c).

Operating segments

The operating segments were determined based on the reports reviewed by the Chief Executive
Officer (CEO) who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, and therefore is the Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”). The CEO
considers the business from two operating segments, as follows (see note 6):

(1) Cellular segment
The cellular segment includes cellular communication services: airtime and content;

Content services include mainly voice mail, text and multimedia messaging, as well as
downloadable wireless data applications, including ring tones, music, games, and other
informational content. Generally, these enhanced features and data application generate
additional service revenues through monthly subscription fees of increased usage utilization
of the features and applications. Other optional services, such as equipment extended
warranty plans are also provided for a monthly fee and are either sold separately or included
in rate plan packages.



PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.
(An Israeli Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - GENERAL (continued)

b.

Operating segments (continued)
(2) Fixed-line segment

The fixed-line segment includes: (1) Internet services (“ISP”) that provides access to the
internet as well as home WiFi networks, including Value Added Services (“VAS”) such as
anti-virus and anti-spam filtering; and fixed-line voice communication services provided
through Voice Over Broadband (“VOB”) (2) Transmission services and Primary Rate
Interface (“PRI”); (3) International Long Distance services (“ILD”): outgoing and incoming
international telephony, hubbing, roaming and signaling and calling card services.

The cellular segment and the fixed-line segment also include operations of equipment selling:
mainly handsets, phones, modems, data cards, domestic routers, and related equipment.

Each segment is divided into services and equipment relating to revenues and cost of revenues.
The operating segments include the following measures: revenues, cost of revenues, operating
profit (loss), and Earnings Before Interest expenses (finance costs, net), Tax, Depreciation,
Amortization (including amortization of intangible assets, deferred expenses-right of use, and
share based compensation expenses) and impairment charges (“Adjusted EBITDA”). The CODM
does not examine assets or liabilities for those segments separately, therefore they are not
presented in note 6 segment information. The usage of the term “Adjusted EBITDA” is to
highlight the fact that the Amortization includes amortization of deferred expenses — right of use
and employee share based compensation expenses; it is fully comparable to EBITDA information
which has been previously provided for prior periods.

Cellular segment licenses

The Company operates under a license granted by the Israeli Ministry of Communications
(“MOC”) to operate a cellular telephone network. The license is valid through 2022. The Company
is entitled to request an extension of the license for an additional period of six years and then
renewal for one or more additional six year periods. Should the license not be renewed, the new
license-holder is obliged to purchase the communications network and all the rights and
obligations of the subscribers for a fair price, as agreed between the parties or as determined by an
arbitrator. Under the terms of the license, the Company provided a bank guarantee in NIS
equivalent of USD10 million to the State of Israel to secure the Company’s adherence to the terms
of the license.

The Company was also granted a license from the Israeli Civil Administration, to provide mobile
services to the Israeli populated areas in the West Bank. The license is effective until April 7,
2013. The Company has requested an extension to this license and believes that the extension will
be granted. The Company provided a bank guarantee in NIS equivalent of USDO0.5 million to the
State of Israel to secure the Company’s adherence to the terms of the license. See note 2(g)(1) for
the accounting policy in respect of the Group’s licenses.



PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.
(An Israeli Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - GENERAL (continued)

d.

Fixed-line segment licenses
ISP licenses:

The Company received special licenses granted by the MOC, allowing the Company through its
own facilities to provide internet access to land-line network customers: Internet Service Provider
(ISP) in Israel and in the West Bank. The licenses are valid until April 2013. The Company has
requested extensions to these licenses and believes that the extensions will be granted.

012 Smile also holds an ISP license to supply internet access and Wi-Fi services which is valid
until December 2014. The license may be extended for various periods. The Group believes that it
will be able to receive an extension to this license upon request.

ILD license:

012 Smile also holds a license for the provision of International Long Distance services (ILD). The
license is valid until December 2030, with possible extensions for one or more successive periods
of ten years.

Land-line VOB and DFL licenses:

Partner Land-line Communication Solutions - Limited Partnership, which is fully owned by the
Company, holds a license for the provision of Domestic Fixed-line (DFL) telecommunications
services including the right to offer VOB services using the infrastructure of Bezeq The Israel
Telecommunication corp. Ltd and HOT- Telecommunication Systems Ltd (leading fixed
communication infrastructure services providers in Israel) to access customers and to provide them
with land-line telephony service and the provision of transmission and data communications
services that were previously provided for under a transmission license that was granted in July
2006. The license expires 20 years after it was granted, but may be extended by the MOC for
successive periods of 10 years provided that the licensee has complied with the terms of the license
and has acted consistently for the enhancement of telecom services. The Company deposited a
bank guarantee in the amount of NIS 10 million with the MOC upon receiving the license which
shall be used to secure the Company’s obligations under the License. In addition it holds a
domestic land-line license to provide land-line services to the Israeli populated areas in the West
Bank. The last license is effective until March 2019.

012 Telecom Ltd., which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of 012 Smile, holds a license for the
provision of stationary domestic telecommunication services including provision of domestic
telecommunication services using VOB technology.

The license was granted for a period of 20 years since December 2005. At the end of the license
period, the MOC may extend the license for one or more successive periods of ten years.



PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.
(An Israeli Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - GENERAL (continued)

Endpoint Network Services licenses:

The Company holds a special license granted by the MOC allowing it to provide certain telecom
services, including providing and installing equipment and cabling, representing the subscriber
with local fixed operators, and establishing and operating control facilities within a subscriber’s
premises. The license is valid until February 2017.

012 Smile received a license to supply, install, operate and maintain all types of endpoint network
equipment, including central switchboards, telephone cables, connection closets, etc. The license
is valid until December 2014 and may be extended for various periods. The Group believes that it
will be able to receive an extension to this license upon request.

012 Smile provided the State of Israel with an unconditional bank guarantee of NIS 23 million to
ensure compliance with the provisions of the VOB and DFL license and the international
telecommunications services license. The guarantee will be in effect for a period ending two years
after the end of the licenses period, or until the date on which the Company fulfills all of its
obligations under the licenses.

See note 2(g)(1) for the accounting policy in respect of the Group’s licenses.

Main recent regulatory developments

(1) During 2012 the Ministry of Communications awarded UMTS frequencies to two additional
operators: MIRS and Golan Telecom.

In addition, three Virtual Network Operators (“MVNO”) have launched of their
operations: Alon Cellular Ltd. and Home Cellular Ltd. in 2012, and Rami Levy in 2011,
following reception of MVVNO licenses from the Ministry of Communications.

(2) See note 13(a)(1) in respect of reduction in commitment exit fees.

(3) See information in respect of royalty payments in note 18.

(4) See information in respect of corporate tax rates in note 25.

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

(1) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements of the Company (“the financial statements”) have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as issued by the

International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

The principle accounting policies set out below have been consistently applied to all periods
presented unless otherwise stated.



PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.
(An Israeli Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)
(2) Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates, and requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. Areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in
note 4.

(3)Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis of the historical cost
convention except for the following assets and liabilities:

(a) Derivative financial instruments are measured and presented at their fair values through profit
or loss.

(b) Property and equipment were revalued to the fair value on the transition date to IFRS as
deemed cost, see note 2(f).

(c) Assets held and liability for employee rights upon retirement, net, is valued based on the
present value of the defined benefit obligation less fair value of the plan assets, see note 17.

(d) Until December 31, 2003 the Israeli economy was considered hyper inflational according to
IFRS, therefore the value of non-monetary assets, licenses and equity items have been
adjusted for changes in the general purchasing power of the Israeli currency — NIS, based
upon changes in the Israeli Consumer Price Index (“CPI™) until December 31, 2003.

(e) Ildentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed upon the
business combination of acquiring 012 Smile were initially recognized at fair value as of the
acquisition date March 3, 2011.

(f) Goodwill was initially measured as the excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred over the net fair value of identifiable assets acquired, liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed.

(4) Convenience translation into U.S. Dollars (USD or $)

The NIS figures at December 31, 2012 and for the period then ended have been translated into
dollars using the representative exchange rate of the dollar at December 31, 2012(USD
1=NI1S3.733). The translation was made solely for convenience, is supplementary information, and
is distinguished from the financial statements. The translated dollar figures should not be
construed as a representation that the Israeli currency amounts actually represent, or could be
converted into, dollars.



PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.
(An Israeli Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

b.

C.

Foreign currency translations
(1) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company and its subsidiaries and partnerships operate (the “functional currency™).
The consolidated financial statements are measured and presented in New Israeli Shekels (“NIS”), which is
the Group’s functional and presentation currency. The amounts presented in NIS millions are rounded to the
nearest NIS million.

(2) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the income statement.

Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries and partnerships.

Subsidiaries and partnerships are all entities over which the Company has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than half of the voting rights.
Subsidiaries and partnerships are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the
Company.

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair value of the assets transferred, and the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the acquiree. Identifiable assets acquired, liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
Acquisition- related costs are expensed as incurred.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income and expenses on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Profits and losses resulting from inter-company transactions that are recognized in assets are also
eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Company.

List of wholly owned Subsidiaries and partnerships:

012 Smile Telecom Ltd.

012 Telecom ltd.

Partner Land-Line Communication Solutions - Limited Partnership
Partner Future Communications 2000 Ltd.(“PFC”)

Partner Business Communications Solution - Limited Partnership
Partner Net Ltd.

012 Mobile GP Ltd.

Golden Lines 012 Telecommunication Services 2001 Ltd.

012 Mobile Limited Partnership

012 Global, Inc. is a consolidated company over which the Group has the power to govern its financial and
operating policies.



ARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.
(An Israeli Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

d.

e.

f.

Operating Segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
Chief Executive Officer (regarded as Chief Operating Decision-Maker, CODM) who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments. The segments identified
are:(1) cellular business and; (2) fixed-line business. See also note 6.

Inventories

Inventories of cellular handsets and fixed telephones, related accessories, spare parts, ISP modems
and related equipment are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is determined on
the “first-in, first-out” basis. The Group determines its allowance for inventory obsolescence and
slow moving inventory, based upon expected inventory turnover, inventory ageing and current and
future expectations with respect to product offerings.

Property and equipment

On January 1, 2008, the transition date to IFRS, the Company adopted an exemption provided in
IFRS1 allowing the measurement of the Company’s property and equipment as of the transition
date to IFRS at fair value, and to use this value as its deemed cost as of that date. The deemed cost
was based upon an appraisal, performed by management with the assistance of independent
appraisers.

Subsequent purchases of property and equipment are initially stated at cost.

Property and equipment assets that were acquired in a business combination were recognized at
fair value as of the acquisition date (See note 5).

Costs are included in the assets’ carrying amounts or recognized as separate assets, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance that do
not meet the above criteria are charged to the statement of income during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Costs include expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of
self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labor, any other costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use, and the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located. Purchased
software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalized as part of that
equipment.

Changes in the obligation to dismantle and remove assets on sites and to restore the sites, on
which they are located, other than changes deriving from the passing of time, are added or
deducted from the cost of the assets in the period in which they occur. The amount deducted from
the cost of the asset shall not exceed the balance of the carrying amount on the date of change, and
any balance is recognized immediately in profit or loss, See (r) below.

Property and equipment is presented less accumulated depreciation, and accumulated impairment
losses.
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NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
f.  Property and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful economic lives
of the assets, as follows:

years

Communications network:

Physical layer and infraStruCture ..........ccocovevienciienciee e 10 - 25 (mainly 15, 10)

Other Communication NEtWOIK...........cccuiiiieiiiiiie e 3 - 15(mainly 5, 10,

15)

Computers, software and hardware for information systems..................... 3-10 (mainly 3-5)
Office furniture and EQUIPMENT.........ccccvviiiicierece e 7-15
Optic fibers and related aSSetS........c.coeviieiiiiiiie s 7-25 (mainly 20)
o (0] 011 Y2 25

Leasehold improvements are depreciated by the straight-line method over the term of the lease
(including reasonably assured option periods), or the estimated useful economic life (5-10 years)
of the improvements, whichever is shorter.

On October 25, 2010 the Company signed an agreement with LM Ericsson Israel Ltd.
(“Ericsson”) for the upgrade of its existing networks and the deployment of a fourth generation
network in Israel (the “Ericsson Agreement”). The Ericsson Agreement includes the upgrade,
replacement and the expansion of certain parts of the Company’s existing cellular and fixed-
line networks and the maintenance of the networks, including enhancement of the Company’s
abilities with respect to the cellular and fixed-line ISP services it provides. The term of the
Ericsson Agreement is until December 31, 2014, whereas the replacement of the Company’s
switches and radio equipment is scheduled to be carried out by the end of the year 2013.The
total net amount that the Company will be required to pay, is approximately USD 100 million
(approximately NIS 360(*) million). The amount relating to support and maintenance is
approximately USD 12 million (approximately NIS 43(*) million). The transaction resulted in
accelerated depreciation of the replaced equipment, throughout the replacement period. The
Company recorded a depreciation acceleration of NIS 16 million in the fourth quarter of 2010,
and of NIS 67 million in 2011. The effect of depreciation acceleration in 2012 was immaterial.
As of December 31, 2011, and 2012, the depreciated cost of the replaced equipment is
approximately NIS 30 million, and NIS 4 million, respectively.

(*) The transaction is denominated in USD and translated above into NIS using the exchange
rate as of the transaction date October 25, 2010 (1 USD = 3.599 NIS).

The assets’ useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period. Accordingly, the Company adjusted the useful lives of some assets. The effect of such
adjustment on the statement of income for 2011 and 2012 was immaterial, other than the
depreciation acceleration of the replaced equipment described above.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (see (j) below).
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

g.

Licenses and other intangible assets

o))

O]

Licenses:

(@) The licenses to operate cellular communication services are recognized at cost,
adjusted for changes in the CPI until December 31, 2003 (See a (3)(d) above), and are
amortized using the straight line method over their contractual period —the period
ending in 2022. Borrowing costs which served to finance the license fee - incurred until
the commencement of utilization of the license - were capitalized to cost of the license.

(b) The Company’s license for providing fixed-line telephone services is stated at cost and
is amortized by the straight-line method over the contractual period of 20 years,
starting in 2007.

(c) 012 Smile and its subsidiaries have been granted various licenses from the Ministry of
Communications for the provision of communication services. The licenses to operate
international telephony services and local telephony services are recognized at fair
value in a business combination as of the acquisition date of 012 Smile (see note 5),
and are amortized using the straight line method over their remaining contractual
period: License for international telecommunications services until 2030, and the VOB
and DFL license until 2025.

The amortization periods exclude any ungranted future extensions. The amortization
expenses are included in the cost of revenues. The other licenses of the Group were
received with no significant costs. See description of the licenses in note 1(c), (d).

Computer software:

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to
acquire and to bring to use the specified software.

Computer software systems that were acquired in a business combination were recognized
at fair value as of the acquisition date of 012 Smile (See note 5)

Costs associated with maintaining computer software are recognized as an expense as
incurred. Development costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of
identifiable and unique software products controlled by the Group are recognized as
intangible assets when the following criteria are met: (a) it is technically feasible to
complete the software product so that it will be available for use; (b) management intends
to complete the software product and use it; (c) there is an ability to use the software
product; (d) it can be demonstrated how the software product will generate probable future
economic benefits; (e) adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the
development and to use the software product are available; and (f) the expenditure
attributable to the software product during its development can be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalized as part of software products include the
software development employee costs. Other development expenditures that do not meet
these criteria are recognized as an expenses as incurred.
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NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

g.

Licenses and other intangible assets (continued)

©)

(4)

©)

Computer software costs are amortized over their estimated useful lives (3 to 7 years) using
the straight-line method.

Customer relationships:

The Company has recognized as intangible assets customer relationships that were acquired
in business combinations and recognized at fair value as of the acquisition date. Customer
relationships are amortized to selling and marketing expenses over their estimated useful
economic lives (5 to 10 years) based on the straight line method.

See note 14(a) in respect of impairment charges recorded in 2011.

Trade name:

Trade name was acquired in a business combination and was recognized at fair value in a
business combination as of the acquisition date of 012 Smile (See note 5). The trade name
is amortized to selling and marketing expenses over its estimated useful economic life (12
years) based on the straight line method. See note 11 in respect of impairment charges
recorded in 2011.

Subscriber Acquisition and Retention Costs (SARC):

Costs to acquire or retain postpaid mobile telecommunication subscribers, and costs to
acquire ISP and VOB subscribers, pursuant to a contract with a commitment period and
early termination penalties, are capitalized to intangible assets according to IAS 38, if (1)
such assets are identifiable and controlled; (2) it is probable that future economic benefits
will flow from the subscribers to the Group; and (3) such costs can be measured reliably. If
costs do not meet the aforementioned criteria they are recognized immediately as expenses.

The cost of the subsidized handset less the subscriber’s payment towards the handset, and
sales commissions, are included in the subscriber acquisition and retention costs (see also
(s)(2) below). The capitalized costs are amortized over their expected useful economic life
which is not longer than their minimum enforceable period, which is generally a period of
18 months, using the straight-line method.

Capitalized ISP and VOB subscriber acquisition costs (mainly sales commissions) are
amortized over their expected useful economic life which is not longer than their minimum
enforceable period, which is generally a period of 18 or 36 months, using the straight-line
method amortization.

In the event that a subscriber churns off the network or the arrangement is cancelled within
the period, any unamortized subscriber acquisition or retention costs are written off in the
period in which the subscriber churns. The amortization expenses are included in the cost of
revenues. See also note 2(j) in respect of impairments of SARC assets recorded.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

h.

j-

Right of use (ROU) of international fiber optic cables

Right of use (ROU) of international fiber optic cables (see note 12) was acquired in a business
combination and was recognized at fair value as of the acquisition of 012 Smile (see note 5),
subsequent additions are recognized at cost. The ROU is presented as deferred expenses (current and
non-current) and is amortized on a straight line basis over a period beginning each acquisition of
additional ROU in the framework and until 2027 (including expected extension periods). See also notes
18(5), and see also note 12 in respect of impairment charges recorded in 2011.

Goodwill

Goodwill acquired in a business combination (see note 5) and represents the excess of the consideration
transferred over the net fair value of the identifiable assets acquired, and identifiable liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed. The goodwill has an indefinite useful economic life and is not subject to
amortization; rather is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Cash Generating Units (“CGUs”), or group of
CGUs that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of units to
which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within the entity which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Any impairment loss would be
recognized for the amount by which the carrying amount of goodwill exceeded its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of value-in-use and the fair value less costs to sell. Any
impairment is recognized immediately as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

See note 13(b) in respect of impairment charges recorded in 2011.
Impairment of non-financial assets with finite useful economic lives

Assets that are subject to depreciation and amortization are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. If such
indications exist an impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value-in-use. Value-in-use is determined by discounting expected future cash flows using a
pre-tax discount rate. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets. If this is the case, recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit (CGU) to which
the asset belongs.

An impairment loss recognized in prior periods for an asset (or CGU) other than goodwill shall
bereversed if, and only if, there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s (or
CGU’s) recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. If this is the case, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) shall be increased to its recoverable amount. The increased
carrying amount of an asset (or CGU) other than goodwill attributable to a reversal of an impairment
loss shall not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of amortization or
depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset (or CGU) in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in the statement of income.

See notes 11, 12 and 13(a) in respect of impairment charges recorded in 2011.
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NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

k.

Financial instruments

The Group classifies its financial instruments in the following categories: (1) at fair value through profit
or loss, (2) loans and receivables, and (3) liabilities at amortized cost. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the financial instruments were acquired or assumed. Management determines the
classification of its financial instruments at initial recognition.

1.

Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss category:

This category includes embedded derivative financial instruments and freestanding derivative
financial instruments. These derivatives do not qualify for hedge accounting. Instruments in this
category are classified as current if they are expected to mature within 12 months after the end of
the reporting period; otherwise they are classified as non-current. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of these derivative financial instruments are presented in the income
statement within “finance costs, net” in the period in which they arise.

Loans and receivables category:

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets, except for arrangements
longer than 12 months after the end of the reporting period, which are classified as non-current
assets. Loans and receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortized costsusing the effective interest method, less any impairment loss. The Group’s loans
and receivables comprise “trade receivables” and “other receivables” and “cash and cash
equivalents” in the statement of financial position. See also note (s)(3) below regarding revenue
recognition from non-current credit arrangements.

Ordinary purchases and sales of financial assets are carried at the settlement date, the date on
which the asset is delivered to or by the Group.

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership of the assets. The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. The amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The asset’s carrying amount of the asset is
reduced and the amount of the loss is recognized in the consolidated income statement.

Financial liabilities and borrowings at amortized cost category:

Financial liabilities at amortized cost are non-derivative financial instruments with fixed or
determinable payment. They are included in current liabilities, except for maturities greater than 12
months after the end of the reporting period, which are classified as non-current liabilities.
Financial liabilities at amortized cost are recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction costs,
and subsequently measured at amortized costsusing the effective interest method. The Group’s
financial liabilities and borrowings at amortized cost category include notes payable, bank
borrowings, credit facilities, and liability in respect of finance lease and accounts payables.
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NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Cash and Cash equivalents

The Group considers all highly liquid investments, which include short-term bank deposits (up to
3 months from date of deposit) that are not restricted as to withdrawal or use, to be cash
equivalents.

Trade Receivables

Trade receivables are recognized initially at fair value. Non-current receivables are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment
(allowance for doubtful accounts). The amount of the allowance is determined as a percentage of
specific debts doubtful of collection, and taking into consideration the likelihood of recoverability
of accounts receivable based on the age of the balances, the Group’s historical write-off
experience net of recoveries, changes in the credit worthiness of the Group’s customers, and
collection trends. The trade receivables are periodically reviewed for impairment.

The Company factors trade receivables resulting from sales of handsets by credit cards. The
factoring is executed through a clearing company, on a non-recourse basis. The factoring of
accounts receivable is recorded by the Company as a sales transaction, and derecognized under the
provisions of 1AS 39 financial instruments: recognition, and measurement. The results of the
factoring transaction are charged to financial income and expenses on the settlement date.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment
is due within one year or less. Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value, and
subsequently measured at amortized cost.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Company’s shares acquired by the Company (treasury shares) are presented as a reduction of
equity, at the consideration paid, including any incremental attributable costs, net of tax.

Treasury shares do not have a right to receive dividends or to vote.
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NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
p. Employee benefits
(i) Post employment benefits
1. Defined contribution plan

According to section 14 of the Israeli Severance Pay Law the Group’s liability for some of
the employee rights upon retirement is covered by regular contributions to various pension
schemes. The schemes are generally funded through payments to insurance companies or
trustee-administered funds. These plans are defined contribution plans, since the Group
pays fixed contributions into a separate and independent entity. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contribution if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefit relating to employee service in the current or prior
periods. The amounts funded as above are not reflected in the statement of financial
position. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognized
as an expense in statement of income when they are due.

2. Defined benefit plan

Labor laws, agreements and the practice of the Group, require paying retirement benefits to
employees dismissed or retiring in certain other circumstances (except for those described
in 1 above), measured by multiplying the years of employment by the last monthly salary of
the employee (i.e. one monthly salary for each year of tenure), the obligation of the Group
to pay retirement benefits is treated as a defined benefit plan.

The defined benefit obligation is recognized in the statement of financial position at the
present value of the defined benefit obligation at end of the reporting period less the fair
values of plan assets. With respect to defined benefit plans for a subsidiary the fair value of
the plan assets are recognized and presented in the statement of financial position less the
present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period.

The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually using the projected unit credit method.
The measuring of liability and plan assets are based on calculation made by an external
actuarial expert. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by
discounting the estimated future cash outflows (after taking into account the expected rate
of salary increases and other actuarial assumptions) using interest rates of Israeli
Government bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid
(NIS) and that have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related liability, since
the Group’s management is in the opinion that Israel does not have a deep market for high-
quality corporate bonds.

Actuarial gains and losses resulting from changes in actuarial valuation and differences
between past assumptions and actual results are charged or credited to equityin other
comprehensive incomein the period in which they arise. Interest costs in respect of the
defined benefit planobligation and the expected returns on the plan assets are charged or
credited to finance costs.
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p. Employee benefits (continued)
(ii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Group before the
normal retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange
for these benefits. The Group recognizes termination benefits when it is demonstrably legally
or constructively committed either: terminating the employment of current employees
according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal; or providing
termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits
falling due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period are discounted to their
present value.

(iii) Short term employee benefits
1.Vacation and recreation benefits

The employees are legally entitled to vacation and recreation benefits, both computed on an
annual basis. This entitlement is based on the term of employment. This obligation is
treated as a short term benefit under 1AS 19. The Group charges a liability and expense due
to vacation and recreation pay, based on the benefits that have been accumulated for each
employee, on an undiscounted basis.

2.Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognizes a liability and an expense for bonuses based on consideration of
individual performance and the Group’s overall performance. The Group recognizes a
provision where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.

g. Share based payment

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based compensation plans, under which the
Group receives services from employees as consideration for equity instruments of the Group. The
fair value of the employee services received in exchange for the grant of the equity instruments is
recognized as an expense. The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair
value of the equity instruments granted, at the grant date. The total amount expensed is recognized
over the vesting period, which is the period over which all the specified vesting conditions are to
be satisfied. At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the number of
equity instruments that are expected to vest based on the vesting conditions, and recognizes the
impact of the revision of original estimates, if any, in the statement of income, with corresponding
adjustment to accumulated deficit.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transactions costs are credited to share
capital and capital surplus when the equity instruments are exercised.
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NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

r.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will require settling the obligation, and
the amount has been reliably estimated. See also note 14.

(1) In the ordinary course of business, the Group is involved in a number of lawsuits and
litigations. The costs that may result from these lawsuits are only accrued for when it is
probable that a liability, resulting from past events, will be incurred and the amount of that
liability can be quantified or estimated within a reasonable range. The amount of the
provisions recorded is based on a case-by-case assessment of the risk level, and events
arising during the course of legal proceedings that may require a reassessment of this risk,
and where applicable discounted at a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The Group’s
assessment of risk is based both on the advice of legal counsel and on the Group’s estimate
of the probable settlements amount that are expected to be incurred, if any. See also note 20.

(2) The Company is required to incur certain costs in respect of a liability to dismantle and
remove assets and to restore sites on which the assets were located. The dismantling costs
are calculated according to best estimate of future expected payments discounted at a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognized as finance costs.

(3)  Provisions for handset warranties include obligations to customers in respect of handsets
sold. Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be
required in a settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A
provision is recognized even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any item
included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Revenues

The Group’s revenues are measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable for
the sale of goods and services in the ordinary course of business. Revenue is presented net of
Value-Added-Tax, returns, rebates and discounts, and inter company revenues. The Group
recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria have been met for each
of the Group’s activities as described herein.

(1) Revenues from services:

Revenues from services (see note 1(b)) are recognized when the services are rendered, and all
other revenue recognition criteria are met.

Revenues from Pre-paid calling cards sold to customers are recognized upon the earlier of
customer’s usage of the cards, or expiration.
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s. Revenues (continued)

For broadband and data services, revenue is earned on a fixed monthly fee basis for the
provision of services. Broadband and data services include monthly fees collected for the
provision of dedicated and dial-up access at various speeds and bandwidths, and also web and
server hosting. These fees are recognized as services are provided. The Group records
payments received in advance for services and services to be provided under contractual
agreements, such as internet broadband, as deferred income until such related services are
provided.

The Group determines whether it is acting as a principal or as an agent. The Group is acting as
a principal if it has exposure to the significant risks and rewards associated with the rendering
of services. Features that indicate that the Group is acting as a principal include: (a) the Group
has the primary responsibility for providing the services to the customer or for fulfilling the
order; (b) the Group has latitude in establishing prices, either directly or indirectly; and (c) the
Group bears the customer’s credit risk for the amount receivable from the customer. On the
other hand, the Group is acting as an agent or an intermediary, if it does not have exposure to
the significant risks and rewards associated with the rendering of services. One feature
indicating that the Group is acting as an agent is that the amount the Group earns is
predetermined, being either a fixed fee per transaction or a stated percentage of the amount
billed to the customer. Based on the above considerations the Group determined that it is
acting as an agent in respect of certain content services provided by third parties to customers,
and therefore the revenues recognized from these services are presented on a net basis in the
statement of income.

(2) Revenues from sales of equipment:

Revenue from sale of equipment includes revenue from sale of handsets, routers, phones and
related accessories. Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and reward of ownership
have been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated
costs and possible return of goods can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing
management involvement in regards to the goods, and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably.

Some sales of handsets with accompanying services constitute a revenue arrangement with
multiple deliverables. Accordingly, consideration received is allocated to each deliverable
based on the relative fair value of the individual element. The revenue from sales of handsets
is recognized as equipment revenues upon the delivery of the equipment to the subscriber
when all revenue recognition criteria are met. The Group determines the fair value of the
individual elements based on prices at which the deliverable is regularly sold on a stand-alone
basis.

The Company subsidizes, in some cases, the sale of the handset to end subscribers by selling
it at a price below its cost to secure a fixed-term service contract for the purpose of acquiring
new subscribers or retaining existing subscribers. The handset sale is then treated as a non-
revenue-generating transaction and accordingly, no revenue is recognized from these types of
handset sales. The subsidy, and direct selling expenses are capitalized as elements of
subscriber acquisition and retention costs in accordance with accounting policy set out in note
(9)(5) above. The subsidy represents the difference between the cost of the handset and the
payment received from the subscriber for the handset.
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NOTE 2 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

S.

Revenues (continued)
(3) Revenues from non-current credit arrangements:

Revenues from non-current credit arrangements to customers in respect of sales of equipment are
recognized on the basis of the present value of future cash flows, discounted at the prevailing rate
for a similar instrument of an issuer with a similar credit rating. The difference between the
original credit and its present value is recorded as other income over the credit period.

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor
are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received
from lessor) are charged to income statements on a straight-line basis over the lease term, including
extending options which are reasonably certain.

Leases are classified as finance leases where the Group, as a lessee, has substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership. Finance leases are capitalized at the lease’s commencement at the lower of the
fair value of the leased property and the present value of the minimum lease payments.

Advertising expenses

Advertising expenses are charged to the statement of income as incurred. Advertising expenses for the
years ended December 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012 totaled NIS 140 million, NIS 78 million and NIS 60
million, respectively.

Tax expenses

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognized in the income
statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantially enacted
as of the end of the reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

The Group recognized deferred tax, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements of assets and liabilities and their
tax bases.

Deferred income tax is determined using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted by
the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax is
realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled. Deferred income tax assets are recognized to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilized. Deferred income tax assets are presented as non-current, see also note 25.
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NOTE 2 — SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

w. Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognized as a liability in the Company’s
consolidated financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s board of directors, excluding distributions that are pending regulatory approval. See
also note 21.

X. Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year excluding
ordinary shares purchased by the Company and held as treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding to assume exercise of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The instruments
that are potential dilutive ordinary shares are equity instruments granted to employees.

A calculation is done to determine the number of shares that could have been acquired at fair value
(determined as the average annual market share price of the company’s shares) based on the
monetary value of the subscription rights attached to outstanding share options. The number of
shares calculated as above is compared with the number of shares that would have been issued
assuming the exercise of the share options (see note 27).

NOTE 3-RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

)

(a) The following new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are mandatory for the
first time for the financial year beginning January 1, 2012

In October 2010, an amendment to IFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures was published. The
amendment broadens the disclosures requirement regarding financial assets that were transferred to
other parties, yet continue to be included in the statement of financial position; and regarding related
financial liabilities, including the relation between the assets and the liabilities. In addition the
amendment broadens the disclosure requirements regarding derecognized financial assets in respect
of which the entity remained exposed to certain risks and rewards. The Group adopted the
amendment as of January 1, 2012. The implementation of the amendment did not have a material
impact on the consolidated financial statements.



PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.
(An Israeli Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 3 - RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS (continued)

(b) The following new standards, amendments to standards or interpretations have been issued, but
are not effective for the financial year beginning 1 January 2012, and have not been early adopted

(1)

()

3)

(4)

IFRS 9 Financial instruments, addresses the classification, measurement and recognition of
financial assets and financial liabilities. IFRS 9 was issued in November 2009 and October 2010.
It replaces the parts of IAS 39 that relate to the classification and measurement of financial
instruments. IFRS 9 requires financial assets to be classified into two measurement categories:
those measured as at fair value and those measured at amortized cost. The determination is made
at initial recognition. The classification depends on the Group’s business model for managing its
financial instruments and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the instrument. For financial
liabilities, the standard retains most of the IAS 39 requirements. The main change is that, in cases
where the fair value option is taken for financial liabilities, the part of a fair value change due to
an entity’s own credit risk is recorded in other comprehensive income rather than the income
statement, unless this creates an accounting mismatch. The standard is not applicable until
January 1, 2015 but is available for early adoption. The Group is yet to assess the full impact of
the standard.

IFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement. IFRS 13 defines fair value, sets out in a single IFRS a
framework for measuring fair value and requires disclosures about fair value measurements. IFRS
13 applies when other IFRSs require or permit fair value measurements. The Group will
implement the standard for annual period beginning January 1, 2013. IFRS 13 will be
implemented prospectively. Disclosures requirements are not required for periods preceding
implementation date. The initial implementation of the standard is not expected to have a material
effect on the Company’s financial statements.

In June 2011, the IASB issued an amendment to 1AS 19, Employee benefits. The amendment
eliminates the corridor approach, and requires companies to recognize all actuarial gains and
losses in OCI as they occur; and to immediately recognize all past service costs; and to replace
interest costs and expected returns on plan assets with a net interest amount that is calculated by
applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability (assets). The Group will adopt the
amendment annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013. The initial implementation of
the amendment is not expected to have a material effect on the Company’s financial statements.

In December 2011 the IASB issued amendments to IFRS 7 Disclosures—Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities, and amendments to IAS 32 Financial instruments: Presentation
on offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities. The amendments clarify the criteria of
offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities, and amended the required disclosures to include
information that will enable users of an entity’s financial statements to evaluate the effect or
potential effect of netting arrangements, including rights of set-off associated with the entity’s
recognized financial assets and recognized financial liabilities, on the entity’s financial position.
The group will implement the amendment to 1AS 32 retrospectively for annual period beginning
on January 1, 2014. The Group will implement the amendment to IFRS 7 retrospectively for
annual period beginning on January 1, 2013. The initial implementation of the amendments is not
expected to have a material effect on the Company’s financial statements.



PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 4 -CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other

factors,

including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances. The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting
accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.

a. Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

M

@)

Assessing the useful economic lives of assets:

The useful economic lives of the Group’s assets are an estimate determined by management.
The Group defines useful economic life of its assets in terms of the assets’ expected utility to
the Group. This estimation is based on assumptions of future changes in technology or
changes in the Group’s intended use of these assets, and experience of the Group with similar
assets, and legal or contract periods where relevant. The assets estimated economic useful
lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. See also
note 2(f) and note 2(g).

Assessing the recoverable amount for impairment tests of assets with finite useful economic
lives:

For the purpose of impairment testing of assets with finite useful lives the assets are grouped
at the lowest level group of assets that generates inflows that are largely independent of
inflows from other assets (CGUs). The Group’s management estimates the assets’ recoverable
amount, which is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. The
value-in-use calculations require management to make estimates of the projected future cash
flows from the continuing use of the CGU and also to choose a suitable discount rate which
represents market estimates for the time value of money and the specific risks relating to the
CGU. Determining the estimates of the future cash flows is based on management past
experience and management best estimate for the economic conditions that will exist over the
remaining useful economic life of the CGU. See also note 2(j).

The Group recorded in 2011 an impairment charge to certain assets in an amount of NIS 262
million, based on the key assumptions described in note 13.

The Group is required to determine at the end of each reporting period whether there is any
indication that an asset may be impaired. For this purpose, the Group considered external and
internal sources of information to determine whether events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be recoverable. The Group determined
that as of December 31, 2012 no indicators for impairment exist, see also note 13.



PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.
(An Israeli Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 4 -CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

a.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (continued)

(3) Assessing the recoverable amount of goodwill for annual impairment tests:

The recoverable amounts of CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated have been determined based
on the value-in-use calculations. These calculations require management to make estimates of the
projected future cash flows from the continuing use of the CGU and also to choose a suitable
discount rate which represents market estimates for the time value of money and the specific risks
relating to the CGU. Determining the estimates of the future cash flows is based on management past
experience and management best estimate for the economic conditions.

The Group recorded in 2011 an impairment charge to goodwill in an amount of NIS 87 million,
based on the key assumptions described in note 13.

An impairment test as of December 31, 2012 determined that no additional goodwill impairment
exists as of December 31, 2012, see also note 13 and 2(i). For the purpose of the goodwill
impairment test as of December 31, 2012, the recoverable amount was assessed by management with
the assistance of an external independent expert (“Giza Singer Even. Ltd”) based on value-in-use
calculations. The value-in-use calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections covering a five-year
period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period to be generated from continuing use are extrapolated
using estimated growth rates. The growth rates do not exceed the long-term average growth rate of
the fixed-line communications services business. The key assumptions used are as follows:

GrOWEN FatE.....oveieieicie s (negative 0.2%)
After-tax discount rate........cccocevevveviiieiiie i 11.7%
Pre-tax discount rate..........ccccvevvveeiieivrieciie e 15.7%

The impairment test as of December 31, 2012 was based on assessments of financial performance
and future strategies in light of current and expected market and economic conditions. Trends in the
economic and financial environment, competition and regulatory authorities’ decisions, or changes in
competitors’ behavior in response to the economic environment may affect the estimate of
recoverable amounts.
Sensitivity Analysis:

Sensitivity analysis was performed for a change of the after-tax discount rate within the range of =
10% multiplied by the variable 11.7% (10.53% to 12.87%), assuming all other variables constant.
Sensitivity analysis was also performed for a change of the terminal permanent growth rate within
the range of £ 1% of the variable minus 0.2% (minus 1.2% to 0.8%), assuming all other variables
constant. Results showed that no impairment charge is required.

(4) Assessing allowance for doubtful accounts:

The allowance is established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to
collect amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables. Significant financial
difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganization,
or delinquency or default in debtor payments are considered indicators that a trade receivable is
impaired. The amount of the allowance is determined as a percentage of specific debts doubtful of
collection, and taking into consideration the likelihood of recoverability of accounts receivable based
on the age of the balances, the Group’s historical write-off experience net of recoveries, changes in
the credit worthiness of the Group’s customers, and collection trends. The trade receivables are
periodically reviewed for impairment.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 4 - CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

a.

b.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (continued)

()

(6)

Considering uncertain tax positions:

The assessment of amounts of current and deferred taxes requires the Group’s management to
take into consideration uncertainties that its tax position will be accepted and of incurring any
additional tax expenses. This assessment is based on estimates and assumptions based on tax
laws and the Group’s past experience. It is possible that new information will become known
in future periods that will cause the final tax outcome to be different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact the current and deferred income tax
assets and liabilities in the period in which such determination is made. See also note 2(v).

Business combinations — assessing purchase price allocations:

The Group is required to allocate the purchase price of entities and activities acquired in
business combinations on the basis of the fair value of acquired assets and liabilities assumed.
The Group uses external and internal valuations to determine the fair value. Goodwill
represents the excess of the consideration transferred over the net fair value of the identifiable
assets acquired, and identifiable liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed. The valuations
include management estimations and assumptions for future cash flow projections from the
acquired business and selection of models to compute the fair value of the acquired
components and their depreciation periods. See also note 5.

Critical judgments in applying the Group’s accounting policies

(1) Considering the likelihood of contingent losses and quantifying possible settlements:

()

Provisions are recorded when a loss is considered probable and can be reasonably estimated.
Judgment is necessary in assessing the likelihood that a pending claim or litigation against the
Group will succeed, or a liability will arise, quantifying the possible range of final settlement.
These judgments are made by management with the support of internal specialists, or with the
support of outside consultants such as legal counsel. Because of the inherent uncertainties in
this evaluation process, actual results may be different from these estimates.

Estimating service revenues earned but not yet billed:

The Company recognizes service revenues based upon minutes and seconds used, net of
credits and adjustments for service discounts. Because the Company’s billing cycles use cut-
off dates, which for the most part do not coincide with the Company’s reporting periods, the
Company is required to make estimates for service revenues earned but not yet billed at the
end of each reporting period. These estimates are based primarily upon actual unbilled usage
of the Company’s network by the customers, and also on historical data and trends. Actual
billing cycle results depend on subscriber usage and rate plan mix, from the results estimated
at the end of each period.



PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 4 - CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

b.

Critical judgments in applying the Group’s accounting policies (continued)

(3) Sales of equipment with accompanying services:

(4)

®)

(6)

The Group made judgments to determine that certain sales of equipment with accompanying
services constitute an arrangement with multiple deliverables that are linked in such a way
that the commercial effect cannot be understood without reference to the series of transactions
as a whole, and accordingly, consideration received is allocated to each deliverable based on
the relative fair value of the individual element. See also note 2(s)(2).

Deferred tax assets:

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that their utilization is probable. The
utilization of deferred tax assets will depend on whether it is probable that sufficient and
suitable taxable profits will be available in the future, against which the reversal of the
temporary differences can be deducted, taking into account any legal restrictions on the length
of loss-carryforward period. Various factors are used to assess the probability of the future
utilization of deferred tax assets, including past operating results, operational plans, loss-
carryforward periods, and tax planning strategies. See also note 25.

Determining CGUs for impairment tests of assets with finite useful lives:

For the purposes on impairment tests on assets with finite useful lives, the recoverable amount
is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. If this is the case, the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit (CGU) to which the asset
belongs. The Group uses judgment in determining which inflows generated are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, thus determining the CGU to
which an asset belongs.

In the beginning of 2012, management undertook a program to integrate the fixed-line
segment structure. As a result the reporting, monitoring, measuring results of operations and
allocating resources structures were integrated, and the inflows of the VOB/ISP operations of
Partner were no longer considered independent and separable from the inflows of the
VOBY/ISP operations of 012 Smile, since management allocated sale efforts between these
operations, based on marketing requirements, considering the products to be substitutes. Since
the inflows of these operations are inter-dependent, management has determined these
operations together represent the smallest identifiable group of assets which generate largely
independent cash inflows, and therefore represent a single VOB/ISP CGU.

Determining CGUs for impairment tests of goodwill:

For the purpose of goodwill impairment testing, the goodwill is allocated to CGUs or groups
of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the business combination. Such
allocation represents the lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and is not larger than an operating segment.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 4 - CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

b.

Critical judgments in applying the Group’s accounting policies (continued)

For the purpose of impairment testing, the Group made judgments to determine the group of
CGUs to which goodwill is allocated that represent the lowest level within the Group at which
goodwill is monitored by management for internal reporting. In the beginning of 2012
management undertook a program to integrate the fixed-line segment structure that included
aggregating all the fixed-line activities of the Group under the responsibility of Head of
Fixed-Line Division. As a result of this integration the reporting and monitoring structure was
aligned with the fixed-line segment, and goodwill, in an amount of NIS 407 million, is now
allocated to a single group of CGUs which constitute all the operations of the fixed-line
segment. See also note 13.

NOTE 5 - ACQUISITION OF 012 SMILE

a.

Transaction details

On March 3, 2011, (the “acquisition date”) the Company completed the acquisition of 012 Smile
Telecom Ltd., from Merhav-Ampal Energy Ltd. (the “Seller”), (the “Transaction™).

012 Smile, a private Israeli company, is a leading provider of communication services in Israel,
which provides a wide range of broadband and traditional voice services. 012 Smile’s broadband
services include broadband Internet access (ISP) with a suite of value-added services, specialized
data services and server hosting, as well as new innovative services such as local telephony via
voice over broadband (VOB) and a WiFi network of hotspots across Israel. Traditional voice
services include outgoing and incoming international telephony, hubbing, roaming and signaling
and calling card services. 012 Smile services residential and business customers, as well as Israeli
cellular operators and international communication services providers through its integrated
multipurpose network. 012 Smile’s integrated multipurpose network allows it to provide services
to almost all of the homes and businesses in Israel.

The Company has acquired all of the issued and outstanding shares of 012 Smile and therefore is
the controlling party of 012 Smile, which will allow it to become a leading comprehensive
communications group, expanding its services and products.

The consolidated financial statements include 012 Smile’s results of operations, changes in equity
and cash flows since the acquisition date. However, since acquisition date a structural separation
between the Company and 012 Smile was required to be kept in place for regulatory reasons until
December 14, 2011 (see also note 1 (b)).

The purchase price for the acquisition of 012 Smile was NIS 650 million which included the
acquisition of all of the outstanding shares of 012 Smile and a loan from the previous shareholder
to 012 Smile. The Company had previously paid NIS 30 million as a deposit for the acquisition.
The remaining NIS 620 million was funded by cash on hand of NIS 158 million and notes
payable of NIS 462 million. As part of the Transaction, 012 Smile undertook a liability to the
Company by an amount similar to the abovementioned loan. As part of the Transaction, the
Company also guaranteed the bank loans and other bank guarantees, which were provided to 012
Smile, in a total amount of approximately NIS 800 million. For information about developments
occurred after the acquisition date in respect of 012 Smile’s indebtedness see notes 15.
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NOTE 5 - ACQUISITION OF 012 SMILE (continued)

The acquisition is a business combination transaction and is accounted for using the purchase
method. Under the purchase method, assets and liabilities are recorded at their fair values on the
acquisition date and the total purchase price is allocated to the tangible and intangible assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed. The excess of the purchase price over

the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.

The following table summarizes the consideration paid for 012 Smile, and the amounts of the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed recognized at the acquisition date:

March 3, 2011

NISin
millions
CUITENT BSSELS ... euvieetietiestie ettt sttt ettt et 295
Deferred expenses — right 0f USe........cccceveveviie s, 282
Property and eqUIPMENT ........ccvieieieiecieceee e e 159
INtANGIDIE ASSELS.....ecveiciiecie e e 408
GOOAWITT ..o 494
Other NON-CUITENT BSSELS .....cveverieriiierieisie et 21
Short term bank borrowings and current maturities of long-term
DOITOWINGS ... (201)
Accounts payables and Provisions ...........cccvevieneincneineneeneeas (229)
Long term bank bOrrowings..........cocoeieneiieneisneeeeeee (579)
650

The fair value of the trade receivables purchased was NIS 225 million. The book value was NIS
226 million less allowance for doubtful debts of NIS 1 million.

Intangible assets include, among other assets: trade name that was valued using the “Relief from
Royalty” method, an approach under which fair value is estimated to be the present value of
royalties saved; and customer relationships that were valued using the “Multi-Period Excess
Earning” method, an approach under which the Company estimates the present value of expected
cash flows resulting from the existing customer relationships. See note 2(g) for the amortization
method and expected useful lives of intangible assets acquired in the business combination.

Goodwill in the amount of NIS 494 million arisen upon the acquisition date of 012 Smile on
March 3, 2011 was recognized as the excess of the consideration transferred over the net fair value
of the identifiable assets acquired, and identifiable liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed.
The goodwill is allocated to the fixed-line segment. The goodwill represents assets and earnings
that do not form separable identifiable assets under IFRS3, but are expected to contribute to the
future results of the fixed-line segment: reduction in costs through synergies and economies of
scale expected from combining the operations of 012 Smile and the Company; market knowledge;
and highly skilled workforce. The total amount of goodwill that was expected to be deductible for
income tax purposes as of the acquisition date is NIS 212 million. See also note 13.

Regarding impairment charges recorded in 2011, see notes 11, 12 and 13.
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NOTE 6 - SEGMENT INFORMATION

New Israeli Shekels
Year ended December 31,2012
In millions

Cellular  Fixed-line
segment  segment Elimination Consolidated

SegMENt rEVENUE - SEIVICES .....ccviveverierieseeeeeeeriereesienieseens 3,564 1,076 4,640
Inter-segment revenue - SErVICeS........ocuvreeveeriereneseneenn 28 134 (162)
Segment revenue - EQUIPMENt.........coceveiininicieiercee e 896 36 932
TOtal FEVENUES ..ottt e 4,488 1,246 (162) 5,572
Segment cost of revenues - SErviCeS.......coovvvverieverinreennnns 2,351 861 3,212
Inter-segment cost of revenues- Services.........cccovvvrereene. 134 28 (162)
Segment cost of revenues - EQUIpMENt...........ccoevereririenen 787 32 819
COSE OF FEVENUES .....coveviieitectieee ettt nea 3,272 921 (162) 4,031
GIrOSS Profit ..o 1,216 325 1,541
OPErating EXPENSES .....ccueruerueriereeiereeriesie e stesiesressesseeeeseens 584 203 787
Other iINCOME, NEL........cccooiiiiirieeee e 110 1 111
Operating Profit.......c.ccciiiiiiiiss e 742 123 865
Adjustments to presentation of Adjusted EBITDA
—Depreciation and amortization..........ccccceevvevnvriviinennnne. 562 164 726
e O 11T (1 T 10 1 11
Adjusted EBITDA (2) ..cccoveiieiieieece e 1,314 288 1,602
Reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to profit before income
BAX c1rvereeti ettt
- Depreciation and amortization............c.ccoceevereinnnnnn, 726
- FINANCE COSES, NBL ...cvviviveecciie e 234
= OthEr (1) oo 11

Profit before inCOME tax........coevveeviieviecie e 631
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(An Israeli Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 6 - SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment reVeNnUE - SEIVICES........covereererieeneese e
Inter-segment revenue - SErVICeS........ocuvreeveeriereneseneenn
Segment revenue - EQUIPMENt........ccoovieiiniiiicie e

TOtal FEVENUES ...t

Segment cost of revenues — ServiCeS......oovvvvverererierennens
Inter-segment cost of revenues- Services.........cocuvvveeenenas
Segment cost of revenues - EQUIpMENt...........ccoeevvereennen.

COSt Of FEVENUES ..ottt ettt
GIrOSS Profit ..o

OPErating EXPENSES .....ccueruerueriereeiereeriesie e stesiesressesseeeeseens
Impairment of goodwill ...,
Other iNCOME, NEL........ccciriiiiires e

Operating profit (I0SS) .......ccccvveieiiesieiiieierese e

Adjustments to presentation of Adjusted EBITDA
— Depreciation and amortization..........c.cceevvevrvrivinennne.
— Impairment of intangible assets, deferred expenses and
goodwill (See NOte 13)....cccviiiciiiieereee e
— OthEr (1) .eeieeieeeieeeee s

Adjusted EBITDA (2) ovvvveveeeeeeerrereeeeseeeeeeeeeeeeseseeeeesessens

Reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to profit before income
BAX ettt bbb
- Depreciation and amortization.............ccoceeeveneieniene.
- Impairment of intangible assets, deferred expenses and
GOOAWIT ...
-FINANCe COSLS, NEL .....vcveiiieiicee e
SOthEr (1) o

Profit before inComMe taX.........cocvveveeeei v

* Including impairment charges, see note 13.

New Israeli Shekels

Year ended December 31,2011

In millions

Cellular  Fixed-line
segment  segment Elimination Consolidated

4,219 1,005 5,224
29 122 (151)

1,748 26 1,774

5,99 1,153 (151) 6,998

2,601 969 3,570
122 29 (151)

1,379 29 1,408

4102~ *1,027 (151) 4978

1,894 126 2,020

712 *290 1,002

87 87

105 105

1,287 (251) 1,036

590 182 772

349 349

19 2 21

1,896 282 2,178

(772)

(349)

(294)

(21)

742
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NOTE 6 - SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

New Israeli Shekels
Year ended December 31,2010
In millions

Cellular  Fixed-line
segment  segment Elimination Consolidated

Total segment revenue - SErVICeS ........cvvvvvvereererenereeneenens 5,555 107 5,662
Inter-segment revenue - SErVICeS.......ocuvvereeieereenierienienees 20 57 (77)
Segment revenue - EQUIPMENt.........cccoveiininieieiccce e 987 25 1,012
TOtal FEVENUES ..ottt e 6,562 189 (77) 6,674
Segment cost of revenues — ServiCeS......oovvvvvverererierennens 3,174 133 3,307
Inter-segment cost of revenues- Services..........ccocvvvvvveenne. 57 20 (77)
Segment cost of revenues - EQUIpmMent...........coeevverrenen 751 35 786
COSt Of FEVENUES ...t 3,982 188 77 4,093
GroSS Profit ..ocveeee e 2,580 1 2,581
OPerating EXPENSES .....c.covererirreriererereeie ettt 760 25 785
Other iNCOME, NEL......ccviiiieecie e 64 64
Operating profit (I0SS) ........ccovvverieienierieienerisiesere e 1,884 (24) 1,860
Adjustments to presentation of Adjusted EBITDA
—Depreciation and amortization...........ccccceeeveeveieiennenn, 633 36 669
—Impairment of intangible assets ..........ccocvvevevveieercrennns 16 16
e 11T (1 T 25 25
Adjusted EBITDA (2) ..cccovoiiiiieieeseseese e 2,558 12 2,570
Reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to profit before income
tax
- Depreciation and amortization.............ccocevevererrnenne. (669)
- Impairment of intangible assets............cccovvneinennn, (16)
-Finance COStS, Nt ..o (181)
SOLNEE (1) o (25)

Profit before inCOME tax........cocceveeiiievi e 1,679

(1) Mainly employee share based compensation expenses.

(2) Adjusted EBITDA as reviewed by the CODM, represents Earnings Before Interest (finance costs, net), Taxes,
Depreciation, Amortization (including amortization of intangible assets, deferred expenses-right of use, and share
based compensation expenses) and impairment charges, as a measure of segment profit. Adjusted EBITDA is not a
financial measure under IFRS and may not be comparable to other similarly titled measures in other companies.
Adjusted EBITDA may not be indicative of the Group’s historic operating results nor is it meant to be predictive of
potential future results. The usage of the term “Adjusted EBITDA” is to highlight the fact that the Amortization
includes amortization of deferred expenses — right of use and employee share based compensation expenses; it is
fully comparable to EBITDA information which has been previously provided for prior periods.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 7 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

a.

Financial risk factors

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks: credit, liquidity and market risks as part of its
normal course of business. The Group’s risk management objective is to monitor risks and
minimize the possible influence that results from this exposure, according to its evaluations and
expectations of the parameters that affect the risks. The Group uses freestanding derivative
instruments in order to partially cover its exposure to foreign currency exchange rates. The
freestanding derivative instruments are used for economic risk management that does not qualify
for hedge accounting under IAS 39. The Group does not hold or issue derivative financial
instruments for trading purposes.

1. Risk Management

Risk management is carried out by the treasury department under policies and/or directions
resolved and approved by the board of directors.

2. Market risks
(a) Description of market risks

The Group enters into foreign currency freestanding derivative transactions in order to
protect itself against the risk that the eventual Dollar and Euro cash flows resulting from the
anticipated payments, mainly in respect of trade receivables and trade payables
denominated in foreign currencies are affected by changes in foreign currencies exchange
rates.

Price risk

The Group is not exposed to price risk since it does not hold investments in securities.

Fair value risk due to interest rate changes

The fair value risk due to interest rate changes arises from non-current borrowings and
notes payable bearing fixed interest rates. Since they are measured and presented in the
statement of financial position at amortized cost, changes in the interest rate do not affect
the financial statements nor cash flows in respect of the notes payable. The Group does not
enter into interest risk hedging transactions.

Cash flow risk due to interest rate changes and CPI changes

The Group is exposed to fluctuations in the Israeli Consumer Price index (CPI), as some of
the Group’s non-current borrowings and notes payable are linked to the CPI. The Group did
not enter into CPI hedging transaction in 2011 and 2012.

Furthermore, the Group’s notes payable and non-current borrowings bearing variable
interest rate cause cash flow risks. Based on simulations performed, an increase (decrease)
of 1% interest rates during 2012 in respect of the abovementioned financial instruments
would have resulted in an increase (decrease) in interest expenses of NIS 12 million. The
Group does not enter into interest rate hedging transactions.



PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
NOTE 7 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
a. Financial risk factors (continued)
2. Market risks (continued)
(a)  Description of market risks (continued)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s operating income and cash flows are exposed to currency risk, mainly due
trade receivables and trade payables denominated in foreign currencies. As part of its risk
management policy the Group enters into forward exchange contracts to partially
mitigate the exposure to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates (mainly USD and EURO).

(b)  Analysis of linkage terms of financial instruments balances

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk and CPl was based on the following
financial instruments:

December 31, 2012

In or linked
to other
foreign
currencies
In or linked (mainly NIS linked to
to USD EURO) CPI NIS unlinked Total
New Israeli Shekels In millions

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents...........ccccccoeeerrrrercninennnenn. 3 545 548

Trade receivables 8 47 1,342 1,397

Other receivables 20 20

Derivative financial instruments (*).........cccccovvveeenne 1 1
Non- current assets

Trade receivables.........covveeeiiinnsceeeece 509 509
TOLAl ASSELS ..vvvveveriririeeete e 12 47 2,416 2,475
Current liabilities

Current maturities of notes payable and of other

liabilities and current bOrrowings...........cccoveeene 120 186 306

Trade payables..........cocoeciiinncee e 110 61 695 866

Parent group - trade .........ccccoervrvreereeiereririeeereseseeieenens 45 25 70

Payables in respect of employees and other payables

(mainly iNStItUtIONS) ....c.cveveeeriiicce e 1 2 108 111

Derivative financial instruments (*) 14 14
Non- current liabilities

NOtES PAYADIE ....coovvvreiceie s 1,046 1,275 2,321

Bank borrowings 1,007 726 1,733
Total liabilities .......cccccevvveiiicceeee e 170 61 2,175 3,015 5,421

(*) Relates to freestanding forward derivative financial instruments and embedded derivative financial instruments.



PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.
(An Israeli Corporation)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
NOTE 7 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
a.  Financial risk factors (continued)
2. Market risks (continued)
(b)  Analysis of linkage terms of financial instruments balances (continued)

December 31, 2011

In or
linked to
other
foreign
Inor currencies
linked to (mainly  NIS linked NIS
uUsD EURO) to CPI unlinked Total
New Israeli Shekels In millions
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents ..............c.c........ 2 1 529 532
Trade receivables........cccoccvvveiieeiiccecienen, 25 15 1,478 1,518
Other receivables .........cocovvveeieiiciiiiieinins 15 15
Derivative financial instruments (*) .......... 24 24

Non- current assets
Trade receivables.........ccoceeeeveieevcciee e, 856 856

Total ASSELS ....ccveeeiiviiee e 51 16 2,878 2,945

Current liabilities
Current maturities of notes payable and of

other liabilities and current borrowings . 424 74 498
Trade payables........ccocovevevenenieieceieennns 139 66 708 913
Parent group - trade.........ccoeeveveieienennenn, 87 55 142

Payables in respect of employees and other

payables (mainly institutions)................ 2 5 207 214
Derivative financial instruments (*) .......... 3 3
Non- current liabilities
Notes payable.........ccccovvniniiiiniee, 1,148 1,457 2,605
Bank borrowings.......cccceevvviieiiicnenenien, 992 1,076 2,068
Other non-current liabilities...........c.c..cc..... 1 1
Total liabilities........ccoccovvriieniiiieneeee, 232 66 2,569 3,577 6,444

(*) Relates to freestanding forward derivative financial instruments and embedded derivative financial
instruments.



PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.
(An Israeli Corporation)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
NOTE 7 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
a. Financial risk factors (continued)

2. Market risks (continued)

(c)  Sensitivity analysis
A change of the CPI as at December 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012 would have increased

(decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes
that all other variables remain constant.

Change Equity Profit
New Israeli Shekels In
millions

December 31, 2010

Increase inthe CPI Of.........cccooiiiiice e 2.0% (40) (40)
Decrease inthe CPIOf ... (2.0)% 40 40
December 31, 2011

Increase inthe CPI Of.......cccov i 2.0% (51) (51)
Decrease inthe CPIOf ......ocviveiie e (2.0)% 51 51
December 31, 2012

Increase inthe CPI Of ... 2.0% (44) (44)
Decrease inthe CP1Of ..o (2.0)% 44 44

A change of the USD exchange rate as at December 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012 would have
increased (decreased) equity and profit by the amounts shown below. This analysis is based
on contractual balances of assets and liabilities denominated or linked to USD, assuming
that all other variables remain constant.

Change Equity Profit
New Israeli Shekels In
millions

December 31, 2010

Increase in the USD Of ........ooovviiiiiee e 5.0% 1 1
Decrease inthe USD Of ... (5.00% Q 1)
December 31, 2011

Increase iN the USD Of .......coovveeeiiie et 5.0% 6 6
Decrease in the USD Of .......cccooiienciiiiniieneceeeeee (5.00% (6) (6)

December 31, 2012
Increase in the USD Of ........oooviiiiiiiice e, 5.0% 3 3
Decrease inthe USD Of ......cocooeiiiiiiii e (5.0)% 3) 3)



PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.
(An Israeli Corporation)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
NOTE 7 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
a. Financial risk factors (continued)
2. Market risks (continued)
(c)  Sensitivity analysis (continued)

Data regarding the dollar exchange rate and the Israeli CPI:

Exchange Exchange
rate of one rate of one Israeli
Dollar Euro CPI*
At December 31:
2002 et NIS 3.733 NIS 4.921 219.80 points
2001 i NIS 3.821 NIS 4.938 216.27 points
2000 1 NIS 3.549 NIS 4.738 211.67 points
Increase (decrease) during the year:
2002 1o (2.3)% (0.35)% 1.6%
2001 o 7.7% 4.2% 2.2%
2000 i (6)% (12.9)% 2.7%
* Based on the index for the month ending on the end of each reporting period, on the basis of 1993 average =
100 points.
(d) Details regarding the derivative financial instruments - foreign exchange and CPI risk
management
The notional amounts of derivatives as of December 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012 are as
follows:
New Israeli Shekels
December 31
2010 2011 2012
In millions
Forward transactions pay NIS, receive NIS linked to Israeli CPI.. 80 - -
Forward transactions pay NIS, receive USD ...........ccocevevvvivinennns 334 382 373
Forward transactions pay Euro, receive USD.......cc.cccovvvvevrervernennn. - 100 247
Embedded derivatives pay USD, receive NIS .........cccccoevvienennn. 144 56 64

The table above is based on the amounts of currencies to be received, translated into NIS at
the exchange rates prevailing at each of the reporting dates above, respectively.

See also (a)(4) below regarding maturity dates of the derivative financial instruments.



PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.
(An Israeli Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 7 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

a.

Financial risk factors (continued)

3. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group’s trade
receivables, and also from cash and cash equivalents, freestanding forward contracts, and other
receivables. Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is
monitored on an ongoing basis. The Group conducts credit evaluations on receivables of certain
types over a certain amount, and requires collaterals against them. Management monitors
outstanding receivable balances and the financial statements include appropriate allowances for
estimated irrecoverable amounts.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period was:

New Israeli Shekels
December 31

2011 2012
In millions
Cash and cash equivalents........c..cccceverevieninsiecieciesenn, 532 548
Trade receivables including non-current amounts........... 2,374 1,906
Forward exchange contracts on foreign currencies ......... 24 -
Other receivables.........ccovreiviiiiie e 15 20
2,945 2,474

The cash and cash equivalents are held in leading Israeli commercial banks, rated by Standard &
Poor’s Maalot at between ilAA-/Stable to ilAA+/stable. The Forward contracts are signed with
leading Israeli commercial banks, rated by Standard & Poor’s Maalot at between ilAA/Stable to
ilAA+/Stable.

The trade receivables are significantly widespread, and include individuals and businesses, and
therefore have no representing credit rating.

See also note 8 as to the assessment by aging of the trade receivables and related allowance for
doubtful accounts.

. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they
fall due. The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will
always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, without incurring unacceptable
losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation. The Group’s policy is to ensure that it has
sufficient cash and cash equivalents, and credit facilities to meet expected operational expenses,
dividends and financial obligations.



PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.
(An Israeli Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 7 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

a. Financial risk factors (continued)
4. Liquidity risk (continued)
The following are the contractual undiscounted maturities of financial liabilities, including
estimated interest payments:
More
1st 2nd 3rd 4t05 than
December 31, 2012 year year year years 5 years Total
New Israeli Shekels In millions
Notes payable series B.................. 136 132 128 124 520
Notes payable series C.................. 23 23 23 499 238 806
Notes payable series D.................. 16 16 16 141 469 658
Notes payable series E................... 238 228 218 405 1,089
Bank borrowings.........cccccceeviennenn. 63 367 357 520 715 2,022
Trade and other payables.............. 962 962
Parent group- trade .........c..cccuvee.e. 70 70
Derivative financial instruments... 14 14
1,522 766 742 1,689 1,422 6,141

See notes 15 and 16 in respect of bank borrowings and notes payable.
Capital risk management

Credit rating: On December 6, 2012 Standard & Poor’s Maalot (“S&P Maalot”), reaffirmed the
Company’s credit rating of ilAA-/Negative on a local scale.

See note 15(3) regarding financial covenants.
See note 21(c) regarding dividends.
Fair values of financial instruments

The financial instruments that are measured at fair value through profit or loss are derivative
financial instruments. The fair value of forward contracts and embedded derivatives are calculated
by discounting estimated future cash flows based on the terms and maturity of each contract and
using forward rates for a similar instrument at the measurement date. This calculation uses inputs
other than quoted prices in active markets, that are observable for the assets or liabilities, either
directly or indirectly (that is derived from prices) — this matches the “Level 2” fair value
measurement hierarchy as determined by IFRS 7.

As detailed in note 2(k) the financial instruments are categorized as following:

Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL); Loans and Receivables (L&R); Amortized Cost
(AC).



PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.

(An Israeli Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 7 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying amounts shown in the
statement of financial position, are as follows:

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents...
Trade receivables.................

Other receivables (*¥) ...........
Derivative financial
instruments .........ccoceevenen.

Liabilities

Notes payable series A ........
Notes payable series B ........
Notes payable series C ........
Notes payable series D ........
Notes payable seriesE.........

Trade payables (*)
Bank borrowing bearing
variable interest (*).........
Bank borrowings bearing
fixed interest- unlinked...
Bank borrowings bearing
fixed interest - linked to

Bank borrowings bearing
fixed interest - linked to

Parent group — trade (*).......

Finance lease obligation (*)
Derivative financial
instruments .........ccccceeve.

*)

December 31, 2011

December 31, 2012

Carrying Interest rate Carrying Interest rate

Category amount Fair value used (**) amount Fair value used (**)
New Israeli Shekels In millions
L&R 532 532 548 548
L&R 2,374 2,395 7.55% 1,906 1,907 6.77%
L&R 15 15 20 20
FVTPL
Level 2 24 24 1 1
AC 393 394  Market quote - -
AC 470 475  Market quote 478 503  Market quote
AC 678 666  Market quote 688 741  Market quote
AC 540 473 Market quote 540 515  Market quote
AC 917 944  Market quote 921 987  Market quote
913 913 866 866

AC 700 700 376 376
AC 450 470 5.29% 350 388 3.51%
AC 514 487 3.80% 522 545 1.83%
AC 509 504 3.64% 485 519 1.71%
AC 142 142 70 70
AC 3 3 1 1
FVTPL
Level 2 3 3 14 14

The fair value of this current financial instrument does not differ significantly from its carrying amount, as the
impact of discounting is not significant.

(**) Weighted average of interest rate used to calculate the fair value based on discounted cash flows.



PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.
(An Israeli Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 8 - TRADE RECEIVABLES

(@)

(b)

Composition:

New Israeli Shekels
December 31

2011 2012
In millions
Trade (current and NON-CUITENt) ........cccvvverveeriennn 2,743 2,212
Deferred interest iNCOME...........ccocoveveieicncnennns (125) (84)
Allowance for doubtful accounts...........c.cccoeneeee. (244) (222)
2,374 1,906
CUITENE ..t 1,518 1,397
NON — CUMTENT ...t 856 509

Non-current trade receivables bear no interest. These balances are in respect of equipment sold in
installments (18-36 monthly payments). The current amount is computed on the basis of the
interest rate relevant at the date of the transaction (2011 — 5.53% - 7.81%) (2012 — 6.77% -
7.25%).

During 2011 and 2012 the Company factored non-current trade receivables resulting from sales
of handsets through credit cards in an amount of NIS 383 million and NIS 321 million,
respectively. The factoring was executed through a clearing company, on a non-recourse basis.
The factoring of accounts receivable was recorded by the Company as a sale transaction under
the provisions of IAS 39. The resulting costs were charged to “finance expenses” in the statement
of income, as incurred.

The Group does not have continuing involvement in the factored non-current trade receivables.
Allowance for doubtful accounts:

The changes in the allowance for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012 are as
follows:

New Israeli Shekels

Year ended
2010 2011 2012

In millions
Balance at beginning of year...........ccccooevvcniniinen 249 256 244
Receivables written-off during the year as

uncollectible..........cooooiiiinii (43) (55) (69)

Charge or expense during the year...........c.ccoccverennene 50 43 47
Balance at end of Year..........ccocoovveiiineineneeeee 256 244 222

Doubtful accounts expenses are recorded in the statement of income under General and
Administrative expenses.

See note 7(a)(3) regarding trade receivables credit risk.



PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.
(An Israeli Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 8 - TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

(b)

Allowance for doubtful accounts (continued)

The aging of gross trade receivables and their respective allowance for doubtful accounts as of
December 31, 2011 and 2012 is as follows:

Gross Allowance Gross Allowance
New Israeli Shekels In millions
December 31

2011 2012
NOt Past dU.......cccceveereriireririeeeerinns 2,350 41 1,867 31
Past due less than one year ................. 211 68 163 60
Past due more than one year............... 182 135 182 131
2,743 244 2,212 222

NOTE 9 - INVENTORY

a.

Composition
New Israeli Shekels
December 31
2011 2012
In millions

HANASELS ... 129 67
ACCeSSOries and ONEr .........ccoiiiiieiire e 14 12
SPANE PAMS ..ttt 12 12
ISP modems, routers, servers and related equipment................ 7 7

162 98

Inventories at December 31, 2012, are presented net of write offs due to decline in value in the
amount of NIS 2 million (December 31, 2011 - NIS 5 million).

The cost of inventory recognized as expenses and included in cost of revenues for the years ended
December 31, 2011 and 2012 amounted to NIS 1,434 million, and NIS 841 million, respectively.



PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.

(An Israeli Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 10 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Computers Office
and Optic fibers  furniture Property and
Communication information  and related and leasehold
network (**)(*) systems(*) assets equipment improvements Total
New Israeli Shekels In millions

COST.iiieiree et

Balance at January 1, 2010..........ccccun.. 1,931 222 301 27 200 2,681
AdItions ..o 224 99 27 4 28 382
DiSPOSalS......ccviirrieeiree e 26 4 - 10 - 40
Balance at December 31, 2010.............. 2,129 317 328 21 228 3,023
Acquisition of 012 Smile..........cccccevne. 101 27 7 24 159
AdItions ..o 217 45 37 5 37 341
DiSPOSalS......cciiirrieeiree e 57 35 1 3 24 120
Balance at December 31, 2011.............. 2,390 354 364 30 265 3,403
AddItions ... 295 61 48 3 17 424
DiSPOSalS......ccviririeieeiireseeee s 184 14 2 4 204
Balance at December 31, 2012.............. 2,501 401 412 31 278 3,623
Accumulated Depreciation .................

Balance at January 1, 2010.... 459 64 25 14 55 617
Depreciation for the year-... 278 50 19 9 29 385
Disposals.......ccccovrriieeininns . 23 4 - 10 - 37
Balance at December 31, 2010.............. 714 110 44 13 84 965
Depreciation for the year..........c.ccoe.... 369 66 26 6 35 502
DiSPOSAS.....c.cveviviririiceee e 55 35 2 23 115
Balance at December 31, 2011.............. 1,028 141 70 17 96 1,352
Depreciation for the year...........c.c......... 352 62 23 5 42 484
DiSPOSalS......cccviireieeeireeeee e 183 14 2 4 203
Balance at December 31, 2012.............. 1,197 189 93 20 134 1,633
Carrying amounts, net

At December 31, 2010.........cccoeveueurinnnne 1,415 207 284 8 144 2,058
At December 31, 2011.....ccccveveervnennne 1,362 213 294 13 169 2,051
At December 31, 2012........cccocovreieenneee 1,304 212 319 11 144 1,990

*) Including finance leased in an immaterial amount.

(**) Cost additions in 2011 and 2012 include capitalization of salary expenses an amount of approximately NIS
16 million and NIS 24 million, respectively.

Depreciation expenses are included in the statement of income: in cost of revenues NIS 363 million, NIS 470 million
and NIS 454 million; selling and marketing expenses NIS 10 million, NIS 15 million and NIS 13 million; and general
and administrative expenses NIS 12 million, NIS 17 million and NIS 17 million for the years ended December 31,
2010, 2011 and 2012 respectively. See also note 2(f).



PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.
(An Israeli Corporation)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
NOTE 11 - INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets with finite economic useful lives:

Subscriber
acquisition
Customer and retention Computer
Licenses Trade name relationships costs software(*) Total
New Israeli Shekels In millions
Cost
Balance at January 1, 2010..........ccccuenee 2,092 18 181 407 2,698
Additions 72 52 124
Disposals 7 187 45 239
Balance at December 31, 2010.............. 2,085 18 66 414 2,583
Acquisition of 012 Smile . 3 73 258 35 39 408
AdItioNS ..o 33 127 160
DiSPOSalS.....c.ccriieriniiiceeee e 51 112 163
Balance at December 31, 2011. . 2,088 73 276 83 468 2,988
Additions ........ocoeeieiiniinien . 9 134 143
Disposals........cccoevrriieiiininnns . 20 139 159
Balance at December 31, 2012.............. 2,088 73 276 72 463 2,972
Accumulated amortization and
impairment...........coccoeoninncicnnnne
Balance at January 1, 2010 . 1,093 10 70 265 1,438
Amortization for the year ...... . 80 3 141 60 284
Impairment charge......... . 16 16
DiSPOSalS......cccvrvrrrieieeiireeeeee s 187 45 232
Balance at December 31, 2010.............. 1,173 13 40 280 1,506
Amortization for the year ...... . 81 4 29 52 75 241
Impairment charge......... . 14 73 27 114
DiSPOSalS.....c.ceriviriiiiiceeeee 51 112 163
Balance at December 31, 2011.............. 1,254 18 115 68 243 1,698
Amortization for the year ...........cc........ 82 5 25 19 85 216
DiSPOSalS......ccviiirieiirsece e 20 139 159
Balance at December 31, 2012.............. 1,336 23 140 67 189 1,755
Carrying amounts, net
At December 31, 2010.....c.cccveveervnennne. 912 5 26 134 1,077
At December 31, 2011.....cccvverevvnnnnne. 834 55 161 15 225 1,290
At December 31, 2012.......c.ccoovevrvennnns 752 50 136 5 274 1,217

(*) Cost additions in 2010, 2011, and 2012 include capitalization of salary expenses of approximately NIS 15
million, NIS 29 million and NIS 37, respectively.

Amortization expenses including impairment charges in amounts of NIS 300 million, NIS 238 million and NIS 187 were
charged to cost of revenues, for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012 respectively; amounts of NIS 117
million and NIS 29 million were charged to selling and marketing cost, for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2012.
See also note 2(Q).



PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.
(An Israeli Corporation)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
NOTE 12 - DEFERRED EXPENSES - RIGHT OF USE

New Israeli
Shekels in

millions
Cost
Balance at January 1, 2011........cccooiiiieieieieeeeeese et -
AcquiSItion 0F 012 SMILE ....o.vciiiicice e 311
Additional payments during the Year ... 27
Balance at December 31, 2011.......c.ccooeiiirieiene e 338
Additional payments during the Year ... 25
Balance at December 31, 2012........cccccoieiiiiieiinieeee e 363
Accumulated amortization and impairment
Balance at January 1, 2011........cccociiiieieeeseeieiene et -
Amortization during the period (*) ... 29
Impairment charge (S NOtE 13(Q)) ..vvevvevvrrirrreeeeriere e e et 148
Balance at December 31, 2011.......ccccoueiiierieieie et 177
Amortization during the Period...........cccccve i 26
Balance at December 31, 2012........ccccceieiieieiinieieee e 203
Carrying amount, net
At DECEMDBEN 3L, 2011 ..ottt st 161
CUITENT ... r bbbt nn e n b ene e 19
NON-CUITEINT ...ttt e b et e e an e sae e sae e 142
Carrying amount, net
At DECEMDBET 3L, 2012 ..ot 160
CUITENT ... r bbbt nn e n b ene e 22
NON-CUITEINT ...ttt sb et e an e e sae e 138

See also note 18(5).

(*) The amortization was recorded for the period beginning March 3, 2011 the date of acquisition of
012 Smile, and until December 31, 2011.

The amortization charges are classified as cost of revenues in the statement of income.



PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.

(An Israeli Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 13 - IMPAIRMENT TESTS

a.

Impairment tests of assets with finite useful economic lives

(1)

@)

Subscriber acquisition and retention costs

In December 2010, an amendment to the Telecommunications Law was substantially
enacted, effective February 2011, which determined that customers with commitment
agreements for no more than 100 cellular telephone lines that terminate a commitment
agreement during the commitment period may not be charged a penalty that exceeds 8%
of the subscriber’s average monthly bill for operator’s services until termination,
multiplied by the balance of the remaining number of months in the commitment period.
For commitment agreements signed prior to February 1, 2011, these new provisions will
apply to subscribers with no more than 50 cellular telephone lines.

As a result, the Group recorded in 2010 impairment of intangible asset of cellular
subscriber acquisition and retention costs (cellular segment) in an amount of NIS 16
million.

In August 2011, an additional amendment to the Telecommunications Law was enacted
with respect to exit fees charged from subscribers of various other telecommunications
operators: cable and satellite, internet, fixed-line telephony and international telephony.
According to the amendment, new subscribers may not be charged exit fees while
existing subscribers with average monthly bills lower than NIS 5000, may be charged
exit fees of no more than 8% of the subscriber’s average monthly bill for operator’s
services until termination, multiplied by the balance of the remaining number of months
in the commitment period.

As a result, the Group recorded in 2011 impairment of intangible asset of VOB and ISP
subscriber acquisition costs (fixed-line segment) in an amount of NIS 27 million. The
impairments were charged to cost of revenues.

Effective April 2012, an additional amendment was enacted which determines that
subscribers who signed commitment agreements after November 1, 2011, will not be
charged exit fees at all. The amendment applies to subscribers with commitment
agreements for no more than 100 lines that terminate a commitment agreement during the
commitment period. This had no material impact on the financial statements.

Assets of the VOB/ISP CGU

During December 2011, Bezeq International Ltd. completed the installation of an
underwater cable between Israel and Italy and began commercial use thereafter. In
addition, Tamares Telecom Ltd. was in the final stages of laying another underwater
cable which was completed in January 2012, allowing new communication channels
between Israel and Western Europe. The additional capacity significantly increased the
level of competition in the market for international connectivity services that, until
December 2011, had been comprised of a sole monopoly supplier. The increased
competition in the market for international connectivity services during the fourth quarter
of 2011 led to a sharp decline in prices and the Company’s expectations for increased
competition in the retail ISP market that would lead to a decrease in prices and market
share, indicated the need to perform an impairment test to certain assets of the fixed-line
segment as at December 31, 2011.
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(An Israeli Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 13 - IMPAIRMENT TESTS

a.

Impairment tests of assets with finite useful economic lives (continued)

(2) Assets of the VOB/ISP CGU (continued)

For the purpose of the impairment test as at December 31, 2011, the assets were grouped to
the lowest level for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (CGU). The Group
reviewed the recoverability of the VOB/ISP assets. As a result, an impairment charge in a
total amount of NIS 235 million was recognized. The impairment charge was allocated to
the assets of the CGU pro rata, on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset, provided
that the impairment did not reduce the carrying amount of an asset below the highest of its
fair value less costs to sell and its value-in-use, and zero. Accordingly, the following
impairment charges were recorded in 2011with respect to the assets of the above CGU:

(a) Trade name by NIS 14 million, recorded in selling and marketing expenses.
(b) Customer relationships by NIS 73 million, recorded in selling and marketing expenses.
(c) Right of use (see note 12) by NIS 148 million, recorded in cost of revenues.

The recoverable amount as at December 31, 2011 was assessed by management with the
assistance of an external independent expert (“Giza Singer Even. Ltd”) based on value-in-
use calculations. The value in use calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections covering a
five-year period and using extrapolation with specific adjustments expected until 2027, and
a pre-tax discount rate of 12.5%. The value-in-use calculations included all factors in real
terms.

The impairment test as at December 31, 2011 was based on assessments of financial
performance and future strategies in light of current and expected market and economic
conditions. Trends in the economic and financial environment, competition and regulatory
authorities’ decisions, or changes in competitors’ behavior in response to the economic
environment may affect the estimate of recoverable amounts in future periods. See also
notes 2(j), 4(a)(2), 4(b)(6).

Goodwill impairment tests

The goodwill was allocated to the fixed-line segment in an amount of NIS 494 million in a
business combination on March 3, 2011 (see note 5).

Goodwill impairment test as of December 31, 2011

For the purpose of impairment testing as of December 31, 2011, the goodwill was allocated to
CGU and to a group of CGUs within the fixed-line segment that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and represent the lowest level for which the goodwill is monitored

for internal management purposes:
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 13 - IMPAIRMENT TESTS (continued)

b.

Goodwill impairment tests (continued)

(1) ISP/VOB, and ILD group of CGUs NIS 426 million,
(2) Transmission and PRI CGU NIS 68 million.

For the purpose of the goodwill impairment test as of December 31, 2011, the recoverable
amount was assessed by management with the assistance of an external independent expert
(“Giza Singer Even. Ltd”) based on value-in-use calculation which was determined higher than
fair value less costs to sell. The value-in-use calculations used pre-tax cash flow projections
covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period to be generated from
continuing use are extrapolated using estimated growth rates. The growth rates do not exceed the
long-term average growth rate of the fixed-line communications services business. The key
assumptions used are as follows:

ISP/VOB and ILD Transmission and
group of CGUs PRI CGU
Growth rate......coeevevevievcreiesnreens 0.4)% 1%
After-tax discount rate..................... 12.1% 11.5%
Pre-tax discount rate...........c...c.c...... 14.9% 15%

The value-in-use calculations as of December 31, 2011 included all factors in real terms. The
assumptions presented above for the ISP/\VOB group of CGUs are derivative of the growth rate,
after tax discount rate, and pre-tax rate for the ISP/VOB CGU: 0%, 11.5%, and 13.1%, and for
the ILD CGU:(-1)%, 13%, and 17.6%, respectively.

The impairment test as of December 31, 2011 was based on assessments of financial
performance and future strategies in light of current and expected market and economic
conditions. Trends in the economic and financial environment, competition and regulatory
authorities’ decisions, or changes in competitors’ behavior in response to the economic
environment may affect the estimate of recoverable amounts. See also note 4(a)(6) and note 2(i).

As a result of the impairment test, the Group recorded as of December 31, 2011 an impairment
charge to goodwill in respect of the ISP/\VOB and ILD group of CGUs in 2011 in the amount of
NIS 87 million.

Goodwill impairment test as of December 31, 2012

Since the beginning of 2012, management undertook a program to integrate the fixed-line
segment structure, that included aggregating all the fixed-line activities of the Group under the
responsibility of Head of Fixed-Line Division. As a result of this integration the reporting and
monitoring structure was aligned with the fixed-line segment and goodwill is now allocated to a
single group of CGUs which constitute all the operations of the fixed-line segment, in an amount
of NIS 407 million.

For the purpose of impairment testing as of December 31, 2012, this group of CGUs now
represents the lowest level within the Group at which goodwill is monitored by management for
internal reporting purposes.
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NOTE 13 - IMPAIRMENT TESTS (continued)

b.

Goodwill impairment tests (continued)

For the purpose of the goodwill impairment test as of December 31, 2012, the recoverable
amount was assessed by management with the assistance of an external independent expert
(“Giza Singer Even. Ltd”) based on value-in-use calculations. The value-in-use calculations use
pre-tax cash flow projections covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year
period to be generated from continuing use are extrapolated using estimated growth rates. The
growth rates do not exceed the long-term average growth rate of the fixed-line communications
services business. The key assumptions used are as follows:

Growth rate (negative 0.2%)
After-tax discount rate........c.coceveeivvereenne 11.7%
Pre-tax discount rate..........oceveeveveeeeiiiieeenne 15.7%

The impairment test as of December 31, 2012 was based on assessments of financial
performance and future strategies in light of current and expected market and economic
conditions. Trends in the economic and financial environment, competition and regulatory
authorities’ decisions, or changes in competitors’ behavior in response to the economic
environment may affect the estimate of recoverable amounts. See also note 4(a)(6) and note 2(i).

As a result of the impairment test, the Group determined that no goodwill impairment exists as of
December 31, 2012.

Sensitivity Analysis:

Sensitivity analysis was performed for a change of the after-tax discount rate within the range of
+ 10% multiplied by the variable 11.7% (10.53% to 12.87%), assuming all other variables
constant. Sensitivity analysis was also performed for a change of the terminal permanent growth
rate within the range of + 1% of the variable minus 0.2% (minus 1.2% to 0.8%), assuming all
other variables constant. Results showed that no impairment charge is required.
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NOTE 14 - PROVISIONS INCLUDING DISMANTLING AND RESTORING SITES OBLIGATION

Dismantling
and restoring
sites Legal Handset
obligation claims* warranty
New Israeli Shekels In millions
Balance as at January 1, 2012 .........cccoevevveiveiicinennns 25 54 11
Additions during the year..........cc.ccceceveveneiennnnnan, 3 10 14
Reductions during the year ........cc.cccovvvveveiercneinns (1) (9) (20)
Unwind of discount...........ccccvevvviveieienenieveseseanns 1
Balance as at December 31, 2012 .........ccccceeeevennene 28 55 5
NON-CUMTENT ..o 28 - -
CUITENT e - 55 5
Balance as at December 31, 2011 ........cccccevvevnennee. 25 54 11
NON-CUITENT ..ot 25 - -
LGN [ (= o | - 54 11

* See also note 20
Dismantling and restoring sites obligation

The abovementioned additions during the year and reductions during the year are non-cash
transactions recorded against property and equipment.

NOTE 15 - BANK BORROWINGS
(1) Credit Facilities
The Group had credit facilities from leading Israeli commercial banks as follows:
(@) Facility D received by the Company on November 24, 2009, in the amount of NIS 700
million. No amounts were drawn under this facility as of December 31, 2011. In July 2012,

the Group initiated a reduction of credit Facility D to NIS 25 million. The Company was
charged a commitment fee of 0.4% per year for undrawn amounts.

(b) 012 Smile also had a credit facility in the amount of NIS 80 million. This facility was
partially used as of December 31, 2011 to secure bank guarantees. In July 2012, the credit
facility was reduced to NIS 35 million. 012 Smile was charged a commitment fee of 0.4%
per year for undrawn amounts.

Both credit facilities expired on December 31, 2012.
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NOTE 15- BANK BORROWINGS (continued)
(2) Bank Borrowings
The Group has received bank loans from leading Israeli commercial banks. The Group may, at its
discretion prepay the loans, subject to certain conditions, including that the Group shall
reimburse the bank for losses sustained by the bank as a result of the prepayment. The
reimbursement is mainly based on the difference between the interest rate that the Group would
otherwise pay and the current market interest rate on the prepayment date.
The Israeli Prime interest rate is determined by the Bank of Israel and updated on a monthly
basis. The Israeli Prime interest rate as of December 31, 2011 and 2012 was 4.25% and 3.25%

per year, respectively.

Bank borrowings as of December 31, 2012;

Total
principal Date originally Linkage
(**) received terms Annual interest rate
(NIS m)
Loan A (*)....... 522  Nov 11, 2010 CPI 2.75% CPI adj.
Loan C............. 175  Jun 8, 2010 5.7% fixed
LoanD............ 175  Jun9, 2010 5.7% fixed
LoanE............. 376 May 8, 2011 Prime minus 0.025%
Loan F (*) ....... 485  Apr 10,2011 CPI 3.42% CPI adj.
1,733

(*) The principal amounts include CPI linkage differences as of December 31, 2012
(**) All the principal amounts of the bank borrowings are non-current
Additional information:

Loan A: The interest is payable on a semi-annual basis. The principal amount is repayable in
three equal annual installments between 2016 and 2018.

Loan B: On December 31, 2009, a loan was received in the amount of NIS 300 million for period
of 4 years, bearing variable interest at the rate of the Israeli Prime interest rate minus a margin of
0.35%. The interest was payable quarterly. The principal was payable in one payment at the end
of the loan period. On July 25, November 25 and December 9, 2012, the Company prepaid
principal portions of Loan B in the amounts of NIS 25 million, NIS 70 million and NIS 205
million, respectively, which were due originally in December 28, 2013, thus completing full and
final redemption of Loan B.
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NOTE 15- BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

©)

Loan C: The principal and interest are payable annually. The loan is for a period of 10 years. On
March 22, 2012, the Company prepaid the current portion of principal outstanding of the loan in
the amount of NIS 25 million, which was due originally in June 8, 2012. On December 6, 2012,
the Company prepaid the current portion of principal outstanding of the Loan in the amount of
NIS 25 million, which was due originally on June 8, 2013.

Loan D: The principal and interest are payable annually. The loan is for a period of 10 years. On
July 26, 2012, the Company prepaid current portion of principal outstanding of the loan in the
amount of NIS 25 million, which was due originally on June 9, 2013.

Loan E: The interest is payable every three months. On March 28, 2012, the Company prepaid
current portion of principal outstanding of the Loan in the amount of NIS 24 million, which was
due originally in May 8, 2012. The principal installments payable are as follows: NIS 112 million
on May 8, 2014, NIS 112 million on May 8, 2015, and NIS 152 million on May 8, 2019.

Loan F: On April 10, 2011, 012 Smile prepaid its long term bank loans and obtained a new loan
from a leading Israeli commercial bank in a principal amount of NIS 500 million. The interest is
payable quarterly. On July 25, 2012, the Group prepaid the current portion of linked principal
outstanding of the loan in the amount of NIS 31 million, which was due originally in December
31, 2012. The principal is payable as follows (linked to the CPI as of December 2012): NIS 144.5
million on December 31, 2014, NIS 144.5 million on December 31, 2015, and NIS 196 million
on December 31, 2019.

Financial covenants:

The terms of bank loans require the Group to comply with financial covenants on a consolidated
basis. Their main provisions are two ratios:

(1) The ratio of (a) the amount of all financial obligations of the Company including bank
guarantees that the Company has undertaken (“Total Debt”) to (b) EBITDA less Capital
Expenditures shall not exceed 6.5 (the ratio as of December 31, 2011 and 2012 was 3.1 and
4.3, respectively); and

(2) The ratio of (a) Total Debt to (b) the EBITDA of the Company shall not exceed 4 (the ratio as
of December 31, 2011 and 2012 was 2.4 and 2.8, respectively).

EBITDA is defined as the sum of (a) the net income before extraordinary items, (b) the amount of
tax expenses set against the net profits including, without double counting, any provisions for tax
expenses, (c) and depreciation and amortization expenses, and (d) any finance costs, net.

Capital Expenditures are defined as any expenditure classified as fixed and intangible asset in the
financial statements.
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NOTE 15- BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

(4)

The usage of the term “Adjusted EBITDA” as in the segment information is to highlight the fact
that the Amortization includes amortization of deferred expenses — right of use and employee
share based compensation expenses; it is fully comparable to EBITDA information which has
been previously provided for prior periods.

The Group was in compliance with all covenants stipulated for the years 2011 and 2012. The
covenants are measured every six months on an annualized basis of twelve months and are based
on the financial results for the preceding period of twelve months.

Negative pledge:

The Company provided a negative pledge undertaking (i.e., not to pledge any of its assets to a
third party), except for a number of exceptions that were agreed upon, including pledge (other
than by way of floating charge) in favor of a third party over specific assets or rights of the
Company, securing obligations no greater than NIS 100 million in aggregate.

See note 7 regarding the Company’s exposure to market risks and liquidity risk.

NOTE 16 - NOTES PAYABLE

Notes payable series A

On March 31, 2005, the Company completed an offering of NIS 2,000 million of unsecured notes,
which were issued at their NIS par value. The notes have been registered in Israel and were traded on
the Tel-Aviv Stock Exchange Itd. (TASE). Of these notes approximately NIS 36.5 million were
purchased by PFC, a consolidated subsidiary. PFC also received an additional allocation of notes
having an aggregate principal amount of NIS 500 million. These notes that PFC received pursuant to
this additional allocation do not confer the right to receive any payment whatsoever on account of
principal or interest until they are sold by PFC to a third party.

The net proceeds from the offering were approximately NIS 1,929 million after deducting the notes
purchased by PFC, commissions and offering expenses.

The principal amount of the Notes was payable in 12 equal quarterly installments, beginning June 30,
2009. The notes bore NIS interest at the rate of 4.25% per annum, linked to the Israeli Consumer Price
Index, which was payable quarterly on the last day of each quarter, commencing June 30, 2005.
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NOTE 16 - NOTES PAYABLE (continued)

The principal payments due, linked to the CPI in effect as at each reporting date are as follows (net of
amounts due to PFC):

New Israeli Shekels
December 31

2011 2012
In millions
Year ending December 31:
2002 e 393 -
393 -
Less - Offering eXPENSES ........oivrereeereeierie e * -
Less - current Maturities ......oocoverereneneeiee e 393 -

Included in non-current liabilities.........ccccovevveieeivcieee e, - -

(*) Representing an amount less than a million
On April 1, 2012, the Company completed full and final redemption of notes payable series A

Notes payable series B

On November 29, 2009 the Company issued to Israeli institutional investors approximately NIS 448
million of unsecured non-convertible Series B notes through a private placement in Israel. The notes
are linked (principal and interest) to changes in the Israeli consumer price index (CPI). The principal
amount of Series B notes is repayable in four equal annual installments between 2013 and 2016 and
bears interest at an annual rate of 3.4%. The interest is payable on a semi-annual basis.

The notes are listed for trade on the TASE. In the event the Notes are deregistered from the TASE
(except deregistration resulting from merger or debt arrangement), the following undertakings will
become effective :(i) to pay additional interest at an annual rate of 0.6% until a prospectus or a shelf
offering report is published for the listing for trade of the Notes on the TASE; (ii) a negative pledge
(subject to certain carve-outs); and (iii) to undertake additional events of default of the Notes, as
follows: (a) the rating of the Notes in Israel decreases below BBB (by Standard & Poor’s Maalot or an
equivalent rating by another rating agency) on a local scale; and (b) The Company fails to comply with
its existing financial covenants.

The Notes have been rated ilAA-, on a local scale, by Standard & Poor’s Maalot.
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NOTE 16 - NOTES PAYABLE (continued)
The principal payments due, linked to the CPI in effect as at each reporting date are as follows:

New lIsraeli Shekels
December 31

2011 2012
In millions
Year ending December 31:

2013 s 118 120
2004 .o 118 120
2005 s 118 120
2016 .. 118 120

472 480
Less - Offering eXPeNSsesS ........cccveerererienieeneseseee e 2 2
Less - CUrrent Maturities ..........cccvvernecnneensierseeseeenes - 120
Included in non-current liabilities.........ccooevvieriiennie, 470 358

Notes payable series C

On April 25, 2010 the Company issued Series C Notes in a principal amount of NIS 200 million
payable in 3 equal annual installments on December 30 of each of the years 2016 through 2018,
bearing a fixed annual interest rate of 3.35%, payable semi-annually on June 30 and on December 30
of each of the years 2010 through 2018. Series C Notes (principal and interest) are linked to the Israeli
Consumer Price Index (“CPI”). Series C Notes were listed for trading on the TASE.

On February 24, 2011, the Company issued an additional NIS 444 million in principal amount of
Series C Notes to classified institutional investors in Israel in a private placement (the “Additional
Notes”). The value of the principal issued, including CPI linkage differences and accumulated interest
to be paid to that date was approximately NIS 463 million. The terms of the Additional Notes are
identical to the terms of the previously issued outstanding Series C Notes. The Additional Notes were
issued for an aggregate consideration of approximately NIS 463 million. The Additional Notes were
listed for trading on the TASE. The Notes have been rated ilAA-, on a local scale, by Standard &
Poor’s Maalot.

The principal payments due, linked to the CPI in effect as at each reporting date are as follows:

New lIsraeli Shekels
December 31

2011 2012
In millions
Year ending December 31:
2016 ..t 227 230
2007 s 227 230
2018t s 227 230
681 690
Less - Offering eXPenses .......ccoeveerenereieesese e 3 2

Included in non-current liabilities.........coccoevvevieiieeiiecieene, 678 688
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NOTE 16 - NOTES PAYABLE (continued)

Notes payable series D

On April 25, 2010 the Company issued Series D Notes in a principal amount of NIS 400 million.
The principal amount of Series D notes is repayable in five equal annual installments between 2017
and 2021 and is not linked. The principal bears variable interest that is based on the yield of 12
month government bonds (*‘Makam’) issued by the government of Israel and updated quarterly,
plus additional annual interest of 1.2%. The interest is payable quarterly. The interest rates paid (in
annual terms, and including the additional interest of 1.2%) are as follows:

From the issuance date to June 30, 2010: 3.4%

From July 1, 2010 to September 30, 2010: 3.29%
From October 1, 2010 to December 30, 2010: 3.62%
From December 31, 2010 to March 30, 2011: 3.67%
From March 31, 2011 to June 30, 2011: 4.47%
From July 1, 2011 to September 30, 2011: 4.72%
From October 1, 2011 to December 30, 2011: 4.15%
From December 31, 2011 to March 30, 2012: 3.73%
From March 31, 2012 to June 30, 2012: 3.80%
From July 1, 2012 to September 30, 2012: 3.39%
From October 1, 2012 to December 30, 2012 : 3.41%

Series D Notes were listed for trading on the TASE.

On May 4, 2011 the Company issued an additional NIS 146 million in principal amount of Series D
Notes in a public offering in Israel (the “Additional Notes”). The terms of the Additional Notes are
identical to the terms of the previously issued outstanding Series D Notes. The Additional Notes were
issued with a price per unit (each unit comprised of NIS 1,000 par value) of NIS 992. The Additional
Notes were listed for trading on the TASE. The Notes have been rated ilAA-, on a local scale, by
Standard & Poor’s Maalot.
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NOTE 16 - NOTES PAYABLE (continued)
The principal payments due, in effect as at each reporting date are as follows:

New Israeli Shekels
December 31

2011 2012
In millions
Year ending December 31:

A 109 109
2018 ..ot 109 109
2009 1 109 109
2020 ...iiciece e 109 109
2020 .o e 109 109

545 545
Less - offering expenses and diSCOUNt ...........ccceveeieierencneniens 5 5
Included in non-current labilitieS ..........ccoeeeeiicieccic e, 540 540

Notes payable series E

On April 25, 2010 the Company issued Series E Notes in a principal amount of NIS 400 million. The
principal amount of Series E notes is repayable in five equal annual installments between 2013 and
2017 and is not linked. The principal bears fixed interest of 5.5% payable on a semi-annual basis.
Series E Notes were listed for trading on the TASE.

On May 4, 2011 the Company issued an additional NIS 535 million in principal amount of Series E
Notes in a public offering in Israel (the “Additional Notes”). The terms of the Additional Notes are
identical to the terms of the previously issued outstanding Series E Notes. The Additional Notes were
issued with a price per unit (each unit comprised of NIS 1,000 par value) of NIS 996. The Additional
Notes were listed for trading on the TASE. The Notes have been rated ilAA-, on a local scale, by
Standard & Poor’s Maalot.

Repurchase of notes payable series E:

In August 2012 the Company repurchased NIS 0.65 million par value of notes payable series E, at a
transaction price of 0.9954 NIS per par value, following Board of Directors’ resolution to approve a
debt buy-back plan of the Company’s series B, C, D and E Notes which are traded on the TASE.
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NOTE 16 - NOTES PAYABLE (continued)

The principal payments due, in effect as at each reporting date are as follows:

New Israeli Shekels

December 31

2011 2012
In millions
Year ending December 31:

2013 et 186 186
2004 .ot 187 187
2005 e ettt nrereas 187 187
2016 .ottt 187 187
2007 oottt 187 187

934 934
Less - offering expenses and diSCOUNt...........cccccevvevereresesesnnnne, 17 13
LesS - CUTENt MALUIITIES .....ccvviieieeieieee e - 186
Included in non-current liabilitieS .........ccccoevvveiiiiiii e 917 735

NOTE 17 - LIABILITY FOR EMPLOYEE RIGHTS UPON RETIREMENT

Israeli labor laws and agreements require payment of severance pay upon dismissal of an employee or
upon termination of employment in certain other circumstances. See also note 2(p).

(1) Defined contribution plan:

The Group had contributed NIS 5 million, NIS 14 million, NIS 17 million for the years 2010, 2011
and 2012 respectively, in accordance with section 14. The contributions in accordance with the

aforementioned section 14 commenced in 2009 (see note 2p(i)(1)).

(2) Defined benefit plan:

The amounts recognized in the statement of financial position, in respect of a defined benefit plan

(see note 2p(i)(2)) include the following:

New Israeli Shekels

December 31

Present value of funded obligations .............ccccooviiiiiniiniecicieee,
Less: fair value of plan assets..........ccoveieiiieninieiiienee e

Liability for employee rights upon retirement, net...........c.ccoceevveae

Assets held for employee rights upon retirement, net.....................

Liability in the statement of financial position, net — presented as
non-current lability.........ccocoooe i

2011 2012
In millions
177 190
132 140
45 50
3 -
48 50
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NOTE 17 - LIABILITY FOR EMPLOYEE RIGHTS UPON RETIREMENT (continued)

Changes during the year in the obligation recognized in the statement of financial position for post-
employment defined benefit plans were as follows:

New Israeli Shekels
December 31

2011 2012
In millions
Balance at JANUAIY Lt 178 177
Acquisition of subSIdIary .........c.ccooeiiiiiiiie e 19 -
CUITENT SEIVICE COSL...vviivieiitieectie ettt eteeeetee e etee b ebee et ebae b 31 33
INEEIESE COST ... eeieeiiiee e ree e 9 8
ACTUANIAL IOSSES ..ottt erae 10 28
BenefitsS Paid ......c.cceiviiiieiece s (70) (56)
Balance at DECEMDEISLSt..........ooooooooeeeeeoeeeeeeeeoeeeoeeseeeeeeee s 177 190

The changes during the year in the fair value of the plan assets are as follows:

New Israeli Shekels
December 31

2011 2012
In millions
Balance at JANUAIY Lst........cemirecsiesssssssessessssssessesssssssessess e 124 132
Acquisition of SUDSTAIAIY ........ccccoreiiiiiiiic e 23 -
Expected return on plan assets .........occueeeerererenineneseeeee e 6 6
Actuarial gains (I0SSES) ...c.vcverviririii i (11) 11
Employer CONtribULIONS........cccoveiiiiiiecccecce e 29 26
BenefitsS Paid ......c.cceiiiiieiece s (39) (35)
BalanCe at DECEMDEISLst.........oooooooeeoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeseeeccceeeeereeeeeeeeeseseee s 132 140

The Group expects to contribute NIS 18 million in respect of liability for severance pay under a defined
benefit plan in 2013.
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The amounts recognized in the income statement are as follows:

New Israeli Shekels
Year ended December 31

2010 2011 2012
In millions
CUITENE SEIVICE COSL....ivevieiiiicie ettt e 41 31 33
INEEIESE COSE ... .iiiiiii et 7 9 8
Expected return on plan assets..........ccocoveverereninieeinie e (6) (6) (6)
Total expenses recognized in the income statement .............. 42 34 35
Charged to the statement of income as follows:
COSt O FEVENUES......cviiiiiieie e 25 19 20
Selling and marketing eXPEeNSES.......cccveiviveivereerereseseaneas 10 9 10
General and administrative eXpenses.......cc.cvcvvevvereererennens 6 3 3
FIiNance COStS, NEL........ooviiriiiirisee e 1 3 2
42 34 35
Actuarial losses net, recognized in the statement of
comprehensive income, before tax..........ccccvevvivvivivnininnnnns 8 21 17
Actual return on plan aSSets .......ccoovvvveivriesieeieereee e 6 (5) 6

The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

December 31

2011 2012
% %
INEErESt Fate (*) .uveveiereriere e enea 4.76%, 5.02% 4.24%
INFIAtION FALE (F) .oveeeieeceeeeeer e 2.2%, 2.49% 2.57%
Expected return on plan assets (*) .....ocvevvevvivriveeereenereseennns 3.08%, 5.02% 4.24%
EXpected tUrNOVET Fate ........covveiieiie e 1% - 60% 8% - 55%
Future salary iNCreases........covereeieieieneneeeseee e 1% - 6% 1% - 26%

(*) Different assumptions for two populations for 2011 were presented as weighted averages for 2012.

The expected return on plan assets is determined by considering the expected returns available on the
assets underlying the current investment policy.
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NOTE 18 - COMMITMENTS

1)

)

Royalty Commitments

The Company is committed to pay royalties to the Government of Israel on its “income from
cellular services” and also income from fixed-line phone services as defined in the
“Telecommunications (Royalties) Regulations, 2001 (hereafter - the Regulations), which includes
all types of income of the Company from the granting of communication services under the
licenses - including airtime, roaming services and non-recurring connection fees, but excluding
income transferred to another holder of a communications license and deducting bad debts,
payments to another communication licensee in respect of interconnection, and payments for
roaming services to foreign operators.

According to the international and the domestic communication licenses terms (see also note 1(c)),
012 Smile and Partner Land-Line Communications Solutions are obligated to pay royalties to the
Government of Israel at the rate of 1% of the royalty-bearing income. The royalty-bearing income
is Income from International Long Distance services as well as domestic fixed-line phone services
as defined in the Regulations, which includes all types of income of the Company from the
granting of communication services under the licenses — including connection fees, but excluding
income transferred to another holder of a communications license and deducting bad debts and
payments to another communication licensee in respect of interconnection.

Following the approval of the Israeli Parliament’s finance committee on July 10, 2012, the
regulations that regulate the royalty rates that apply to general licensees for the provision of
mobile radio telephone services using the cellular method (MRT), general licensees for the
provision of domestic fixed-line telecommunication services (domestic fixed-line operators,
including exclusive domestic fixed-line operators) and general licensees for the provision of
international long distance (ILD) services, were amended on August 1,2012.

Following the amendment of the regulations, the rates of the royalties paid to the state by the
Partner Group were reduced in 2012 and shall be abolished as of 2013 onwards.

With respect to Cellular Communications Services, the royalty rate for the year 2012 was 2.5%
from the beginning of the year until May 23, 2012, 1% from May 24, 2012 until July 31, 2012 and
0.292% for the remainder of the year, provided that the annual royalty rate for the year 2012 is
1.3%. This royalty rate is reduced compared with the previous arrangement according to which the
royalty rate was 2.5% from the beginning of the year until May 23, 2012 and 1% for the remainder
of the year;

From 2013 onwards, the royalty rate shall be 0% (instead of 1% for the same period.)

With respect to Fixed-line and ILD Communications Services, the royalty rate from 2013 onwards
shall be 0% (instead of 1% for the same period).

The royalty expenses are included in cost of revenues, see note 22(a).

Under the Telegraph Regulations the Company is committed to pay an annual fixed fee for each
frequency used. The Company paid a total amount of approximately NIS 59 million for the year
2010. For the year 2011, the Company paid an amount of NIS 11 million which is after a
deduction of amounts the Company was eligible to receive in accordance with the High Court of
Justice’s decision; the amount due before the reduction was approximately NIS 58 million. For the
year 2012, the company paid a total amount of approximately NIS 59 million. See also note
20(b)(1).
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NOTE 18 - COMMITMENTS (continued)

©)

(4)

()

At December 31, 2012, the Group is committed to acquire property and equipment and software
elements for approximately N1S156 million, including future payments in respect of the Ericsson
contract. (See note 2(f)).

At December 31, 2012, the Group is committed to acquire inventory in amount of approximately
NIS1,388 million; of which an amount of NIS 21 million is from Scailex, a related party. This
includes the following: The Company has entered into a new agreement with Apple Distribution
International for the purchase and resale of iPhone handsets and accessories in Israel (the “Apple
Agreement”). The term of the Apple Agreement is three years, during which Partner has agreed to
purchase a minimum quantity of iPhone handsets per year, which will represent a significant
portion of the Company’s expected handset purchases over that period.

Right of Use (ROU)

012 Smile signed a long-term agreement with a service provider to receive indefeasible Rights of
Use (ROU) of international capacity through submarine infrastructure until 2023 with an option to
extend the agreement until 2027. As of December 31, 2012, 012 Smile is committed to pay over
the following years capital expenditures in the amount NIS 234 million. The committed annual
payments (excluding maintenance fees) as of December 31, 2012 are:

New Israeli Shekels

in millions
2003 L b e e b e nraeares 18
2004 oo bbb 18
2005 e b b e e sraenres 18
2016 .oveeieeie bbb be b e b e bearaenres 24
2017 and therEafter..........ccviviiiiiieccre e 156

234

In addition, under the terms of the ROU agreements, 012 Smile is committed to pay annual
maintenance fees during the usage period. The total aggregated expected maintenance fee for the
years 2013-2023 is approximately NIS 144 million. All payments under the ROU agreements are
linked to the USD.
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(6)

U]

(®)

©)

In April 2012 - the Company has entered into a five-year agreement with Bezeq - The Israel
Telecommunication Corp., Ltd. (“Bezeq™), effective as of January 1, 2012, for the supply of
transmission services for use in Partner’s mobile network (“the Bezeq Agreement”). According to
the Bezeq Agreement, the minimum annual commitment is NIS 55 million for the year 2012 and
will gradually increase to NIS 71 million for the year 2016 due to the increase in the scope of the
capacity to be purchased in accordance with the layout agreed upon by the parties.

Liens and guarantees
The Group has provided bank guarantees in respect of licenses (see note 1 (c),(d)).

In addition, the Group has provided bank guarantees to other parties in an aggregate amount of
approximately NIS 32 million as of December 31, 2012.

License for the use of the orange brand

The Company has entered into a brand license agreement with Orange International Developments
Limited, a subsidiary of Orange Limited, formerly Orange plc. Under this agreement, the
Company has the exclusive right to use the Orange brand in Israel. The term of the brand license
agreement began on July 1, 1998. The license was royalty-free until June 2013; however, pursuant
to an amendment to the brand license agreement negotiated in January 2012 with Orange Brand
Services Limited, a member of the France Telecom Group, the Company has agreed to begin
paying royalties in April 1, 2012 for a period of 15 years.

Royalties payable are based on a percentage of the Company’s relevant revenues from the
provision of services offered under the Orange brand.

Under the brand license agreement, the Company is required to comply with the Orange brand
guidelines established by Orange International. The Company has the right to use the Orange
brand as long as it is able and legally eligible under the laws of Israel to offer telecommunications
services to the public in Israel. However, the brand license agreement may be terminated by
mutual agreement or by either Party if it is determined that the other party has materially breached
the agreement.

See note 15(3) regarding financial covenants and note 15(4) regarding negative pledge.

(10) See note 19 in respect of operating leases.
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NOTE 19 - OPERATING LEASES

The Group has entered into operating lease agreements as follows:

(1)  Inthe beginning of 2010 an amendment to the lease agreements for the Company’s headquarters
facility in Rosh Ha’ayin was signed, according to which the lease term is until the end of 2016,
and the Company has an option to shorten the lease period to end in 2014. The rental payments
are linked to the Israeli CPI.

(2) 012 Smile leases an office facility in Petach Tikva for its headquarter. In July 2012, the lease was
extended until the end of February 2013, by which time most of the facility will be vacated. The
remaining area of the facility which will not be vacated has been leased under an agreement until
the end of July 2013, with an option to extend the lease for an additional year.

(3) Lease agreements for service centers and retail stores for a period of two to five years. The Group
has options to extend some lease contract periods for up to twenty years (including the original
lease periods). The rental payments are linked to the dollar or to the Israeli CPl. Some of the
extension options include an increase of the lease payment in a range of 2%-10%.

(4) Lease agreements in respect of cell sites and switching stations throughout Israel are for periods
of two to five years. The Company has an option to extend some of the lease contract periods for
up to ten years (including the original lease periods). The rental payments fees are linked to the
dollar or linked to the Israeli CPI. Some of the extension options include an increase of the lease
payment in a range of 2%-10%.

(5) As of December 31, 2012 operating lease agreements in respect of vehicles are for periods of up
to three years. The rental payments are linked to the Israeli CPI.

(6) Non-cancelable minimum operating lease rentals in respect of all the above leases are payable
including option periods which are reasonably certain are as follows:

New Israeli Shekels
December 31, 2012
In millions
2003 bbbt 234
2004 .ot 201
2005 1ottt r e 171
2006 .ottt b e 154
2007 ettt 109
2018 and thereafter........cooii i 291
1,160
(7)  The rental expenses for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012 were approximately

NIS 268 million, NIS 296 million, and NIS 290 million, respectively.
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NOTE 20 - LAWSUITS AND LITIGATIONS

A. Claims

In the ordinary course of business, the Group is involved in a number of lawsuits. The costs that may
result from these lawsuits are only accrued for when it is probable that a liability, resulting from past
events, will be incurred and the amount of that liability can be quantified or estimated within a
reasonable range. The amounts of the provisions recorded are based on a case-by-case assessment of the
risk level, and events arising during the course of legal proceedings that may require a reassessment of
this risk. The Group’s assessment of risk is based both on the advice of legal counsel and on the Group’s
estimate of the probable settlement amount that is expected to be incurred, if such a settlement will be
agreed by both parties. Total provision recorded in the financial statements in respect of all lawsuits

against the Group amounted to NIS 55 million at December 31, 2012. (See also note 14).

Described below are the main litigation and claims against the Group:

1. Consumer claims

a.

Alleged illegal collection of charges, claims or breach of the Consumer Protection Law and

Customer agreement claims

This category includes lawsuits and motions for the recognition of these lawsuits as class
actions with respect to alleged unlawful collection of charges from customers or alleged

breach of the Consumer Protection Law.

Described hereunder are the outstanding consumer purported class actions with respect to
lawsuits with a total claim amount of NIS 7,124 million or which have not been quantified,
broken down by the amount claimed, as of the date of approval of these financial statements:

Total claims
Number of amount (NIS

Claim amount claims million)

Up t0 NIS 200 Million ........covvevieiiiiceneceee e 17 689
NIS 100- 400 MillION......coviiiiiiiiiece e 10 2,155
NIS 400 million -NIS L billion .......cccovvevviviiiiiiccricis 3 1,580
Over NIS 1 hillion .....covceviiiiiiiieecc e 1 2,700
Unquantified Claims..........cccoevvvvinniecinniecce e 2 -
L0 = | 33 7,124

Out of the claims in the above table, there are two claims that the court approved as class

actions:

During 2008, several claims and motions to certify the claims as class actions were filed
against several international telephony companies including 012 Smile. The plaintiffs allege
that with respect to prepaid calling card services, the defendants misled the consumers
regarding certain issues, charged consumers in excess, and formed a cartel that arranged and

raised the prices of calling cards.

In the event of certification of the Suit and the Amended Suit as class actions the total
amount claimed against 012 Smile is NIS 354 million. Plaintiffs claim additional damages,
which are not estimated, with respect to unsuccessful attempts to make calls utilizing the

cards.
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On November 3, 2010, the court granted the plaintiffs’ request and certified the suit as a class
action against all of the defendants. On December 13, 2010, 012 Smile filed a motion with the
Supreme Court for leave to appeal on the District Court’s decision granting class action
certification. On April 14, 2011, the Supreme Court referred the parties to mediation. On May
10, 2012, the parties signed a compromise agreement regarding the amended request and
regarding an additional lawsuit in an amount of NIS 2.7 billion, dealing with similar issues.
On March 11, 2013, the parties signed a revised settlement agreement.

2. During 2010, a claim and a motion to certify the claim as a class action were filed against
Partner Communications Company Ltd. (“Partner”). The claim alleges that in the process of
generating bills to its customers, Partner wrongfully miscalculates the number of minutes
consumed by a customer multiplied by the tariff per minute, in Partner’s favor. The total
amount of damages claimed by the plaintiffs is approximately NIS 2 million. On August 18,
2011, the court granted the plaintiff’s request and certified the lawsuit as a class action. On
January 10, 2012, the parties filed an agreed request for the court’s approval of a compromise
settlement reached by the parties. On January 31, 2013 the court approved the settlement
agreement which the parties are implementing.

In respect of 5 lawsuits (other than the two items mentioned above) mentioned in the table above,
with a total amount of NIS 3,327 million, the parties filed requests to approve settlement
agreements.

In addition to the claims in the above table, during 2012 and 2013, the court dismissed 14 claims
and their request to certify the claims as a class action in a total amount of NIS 1,629 million.

b. Alleged breach of license, Telecom law

This category includes lawsuits and motions for the recognition of these lawsuits as class
actions with respect to alleged breaches of licenses or the Communications Law
(Telecommunications and Broadcasting).

Described hereunder are the outstanding consumer purported class actions with respect to
lawsuits with a total claim amount of NIS 9,453 million or which have not been quantified,
broken down by the amount claimed, as of the date of approval of these financial statements:

Total claims
Number of amount (NIS
Claim amount claims million)
Up to NIS 100 million ......cccovvevevievcneie e 14 510
NIS 100-400 MillioN ......cccoeviiieiiiiciecee e, 2 294
NIS 400 million -NIS 1 billion .......ccccovevvivrinenee. 1 560
Over NIS 1 hillion ....cccocovvviviiecicecce e, 1 8,089

Unquantified Claims...........cocoovenvineneinenece, 4 -
TOMAL ..o 22 9,453
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Out of the claims in the above table, there are two claims that the court approved as a class
actions:

1. On July 14, 2010, a claim and a motion to certify the claim as a class action were
filed against Partner. The claim alleges that during the period between September 3,
2007 and December 31, 2008, Partner charged some of its subscribers for a time unit
which is longer than 12 seconds while this charge was inconsistent with Partner’s
license. The total amount claimed from Partner is estimated by the plaintiffs to be
more than the minimum amount for the authority of the District Court in Israel,
which is NIS 2.5 million. On September 6, 2012, the court certified the claim as a
class action. In light of the fact that Partner has already credited the relevant
customers, Partner does not anticipate that it will be required to pay any additional
amounts to the said customers.

2. On September 26, 2011, a claim and a motion to certify the claim as a class action
were filed against Partner. The claim alleges that Partner unlawfully charged
payments from costumers who requested to port-in their phone number from another
cellular operator for services which were given to them prior to the completion of the
port-in. The amount claimed in the lawsuit was estimated by the plaintiffs to be
approximately NIS 25 million. On March 3, 2013, The Tel-Aviv District Court
approved the motion and recognized the lawsuit as a class action. At this stage, the
trial will begin to be heard as an ordinary civil claim. Partner estimates that even if
the claim will be decided in favor of the relevant costumers, the damages that Partner
will be required to pay for are immaterial.

In respect of one lawsuit mentioned in the table above, with a total amount of NIS 560 million, the
parties filed requests to approve a settlement agreement.

In addition to the claims in the above table, during 2012, the court dismissed 6 claims and their
request to certify the claims as a class action in a total amount of NIS 320 million.

2.  Environmental clais

This category includes two lawsuits and motions for the recognition of these lawsuits as class
actions with respect to environmental issues. As of the date of approval of these financial
statements, the amounts claimed from this group sum up to NIS 4,610 million.

In addition, during 2012, the court dismissed a claim and the request to certify the claim as a
class action in an amount of NIS 333 million.

3. Employees and suppliers claims

On May 22, 2011, a civil claim was filed against Partner. The claim alleges that Partner breaches
copyrights that allegedly belong to the plaintiff. The total amount claimed from Partner is
approximately NIS 40 million. The claim is still in the preliminary stage and a number of
hearings have been held. The court has referred the parties to mediation.

4. Other claims

In addition to all the above mentioned claims the Group is a party to various claims arising in the
ordinary course of its operations.
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NOTE 20 — LAWSUITS AND LITIGATIONS (continued)

B.

Contingencies in respect of regulatory demands and building and planning procedures

1)

@)

Under the Telegraph Regulations the Company is committed to pay an annual fixed fee for
each frequency used. Under the above Regulations should the Company choose to return a
frequency, such payment is no longer due. Cost of revenue was reduced by approximately
NIS 50 million in 2010 following a Supreme Court decision in December 2010 to fully accept
the Company’s petition against the MOC regarding the amount of frequency fees that the
Company should have paid for frequencies allocated to the Company. In addition, an amount
of approximately NIS 10 million was recorded in other income in the financial statement. In
December 28, 2011, the Company received an amount of approximately NIS 11 million as a
final payment according to the Court’s decision. This payment was recorded as a reduction of
frequency fees and as other income (approximately NIS 6 million and NIS 5 million,
respectively). See also note 18(2).

Section 197 of the Building and Planning Law states that a property owner has the right to be
compensated by a local planning committee for reductions in property value as a result of a
new building plan.

In January 2006, the Non-ionizing Radiation Law was published, amending the Planning and
Building Law so that local Planning and Building committees must require indemnification
letters against reduction in property value from the cellular operators requesting building
permits.

Accordingly, on January 3, 2006, the National Council for Planning and Building published
an interim decision conditioning the issuance of building permits for cell site permits by
local planning and building councils upon provision of a 100% indemnification undertaking
by the cellular operators. This decision shall remain in effect until it is replaced with an
amendment to the National Zoning Plan 36. Between January 3, 2006 and December 31,
2012 the Company provided the local authorities with 452 indemnification letters as a pre-
condition for obtaining building permits.

In case the Company shall be required to make substantial payments under the indemnity
letters, it could have an adverse effect on the Company’s financial results.

According to the company’s management estimation and based on its legal counsel, a
provision in the financial statement was not included.

The Company assumes that the requirement to provide indemnification letters might require
it to change locations of sites to different, less suitable locations and to dismantle some of its
sites. These changes in the deployment of the sites might have an adverse effect on the
extent, quality and capacity of the network coverage.
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NOTE 21 - EQUITY AND SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

a.

Share capital:

The Company’s share capital consists of ordinary shares, which are traded on the Tel Aviv Stock
Exchange Ltd. under the symbol “PTNR”, and are quoted on the NASDAQ Global Select
Market™, in the form of American Depositary Shares (“ADSs”), each representing one of the
Company’s ordinary shares, under the symbol “PTNR”, according to the dual listing regulations.
The ADSs are evidenced by American Depositary Receipts (“ADRs”) originally issued by
JPMorgan Chase, as depositary under the Deposit Agreement, dated as of November 1, 1999,
among the Company, JPMorgan Chase and the registered holders, from time to time, of ADRs.
ADSs were first issued in October 1999. Since March 2006 and until November 2011, the Bank of
New York Mellon served as the Company’s depository for ADSs. Since November 2011,
Citibank, N.A. serves as the Company’s depository for ADSs.

Under the provisions of the Company’s licenses (note 1(c)), restrictions are placed on transfer of
the Company’s shares and placing liens thereon. The restrictions include the requirement that the
advance written consent of the Minister of Communications be received prior to transfer of 10%
or more of the Company’s shares to a third party.

Through December 31, 2008 the Company purchased its own 4,467,990 shares at the cost of NIS
351 million (“treasury shares™). In accordance with the Israeli Companies Law, the treasury shares
are considered dormant shares as long as they are held by the Company, and as such they do not
bear any rights (including the right to vote and to receive dividends) until they are transferred to a
third party.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared. See also (c) below in
respect of dividends.

b. Share based compensation to employees — share options

(1) Description of the option plan

Share options were granted to employees in accordance with the 2004 Plan. The 2004 Share Option (the
2004 Plan™) is administered by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors. Subject to the
restrictions of the Companies Law, the compensation committee is authorized, among other things, to
exercise all the powers and authorities, either specifically granted to it under the 2004 Plan or necessary
or advisable for the administration of the 2004 Plan. The ordinary shares derived from the exercise of the
options confer the same rights as the other ordinary shares of the Company.

The principal terms of the 2004 Plan, as they have been amended over time, are summarized below:

Granting, exercise and tax treatment: Options under the 2004 Plan may be granted without

consideration to employees, directors, officers and advisors.

The total number of Company’s shares reserved for issuance upon exercise of all options granted
under the 2004 Plan is 13,917,000 shares. The option holder may exercise all or part of his options at
any time after the date of vesting but no later than the expiration of the exercise period, which will
not exceed ten years from the date of option grant.
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NOTE 21 - EQUITY AND SHARE BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

b.

Share based compensation to employees — share options (continued)

The options are granted to employees under the provisions of the capital gains tax route provided for
in Section 102 of the Israeli Income Tax Ordinance. Inter alia, these terms provide that the Company
will be allowed to claim, as an expense for tax purposes, the amounts credited to the employees as a
benefit in respect of shares or options granted under the plan, which is the amount of the benefit
taxable as work income in the hands of the employee, while the part of the benefit that is taxable as
capital gains in the hands of the employee is not allowable.

Vesting: Vesting periods are between 1 to 4 years, as determined by the Board of Directors at the
time of granting the options.

Acceleration of vesting and adjustment: In the event of a change of control or voluntary winding up,
option vesting and exercisability of outstanding options shall be accelerated.

Upon the occurrence of any merger, consolidation, reorganization or similar event, or other
substantially similar corporate transaction or event, equitable changes or adjustments to the number
of shares subject to each outstanding option will be made in order to prevent dilution or enlargement
of the option holders’ rights.

Exercise price adjustment: In the event of a dividend distribution other than in the ordinary course,
the exercise price of outstanding options shall be reduced by an amount which the Board of Directors
considers such distribution will have or will be likely to have on the trading price of the ordinary
shares.

On December 27, 2009, following the resolution regarding the capital reduction in the amount of
NIS 1.4 billion, the Board of Directors approved a reduction to the exercise price in an amount
equivalent to 50% of the amount of the distribution per share. The exercise price was reduced on the
record date on March 7, 2010 (see also note 21(d)).

For options granted between February 23, 2009 (the date of the relevant amendment to the 2004
Plan) and May 7, 2012, in the event of a dividend distribution in the ordinary course in an amount in
excess of 40% (or another threshold as established by the Board of Directors) of the Company’s net
income for the relevant period (the “Excess Dividend”), the exercise price for such options shall be
reduced by the amount of the Excess Dividend per ordinary share.

For Options granted on or after May 8, 2012, a dividend-adjustment mechanism was amended, which
reduces the exercise price of such options following each dividend distribution in the ordinary course
of business by the gross dividend amount so distributed, per ordinary share (“Full Dividend
Mechanism”).

Cashless exercise: The exercise price of the options is based on the fair market value of the Company’s

shares at the time of grant, defined as of any date as the average of the closing sale price of ordinary
shares published by the Tel-Aviv Stock Exchange during the immediately preceding 30 trading days.
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b.

@)

Share based compensation to employees — share options (continued)

Options granted on or after February 23, 2009 (the date of the amendment to the 2004 Plan), may only
be exercised on a cashless basis, and the Board of Directors may require holders to so exercise their
vested options during a fixed period.(Holders of options granted before February 23, 2009, may choose
between cashless exercise and the regular option exercise procedure.)In accordance with such cashless
exercise, the option holder would receive from the Company, without payment of the exercise price,
only the number of shares whose aggregate market value equals the economic gain which the option
holder would have realized by selling all the shares purchased at their market price, net of the option
exercise price.

Information in respect of options granted

In 2010 3,310,500 share options were granted to senior officers and managers of the Company
following the approval of the Company’s Board of Directors, of which 1,100,000 share options were
afterwards cancelled and regranted to the same senior officers under the same terms and conditions
except for the exercise price. The fair value difference before and after the amendment is
approximately NIS 3 million that is regarded as additional compensation.

In 2011 2,977,275 share options were granted to senior officers and managers of the Company and its
subsidiary following the approval of the Company’s Board of Directors.

In 2012 1,795,340 share options were granted to senior officers and managers of the Company and its
subsidiary following the approval of the Company’s Board of Directors.

Through December 31, 2012 - 19,395,615 options have been granted to the Group’s senior officers
and employees pursuant to the 2004 Plan, of which 5,628,113 options have been exercised, 5,963,912
options were forfeited and 279,842 options expired (options forfeited and expired are available for
subsequent grants), and 7,523,748 remained outstanding.

The outstanding options as of December 31, 2012 comprise: 3,723,702 exercisable options,1,725,915
options expected to become exercisable in 2013, 2,000,798 options expected to become exercisable in
2014, and 73,333 options expected to become exercisable in 2015. In respect of which, and as of
December 31, 2012, the company expects to record a total amount of compensation expenses of
approximately NIS 8 million during the next three years.

The expenses recognized in respect of the fair value of the options granted in the years ended
December 31, 2010, 2011, and 2012 are NIS 23 million, NIS 19 million, and NIS 11 million
respectively.

As of December31, 2012 an amount of 756,139 options of the 2004 Plan remained ungranted.
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b.  Share based compensation to employees — share options (continued)

(3)  Options status summary as of December 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012 and the changes therein during the
years ended on those dates:

Year ended December 31

2010 2011 2012
Weighted Weighted
Weighted average average
average exercise exercise
Number exercise price Number price** Number price**
NIS NIS NIS

Balance outstanding at the beginning of

the Year ..o 5,315,945 *56.47 6,826,275 55.88 6,452,891 52.98
Changes during the year:

Granted........oceeveeeereeeereereenens 3,310,500 **62.40 2,977,275 50.87 1,795,340 18.42

Exercised *** ... (1,529,795) *44.82 (1,454,250) 47.57 -

Forfeited .......covivnienincecns (270,375) *58.48 (1,896,409) 56.59 (449,266) 54.97

EXPIred ...cooveeeeeeecereeeeeeins (275,217) 56.07
Balance outstanding at the end of the

o2 L 6,826,275 **55.88 6,452,891 52.98 7,523,748 44.02
Balance exercisable at the end of the

VAN i 2,243,022 **47.91 2,145,389 53.49 3,723,702 53.61

* After taking into account the dividend benefit.

** After taking into account the dividend benefit and the exercise price amendment on July 2010, see (b)(2)
above.

***The number of shares issued as a result of the 1,454,250 options that were exercised during 2011 is
396,532 due to the Cashless mechanism. The number of shares issued as a result of the 1,529,795 options
that were exercised during 2010 is 809,040 due to the Cashless mechanism.

Options Options Options
granted in granted in granted in
2010 2011 2012
NIS

Weighted average fair value of options granted using the Black & Scholes

option-pricing model — per OptioN.............cccoeeernnnenicceesees 9.68 6.28 3.74
The above fair value is estimated on the grant date based on the following

weighted average assumptions:

Expected VOIAtility..........cccoeirniiiiicceiccee e 29% 27% 30.46%
Risk-free interest rate 2.9% 3.65% 2.52%
Expected life (years)..... 3 3 3
DiVidend YIeld ......c.coevveieiiiieriereeee s 5.08% 5.01% *

*Due to the Full Dividend Mechanism, for grants made on or after May 8, 2012, the expected dividend
yield used in the fair value determination of such options was 0% for the purpose of using the Black &
Scholes option-pricing model.

The expected volatility is based on a historical volatility, by statistical analysis of the daily share price for
periods corresponding the option’s expected life. The expected life is expected length of time until
expected date of exercising the options, based on historical data on employees’ exercise behavior and
anticipated future condition.
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b.  Share based compensation to employees — share options (continued)
(4) Information about outstanding options by expiry dates

Share options outstanding as of December 31, 2012 have the following expiry dates and exercise

prices:
Weighted
average
Number of exercise price
Expire in options in NIS*
2003 s 275,000 58.75
2004 .o 410,116 48.85
2005 e 13,375 26.21
2006 .ot 32,500 29.45
2007 oo s 71,000 53.44
2009 s 1,304,042 51.16
2020 . 1,317,600 59.96
2021 1. 2,310,175 48.77
2022 .o s 1,789,940 17.60
7,523,748 44.02

Share options outstanding as of December 31, 2011 have the following expiry dates and exercise

prices:
Weighted

average
Number of exercise price

Expire in options in NIS*
2012 205,700 57.64
2014 399,191 48.70
2015 13,375 26.21
2016 32,500 29.45
2017 81,000 53.44
2018 12,500 61.53
2019 1,513,750 51.16
2020 1,433,700 60.81
2021 2,761,175 50.54
6,452,891 52.98

Share options outstanding as of December 31, 2010 have the following expiry dates and exercise
prices:
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b.  Share based compensation to employees — share options (continued)

Weighted
average
Number of exercise
Expire in options price in NIS*
2001 oo s 8,750 21.72
2004 .o s 403,316 49.95
2005 1o 283,542 61.90
2006 ..o 299,167 60.39
2007 1o s 133,250 55.07
2018 ..o 12,500 61.53
2009 1o 3,317,750 51.44
2020 . 2,368,000 61.95

6,826,275 55.88

*  After taking into account the dividend benefit and the exercise price amendment on July 2010, see (b)(2)
above.

c. Dividends

On August 13, 2012 the Company’s Board of Directors approved the distribution of a cash
dividend (in respect of the first half of 2012) in the amount of NIS 1.03 per share (approximately
NIS 160 million) to shareholders of record on August 29, 2012. The dividend was paid on
September 11, 2012.

For the year ended December 31,

2010 2011 2012
Pershare NISin Pershare NISin Pershare NISin
in NIS millions in NIS millions in NIS millions

Dividends declared

during the year ...... 7.82 1,212 417 648 1.03 160
Tax withheld.............. 17) (6)
Previously withheld

tax - paid during the

VEAC cvviviiiiiieniieees 14 17 7
Net Cash flow in

respect of dividends

during the year ...... 1,209 659 167

On March 16, 2010, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a dividend policy, targeting
minimum of 80% payout ratio of annual net income for the year 2010. This dividend policy was
reaffirmed by the Board of Directors with respect to 2011 and, on March 21, 2012, with respect to
2012. In September 2012, the Board of Directors resolved to cancel the existing dividend policy
for 2012, and to assess dividend distributions (and their scope) from time to time, by reference to,
inter alia, the Company’s cash flow, profitability, debt level, debt coverage ratios and the business
environment in general.



PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.

(An Israeli Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 21 - EQUITY AND SHARE BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

d. Capital reduction

On February 22, 2010, the District Court approved the application submitted by the Company to
approve a distribution in the total amount of NIS 1.4 billion (exceeding the surpluses for
distribution) to the Company’s shareholders (“the capital reduction™). Following the District
Court’s approval a total amount of approximately NIS 1.4 billion which was NIS 9.04 per share
was paid on March 18, 2010 to shareholders and ADS holders of record on March 7, 2010, which
resulted in a reduction of the shareholders equity by an equal amount.

NOTE 22 - EXPENSES

(a) Cost of revenues

Payments to transmission, communication and content providers....
Cost of handsets, accessories and ISP related equipment.................
Wages, employee benefits expenses and car maintenance ...............
Depreciation, amortization and impairment charges ...........c.cccoeee..
Costs of handling, replacing or repairing handsets.............cc.ccocevuenee.
Operating lease, rent and overhead eXpenses..........ccceevevererereneenne

Network and cable maintenance.........

Payments to internet service providers (ISP)........ccccovvevevevicicnnennn,
Carkit installation, IT support, and other operating expenses...........

Royalty eXpenses .........ccocvvveververnennn
Amortization of rights of use..............

Impairment of deferred expenses — right of use (see note 13) ..........

(@1 1= TR
Total cost of revenues...........cocveeveen.

* Reclassified

(b) Selling and marketing expenses

Wages, employee benefits expenses and car maintenance ...............

Adbvertising and marketing.................
Selling commissions, net....................
Depreciation and amortization...........

Impairment of intangible assets (see Note 13).....ccccceevvevivrvvesinnnnn,
Operating lease, rent and overhead eXPENSES.........ccvvvvrverrvaeerennes

(011 1< S

Total selling and marketing expenses

New Israeli Shekels

Year ended December 31,

2010 2011 2012
In millions
1,342 *1,098 1,153
746 1,368 788
575 705 614
663 708 641
199 152 140
301 308 303
63 *133 133
*94 69
86 *96 80
43 63 39
29 26
148
75 *76 45
4,093 4,978 4,031

New Israeli Shekels

Year ended December 31,

2010 2011 2012

In millions

228 335 299

142 82 64

25 82 59

10 45 42
87

35 44 45

39 36 42

479 711 551




PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.
(An Israeli Corporation)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 22 — EXPENSES (continued)

(c) General and administrative expenses New Israeli Shekels
Year ended December 31,
2010 2011 2012
In millions
Wages, employee benefits expenses and car maintenance ............... 122 100 89
Bad debts and allowance for doubtful accounts...........c.ccoceevverienns 50 42 40
Professional fEES .......c.ovviiviiiiiis e 45 41 29
Credit card and other COMMISSIONS..........ccceiviririiriiise e 33 42 33
DEPIECIALION. ... .ottt et 12 17 17
OBNET . 44 49 28
Total general and administrative eXPenses .........cccveerererirenecneen, 306 291 236
(d) Employee benefit expense New Israeli Shekels
Year ended December 31,
2010 2011 2012

In millions

Wages and salaries including social benefits, social security costs
and pension costs, defined contribution plans and defined

benefit Plans........c.covveie i 823 1,028 908
Expenses in respect of share options that were granted to

EMPIOYEES ..ot 23 19 11

846 1,047 919

NOTE 23 - OTHER INCOME, NET

New Israeli Shekels
Year ended December 31,

2010 2011 2012
In millions
Unwinding of trade receivables ..., 63 104 108
Other INCOME, NEL........ooviiiiieiiie e 4 3 3
Capital loss from property and equipment..........c.cccoevveveveneieseennn, 3) 2 ™
64 105 111

* Representing an amount less than 1 million



PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.

(An Israeli Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 24 - FINANCE COSTS, NET

Net foreign exchange rate gains..........coceovvereenereieneneiese e
Interest income from cash equivalents..........ccccocvevinciienccneen,
Expected return on plan aSSetS.........ocvveireiiereiineneese e
Fair value gain from derivative financial instruments, net................
OBNET . s

FiNANCE INCOME......ivieiiiieeee e

INEEIESE EXPENSES .....eiitieitieiie ettt sre b
Linkage eXpenses t0 CPL.........cooiiiiinii e

Interest costs in respect of liability for employees rights upon

(LU= LT TR
Fair value loss from derivative financial instruments, net................
Net foreign exchange rate 10SSES.......c.cvvrererierisieeeeieerese e
FaCtOring COSES, NEL......viveeieeieeres e
Other fINANCE COSES ....ooivvieeiieiiie ettt et e e s e e s sbae e

FINANCE EXPENSE ...ttt

* Representing an amount less than 1 million

NOTE 25 - INCOME TAX EXPENSES

New Israeli Shekels

Year ended December 31,

2010 2011 2012
In millions

16 - 8
3 10 7

6 6 6

- 18 -

3 5 6
28 39 27
127 205 188
54 77 35
7 9 9

6 - 15

- ]_8 -

1 2 *
14 22 14
209 333 261
181 294 234

a. Measurement of results for tax purposes under the Income Tax (Inflationary Adjustments)

Law, 1985

Under this law, results for tax purposes through tax-year 2007 were measured in real terms, having
regard to the changes in the Israeli CPI. Commencing the tax-year 2008 and thereafter the
Company and its subsidiaries are measured for tax purposes in nominal values, except for certain
transition provisions: certain losses carryforwards for tax purposes, and certain tax deductible

depreciation expenses shall be adjusted to the changes in the CPI until the end of 2007.

b. Corporate income tax rates applicable to the Group

The Group is taxed according to the regular corporate income tax in Israel.

In accordance with amendment to Income Tax Ordinance from August 2005, and the Law of
Economic Efficiency (legislation amendments for implementation of the economic plan for the
years 2009 and 2010) from July 2009, the corporate tax rate was to be gradually reduced as
follows: 2010 — 25%, 2011- 24%, 2012 - 23%, 2013 - 22%, 2014 - 21%, 2015 — 20%, and for

2016 and thereafter — 18%.



PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.
(An Israeli Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 25 - INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

b. Corporate income tax rates applicable to the Group (continued)

On December 6, 2011, the “Tax Burden Distribution Law” Legislation Amendments (2011) was
published. Under this law, the previously approved gradual decrease in corporate tax is
discontinued. Corporate tax rate will increase to a fix rate of 25% as from 2012 and thereafter.

As a result of the aforementioned change in the future corporate tax rate, the deferred tax liability
as of December 31, 2011 has increased in the amount of approximately NIS 12 million, with
corresponding increase in deferred tax expenses in the income statement.

c. Losses carried forward to future years and other temporary differences

At December 31, 2012, certain subsidiaries of the Company did not recognize deferred tax assets
in respect of carryforward tax losses of approximately NIS139 million. The carryforward tax
losses can be utilized indefinitely. The Group did not recognize deferred tax assets in respect
thereof since Group’s management does not expect that it is probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available in the future, against which the reversal of the temporary differences can be
deducted.

d. Deferred income taxes

Balances of deferred tax asset (liability) in NIS millions are attributable to the following items:

Balance of Effect of Charged to
deferred tax Asat  Chargedto Charged to other As at Acquisition Charged to Charged to other change in As at Charged to other As at
asset (liability) January the income comprehensive December of theincome comprehensive  corporate  December the income comprehensive December
in respect of 1,2010  statement income 31, 2010 subsidiary  statement income tax rate 31,2011 statement income 31,2012
Allowance for
doubtful
accounts...... 61 (1) 60 * (5) 6 61 (5) 56
Provisions for
employee
rights....... 14 1 2 17 1 ®) 5 2 17 (6) 4 15
Subscriber
acquisition
COStS......... 10 (10) 1 1) * * *
Depreciable
fixed assets
and software
................. (99) (6) (105) %) 10 (26) (123) 23 (100)
Intangibles,
deferred
expenses and
carry forward
losses....... 15 ) 13 13 15 7 48 1) 47
Options granted
to employees
................. 4 ) 2 1) * 1 1) *
Financial
instruments
4 (4) * * * * * -
5 11 @) (1) 9 * 9
14 (18) 2 )] 12 10 5 (12) 13 10 4 27

* Representing an amount of less than NIS 1 million.



PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.

(An Israeli Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 25 - INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

d. Deferred income taxes (continued)

New Israeli Shekels

December 31,

2010 2012
In millions
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets to be recovered after more than 12 months...... 59 104 90
Deferred tax assets to be recovered within 12 months................... 44 43 38
103 147 128

Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered after more than 12 months 105 115 86
Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered within 12 months............... * 19 15
105 134 101
Deferred tax assets (liability), net (2) 13 27

*  Representing an amount of less than NIS 1 million.

e. Following is a reconciliation of the theoretical tax expense, assuming all income is taxed at the

regular tax rates applicable to companies in Israel (see b above), and the actual tax expense:

New Israeli Shekels

Year ended December 31

2010 2011 2012
In millions

Profit before taxes on income, as reported in the income

STAEEIMENTS ... e 1,679 742 631
Theoretical taX EXPENSE ......cvvvviiiiiie e 420 178 158
Increase in tax resulting from disallowable deductions for the

current year mainly relating to impairment charges................. 8 18
Decrease (increase) in tax resulting from deferred taxes

calculated based on different tax rates...........ccccevevververververiennns 3) 7
INCOME NOt SUDJECE t0 tAX.....vviviiiiiiiiiiiirec e 1)
Temporary differences and tax losses for which no deferred

income tax asset Was reCognized.........ccocuvvrererenenienesienennens 63 2)
Utilization of previously unrecognized tax losses and other

temporary differenCes.......ocovvvereiereieeess s (11)
Taxes on income in respect of Previous Years ...........ccccoeeerreennen. 5 14 2
Expenses deductible according to different tax rates.................... 1 *
Change in corporate tax rate, see b above .........ccccceoeveieiennnne. 12
OBNET ... 5 7 2
INCOME TAX EXPENSES ...eeuveenriieeieere e 436 299 153

*  Representing an amount of less than NIS 1 million.



PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.
(An Israeli Corporation)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
NOTE 25 - INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)
f. Taxes on income included in the income statements:
1) Asfollows:

New Israeli Shekels
Year ended December 31

2010 2011 2012
In millions
For the reported year:
CUITENT . 413 288 161
Deferred, see d aboVe.........ccccoeveveie s, 14 (15) (10)
Effect of change in corporate tax rate on deferred
TAXES 1.ttt 12
In respect of previous year:
CUITENT ..o 5 9 2
Deferred, see d aDOVE........coovvviveiiiriiiceecee e, 4 5
436 299 153

g. Tax assessments:

1) The Company has received final corporate tax assessments through the year ended
December 31, 2008.

2) As general rule, tax self-assessments filed by a subsidiary through the year ended December
31, 2008, and another subsidiary through the year ended December 31, 2007 are, by law,
now regarded as final. However, the manager of the tax authority may direct that the
abovementioned last tax self-assessment will not be regarded as final until December 31,
2013.

3) All income before taxes and income tax expenses for all of the reporting periods are local in
Israel.



PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.
(An Israeli Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 26 - TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

a.

Transactions with Scailex group

On May 5, 2011, the shareholders of the Company approved and ratified an amendment to the
Samsung Products Agreement according to which: (a) the total volume of the annual procurement
from Scailex shall not exceed NIS 550 million and will not exceed 40% of the total cost of the
products purchased by the Company in a calendar year (b) if an auditor agreed upon by both
parties should confirm that the annual gross profit margin of any group of products exceeds
Scailex’s average gross profit margin, from the same group of products with any entity in which
Scailex is not an interested party therein, Scailex shall credit the difference to the Company; and
(c) The term of the Samsung Products Agreement is for a period of two years instead of three
years, commencing on January 1, 2011. On January 23, 2013, the Board of Directors approved an
extension of the Samsung Products Agreement for an additional period of two years, commencing
on January 1, 2013, under the same terms and conditions, including that the total volume of the
annual procurement from Scailex shall remain unchanged. The resolution is subject to the approval
of the shareholders.

New Israeli Shekels

Year ended Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2010 2011 2012

Transactions with Scailex group In millions
SEIVICE TBVENUES......ccvveeireeeeree s sree e st 15 0.8 0.6
Acquisition of handsets.........cc.ccoevvivvvrivivennnne. 143 478 288
Selling commissions, maintenance and other

EXPENSES (FEVENUES)......ervevereeaierieeieeeeneenie e 3.8 (@) (10)

Statement of financial position items - Scailex group
Current liabilities: ScailexX group.......ccoevvvvevriveriererereieseseneens

New Israeli Shekels

December 31,

2011

2012
In millions

142 70

The transactions are carried out in the ordinary course of business. Management believes that such

transactions were carried out under normal market conditions.



PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.
(An Israeli Corporation)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
NOTE 26 - TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES (continued)
b. Key management compensation

Key management personnel are the senior management of the Company and the members of the
Company’s Board of Directors.

New Israeli Shekels
Year ended December 31

2010 2011 2012
Key management compensation expenses comprised In millions
Salaries and short-term employee benefits...........cccceceee 31 18 21
Long term employment benefits .........ccccocvvvinieivcninenn, 37 13 6
Employee share-based compensation eXpenses................. 16 12 7
84 43 34

New Israeli Shekels
December 31,

2011 2012
Statement of financial position items -key management In millions
Current laDIHTIES: ......voiiec s 5 -
Non-current [iabilities: ..o 13 13

c. In the ordinary course of business, key management or their relatives may have engaged with the
Company with immaterial transactions that are under normal market conditions.

d. Principal shareholder: On January 29, 2013, S.B. Israel Telecom Ltd. completed the acquisition of
48,050,000 ordinary shares of the Company and became the Company’s principal shareholder. See
also note 1(a)

e. In order to encourage the Company’s executive officers to remain with the Company following the
acquisition by S.B. Israel Telecom of 30.87% of our issued and outstanding shares, principally from
Scailex, the Company’s Board of Directors, upon the recommendation and approval of its
compensation committee, adopted a two-year retention plan on December 17, 2012 that became
effective upon change of control on January 29, 2013. According to the terms of the plan, retention
payments will be made to each of the Company’s eligible executive officers at the first and second
anniversaries of the date of adoption of the retention plan, provided the executive officer has not
resigned for reasons other than for certain justified reasons, as specified in the retention plan or in case
of termination by the Company. The amounts of the first and second potential retention payments are
the same, and the maximum aggregate amount of all retention payments together is NIS 6.7 million.
On May 22, 2012, the Company’s Board of Directors, upon the recommendation and approval of its
compensation committee, adopted a retention plan for the CEO according to which the CEO will
receive an amount of NIS 1.8 million, provided that the CEO does not resign during the first year of
the change of control or his employment is terminated by the Company under circumstances other than
those that would deny his lawful right to severance payments and advanced notice.



PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.

(An Israeli Corporation)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 27 - DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

Following are data relating to the net income and the weighted average number of shares that were

taken into account in computing the basic and diluted EPS:

New Israeli Shekels

Year ended December 31

2010 2011 2012

Profit used for the computation of basic and diluted EPS:
Profit (in millions) 1,243 443 478
Weighted average number of shares used in computation of basic

EPS (in thOUSaNdS).......ccveierieriesie e 154,866 155,542 155,646
Add - net additional shares from assumed exercise of employee

stock options (in thOUSANAS).........ccvverveirenesenesee e 1,430 237 127
Weighted average number of shares used in computation of diluted

EPS (in thOUSaNdS).......ecveeeieieserie s 156,296 155,779 155,773

For the years ended December 31, 2010, 2011and 2012 options in the total amount of 1,087,
5,889 and 6,156 thousands respectively, were not taken into account in computation of diluted

earnings (loss) per share, because of their anti-dilutive effect.



Annex “B”
PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

The following report is a summary only, and is not intended to be a
comprehensive review of the company’s business and results of its operations and
financial condition for the year 2012. The report is based upon and should be read in
conjunction with Partner’s Form 20-F for the year ended December 31, 2012, filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "Form 20-F"). In particular, you should
read the risk factors appearing in the Form 20-F for a discussion of a number of factors
that affect and could affect Partner’s financial condition and results of operations.

This report, as well as Form 20-F, includes forward-looking statements within the
meaning of Section 27A of the US Securities Act of 1933, as amended, Section 21E of
the US Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the safe harbor provisions of
the US Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Words such as “believe,”
“anticipate,” “expect,” “intend,” “seek,” “will,” “plan,” “could,” *“may,” *“project,”
“goal,” “target” and similar expressions often identify forward-looking statements but are
not the only way we identify these statements. All statements other than statements of
historical fact included in this report regarding our future performance, revenues or
margins, market share or reduction of expenses, and any statements regarding other
future events or our future prospects, are forward-looking statements.

We have based these forward-looking statements on our current knowledge and our
present beliefs and expectations regarding possible future events. These forward-looking
statements are subject to risks, uncertainties and assumptions about Partner, consumer
habits and preferences in cellular and fixed-line telephone usage, trends in the Israeli
telecommunications industry in general, the impact of current global economic conditions
and possible regulatory and legal developments. For a description of some of the risks we
face, see in Form 20-F, "ltem 3D. Risk Factors”, "ltem 4. Information On The
Company", "Item 5. Operating And Financial Review And Prospects”, "lItem 8A.1 Legal
And Administrative Proceedings™ and "Item 11. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures
About Market Risk™. In light of these risks, uncertainties and assumptions, the forward-
looking events discussed in this report might not occur, and actual results may differ
materially from the results anticipated. We undertake no obligation to publicly update or
revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future
events or otherwise.

In this report, references to “$” and “US dollars” are to United States dollars and
references to “NIS” are to New Israeli Shekels. This report contains translations of NIS
amounts into US dollars at December 31, 2012 NIS 3.733 =US$ 1.00 as published by the
Bank of Israel, solely for the convenience of the reader.



Results of Consolidated Operations for the Year Ended December 31, 2012 Compared
to the Year Ended December 31, 2011

On March 3, 2011, Partner concluded the acquisition of 012 Smile, an Israeli
operator of international telecommunications services and local fixed line services and a
provider of internet services. The consolidated results of 2011 therefore include the
results of 012 Smile from March 3, 2011, forward.

Composition of revenues and cost of revenues

New Israeli Shekels

Year ended
December 31,
2011 2012

In millions
Service revenues 5,224 4,640
Equipment revenues 1,774 932
Total revenues 6,998 5,672
Cost of revenues — Services 3,570 3,212
Cost of revenues — Equipment 1,408 819
Total Cost of revenues 4,978 4,031
Gross profit 2,020 1,541

Revenues. Total revenues in 2012 were NIS 5,572 million (US$ 1,493 million), a
decrease of 20% from NIS 6,998 million in 2011.

Revenues from services. Annual service revenues totaled NIS 4,640 million (US$
1,243 million) in 2012, decreasing by 11% from NIS 5,224 million in 2011. Service
revenues for the cellular segment in 2012 were NIS 3,592 million (US$ 962 million),
decreasing by 15% from NIS 4,248 million in 2011. The decrease was mainly a result of
the intense price erosion of cellular services including voice and data services, following
the entry of new competitors (new operators and MVNO's) in the first half of the year, as
well as the continued decrease in revenues from roaming services. The decrease also
reflected the lower post-paid cellular subscriber base which decreased by approximately
4% on an average basis over the past year.

Service revenues for the fixed line segment reached NIS 1,210 million (US$ 324
million) in 2012, an increase of 7% compared with NIS 1,127 million in 2011. The
increase largely reflected the contribution of 012 Smile to the Company’s results for the
full year in 2012, compared to only ten months in 2011 (from the date of acquisition in
March 2011). The impact of 012 Smile’s contribution was partially offset by price
erosion in fixed line services due to tougher competitive market conditions, and a gradual
decrease in the average number of internet service subscribers over the period.



Revenues from equipment. Equipment revenues in 2012 totaled NIS 932 million
(US$ 250 million), a decrease of 47% compared with NIS 1,774 million in 2011. The
decrease largely reflected a significant decrease of approximately 50% in the quantity of
cellular equipment sold, reflecting increased competition from independent handset
suppliers, the impact of the Company’s strategy to require more stringent payment terms,
a general decrease in market demand, and an end to the use of special discounts for
customers with new handsets.

Operating expenses, Operating expenses (including cost of service revenues,
selling, marketing and administrative expenses and excluding depreciation and
amortization expenses) totaled NIS 3,262 million (US$ 874 million) in 2012, a decrease
of 7% or NIS 255 million from 2011, largely reflecting the series of efficiency measures
undertaken over the last year, and in particular the reduction of the workforce by
approximately 40% over the period. The decrease was despite the full-year contribution
of 012 Smile in 2012 compared with only a ten-month contribution in 2011.

Operating profit. Operating profit for 2012 was NIS 865 million (US$ 232
million), a decrease of 17% compared with reported operating profit for 2011 including
an impairment charge impact of NIS 322 million (related to certain fixed line assets). The
decrease amounted to 36% when compared with operating profit before the impact of the
impairment.

Financial expenses, net. Financial expenses, net in 2012 were NIS 234 million
(US$ 63 million), a decrease of 20% compared with NIS 294 million. The decrease was
mainly due to the lower level of average debt in 2012 compared with 2011, together with
a lower level of expenses linked to changes in the consumer price index (“CPI”") of 1.4%
over 2012 compared with 2.6% over 2011.

Profit before income tax. Profit before income taxes for 2012 was NIS 631
million (US$ 169 million), a decrease of 15% from NI1S742 million in 2011.

Income taxes on profit. Income taxes on profit for 2012 were NIS 153 million
(US$ 41 million), a decrease of 49% from NIS 299 million in 2011.

The effective tax rate for 2012 was 24%, compared with 29% in 2011 (before the
impact of the impairment). The decrease in the tax rate as above was mainly due to the
utilization of previously unrecognized tax losses and other temporary differences against
taxable income.

Net profit. Net profit in 2012 was NIS 478 million (US$ 128 million), an increase
of 8% compared with reported net profit in 2011 of NIS 443 million, including the impact
of the impairment in the amount of NIS 311 million, and a decrease of 37% compared
with net profit in 2011 before the impact of the impairment. Based on the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during 2012, basic earnings per share or ADS, was
NIS 3.07 (US$ 0.82), an increase of 8% compared to NIS 2.85 in 2011.

Adjusted EBITDA. Annual Adjusted EBITDA totaled NIS 1,602 million (US$ 429
million) in 2012, a decrease of 26% from NIS 2,178 million in 2011. Adjusted EBITDA



for the cellular segment was NIS 1,314 million (US$ 352 million) in 2012, decreasing by
31% from NIS 1,896 million in 2011, reflecting the impact of the reduction in service
revenues and in gross profit from equipment revenues, partially offset by the reduction in
operating expenses (including cost of service revenues, selling, marketing and
administrative expenses and excluding depreciation and amortization), as described
above. Adjusted EBITDA for the fixed line segment in 2012 was NIS 288 million (US$
77 million), an increase of 2% from NIS 282 million in 2011, reflecting the reduction in
operating expenses and the impact of the full-year contribution of 012 Smile in 2012
compared with only ten months in 2011, partially offset by the reduction in service
revenues.

Adjusted EBITDA as reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker
(“CODM™), represents earnings before interest (finance costs, net), taxes, depreciation,
amortization (including amortization of intangible assets, deferred expenses-right of use,
and share based compensation expenses) and impairment charges, as a measure of
operating profit. Adjusted EBITDA is not a financial measure under IFRS and may not be
comparable to other similarly titled measures for other companies. Adjusted EBITDA
may not be indicative of the Company’s historic operating results nor is it meant to be
predictive of potential future results. We use the term ““Adjusted EBITDA” to highlight
the fact that amortization includes amortization of deferred expenses — right of use and
employee share-based compensation expenses, but the Adjusted EBITDA is fully
comparable to EBITDA information which has been previously provided for prior
periods. For a reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA with our audited financial data, see
Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements for 2012 included in Form 20-F.

Results Of Operation By Segment For The Year Ended December 31, 2012
Compared To The Year Ended December 31, 2011

The consolidation of 012 Smile into Partner’s financial results following its
acquisition on March 3, 2011, had a significant impact on the results of the Fixed-line
Segment, as set forth below, but did not affect the results of the Cellular Segment.

Cellular Services Business Segment

The impairment charge on fixed-line assets in 2011 did not have any impact on
the results for the cellular segment.

Total Revenues, Total revenues for the cellular segment in 2012 were NIS 4,488
million (US$ 1,202 million), a decrease of 25% from NIS 5,996 million in 2011.

Revenues from services. Annual service revenues for the cellular segment were
NIS 3,592 million (US$ 962 million) in 2012, decreasing by 15% from NIS 4,248 million
in 2011. The decrease was mainly a result of the intense price erosion of cellular services
including voice and data services, following the entry of new competitors (MVNO’s and
new operators) and the offering of “unlimited plans” in the first half of the year, as well
as the continued decrease in revenues from roaming services. The decrease also reflected
the lower post-paid cellular subscriber base, which decreased by approximately 4% on an
average basis over the past year.



Pre-paid subscribers contributed service revenues in a total amount of
approximately NIS 475 million (US$ 127 million) in 2012, a decrease of 5% from
approximately NIS 500 million in 2011, as a result of the price erosion and the decrease
in the number of pre-paid subscribers.

Revenues from cellular data and content services excluding SMS in 2012 totaled
NIS 559 million (US$ 150 million), a decrease of 16% compared with NIS 666 million in
2011. The decrease mainly reflected the price erosion of data and content services
including browsing and other services, the lower post-paid subscriber base, and the
impact of new consumer protection regulations in 2011 which led to a reduction in
content service revenues.

SMS service revenues, on an allocated basis as explained below, totaled NIS 433
million (US$ 116 million) in 2012, a decrease of 5% compared with NIS 456 million in
2011.

Since approximately two-thirds of outgoing airtime, content and data (including
SMS) revenues is derived from customers who subscribe to bundled packages which
include airtime, data and SMS, the separate reporting of data and content service
revenues relies heavily on the allocation methodology and application of those revenues
between the different services offered in the bundled packages. Furthermore, the
proportion of customers with unlimited packages which offer unlimited use of voice and
SMS, as well as certain browsing volumes, continues to rise, and this trend is expected to
continue. The Company has therefore concluded that the separate reporting of content
and SMS revenues is no longer beneficial to understanding the Company’s results of
operation, and will not provide this breakdown in future discussions of its results.

Revenues from equipment. Revenues from cellular equipment sales in 2012
totaled NIS 896 million (US$ 240 million), decreasing by 49% from NIS 1,748 million in
2011. The decrease largely reflected a significant decrease of approximately 50% in the
quantity of cellular equipment sold, reflecting increased competition from independent
handset suppliers, the impact of the Company’s strategy to require more stringent
payment terms, a general decrease in market demand, and an end to the use of special
discounts for customers with new handsets.

Gross profit from equipment. The gross profit from cellular equipment sales in
2012 was NIS 109 million (US$ 29 million), compared with NIS 369 million in 2011, a
decrease of 70%. This was mainly due to the lower quantity of cellular equipment sales,
as well as a decrease in the profit achieved per sale, reflecting the increased competition
in the handset market.

Operating expenses, Operating expenses for the cellular segment (including cost
of service revenues, selling, marketing and administrative expenses and excluding
depreciation and amortization expenses) totaled NIS 2,497 million (US$ 669 million) in
2012, a decrease of 12% or NIS 329 million from 2011. Including depreciation and
amortization expenses, operating expenses decreased by 11%.



Cost of service revenues, The cost of service revenues (excluding inter-segment
costs) decreased by 10% from NIS 2,601 million in 2011 to NIS 2,351 million (US$ 630
million) in 2012, largely as a result of (i) the decrease in payroll and related expenses
following the reduction in the level of workforce and other efficiency measures, (ii) lower
royalty expenses due to the state (as a result of lower service revenues combined with the
lower royalty rate of 1.3% for 2012, compared with 1.75% for 2011), and (iii) lower
payments to content suppliers.

Selling, marketing, general and administration expenses, Selling, marketing,
general and administration expenses for the cellular segment in 2012 amounted to NIS
584 million (US$ 156 million), decreasing by 18% from NIS 712 million in 2011. The
decrease mainly reflected decreases in payroll and related expenses following the
reduction in the level of workforce and other efficiency measures taken, lower selling
commissions and a decrease in marketing and advertising expenses.

Operating profit. Overall, operating profit for the cellular segment in 2012 was
NIS 742 million (US$ 199 million), decreasing by 42% compared with NIS 1,287 million
in 2011, reflecting the impact of the reduction in service revenues and in gross profit
from equipment revenues, partially offset by the reduction in operating expenses, as
described above. The impairment recorded in 2011 did not impact the results of the
cellular segment.

Adjusted EBITDA. Adjusted EBITDA for the cellular segment totaled NIS 1,314
million (US$ 352 million) in 2012, a decrease of 31% from NIS 1,896 million in 2011,
again reflecting the impact of the reduction in service revenues and in gross profit from
equipment revenues, partially offset by the reduction in operating expenses, as described
above. As a percentage of total cellular revenues, Adjusted EBITDA in 2012 was 29%,
compared with 32% in 2011.

Fixed Line Services Business Segment

Total revenues, Total Revenues in 2012 for the fixed line segment reached NIS
1,246 million (US$ 334 million), an increase of 8% compared with NIS 1,153 million in
2011,

Revenues from services. Service revenues for the fixed line segment reached NIS
1,210 million (US$ 324 million) in 2012, an increase of 7% compared with NIS 1,127
million in 2011. The increase largely reflects the contribution of 012 Smile to the
Company’s results for a full year in 2012, compared with only ten months in 2011 (from
the date of acquisition in March 2011). The impact of 012 Smile’s contribution was
partially offset by price erosion in fixed line services due to tougher competitive market
conditions, and a gradual decrease in the average number of internet service subscribers
over the period.

Revenues from equipment. Revenues from equipment sales in the fixed line
segment in 2012 totaled NIS 36 million (US$ 10 million), compared with NIS 26 million
in 2011.



Operating expenses, Operating expenses for the fixed line segment (including
cost of service revenues, selling, marketing and administrative expenses and excluding
depreciation and amortization and impairment charges) totaled NIS 927 million (US$ 248
million) in 2012, an increase of 10% or NIS 85 million from 2011. The increase was
explained by the full-year contribution of 012 Smile in 2012 compared with only a 10
month contribution in 2011. Including depreciation and amortization expenses but
excluding the impact of the impairment, operating expenses increased by 4%.

Cost of service revenues, The cost of service revenues (excluding inter-segment
costs) for the fixed line segment increased by 5% from NIS 821 million in 2011, before
the impact of the impairment, to NIS 861 million (US$ 231 million) in 2012. The
increase was largely due to the full-year contribution of 012 Smile in 2012 compared
with the ten-month contribution in 2011, and was partially offset by a decrease in
depreciation and amortization expenses following the impairment, as well as lower
infrastructure expenses.

Selling, marketing, general and administration expenses, Selling, marketing,
general and administration expenses for the fixed line segment in 2012 amounted to NIS
203 million (US$ 54 million), unchanged from 2011 before the impact of the impairment.
This was despite the full-year contribution of 012 Smile in 2012 compared with the ten-
month contribution in 2011, and mainly reflected lower payroll and related expenses.

Impairment loss for goodwill. In 2011, we recorded an impairment charge to
goodwill related to the fixed-line segment in the amount of NIS 87 million.

Operating profit. Operating profit for the fixed line segment was NIS 123 million
(US$ 33 million) in 2012, an increase of 73% compared to NIS 71 million in 2011,
excluding the impact of the impairment (reported operating loss in 2011 was NIS 251
million and included the impact of impairment in the amount of NIS 322 million). The
increase in operating profit, (excluding the impact of the impairment), reflected
principally the impact of the efficiency measures which reduced operating expenses over
the period, as well the impact of the full-year contribution of 012 Smile in 2012
compared with only ten months in 2011.

Adjusted EBITDA. Adjusted EBITDA for the fixed line segment in 2012 was NIS
288 million (US$ 77 million), an increase of 2% from NIS 282 million in 2011, mainly
reflecting the reduction in operating expenses, partially offset by the reduction in service
revenues. The Adjusted EBITDA margin for the fixed line segment in 2012 was 23% of
total fixed line segment revenues, compared with 24% in 2011.
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Annex “D”

[THIS IS A CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF THE BINDING HEBREW
VERSION OF THE COMPENSATION POLICY FOR OFFICE HOLDERS]

Partner Communications Company Ltd. (“the Company™)

July _, 2013

Compensation Policy for Office Holders

1. General

11

1.2

1.3

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Law (Amendment number 20),
5773 - 2012 (“Amendment 20”), a compensation policy for Office Holders of
the Company is hereby being adopted (“the Compensation Policy” or “the
Policy”), as this term is defined in the Companies Law, 5759 - 1999, as
amended (“the Companies Law”), including section 267.A of the Companies
Law. Terms defined in the Companies Law and not defined in this document
shall have the meaning ascribed to them in the Companies Law, unless the
context dictates otherwise.

The Terms of Office and Employment of the Office Holders of the Company
shall be determined on the basis of the Compensation Policy as defined
hereunder (“the Compensation” or “Compensation Plan”) and shall be
submitted for approval by the Compensation Committee of the Board of
Directors of Partner Communications Company Ltd. (“the Company”), the
Company’s Board of Directors or the shareholders (as relevant), as required
pursuant to the Companies Law.!

At least once every three years, and after receiving the recommendation of the
Compensation Committee, the Company’s Board of Directors shall discuss
and decide whether to approve a Compensation Policy for the Company's
Office Holders that will advance the Company’s targets. The Compensation
Committee and Board of Directors shall also review the Company’s
Compensation Policy and the need to amend it to conform to the provisions of
law from time to time, in the event that a material change in circumstances
occurs from those that had existed when the Policy was last approved or for
other reasons. The Compensation Policy shall be submitted for the approval
of the shareholders as required pursuant to the Companies Law. However, to

1

Insofar as the Office Holder is holding office through a company under his ownership, the provisions
of the Compensation Policy shall apply mutatis mutandis: the Compensation to an Office Holder shall
be paid against an invoice and not as a salary, and the components of the Compensation will be
normalized so that, in economic terms, they will conform to that stated in this Policy.



the extent permitted by law, if the shareholders shall oppose approving the
Policy, the Compensation Committee and Board of Directors shall be able to
approve the Policy, after having held another discussion of the Policy and
after having determined, on the basis of detailed reasoning, that,
notwithstanding the opposition of the shareholders, the adoption of the Policy
is for the benefit of the Company.

1.4 The Policy shall remain in effect in its current format until amended or
terminated by the Company’s relevant organs, subject to all statutory
provisions.

1.5 The Compensation Policy, as specified hereunder, was formulated during an
orderly internal process conducted at the Company in conformity with the
provisions of Amendment 20, and is based on principles that enable a proper
balance between the desire to reward Office Holders for their achievements
and the need to ensure that the structure of the Compensation is in line with
the Company's benefit and overall strategy over time. The purpose of the
Policy is to set guidelines for the compensation manner of the Company’s
Office Holders. The Company’s management and the Company’s Board of
Directors deem all of the Office Holders of the Company as partners in the
Company's success and consequently, derived a comprehensive view with
respect to the Company's Office Holders' Compensation. This document
presents the indices that derived from the principles of the formulated
Compensation Policy, as specified hereunder in clause 5.

1.6 It is hereby clarified that no statement in this document purports to vest any
right to the Office Holders to whom the principles of the Compensation
Policy apply, or to any other third party, and not necessarily will use be made
of all of the components and ranges presented in this Policy.

1.7 The purpose of the Policy is to set guidelines for the compensation manner of
Office Holders of the Company. Therefore, the indices presented are intended
to prescribe an adequately broad framework that shall enable the
Compensation Committee and Board of Directors of the Company to
formulate a personal Compensation Plan for each Office Holder or a
particular compensation component according to individual circumstances
(including unique circumstances) and according to the Company’s needs, in a
manner that is congruent with the Company's benefit and the Company’s
overall strategy over time.

2. Definitions

“Phantom Options” - virtual options that represent a theoretical holding of a
particular number of stock options of the Company. They vest a right to the value of
the stock, similarly to stock options that are exercisable while offsetting the exercise
price; i.e., they reflect only the benefit component generated for the offeree, if any
has been generated, on the exercise date. On the exercise date of the Phantom



Options, the offeree will receive the sum equivalent to the difference between the
theoretical exercise price of each option and the share price on that date. In other
words, when exercising the Phantom Options, the offerees are not receiving the
underlying shares, but rather, if the share price has risen above the exercise price,
they receive a financial gain according to the rise in value of the Company’s shares
underlying the Phantom Options they hold, from the option allotment date until the
exercise date (i.e., the difference between the base price of the theoretical exercise
price of the Phantom Option and the determinant share price on the exercise date).
The calculation uses a formula according to predefined conditions outlined in the
Phantom Option plan.

“Restricted Stock Units” - an undertaking to grant one share in respect of each unit
at the end of the predefined vesting period (provided that the offeree is employed at
the Company on that date) and subject to predefined conditions. These units are
similar to stock options of the Company in terms of exercise price, which is the par
value of the Company’s share. Since the units do not constitute shares, they are not
eligible for rights that shares of the Company confer, such as the right to vote and
the right to dividends. Nonetheless, similarly to options, various adjustments might
be made to the units so that they will be eligible for dividends or so that they will be
adjusted due to distributions and changes in equity, such as splitting/consolidation
of shares and a distribution of bonus rights. The Restricted Stock Units may be held
in trust by a trustee.

“Restricted Shares” - restricted shares that are issued to offerees and are subject to
a vesting period, so that offerees cannot sell the shares until the end of the vesting
period. The shares are to be held in trust by a trustee in favor of the offerees and
shall vest the offerees full rights, including voting rights (voting by virtue of these
shares shall be arranged in advance during the blocked period) and the right to
receive dividends (which shall be held in trust by the trustee until the end of the
blocked period). Apart from special cases that are explicitly defined, the trustee
shall return shares to the Company that it is holding in favor of offerees who are no
longer employed by the Company when the shares vest, as well as any additional
sum held by the trustee that has accrued in respect of these shares.

“Bonus” - a one-time payment (or divided into a number of payments) that is not an
Ongoing Remuneration.

“Retirement Bonus” - as this term is defined in the Companies Law from time to
time. As of the adoption date of this Policy - a Bonus, payment, compensation,
damages or any other benefit given to an Office Holder in relation to the
termination of his position at the Company.

“Office Holder” - as this term is defined in the Companies Law from time to time.
Correct to the adoption date of this Policy - general manager (CEO), chief business
manager (CFO), deputy general manager, vice general manager, any person
performing such a function in the Company even if under a different title, and a
director, or a manager directly subordinate to the general manager.



“Variable Component” — any payment (in whole or a portion thereof) in respect of
the holding of an office or employment that is not part of the Ongoing
Remuneration, that depends on variables that are unknown at the time the payment
is determined, such as an annual Bonus, a portion of which thereof is contingent
upon future financial results, but not a Bonus that is calculated according to the
duration of the period of employment (including a Retirement Bonus).

“Fixed Component” — the ongoing remuneration and any other payment (in whole)
in respect of the holding of an office or employment that does not depend on
variables that are unknown at the time the payment is determined, such as a Bonus
that is calculated according to the duration of the period of employment (including a
Retirement Bonus and a Retention Bonus).

“Ongoing Remuneration” — the accumulated monthly salary for a period of twelve
months, including the base salary and social allocations, which may include:
allocations in respect of a provident fund, pension, severance pay, annual vacation,
13" salary, continuing education fund, loss-of-work-capacity insurance, National
Insurance contributions (the employer’s contribution), convalescence pay, car,
mobile and residential phones, Internet services, vacation, holiday gift, as well as
grossing up in respect of a car and in respect of mobile and residential phones.

“Equity Compensation” — options, Phantom Options, Restricted Stock Units,
Restricted Shares, as described below, or any other equity compensation that is
based on securities of the Company.

“The Existing Options Plan” — the Company’s Options Plan of 2004, as recently
amended in 2012.°

“Compensation Plan” — a plan that relates to the Terms of Office or Employment
of an Office Holder or a number of Office Holders of the Company, in relation to a
particular matter or a variety of matters.

“Terms of Office and Employment” of an Office Holder — as this term is defined
in the Companies Law from time to time. Correct to the adoption date of this Policy
— the Terms of Office or Employment of an Office Holder, including the granting of
an exemption, insurance, an undertaking to indemnify, or indemnification under a
permit to indemnify, Retirement Bonus, and any benefit, other payment or
undertaking of a payment as stated, which are being given because of service or
employment as stated.

Policy, supervision and control over the Office Holders’ Compensation

The Office Holders’ Compensation Policy shall be approved by the Company’s
Board of Directors following the process specified hereunder:

3.1 The Board of Directors is responsible for managing and implementing the
Compensation Policy and for all operations required for this purpose, and has

2

Partner Communications Company Ltd. 2004 Share Options Plan.



the authority to interpret the provisions of the Compensation Policy in any
instance of doubt as how to implement it. Without derogating from that stated
and subject to the requirements of the Companies Law, subsequent to its
approval by the Compensation Committee, the Board of Directors shall
formulate and approve a Compensation Plan for Office Holders, while
referring to the Compensation Policy and while referring to data to be
submitted for this purpose by the Company’s CEO or any delegate on his
behalf for each Office Holder at the relevant time of review.

3.2 Notwithstanding all that stated in this Policy, prior to adopting a resolution
regarding the grant of compensation pursuant to this Policy, the Board of
Directors may decide (upon the recommendation of the Compensation
Committee) to reduce or cancel amounts of the Bonuses (or a portion thereof)
that shall be calculated by virtue of the approved Compensation Plans, for the
reasons specified in this document and particularly, due to the Company’s
results, as well as other considerations, the reasons for which shall be
specified.

3.3 As is required and pursuant to the provisions of Amendment 20, the
Company’s Board of Directors has appointed a board committee to address
compensation issues (hereinabove and hereinafter: “the Compensation
Committee”), inter alia, for the purpose of performing its functions as
required pursuant to the provisions of section 118.B. of the Companies Law:

(1) to recommend the Compensation Policy for Office Holders to the Board
of Directors;’

(2) to recommend that the Compensation Policy be updated from time to
time, and to review its implementation;

(3) to decide whether to approve transactions involving Terms of Office and
Employment of an Office Holder, director and controlling shareholder or
a relative thereof; and

(4) to decide whether to exempt the Terms of Office of a candidate for the
office of CEO from the need for approval by the shareholders.

3.4 Correct to the adoption date of this Policy, three members have been
appointed to the Compensation Committee, comprised of all of the incumbent
external directors of the Company and one independent director. Correct to
the adoption date of this Policy, the following directors have been appointed
to the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors:

e Mr. Barry Ben-Zeev (committee chairman; external director)

e  Dr. Michael Anghel (external director)

®  As stated above, the Compensation Policy shall be reviewed and approved at least once every three

years.



3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

*  Mr. Arik Steinberg (independent director).

The Board of Directors or the Compensation Committee may receive the
assistance of external consultants for the purpose of formulating or updating
the Compensation Policy and for supervising and controlling the approved
Policy, to the extent that shall be deemed appropriate.

The Company’s Board of Directors shall discuss and resolve the supervision
manner of the appropriate implementation of the Compensation Policy, in
order to ensure that it is being implemented and, with the assistance of the
Compensation Committee, the Board shall periodically review the
implementation of the Policy (at least once a year) and shall prescribe rules
for control, reporting and rectification of Policy deviations, all as specified
hereunder in clause 10 below.

Without derogating from the general purport of that stated, the Board of
Directors (upon the recommendation of the Compensation Committee) shall
at all times be authorized to instruct that calculations of Bonuses shall be
performed in a manner that differs from that specified in a particular
Compensation Plan, or to resolve that any particular Bonus by virtue of a
particular Compensation Plan shall not be paid at all, and shall be authorized
to instruct the revision, cancellation or suspension of any particular
Compensation Plan, for reasons that the Board shall deem fit, in light of
considerations of the Company's benefit and subject to any law, provided that
any payment to any of the relevant Office Holders deriving from the
implementation of revisions as stated, shall not exceed the payment amount
that would originally have been paid by virtue of that particular Compensation
Plan were it not for the implemented revisions. This authority of the Board of
Directors shall also be exercisable in relation to a Compensation Plan for
which the targets for a particular year have already been approved by the
Board of Directors and brought to the attention of those Office Holders who
are benefitting from it, as long as the payment pursuant thereto has not yet
been paid. That stated in this clause shall be deemed a clause included in
every Compensation Plan to be granted to any employee.

Furthermore, any payment that is not an Ongoing Remuneration that shall be
paid to an Office Holder pursuant to his/her particular Compensation Plan,
insofar as it shall be paid, and which constitutes a Variable Component or a
Fixed Component, is not and shall not be deemed part of the Office Holder’s
base salary, for all intents and purposes.

Principles of the Compensation Policy for Office Holders

The Compensation Policy was formulated in conformity with the resolution of the
Company’s Board of Directors, with the aim of advancing the Company’s
objectives, its work plans and its policies with a long-term perspective, and in a
manner that creates appropriate incentives for the Company’s Office Holders, while



taking into account, inter alia, the Company’s risk management policy, the size of
the Company, its financial position and the nature of its operations. The Company
designed the mechanism for compensating Office Holders in a manner intended to
encourage them to improve the Company’s business processes and mode of
operation and to encourage them to increase the Company’s profitability over time.
The Compensation Policy was set in a manner that is congruent with the
Company’s business strategy and constitutes an incentive to implement it, and in a
manner designed to enhance the Office Holders’ sense of identification with the
Company and its activities, increase their satisfaction and motivation and to ensure
that the Company can retain those Office Holders who have been contributing to the
Company over time. The Compensation Policy prescribes an outline of principles
whereby a Compensation Plan shall be defined for each of the Office Holders,
which is generally comprised of three components — Ongoing Remuneration,
Annual Bonus and Equity Compensation, all being pursuant to the principles
specified hereunder in this document.

Qutline for defining a personal Compensation Plan for Office Holders of the
Company

A personal Compensation Plan shall be defined for each of the Office Holders of
the Company on the basis of the following outline and subject to the principles
prescribed in the outline. Each Office Holder shall be informed of his/her personal
Compensation Plan. Upon determining the Compensation Policy for Office
Holders, the Compensation Committee and Board of Directors of the Company
resolved that Compensation Plans already approved up to and including the date of
approval of this Compensation Policy by the shareholders shall not be amended.
The Compensation Committee and Board of Directors of the Company also decided
that, as long as an alternative compensation policy is not approved (or as long as
this Compensation Policy is not amended), as of the approval date of this
Compensation Policy by the Company’s shareholders and until December 31, 2016*
(“the Period of the Compensation Policy™), the following shall be the outline for
defining a personal Compensation Plan for the Company’s Office Holders:

5.1 The following considerations shall be taken into account when approving a
personal Compensation Plan:

511 The Office Holder’s education, qualifications, expertise and
professional experience and achievements in his/her current position
and, to the extent relevant, in his/her previous position;

5.1.2  The Office Holder’s position, spheres of responsibility and previous
compensation agreements signed with the Office Holder;

513 The ratio between the Office Holder’s Terms of Office and
Employment and the remuneration of the rest of the employees of the

4

In any event, pursuant to the law, the Plan must be approved once every three years.



5.2

Company and the employees of manpower contractors who are
working for the Company, and particularly, relative to the average
and median remuneration of employees as stated; whether this ratio
is appropriate and why, and the impact of the gaps between them on
the labor relations in the Company, if there is any impact;

In this context — “employees of manpower contractors who are working
for the Company” — as defined in the Companies Law from time to time.

5.14

Insofar as the Compensation Plan shall include Variable
Components, the considerations should include, inter alia: the Office
Holder’s contribution to the achievement of the Company’s targets
and to the maximizing of its profits, all from a long-term perspective
and depending upon the Office Holder’s position. The Board of
Directors shall have discretion with regard to reducing the Variable
Components, inter alia, as stated above in clauses 3.2 and 3.7.

Directors’ Compensation

521

5.2.2

The securities of the Company are listed for trading in Israel and in
the United States. As a result, the burden imposed on the Company’s
directors, as well as their responsibility, derive from the requirements
of both legal systems. In order to retain high-quality directors who
possess expertise and contribute significantly to the Company, the
Company believes that they should be compensated commensurately.

By virtue of their capacity as directors, the members of the
Company’s Board of Directors and members of Board committees
shall be entitled to compensation, which includes an annual financial
compensation and compensation for participation in meetings, in
conformity with the provisions of the Companies Regulations (Rules
regarding Remuneration and Reimbursement of Expenses to External
Directors), 5760 — 2000. As long as it holds true that each of the
members of the Board of Directors is an expert in his/her field,
considering  his/her education, qualifications, expertise and
professional experience (not necessarily financial and accounting
expertise or professional qualification), the financial compensation to
each director shall be the same, apart from the Chairman.
Additionally, the directors shall be entitled to reimbursement of
expenses and shall benefit from the Company’s office Holders’
insurance policy and from indemnification letters that have been or
shall be granted during this period (as stated hereunder in clause 6).
The Company shall be able to grant directors an Equity
Compensation. Beyond that stated above, no additional
compensation shall be given to Office Holders in their capacities as
directors.



5.3

For this purpose, the Company’s Compensation Committee and
Board of Directors shall consider the director’s education,
qualifications, expertise and professional experience and
achievements, the creation of uniformity in the Compensation to the
directors (subject to special circumstances) (or in the method of
calculating it), the advancement of the Company’s objectives, its
policy from a long-term perspective, the creation of suitable
incentives for directors of the Company (considering, inter alia, the
Company’s risk-management policy), the size of the Company and
the nature of its operations, but without it being required to take into
account the other considerations specified in section 267.B.(a) of the
Companies Law, or the matters and parameters specified in the First
Addendum A to the Companies Law, since they are irrelevant,
intrinsically, under the specific circumstances at the Company.

5.2.3  Notwithstanding that stated above in clause 5.2.2, the Company has
the discretion to grant the Chairman of the Board a higher
compensation, that shall take into account the additional work
imposed on him, the additional time that the Chairman of the Board
is required to devote to the performance of his role, and, insofar as
the Chairman of the Board is an active chairman, also the
appointment percentage at which he shall be employed.

The ratio between the Fixed Components and the Variable Components
(equity and non-equity)

When the Company organs consider to approve a personal Compensation
Plan for an Office Holder or any particular compensation component in the
said plan, the ratio between the Fixed Components (Including the Ongoing
Remuneration) and the Variable Components in the personal Compensation
Plan of the relevant Office Holder shall be examined, in accordance with the
rules set out in this Policy.

The Compensation Policy strives to reach an appropriate balance between the
Variable Components and the Fixed Components of the Office Holder’s
Compensation, in order to ensure that the Variable Components do not create
conflicts with the Company’s overall long-term interests. Nonetheless,
Variable Components that are contingent upon long-term performance are
very effective tools to achieve the Company’s targets and, therefore, there is a
fundamental preference for such components. Determining the real value of
equity components is problematic and their real value on the exercise date can
materially differ from the estimate of the accounting value on the date that
such an equity component is granted; therefore, the ratio between the equity
components and the Fixed Components can be significantly higher than the
ratio between the other Variable Components (non-equity) and the Fixed
Components.



5.4

As a rule, the total of the variable non-equity components to be given to an
Office Holder over a single calendar year shall not exceed two and a half (2.5)
times the Fixed Components for that year; the total of the variable equity
components to be given to an Office Holder over a single calendar year, and
which shall be assessed according to the accounting approach to the total
economic value distributed equally over the vesting period, without
calculating the severance coefficients, shall not exceed five (5) times the
Fixed Components for that year. The total of all of the variable (equity and
non-equity) components to be given to an Office Holder over a single
calendar year shall not exceed seven and a half (7.5) times the fixed
components for that year. Insofar as an Office Holder worked at the Company
for a period of less than one calendar year, the calculation shall be performed
on a pro rata basis.

Ongoing Remuneration

(That stated in this clause is the maximum level and does not confer a right to
any employee to demand these terms)

5.4.1 Monthly salary

The monthly salary for Office Holders at Partner is within the
customary range for Office Holders at similar companies based on a
comparative survey conducted by an external professional body with
respect to an analysis of acceptable compensation levels for
executive positions in dozens of companies of the same magnitude as
the Company.

The monthly salary is linked to the consumer price index (CPI), as
published by the Central Bureau of Statistics and, as a rule, is
updated on a monthly or quarterly basis according to the CPI of the
month preceding the month for which the salary is being paid. If the
CPI is negative, the monthly salary is not reduced accordingly;
however, a negative CPI is offset from the next positive CPI. Any
cost-of-living increase to be paid, if any, is deducted from each
salary update.

5.4.2  Annual vacation, sick days and Office Holders’ routine annual
medical examination

The Office Holders are entitled to vacation (the maximum vacation
time shall not exceed 30 days per annum and the accumulation of
vacation days may be restricted), sick days (the maximum number of
sick days shall not exceed 30 days per annum and the accumulation
of sick days may be restricted) and a routine annual medical
examination according to the Company’s procedures.



5.4.3

5.44

5.4.5

5.4.6

Allocations to a pension plan and to a continuing education fund

The Company executes allocations and deductions from the Office
Holders’ salary to a pension fund (14.33%), to an office Holders’
insurance plan (13.33%) or to a combined plan (13.33%) and to loss-
of-work-capacity insurance (2.5%), according to the Office Holder’s
choice.

The Company executes allocations and deductions from the Office
Holders’ salary to a continuing education fund (7.5%), according to
the Office Holder’s choice.

Advance notice

As a rule, the advance-notice period prescribed in Office Holders’
employment agreements shall not exceed three months during the
first year of employment, and six months as of the second year of
employment. As a rule, the Office Holder is required to be at the
service of the Company during the advance-notice period.

Adjustment period

The adjustment period prescribed in Office Holders’ employment
agreements shall not exceed three months during the first year of
employment, and six months as of the second year of employment.

Car and phone

The Company may make available a company car of manager class
for the Office Holder’s work-related purposes, and assumes the
related expenses and, as a rule, also assumes the grossing up of the
relevant tax, according to the instructions of the Income Tax
Authority. The Company has the option of choosing to pay vehicle
maintenance according to the Company's policy, as it may be from
time to time.

The Company provides a mobile phone to the Office Holder and
covers the cost of the use thereof, as a rule, only in Israel (however,
for certain Office Holders, also international calls from Israel and
from abroad). The Office Holders assume the value in use of the cell
phone, according to the instructions of the Income Tax Authority.
The Office Holders will be entitled to purchase from the Company
cellular phones at prices that will be determined by the Company, so
long as the price shall not be less than 80% of the cost price of the
phone and will be entitled to benefit from tariff plans that are offered
to Company employees from time to time.

The Office Holders are entitled to reimbursement of per diem
expenses, hospitality and lodging in Israel and abroad, according to
the Company’s procedures.



5.5 Bonuses
55.1  Annual Bonus

The aggregate maximum of all of the Office Holders' annual Bonuses
shall not exceed 10% of the budgeted EBITDA for any calendar
year. In the instance of negative net profit in a particular year, the
Compensation Committee and the Board of Directors of the
Company shall take this into account, shall examine the
circumstances and their implications on the Bonus and shall consider
exercising their authority to reduce the annual Bonus.

Determination of the annual Bonus to Office Holders®

5.5.1.1 The annual Bonus is based on targets at the level of the
Company, the division and at a personal level, which is
usually defined in advance shortly after the Company’s
budget is approved for the following year and before the
start of the year for which the annual Bonus is to be paid.

5.5.1.2 The sum of the annual Bonus that may be granted to any
Office Holder shall be set in advance, as specified in this
Policy, in a manner that ensures an appropriate balance
between the Bonus and the Fixed Components in the Office
Holder’s Compensation Plan.

5.5.1.3 The sum of the annual Bonus that shall actually be paid to
an Office Holder, shall be calculated in a manner that
ensures that a structured ratio is maintained between the
percentage at which targets are achieved and the height of
the Bonus being paid, using a formula that usually takes into
account the following three components: achievement of the
Company’s targets, achievement of the division’s targets
and a personal evaluation of the relevant Office Holder, as
specified in the annual Bonus plan (“the Formula” and “the
Annual Bonus Plan”, as relevant) and as specified
hereunder:

(@) The Company’s targets

Key targets shall be selected from all Company targets
included in the annual budget, which shall constitute a
foundation for calculating the ratio at which the
Company’s targets were achieved, and which are
defined while considering, inter alia, the Company’s
risk management policy, and the long-term

> With respect to the annual Bonus for the CEO that is in office at the time of approval of the

Compensation Policy-see section 5.5.1.6 to this Policy.



(b)

perspective (“the Company’s Key Targets”). Such
targets and indices may be the Company’s net profit;
an EBITDA target; market share; churn rate; cash
flow, etc., and shall include, inter alia, targets that
serve long-term objectives. Each of the Company’s
Key Targets will be assigned benchmarks having
numerical values that are deemed achievable targets,
so that achievement of the exact numerical target
prescribed in the Annual Bonus Plan shall constitute
achievement of 100% of the target. Numerical values
shall also be defined that shall constitute the threshold
target, which, if not achieved, will disqualify the
employee for a Bonus in respect of that specific target,
and numerical values shall be defined that shall
constitute the upper limit for calculating the
percentage at which a specific target has been
achieved. The actual percentage at which targets are
achieved shall be calculated according to the aforesaid
benchmarks and can reach the maximum level to be
defined for each target specifically in the Annual
Bonus Plan. The preparation of the Annual Bonus
Plan, including the determination of the Company’s
Key Targets, their numerical values according to the
Company’s budget and the minimum and maximum
benchmarks, shall be done annually and is subject to
the approval of the Company’s Compensation
Committee and Board of Directors. The weight to be
assigned to this category (“Company targets”) in the
Formula for any given Office Holder shall range
between 30% and 90%.

The Division’s targets

Key targets shall be selected from all of the division
targets under the purview of the relevant Office
Holder that included in or derive from the annual
budget. These selected targets shall constitute the
basis for calculating the percentage at which the
division’s targets have been achieved, and shall be
defined while taking into account, inter alia, the
Company’s risk-management policy and the long-term
perspective (“the Division’s Key Targets”). Such
targets and indices may be: profitability index; market
share; growth index; operating and service indices; an
index of compliance with internal procedures;
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contribution to the formulating of targets and to the
leading of processes relating to corporate governance
and compliance with provisions of law; compliance
with regulations; contribution to the performance and
advancement of strategic content and targets; an index
of reaching milestones in major projects, etc., and
shall include, inter alia, targets serving long-term
objectives. Each of the Division’s Key Targets shall
be assigned benchmarks having numerical values that
are deemed achievable targets so that achievement of
the exact numerical target prescribed in the Annual
Bonus Plan shall constitute achievement of 100% of
the target. Numerical values shall also be defined that
shall constitute the threshold target, which, if not
achieved, will disqualify the employee for a Bonus in
respect of that specific target, and numerical values
shall be defined that shall constitute the upper limit for
calculating the percentage at which a specific target
has been achieved. The actual percentage at which
targets are achieved shall be calculated according to
the aforesaid benchmarks and can reach the maximum
level to be defined for each target specifically in the
Annual Bonus Plan. The Division’s Key Targets, their
numerical values and the minimum and maximum
benchmarks shall be submitted by the Company’s
CEO for the approval of the Company’s
Compensation Committee and Board of Directors. The
weight to be assigned to the “Division targets”
category in the Formula for any given Office Holder
shall range between 10% and 70%.

Personal evaluation

The Company’s CEO shall present his personal
evaluation of Office Holders reporting to the CEO to
the Company’s Compensation Committee and to the
Board of Directors. The Chairman of the Company’s
Board of Directors shall present his personal
evaluation of the Company’s CEO to the Company’s
Compensation Committee and to the Board of
Directors. These evaluations shall relate, inter alia, to
nonfinancial indices, including the Office Holder’s
long-term  contribution and his/her  long-term
performance. The weight to be assigned to the
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5.5.1.5

“personal evaluation” category in the Formula for any
given Office Holder shall be an immaterial ratio.

(d) It is hereby clarified that the aggregate weight to be
assigned to all three of the aforesaid categories in the
Formula shall be 100%.

The breakdown of the targets in each measurable
category and the relative weight of each of the
measurable categories shall be tailored to each Office
Holder individually, depending on the seniority of the
Office Holder and the organizational division to which
the Office Holder is assigned or that is under his/her
purview.

Upon the approval of the Company’s annual results (in the
first quarter of the year following the relevant budget year),
the annual Bonus to be paid to each Office Holder shall be
calculated according to the relevant Formula in the Annual
Bonus Plan, based on the relevant group of targets from
among the Company’s Key Targets, the Division’s Key
Targets and the personal evaluation of each Office Holder.
Eligibility for the annual Bonus and the sum thereof shall be
determined according to the following rules: if the total
achievement of targets is at a ratio that is lower than the
defined minimum threshold of 60%, the Office Holder shall
not be eligible for any Bonus whatsoever. If the total
achievement of targets is at the ratio of at least 60%, the
annual Bonus will be calculated according to an index — that
determines with respect to each achievement target ratio the
sum of the Bonus in terms of multiples of the Base Salary,
all as set forth in the Annual Bonus Plan.

Multi-year Bonus

The Company shall consider and shall be able to implement
a multi-year Bonus plan at different and variable ratios for
different remuneration levels. As a rule, a multi-year Bonus
plan is more suitable to senior management echelons and is
usually not suitable for junior employees. The payment of
the annual Bonus calculated according to the relevant
Formula for each Office Holder, as stated above in clause
5.5.1.4 (“the Calculated Bonus”) can be paid biennially,
subject to the following conditions:

(@) The sum exceeding 50% of the total Calculated Bonus
shall be paid shortly after the calculation date of the



said Bonus (“the Base Payment”), no later than 30
days after the approval of the Company’s annual
results for the year of the Bonus;

(b) The balance of the Calculated Bonus (CPI-linked)
(“the Payment of the Balance”) shall be paid on the
payment date of the annual Bonus to be paid in the
year after the payment of the Base Payment (no later
than 30 days after the approval of the Company’s
annual results for that subsequent year); however, an
Office Holder’s eligibility for the Payment of the
Balance during any given subsequent year shall be
contingent upon his/her overall achievement of the
predefined multi-year targets, together with the
defined annual targets for the base year.

To dispel any doubt, it is hereby clarified that the Payment
of the Balance shall be in addition to the payment of the
Compensation (including Bonuses) to which the Office
Holder shall be entitled in respect of the relevant subsequent
year, and the Payment of the Balance shall not have any
impact on the method of calculating the Compensation for
the relevant subsequent year.

In the event that an Office Holder’s employment at the
Company is terminated under circumstances that do not
disqualify the receipt of severance pay by law, the Office
Holder’s eligibility for the entire Payment of the Balance
shall be contingent upon the Company and the relevant
division actually achieving the multi-year targets defined for
them for the relevant period by a ratio to be defined in the
Bonus plan in the base year.

5.5.1.6 Existing arrangements

The Compensation Policy has not been designed to
adversely change existing agreements between the Company
and its employees. The Company will abide by all of the
existing arrangements that are in effect on the approval date
of this Compensation Policy, as long as these agreements
remain in effect (as stated hereunder in clause 8).

Relative to the Company’s CEO,® the personal agreements
signed with him prescribe that the annual Bonus in respect

® The CEO serving at the time of the approval of the Compensation Policy, that the engagement with

him is through a management company.



of achievement of targets (as defined hereunder) shall be at
the sums and under the conditions as specified hereunder:

(@ Insofar as the achievement of targets, as specified
hereunder in sub clause (d) shall be between 90% and
100% (inclusively) - the CEO shall be eligible for an
annual Bonus at the sum reflecting approximately
80% of his Ongoing Remuneration’ (“the Basic
Annual Bonus”) up to the sum reflecting
approximately 120% of his Ongoing Remuneration ®
(“the Annual Goal Bonus”), linearly relative to the
percentage of the targets achieved.’

(b) Insofar as the achievement of targets shall be by more
than 100% - the Board of Directors has the discretion
to either grant the CEO an annual Bonus at the sum
equivalent to the Annual Goal Bonus, or to grant him
an additional sum, the outcome of which is an annual
Bonus that is higher than the Annual Goal Bonus
(“the Additional Sum”). According to this
Compensation Policy, insofar as the Compensation
Committee and Board of Directors of the Company
shall decide to pay the Additional Sum as stated, the
discretionary Additional Sum as stated shall constitute
an immaterial portion.

(c) Insofar as the achievement of targets shall be by less
than 90% — the Board of Directors has the discretion
to decide whether to pay the CEO an annual Bonus.
According to this Compensation Policy, insofar as the
Compensation Committee and Board of Directors of
the Company shall decide to pay an annual Bonus as
stated, when the CEO achieved less than 90% of the
targets, the sum to be paid as stated shall be calculated

7

This percentage is calculated according to the compensation set forth in the CEO's management
agreement, which as a rule is equivalent to the Ongoing Remuneration as of the date of the
engagement with the management company; NIS 2 million.

See footnote 7 above; NIS 3 million. In addition, if the Company's annual net profit for 2012, 2013 or
2014 (the examination shall be conducted separately for each of these years) will be equal to or
greater than the Company's annual net profit for the previous year, the Company shall grant 150,000
options for the relevant year (according to the terms of the option plan that was in effect at the
time the management agreement was entered into).

The relative calculation shall be performed at intervals of 1%, so that the achievement of targets at 1%
above 90% shall entitle the CEO to his Basic Annual Bonus plus NIS 100,000 (one hundred
thousand). Fractional percentages shall be rounded up or down to the nearest whole percentage point.
For example: if, in a particular year, the CEO achieved 93.6% of the targets, his achievement of
targets in that year shall be deemed achievement of 94% of the targets and therefore, the CEO shall be
entitled to an annual bonus at the sum of NIS 2.4 million.



5.5.1.7

proportionately to the percentage of the targets that
were achieved, similarly to that stated above in sub
clause (a).

(d) “The targets” — in this clause, means: the Company’s
annual targets, as defined by the Company’s
Compensation Committee and Board of Directors, at
their sole discretion, within the framework of the
Company’s Annual Bonus Plan.

Eligibility for a Bonus in respect of a partial period of
employment

An annual Bonus shall be paid only to those Office Holders
who worked at least eight months at the Company during a
particular calendar year and were working at the end of that
calendar year. In relation to any Office Holder whose
employment begins in January — April of a particular
calendar year, an annual Bonus shall be calculated that takes
into account the start date of his employment. An Office
Holder whose employment begins later in a calendar year
shall not be eligible for an annual Bonus in that calendar
year.

5.5.2 Retirement Bonus
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5.5.2.2

The Company shall not engage in an agreement that
commits to a Retirement Bonus in advance, but it shall be
able to grant a Retirement_Bonus to an Office Holder. That
stated in no way prejudices stipulations in existing
agreements regarding Retirement Bonuses.

The Retirement Bonus, if granted, shall be granted
commensurate to the Office Holder’s Terms of Office or
Employment. The Compensation Committee and Board of
Directors of the Company can grant Retirement Bonuses to
Office Holders of the Company by virtue of this
Compensation Policy, which shall be calculated on the basis
of their Ongoing Remuneration and shall not exceed 25% of
the Ongoing Remuneration for each year of employment at
the Company, or, in the instance of a predefined period of
employment not exceeding three years, the Retirement
Bonus shall reflect the consideration that the Office Holder
would have been entitled to receive had he/she worked
throughout the entire said period. As a rule, an Office
Holder’s minimum period of office or employment that shall



qualify for a Retirement Bonus shall be at least twelve (12)
months of employment at the Company.

5.5.2.3 The decision-making with regard to a Retirement Bonus
shall consider the Office Holder’s contribution to the
achievement of the Company’s targets and to the
maximizing of its profits, and shall be calculated while
considering the Company’s performance during the Office
Holder’s incumbency, as shall be decided by the Board of
Directors.

5.5.2.4 The decision-making with regard to a Retirement Bonus
shall take into account the circumstances of the Office
Holder’s severance and how they affect the Office Holder’s
right to the Retirement Bonus. Naturally, a Retirement
Bonus shall not be given under circumstances of the
commission of fraud against the Company.

5.5.2.5 1ltis hereby clarified that the adoption of this Compensation
Policy shall in no way prejudice the existing rights of any
Office Holder relative to Retirement Bonuses that were
approved prior to the adoption of this Policy, on which the
Office Holders relied during their employment.

5.5.3  Special Bonuses

In addition to the annual Bonuses and any other compensation
described in this Policy, the Board of Directors of the Company
(upon the recommendation of the Compensation Committee) shall
have the authority, in accordance with its discretion, to award special
Bonuses, whether equity or non-equity - ad hoc - under special
circumstances, such as Office Holder retention relating to the sale of
the Company or the transfer of the control over the Company. This
special Bonus shall be calculated separately and in addition to any
other type of compensation described in this Policy. The special
Bonus as stated shall be according to the criteria to be prescribed by
the Compensation Committee and the Board of Directors of the
Company, and shall be within the range that is customary in the
market for Office Holders holding similar positions, provided that
such compensation shall not exceed twice (2) the Fixed Components
of the Office Holder in the relevant calendar year'®, without this
requiring an additional approval by the shareholders. In addition,
under circumstances as stated, the Compensation Committee and the
Board of Directors of the Company shall also be able to extend an

1 The relevant calendar year - the calendar year preceding the date of the decision to grant the bonus or
the calendar year during which the decision was adopted, as to be decided by the Compensation
Committee and the Company's Board of Directors in accordance with the specific circumstances.



Office Holder’s adjustment period for a period not longer than nine
months and/or to determine that the Company shall pay the Office
Holder his/her compensation terms in their entirety during an
additional period, which shall not exceed 12 months beyond that
prescribed in this Compensation Policy.

5.6 Equity Compensation — options, Phantom Options, Restricted Stock Units,

Restricted Shares

5.6.1

5.6.2

5.6.3

5.6.4

The use of an equity-based compensation enables alignment between
the Office Holders’ targets and the objectives of the shareholders,
creates a retention component in the Compensation Plan that takes a
long-term perspective on the Company’s results, and motivates the
Office Holders to work for the benefit of the Company under long-
term policy considerations and with controlled risk-taking. Equity
Compensation can be offered in a track either with or without a
trustee, including a capital-gains track or an employment-income
track, as the Company’s institutions shall decide.

The terms of a Compensation Plan that include an Equity
Compensation should provide adequate incentives to maximize the
Company’s long-term value. Among the relevant parameters for
ensuring the creation of such incentives are: the expected volume of
dilution, the plan's economic value, the exercise prices and the
vesting period.

With respect to variable equity components not cleared in cash, such
as options or Restricted Shares, the maximum value shall be
calculated on the grant date by way of determining their exercise
prices according to a variety of considerations that the Compensation
Committee and Board of Directors have determined, including, inter
alia, the average market price of the share during a defined trading
period. The Compensation Committee or the Board of Directors shall
not have the discretion to decide on a discount off the market price at
a ratio exceeding 10% without the approval of the shareholders.

As a rule, the minimum holding or vesting period of variable equity
components shall be three years (divided into tranches that shall vest
throughout the period, with the minimum vesting period relative to
each tranche being one year). This minimum vesting period serves to
constitute adequate incentive from a long-term perspective.
However, the Board of Directors (upon the recommendation of the
Compensation Committee) shall have the discretion to assign a
shorter vesting period or to calculate the vesting period from an
earlier point at which the Office Holder was employed by or
provided services to the Company, under circumstances that shall be
explained and specified.



5.6.5

5.6.6

5.6.7

5.6.8

The Company's Board of Directors (upon the recommendation of the
Compensation Committee) may grant Equity Compensation (options,
Phantom Options, Restricted Stock Units, Restricted Shares, etc.), in
whole or in part subject to additional vesting terms besides timing,
such as an allotment of Restricted Shares to an Office Holder, with
the release of the shares to the Office Holder being contingent upon
the Company’s annual net profit for a particular year being equal to
or higher than the annual net profit for the previous year.

The exercise period shall commence as of the end of the vesting
period and shall end after two to seven years have elapsed; however,
the Board of Directors shall have the discretion to define a shorter or
longer exercise period, provided that the duration shall in no instance
exceed the period of the Equity Compensation plan and shall not be
less than one year after each vesting date, apart from an instance of
termination of employment, for which a shorter exercise period may
be defined, but not less than three months.

The maximum cumulative dilution within the scope of Equity
Compensation in respect of all grants executed in the Company shall
be limited, so that it shall not exceed 15% of the Company’s shares
to all Office Holders of the Company for the duration of the Period
of the Compensation Policy. The dilution ratio between senior Office
Holders and the rest of the employees shall be examined using a test
of reasonability.

The dilution ratio shall be calculated while considering the gap
between theoretical and actual dilution. Therefore, an Equity
Compensation (insofar as relevant, such as options) that carries an
exercise price that exceeds 150% of the highest share price during
the period of one year prior to the calculation date, shall be exempted
from such calculation of the actual dilution. The examination shall be
carried out at the time of the allotment of each such Equity
Compensation, and no change shall be made in an allotment already
granted due to a subsequent change in the market price of the share.

In order to maintain the effectiveness of the Equity Compensation
being granted to an Office Holder and in order to equate the Office
Holder’s position to that of the Company’s shareholders, the
Compensation Committee and Board of Directors of the Company
may reduce the exercise price (or make some other comparable
adjustment to the relevant Equity Compensation) fully or partially,
when a dividend is distributed to the Company’s shareholders. The
Company’s Existing Options Plan includes a dividend-reduction
mechanism (full or partial, as the case may be) when a dividend is
distributed to the Company’s shareholders.



5.6.9

5.6.10

5.6.11

An Equity Compensation may be exercised using a cashless
mechanism, whereby the offeree is entitled to receive from the
Company only that quantity of shares that reflects the economic gain
that the offeree would have received had he/she exercised the Equity
Compensation (insofar as relevant, such as options) for shares at the
market price of those shares, net of the exercise price in respect
thereof. This mechanism may be adopted by the Board of Directors
from time to time.

The Board of Directors has discretion to operate a mechanism for
exchanging the Equity Compensation for another Equity
Compensation (such as an exchange of options), for immediate
acceleration of the Equity Compensation or for exchange it for
Phantom Options in the event of a change in control over the
Company (as defined in the relevant Equity Compensation Plan), as
well as to operate a mechanism for immediate acceleration of the
Equity Compensation or for exchanging it for Phantom Options in
the event of liquidation of the Company or if the Company becomes
a private company. The Existing Options Plan also includes an
options-acceleration mechanism in the event of the termination of the
employment of an offeree by the Company within six months of the
date of a transfer of control.

The Compensation Committee and Board of Directors of the
Company may consider and decide on re-pricing of an Equity
Compensation, this under special circumstances in order to prevent
excessive dilution of all of the shareholders:

5.6.11.1 When a share price declines over time, the value of the
Equity Compensation package diminishes, sometimes to the
point of negligible wvalue. In such instance, the
Compensation Committee and Board of Directors of the
Company may consider amending the terms of the Equity
Compensation that has been granted, such as adjusting the
exercise price of options (reduction), the rationale being the
Company’s need to retain key personnel who are critical for
routine operations and for achieving the Company’s targets.

5.6.11.2 Amending of the terms of Office Holders’ Equity
Compensation Plans due to a decline in the share price shall
be considered while taking into account the following
factors:

= The time that has elapsed since the Equity
Compensation was granted, the remaining period until
the expiration date, and the vesting and expiration dates
subsequent to the change.
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= The extent of the dilution subsequent to the change, and
the cost of the change to the Company.

= The time that has elapsed since the downtrend in the
share price began and until the date of the adjustment,
which, as a rule, shall exceed one year.

= Insofar as the adjustment includes a change in the
exercise price of the options, the new exercise price
shall be equal to or higher than the share’s highest price
during the year preceding the re-pricing date.

5.7 Management agreements between public companies, or between private

companies controlled by the controlling shareholder and a public company

controlled by the controlling shareholder

5.7.1

5.7.2

Section 270(4) of the Companies Law prescribes that the special
decision-making principles prescribed in the Companies Law
regarding the approval of a public company’s engagement with its
controlling shareholder in relation to Terms of Office and
Employment, shall also apply to a transaction of the public company
with a company controlled by the controlling shareholder, which
provides management or consulting services to the Company. Insofar
as a consideration shall not be paid to the controlling shareholder or
to another company under his control in relation to a management or
consulting agreement, such agreement shall not constitute “Terms of
Office and Employment” and, accordingly, the Compensation/Audit
Committee or the Board of Directors shall not be required to take
into account the considerations specified in section 267.B(a) of the
Companies Law or the matters and parameters prescribed in the First
Addendum A to the Companies Law.

Management agreements as stated shall be limited to a period of up
to three years.

Indemnification, insurance, release

The Company shall be allowed to insure the liability of its Office Holders, to
indemnify them or release them from liability, in conformity with the Companies
Law and the Company’s Articles of Association. In this regard, the Company’s
Compensation Committee and Board of Directors shall make their decisions based
on the following considerations: advancement of the Company’s objectives, its
policies from a long-term perspective, the creation of suitable incentives for the
Company’s Office Holders (while taking into account, inter alia, the Company’s
risk management policy), the size of the Company and the nature of its activities.
The Company shall not be required to take into account the considerations specified
in section 267.B.(a) of the Companies Law, or the matters and parameters specified



in the First Addendum A to the Companies Law, since they are irrelevant,
intrinsically, under the specific circumstances at the Company.

Office Holders’ liability insurance, indemnity and the granting of release from
liability are essential in order to ensure the recruitment and retention of Office
Holders and directors who are the most suitable for the Company’s needs, and who
possess relevant qualifications and experience to hold office in the Company and on
the Company’s Board of Directors. These are essential considering that, in today’s
marketplace, Office Holders and directors of public companies face greater liability
exposures than ever before, particularly in public companies listed in multiple
countries and subject to differing legal systems.

Procedure for approving the Terms of Office of the Office Holders of the
Company

The description presented below reflects the requirements of the Companies Law
prior to the adoption date of this Policy. The provisions of the Companies Law that
shall be in effect on the approval date shall apply to the approval of a particular
Compensation Plan.

7.1 Relative to an Office Holder (other than a director, CEO, controlling
shareholder or relative of a controlling shareholder)

7.1.1 The Compensation Committee and subsequently, the Board of
Directors, shall approve a Compensation Plan for an Office Holder as
stated, in conformity with the Compensation Policy.

7.1.2  Approval of a Compensation Plan that does not conform to the
Compensation Policy shall be possible in “special cases,”™* (as
defined in Amendment 20), with the discussion of the Compensation
Plan by the Compensation Committee and Board of Directors
following the same procedure as for approving a compensation
policy; i.e., taking into account the considerations specified in
section 267.B(a) of the Companies Law, and while referring to the
matters specified in Part A of the First Addendum A, and while
prescribing provisions, inter alia, as specified in Part B of the said
Addendum with the subsequent approval of a Compensation Plan by
the shareholders, provided that one of the following conditions is
fulfilled: (1) the majority of votes in favor of the matter shall include
at least a majority of the votes of shareholders not constituting
controlling shareholders in the Company, or those having a personal
interest in the approval of the Compensation Plan participating in the
vote; which votes shall not include abstaining votes;*? (2) the total
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For example, when the relevant Office Holder has extraordinary qualifications.

Shareholders participating in the voting must notify the Company in advance whether or not they have
a personal interest in approving the compensation plan; if a shareholder fails to so notify, the
shareholder shall not vote and its vote shall not be counted.



7.1.3

7.1.4

number of objecting votes of the shareholders mentioned in
subclause (1) does not exceed 2% of the total voting rights in the
Company (“Compensation Special Majority™).

Nevertheless, insofar as the law permits this, if the shareholders
opposed the approval of the Compensation Plan, the Compensation
Committee and Board of Directors shall be able to approve the plan,
in “special cases,” notwithstanding shareholders' opposition, after
having held another discussion of the terms of the Compensation
Plan, and on the basis of detailed reasoning that considered the
rationale behind the shareholders' opposition.

An amendment to Terms of Office that is immaterial relative to an
existing engagement may be approved solely by the Compensation
Committee. Insofar as such amendment relates to a quantitative
value, an amendment at a threshold of up to 5% shall be deemed, for
the purposes of this clause 7.1.4, an immaterial amendment; insofar
as the amendment does not relate to a quantitative value, the
materiality of the amendment shall be examined on its merits and its
intrinsic nature.

7.2 Relative to the Terms of Office of a CEO (other than a director, controlling

shareholder or a relative of a controlling shareholder)

7.2.1

7.2.2

7.2.3

A Compensation Plan for a CEO shall be approved by the
Compensation Committee, by the Board of Directors and by the
shareholders by the Compensation Special Majority (in that order).

Nevertheless, insofar as the law permits this, if the shareholders
opposed the approval of the Compensation Plan, the Compensation
Committee and Board of Directors shall be able to approve the plan,
in “special cases,” notwithstanding the shareholders’ opposition,
after having held another discussion of the terms of the
Compensation Plan, and on the basis of detailed reasoning that
considered the rationale behind the shareholders' opposition.

In “special cases,” a CEO’s Compensation Plan may be approved
even if it does not conform to the Compensation Policy, with the
discussion of the Compensation Plan by the Compensation
Committee and Board of Directors following the same procedure as
for approving a compensation policy; i.e., taking into account the
considerations specified in section 267.B(a) of the Companies Law,
and while referring to the matters specified in Part A of the First
Addendum A, and while prescribing provisions, inter alia, as
specified in Part B of the said Addendum, and with the
Compensation Plan being subsequently approved by the shareholders
by the Compensation Special Majority.



7.2.4  An amendment to Terms of Office that is immaterial relative to an
existing engagement may be approved solely by the Compensation
Committee. Insofar as such amendment relates to a quantitative
value, an amendment at a threshold of up to 5% shall be deemed, for
the purposes of this clause 7.2.4, an immaterial amendment; insofar
as the amendment does not relate to a quantitative value, the
materiality of the amendment shall be examined on its merits and
intrinsic nature.

7.25 The Compensation Committee shall be able to exempt the
Compensation Plan of any candidate for the office of CEO from
having to obtain the approval of the shareholders, when the
Compensation conforms to the Compensation Policy, when the
candidate has no “linkage” to the Company or its controlling
shareholder,*® and it has come to the conclusion, on the basis of
reasons to be specified, that the submission of the Compensation
Plan for approval by the shareholders shall thwart the engagement
with that candidate for office.

7.3 Relative to the Terms of Office of a director (other than a controlling
shareholder or a relative of a controlling shareholder)

7.3.1  The terms of compensation conforming to the Compensation Policy
shall be approved by the Compensation Committee, by the Board of
Directors and by the shareholders by a simple majority.

7.3.2  In “special cases,” a director’s Compensation Plan may be approved
even if it does not conform to the Compensation Policy, with the
discussion of the approval of the Compensation Plan by the
Compensation Committee and Board of Directors following the same
procedure as for approving a compensation policy; i.e., taking into
account the considerations specified in section 267.B(a) of the
Companies Law, and while referring to the matters specified in Part
A of the First Addendum A, and while prescribing provisions, inter
alia, as specified in Part B of the said Addendum, and with the
Compensation Plan being subsequently approved by the shareholders
by the Compensation Special Majority.

3 The requirement is that the candidate must fulfill the conditions of an “absence of linkage,” which a
candidate is required to fulfill in order to hold office as an external director, and which is prescribed in
section 240(b) of the Companies Law. In other words, in relation to a company with a controlling
shareholder, the candidate cannot be a relative of the controlling shareholder, and neither the
candidate, his relative, partner, employer, anyone who is directly or indirectly subordinate to the
candidate, nor a corporation of which the candidate is its controlling shareholder, on the date of
appointment or during the two years that preceded the date of appointment, have any linkage to the
Company, to the Company’s controlling shareholder or to a relative of the controlling shareholder, on
the date of the appointment, or to a corporation controlled by the controlling shareholder.
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7.4 Relative to the Terms of Office of a controlling shareholder or a relative
thereof

7.4.1  The terms of compensation conforming to the Compensation Policy
shall be approved by the Compensation Committee, by the Board of
Directors and by the shareholders by a special majority'* of the
Company’s shareholders.™

7.4.2 In “special cases,” a Compensation Plan may be approved for a
controlling shareholder or a relative thereof even if it does not
conform to the Compensation Policy, with the discussion of the
approval of the Compensation Plan by the Compensation Committee
and Board of Directors following the same procedure as for
approving a compensation policy; i.e., taking into account the
considerations specified in section 267.B(a) of the Companies Law,
and while referring to the matters specified in Part A of the First
Addendum A, and while prescribing provisions, inter alia, as
specified in Part B of the said addendum, and with the Compensation
Plan being subsequently approved by the shareholders by a special
majority.

7.4.3 A Compensation Plan to a controlling shareholder or to a relative
thereof for a period exceeding three years must be re-approved every
three years.

Compensation pursuant to previously approved compensation agreements

This Compensation Policy was not formulated to prejudice an existing
compensation of any of the Office Holders of the Company, on which the Office
Holders have relied during their employment by the Company. Any existing
Compensation (including Bonuses), where the granting thereof and the method used
to determine it are not discretionary (such as a Bonus deriving from predefined
quantitative targets or calculated according to the period of employment), is not
subject to approval according to this Compensation Policy or Amendment 20; any
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In this document, “special majority” means that upon the approval by the shareholders, one of the
following conditions is fulfilled: (1) the majority of votes in favor of the matter shall include at least a
majority of the votes of shareholders not constituting controlling shareholders in the Company, or
those having a personal interest in the approval of the transaction participating in the vote; which
votes shall not include abstaining votes; shareholders participating in the voting must notify the
Company in advance whether or not they have a personal interest in approving the transaction; if a
shareholder fails to so notify, the shareholder shall not vote and his vote shall not be counted; (2) the
total number of objecting votes of the shareholders mentioned in subclause (1) does not exceed 2% of
all the total voting rights in the Company (pursuant to that prescribed in section 275(a)(3)).

The Compensation Committee and the Board of Directors must check whether the Compensation Plan
includes a “distribution” and, if it does, it must verify compliance with the provisions of the law in this
regard (whether or not the Compensation Plan conforms to the Compensation Policy), including
verification that there is no reasonable concern that the said Plan might prevent the Company from
being able to meet its existing and expected liabilities on their payment due dates (pursuant to section
275(d) of the Companies Law).



10.

existing Compensation where the granting thereof is discretionary (such as a Bonus
being awarded in recognition of overall contribution to the Company) shall require
approval as required pursuant to the Companies Law.

Return of a Bonus

In the event that an Office Holder of the Company has been paid sums on the basis
of data that was subsequently discovered to be erroneous and was restated in the
Company’s financial statements, the said Office Holder shall be obligated to return
to the Company, or the Company shall be obligated to pay to the Office Holder (as
the case may be), the difference between the sum actually paid and the sum to
which the Office Holder had been entitled to originally, according to the aforesaid
restatement.

Control principles, reporting and correction of deviations

10.1 The Company shall comply with every existing and future provision of law
pertaining to the Compensation Policy of the Company’s Office Holders.

10.2 Any deviation or variance from the Compensation Policy specified in this
document or from the principles therein shall be approved by the
Compensation Committee and subsequently, by the Company’s Board of
Directors, or in some other manner that conforms to the requirements of the
Companies Law.

10.3 At least once a year, when the annual Compensation is about to be given to
the Office Holders, the Company’s CEO or any delegate on his behalf shall
submit a report to the Compensation Committee and to the Company’s Board
of Directors about the Compensation given to each of the Office Holders, and
refer to the Compensation guidelines defined for each Office Holder, the
percentage at which targets were achieved and the calculation of the sums.

10.4 The Company’s V.P., Human Resources and the CFO shall verify that the
payment in respect of each Office Holder’s compensation complies with the
guidelines specified in this document.

10.5 At least once every three years, the Company’s Internal Auditor shall prepare
a special report on the Company’s compliance with the Compensation Policy
as determined by the Company’s Board of Directors. The Internal Auditor
shall submit his report on the implementation of the Compensation Policy as
required pursuant to the Companies Law (to the Chairman of the Board of
Directors, to the CEO and to the Chairman of the Company’s Audit
Committee). Insofar as the report shows that the Company deviated from the
Compensation Policy approved by the Company’s Compensation Committee
and Board of Directors, the Internal Auditor’s report shall also be submitted
for immediate discussion by the Compensation Committee and by the Board
of Directors of the Company.



Annex “E”
REGISTRATION RIGHTS AGREEMENT

REGISTRATION RIGHTS AGREEMENT, dated as of , 20092013 (this
"Agreement™), by and between Partner Communications Company Ltd., a company organized under
the laws of Israel (the "Company"), and Seaex-Ceperation-S.B. Israel Telecom Ltd., a company
organized under the laws of Israel (the "Shareholder").

WHEREAS, the Shareholder entered into that certain Share Purchase Agreement, dated as of
Avgust—12,-2009-November 30, 2012, by and between the Shareholder and Adventtavstements
PteScailex Corporation Ltd. (the “Share Purchase Agreement”), under which the Shareholder wiH
acguired—44,850,000-purchased 47,833,333 ordinary shares, par value NIS 0.01 per share, of the
Company (the Company’s ordinary shares, the "Ordinary Shares")*. Of these shares, (i) 44,850,000
Ordinary Shares were transferred to the Shareholder on January 29, 2013, and (ii) 2,983,333 on
future deferred closing dates;

WHEREAS, the Shareholder also purchased 3,200,000 Ordinary Shares from Leumi Partners
Ltd on January 29, 2013;

WHEREAS, incennection-with-the-transactions-contemplated-byfollowing the closing of the

transaction according to the Share Purchase Agreement the Shareholder desires that this Agreement
shall be executed and delivered; and

WHEREAS, the audit committee and the board of directors of the Company have
determined that it is in the best interests of the Company to enter into this Agreement with the
Shareholder in connection with the Share Purchase Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, representations, warranties
and conditions contained herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:
ARTICLE I
DEFINITIONS

SECTION 1.01. As used in this Agreement, the following terms shall have the following
respective meanings:

"Commission™ shall mean the United States Securities and Exchange Commission, or
any other United States federal agency at the time administering the Securities Act or the Exchange
Act, as applicable, whichever is the relevant statute.

"Exchange Act" shall mean the United States Securities Exchange Act of 1934, or any
similar federal statute, and the rules and regulations of the Commission thereunder, all as the same shall
be amended from time to time.




"Holder" shall mean the Shareholder or any transferee or assignee thereof to whom the
rights under this Agreement are assigned in accordance with the provisions of Section 4.07 hereof.

"Person” shall mean a corporation, association, partnership, organization, group (as
such term is used in Rule 13d-5 under the Exchange Act), business, individual, government or
political subdivision thereof, governmental agency or other entity.

"Registrable Shares" shall mean any Ordinary Shares held by the Shareholder from
time to time. For purposes of this Agreement, any Registrable Shares shall cease to be Registrable
Shares when (x) a registration statement covering such Registrable Shares has been declared
effective and such Registrable Shares have been disposed of pursuant to such effective
registration statement or (y) such Registrable Shares are sold feely in the public market by a person
in a transaction in which the rights under the provisions of this Agreement are not assigned.

"Securities Act" shall mean the United States Securities Act of 1933, or any similar
federal statute, and the rules and regulations of the Commission thereunder, all as the same shall be
amended from time to time.

ARTICLE Il
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

SECTION 2.01. Representations and Warranties of the Shareholder. The Shareholder
hereby represents and warrants to the Company that it has all requisite power and authority, and
has received all requisite approvals to complete the transactions contemplated hereby; this
Agreement has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the Shareholder and
constitutes a valid and binding agreement enforceable against it in accordance with its terms.

SECTION 2.02. Representations and Warranties of the Company. The Company
represents and warrants to the Shareholder that it has been “duly incorporated as a limited liability
company under the laws of Israel and that (i) it has all requisite corporate power and authority, and
has received all requisite approvals (including any necessary approval of its audit committee and
board of directors) to complete the transactions contemplated hereby and (ii) this Agreement has
been duly authorized, executed and delivered by it and constitutes it valid and binding agreement
enforceable by the Shareholder against it in accordance with its terms.

ARTICLE Il
AGREEMENTS IN RESPECT OF THE REGISTRABLE SHARES

SECTION 3.01. Demand Registrations. (a) Each Holder shall have the right (the "Demand
Right™) during the term of this Agreement to require the Company to file a registration statement
under the Securities Act in respect of all or some of the Registrable Shares held by such Holder (but
not less than a number of Registrable Shares that represents at least 2.65% of the then outstanding
Ordinary Shares of the Company, including, if the Company qualifies, a shelf registration statement
relating to the offer and sale of all Registrable Shares by the Holders from time to time in accordance
with the methods of distribution elected by such Holders). Subject to the provisions of subsection (b)
below, as promptly as practicable, but in no event later than 45 days after the Company receives a
written request from such Holder demanding that the Company so register the number of Registrable
Shares specified in such request, the Company shall file with the Commission and thereafter use its
best efforts to cause to be declare effective promptly a registration statement (a "Demand




Registration™) providing for the registrations of all Registrable Shares as such Holder shall have
demanded be registered. The Company may satisfy its obligation to file a Demand Registration
through an automatic shelf registration statement on form F-3 within the meaning of Rule 405 under
the Securities Act. All requests made pursuant to this Section 3.01 (a) shall specify the amount of
the Registrable Shares to be registered. Fhe-Demand-Registration-shall-beforafirm-commitment
underwritten-public-effering.The Company shall be deemed to have effected a Demand Registration
(i) if the demand registration statement is declared effective by the SEC and remains effective for not
less than one hundred eighty (180) days (or such shorter period as shall terminate when all
Registrable Shares covered by such demand registration statement have been sold or withdrawn), or
(i) if such regqistration statement relates to an underwritten offering, such longer period as, in the
opinion of counsel for the underwriter or underwriters, a prospectus is required by law to be
delivered in connection with sales of Registrable Shares by an underwriter or dealer (the applicable
period, the “ Demand Period ™) or (iii) if in connection with a shelf registration statement, the shelf
registration statement is_continuously effective under the Securities Act in order to permit the
prospectus forming a part thereof to be usable by Holders until the date as of which all Registrable
Shares have been sold pursuant to the shelf registration statement or another registration statement
filed under the Securities Act or the date as of which the Holders are permitted to sell their
Registrable Shares without registration under the Securities Act pursuant to Rule 144 under the
Securities Act without volume limitation or other restrictions on transfer thereunder. -No Demand
Registration shall be deemed to have been effected if (i) during the Demand Period such registration
is interfered with by any stop order, injunction or other order or requirement of the SEC or other
governmental agency or court or (ii) the conditions to closing specified in the underwriting
agreement, if any, entered into in connection with such registration are not satisfied other than by
reason of a wrongful act, misrepresentation or breach of such applicable underwriting agreement by
the Holder.

(b) Anything in this Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding, the Company shall be
entitled, upon giving prompt written notice of such action to the Holders, to postpone and delay the

filing of any Demand Registration unti—the—earliestpracticable—time—at—which—such—Demand
Registration—can-bereasonably—effected-for a period not exceeding 45 days if (i) the Company is

conducting or about to conduct an underwritten public offering of securities in which the Holder is
entitled to join pursuant to Section 3.02 hereof, (ii) the Company is subject to an existing contractual
obligation not to engage in a public offering, (iii) the financial statements of the Company for the
fiscal period most recently ended prior to such written request are not yet available, or (iv) the
Company shall determine that any such filing or the offering of any Registrable Shares would (x) in
the good faith judgment of the Board of Directors of the Company, impede, delay or otherwise
interfere with any pending or contemplated financing, acquisition, corporate reorganization or other
similar transaction involving the Company, (y) based upon advice from the Company's investment
banker or financial advisor, adversely affect any pending or contemplated offering or sale of any
class of securities by the Company, or (z) require disclosure of material nonpublic information
which, if disclosed at such time, would be materially harmful to the interests of the Company and its
shareholders. After the expiration of any such postponement or delay and without any further request
from a Holder, the Company shall effect the filing of the relevant Demand Registration and shall use
its best efforts to cause any such Demand Registration to be declared effective as promptly as
practicable unless such Holder shall have, prior to the effective date of such Demand Registration,
withdrawn in writing its initial request, in which case such withdrawn request shall not constitute a
Demand Registration.

(c) Notwithstanding anything contained in this Section 3.01:

(i) the Company shall not be required to file a registration statement within 180 days



of the effective date of a prior registration statement filed as a result of a request for a
Demand Registration by a Holder or within 180 days of the effective date of a prior
registration statement registering Ordinary Shares;

(if) a Holder shall not be entitled to request a Demand Registration until after twelve
months from the Effective Date,

(iii) no request for a Demand Registration may be made by a Holder during the
pendency of any lock-up period imposed in connection with a public offering of securities of
the Company, except with the consent of the underwriters controlling the applicable lock-up
agreement

(iv) the Company shall not be required to file a registration statement if the filing of
such a registration statement, or the transactions contemplated by such filing, would in the
good faith judgment of the Board of Directors of the Company be contrary to applicable rules
or law;

(v) the Company shall not be required to file a registration statement if the filing of
such registration statement, or the transactions contemplated by such fling, would in the good
faith judgment of the Board of Directors of the Company result in a breach of the Company's
license; and

(vi) the Company shall not be required to file a registration statement if the filing of
such registration statement, or the transactions contemplated by such filing, would in the good
faith judgment of the Board of Directors of the Company result in a breach of the Company's
financing or other debt documents (including, any ancillary documents related thereto).

(d)  Notwithstanding anything contained in this Section 3.01, if the lead underwriter of an
offering involving a Demand Registration advises the Holders that have requested such registration
that the total number of Registrable Sharmes that the Holders intend to include is such as (i) would
materially and adversely affect the price of the Ordinary Shares to be offered or (ii) result in a
greater number of Ordinary Shares being offered than the market could reasonably absorb, then the
number of Registrable Shares to be registered in the Demand Registration shall be reduced to such
number which, in the opinion of such underwriters, can be sold without (i) materially and adversely
affecting the price of the Ordinary Shares to be offered or (ii) resulting in a greater number of
Ordinary Shares being registered than the market could absorb. Such Registrable Shares to be
included in such registration shall be allocated pro rata among all requesting Holders on the basis of
the relative number of securities originally requested to be registered by each of them.

(e) The Company shall be entitled to include newly issued Ordinary Shares in any Demand
Registration; provided, however, that if the lead underwriter of an offering involving a Demand
Registration advises the Holders that have requested such registration that the number of Ordinary
Shares that the Company intends to include in addition to the total number of Registrable Shares that
the Holders intend to include is such as (1) would materially and adversely affect the price of the
Ordinary Shares to be offered or (ii) result in a greater number of Ordinary Shares being offered than
the market could reasonably absorb, then the Holders will promptly, so advise the Company and
may require, by written notice to the Company accompanying such advice, that, to the extent
necessary to meet such limitation, newly issued Ordinary Shares shall be excluded from such
Demand Registration.



SECTION 3.02. Piggyback Registration. (a) If the Company proposes to file a registration
statement under the Securities Act with respect to an offering of its Ordinary Shares (i) for its
own account (other than a registration statement on Form F-4, S-4 or S-8 (or any substitute
form that may be adopted by the Commission)) or (ii) for the account of any holders of its
Ordinary Shares (including any pursuant to a Demand Registration), on a form and in a manner that
would permit registration of Registrable Shares for sale to the public under the Securities Act, the
Company shall give written notice of such proposed filing to each Holder as soon as practicable (but
in any event not less than 30 days before the anticipated filing date), and such notice shall offer each
Holder the opportunity to register such number of Registrable Shares as the Holder shall request.
Upon the written direction of any Holder, given within 20 days following the receipt by such Holder
of any such written notice (which direction shall specify the number of Registrable Shares intended
to be disposed of by such Holder), the Company shall include in such registration statement (a
"Piggyback Registration” and, collectively with a Demand Registration, a "Registration™) such
number of Registrable Shares as shall be set forth in such notice._If the offering pursuant to such
registration statement is to be underwritten, then each Holder making a request for a Piggyback
Registration pursuant to this Section 3.02(a) must, and the Company shall make such arrangements
with the managing underwriter or underwriters so that each such Holder may, participate in such
underwritten offering. If the offering pursuant to such registration statement is to be on any other
basis, then each Holder making a request for a Piggyback Registration pursuant to this Section 3.02(a)
must, and the Company shall make such arrangements so that each such Holder may, participate in
such offering on such basis. Each Holder shall be permitted to withdraw all or part of its Registrable
Shares from a Piggyback Registration at any time prior to the effectiveness of such registration
statement.

(b) Notwithstanding anything contained in this Section 3.02, if the lead underwriter of an
offering involving a Piggyback Registration advises the Company that the inclusion of such
Registrable Shares (i) would materially and adversely affect the price of the Ordinary Shares to be
offered or (ii) result in a greater amount of Ordinary Shares being offered than the market could
reasonably absorb, then the number of Registrable Shares to be registered by each party requesting
Piggyback Registration shall be reduced such that the total number of Registrable Shares being
registered is not larger than such number which, in the opinion of such underwriters, can be sold
without (i) materially and adversely affecting the price of the Ordinary Shares to be offered or (ii)
resulting in a greater number of Ordinary Shares being registered than the market could absorb. Such
Registrable Shares to be included in such Registration shall be allocated pro rata among all requesting
Holders on the basis of the relative number of securities originally requested to be registered by each
of them. Nothing contained herein shall require the Company to reduce the number of Ordinary
Shares proposed to be issued by the Company.

(©) Subject to Section 3.01 (e) (ii) hereof, no Piggyback Registration effected under this
Section 3.02 shall be deemed to have been effected pursuant to Section 3.01 hereof or shall release
the Company of its obligations to effect any Demand Registration upon request as provided under
Section 3.01 hereof

(d)  The Company shall not be obligated to effect any registration of Registrable Shares
under this Section 3.02 that is incidental to the registration of any of its securities in connection with
any merger, acquisition, exchange offer, dividend reinvestment plan or stock option or other
employee benefit plan.

()  Notwithstanding anything contained in this Section 3.02, if at any time after giving
notice of its intention to register any of its securities and prior to the effective date of the registration



statement fled in connection with such registration, the Company shall determine for any reason not
to register such securities, the Company may, at its election, give written notice of such
determination to the Holders participating in such registration and thereupon the Company shall be
relieved of its obligation to register any Registrable Shares in connection with such registration (but
not from its obligation to pay expenses incurred in connection with such registration to the extent
provided in Section 3.05) and without prejudice to the right of Holder to request that such
Registration be effected as a Demand Registration under Section 3.01 above.

)] No Holder may participate in any underwritten registration pursuant to this
Section 3.02 unless such Holder (i) agrees to sell such Holder's Registrable Shares on the basis
provided in any underwritten arrangements approved by the Company and (ii) completes and
executes all questionnaires, powers of attorney, indemnities, underwriting agreements and other
documents required under the terms of such underwriting arrangements.

SECTION 3.03. Registration Procedures. (a) In connection with each Registration, and in
accordance with the intended method or methods of distribution of the Ordinary Shares as described
in such Registration, the Company shall, as soon as reasonably practicable (and, in any event,
subject to the terms of this Agreement, at or before the time required by applicable laws and
regulations):

(@) prepare and file with the Commission a registration statement on an appropriate
form with respect to such Registrable Shares and use its best efforts to cause such registration
statement to become and remain effective for the period of the distribution contemplated
thereby determined as provided hereafter;

(b) prepare and file with the Commission such amendments and supplements to such
registration statement and the prospectus used in connection therewith as may be necessary
to comply with the provisions of the Securities Act with respect to the disposition of all
Registrable Shares covered by such registration statement;

(c) furnish to each Holder participating in such registration such numbers of copies of
the registration statement and the prospectus included therein (including each preliminary
prospectus and any amendments or supplements thereto), in conformity with the requirements
of the Securities Act, any documents incorporating by reference in such registration statement
or prospectus and such other documents and information as it may reasonably request in order to
facilitate the age or disposition of such Registrable Shares;

(d) use its reasonable best efforts to register or qualify the Registrable Shares covered
by such registration statement under such other securities or blue sky laws of such
jurisdiction within the United States as shall be reasonably appropriate for the distribution of
the Registrable Shares covered by the registration statement; provided, however, that the
Company shall not be required in connection therewith or as a condition thereto to qualify to
do business in or to file a general consent to service of process in any jurisdiction wherein it
would not but for the requirements of this paragraph (d) be obligated to do so; and provided,
further, that the Company shall not be required to qualify such Registrable Shares in any
jurisdiction in which the securities regulatory authority requires that a Holder participating in
such registration submit any of its Registrable Shares to the terms, provisions and restrictions
of any escrow, lockup or similar agreement(s) for consent to sell Registrable Shares in such
eteh-jurisdiction unless such Holder agrees to do so;

(e) promptly notify each Holder participating in such registration, (i) when a



prospectus or any prospectus supplement or amendment has been filed, and, with respect to a
registration statement or any post-effective amendment to a registration statement, when the
same has become effective, (ii) of any request by the Commission for amendments or
supplements to a registration statement or related prospectus or for additional information or
any receipt of Commission comments, (iii) of the issuance by the Commission of any stop
order suspending the effectiveness of a registration statement or the initiation of any
proceedings for any such purpose, (iv) of the receipt by the Company of any notification with
respect to the suspension of the qualification of any of the Registrable Shares for sale in any
jurisdiction or the initiation or threat of any proceedings for such purpose, and (v) at any time
when a prospectus relating to the Registrable Shares is required to be delivered under the
Securities Act, of the happening of any event as a result of which the prospectus included in
such registration statement, as then in effect, includes an untrue statement of a material fact
or omits to state any material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the
statements therein not misleading in light of the circumstances under which they were made,
and at the request of any such Holder promptly prepare, and furnish to such Holder a
reasonable number of copies of a supplement to or an amendment of such prospectus as may
be necessary so that, as thereafter delivered to the purchasers of such securities, such
prospectus shall not include an untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein not misleading
in light of the circumstances under which they were made and shall otherwise comply in all
material respects with applicable law;

(F) use its reasonable best efforts to furnish, at the request of any Holder requesting
registration of Registrable Shares pursuant to Sections 3.01 or 3.02 hereof, if the method of
distribution is by means of an underwriting, on the date that the Registrable Shares are,
delivered to the underwriters for sale pursuant to such registration, or if such Registrable
Shares are not being sold through underwriters, on the date that the registration statement
with respect to such Registrable Shares becomes effective, (1) a signed opinion, dated such
date, of the independent legal counsel representing the Company for the purpose of such
registration, addressed to the underwriters, if any, and if such Registrable Shares are not
being sold through underwriters, then to the Holders making such request, as to such matters
as such underwriters or the Holders may reasonably request and as would be customary in
such a transaction; and (2) letters dated such date and the date the offering is priced from the
independent certified public accountants of the Company, addressed to the underwriters, if
any, and if such Registrable Shares are not being sold through underwriters, then to the
Holders malting such request and, if such accountants refuse to deliver such letters to such
Holders, then to the Company (i) stating that they are independent certified public
accountants within the meaning of the Securities Act and that, in the opinion of such
accountants, the financial statements and other financial data of the Company included in the
registration statement or the prospectus, or any amendment or supplement thereto, comply as
to form in all material respects with the applicable accounting requirements of the Securities
Act and (ii) covering such other financial matters with respect to the registration in respect of
which such letter is being given as such underwriters or the Holders, as the case may be, may
reasonably request and as would be customary in such a transaction;

(9) enter into customary agreements (including if the method of distribution is by
means of an underwritten public offering, an underwriting agreement in customary form) and
take such other actions as are reasonably required in order to expedite or facilitate the
disposition of the Registrable Shares to be so included in the registration statement;

(h) otherwise use its best efforts to comply with all applicable rules and regulations



of the Commission, and make available to its security holders, as soon as reasonably
practicable, but not later than eighteen (18) months after the effective date of the registration
statement, an earnings statement covering the period of at least twelve (12) months beginning
with the first full month after the effective date of such registration statement, which earnings
statements shall satisfy the provisions of Section 11(a) of the Securities Act; and

(i) use its best efforts to list such securities on each securities exchange on which
Ordinary Shares or American Depositary Shares thereof are then listed, if such Registrable
Shares are not already listed and if such listing is then permitted under the rules of such
exchange.

(b) Each Holder requesting registration shall furnish to the Company in writing such
information regarding such Holder and its intended method of distribution of the Registrable Shares
as the Company may from time to time reasonably request in writing and as shall be required by law
or by the Commission in connection therewith. Such Holder shall notify the Company as promptly
as practicable of any inaccuracy or change in information previously furnished by such Holder to the
Company or of the occurrence of any event, in either case as a result of which any prospectus
relating to the Registrable Shares contains or would contain an untrue statement of a material fact
regarding such Holder or its intended method of distribution of such Registrable Shares or omits to
state any material fact regarding such Holder or its intended method of distribution of such
Registrable Shares required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein, in the
light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading, and promptly furnish to the
Company any additional information required to correct and update any previously furnished
information, or required so that such prospectus shall not contain, with respect to such Holder or the
intended method of distribution of the Registrable Shares, an untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein,
in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading and shall otherwise
comply in all material respects with applicable law.

(c) Each Holder participating in any registration pursuant to Section 3.01 or 3.02 shall enter
into customary agreements (including if the method of distribution is by means of an underwritten
public offering an underwriting agreement in customary form) and take such other actions as are
reasonably required in order to expedite or facilitate the disposition of the Registrable Shares to be
so included in the registration statement.

(d) Each Holder participating in any registration pursuant to Section 3.01 or 3.02 shall, upon
receipt of notice of the occurrence of any of the events specified in Section 3.03 (c)(ii), (iii), (iv) or
(v) hereof forthwith discontinue disposition of such Registrable Shares pursuant to the registration
statement covering such Registrable Shares until such Holder's receipt of notice from the Company
that the use of the applicable prospectus may be resumed or until such Holder's receipt of copies of
an amended or supplemented prospectus.

SECTION 3.04. Registration Expenses. (a) In the case of a Registration proposed by the
Company pursuant to which the Company is registering Ordinary Shares for its own account, all
expenses, excluding underwriters' discounts and commissions and any stamp or transfer tax or duty,
but including without limitation all registration, fling and qualification fees, word processing,
duplicating, printers and accounting fees (including the expenses of any special audits or "cold
comfort™ letters required by or incident to such performance and compliance), fees of the Financial
Industry Regulatory Authority or listing fees, messenger and delivery expenses, all fees and
expenses of complying with state securities or blue sky laws, and fees and disbursements of counsel
for the Company incurred in connection with each Registration shall be paid by the Company. In the




case of such a Registration, each Holder participating in such Registration shall bear and pay the
underwriting commissions and discounts and any stamp or transfer tax or duty and the fees and
disbursements of counsel for such Holder applicable to securities offered for its account in
connection with such Registration.

(b) In the case of a Demand Registration for an underwritten offering, each Holder shall bear
and pay the underwriting commissions and discounts and any stamp or transfer tax or duty and the
fees and disbursements of counsel for such Holder applicable to securities offered for its account in
connection with such Registration. All other expenses, including without limitation all registration,
filing and qualification fees, word processing, duplicating, printers' and accounting fees (including
the expenses of any special audits or "cold comfort” letters required by or incident to such
performance and compliance), fees of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority or listing fees,
messenger and delivery expenses, all fees and expenses of complying with state securities or blue
sky laws and fees and disbursements of counsel for the Company incurred in connection with each
registration shall be paid by the Company and each Holder participating in such registration in
proportion to the number of securities registered for the account of the Company and each Holder.

SECTION 3.05. Indemnification: Contribution. (a) Indemnification by the Company. The
Company shall, and it hereby agrees to, indemnify and hold harmless, in the case of any registration
statement fled pursuant to Section 3.01 or 3.02 registering Registrable Shares of a Holder, such
Holder, such Holder's directors and officers, and each person who participates as a placement or
sales agent or as an underwriter in any offering or sale of the Registrable Shares, from and against
any losses, claims, damages or liabilities to which such Holder or such director or officer or such
agent or underwriter may become subject, under the Securities Act or otherwise, insofar as such
losses, claims, damages or liabilities (or actions or proceedings in respect thereof) arise out of or are
based upon an untrue statement or alleged untrue statement of a material fact contained in any
registration statement, or any preliminary or final prospectus contained therein, or any amendment or
supplement thereto, or any document incorporated by it reference therein, or arise out of or are based
upon the omission or alleged omission to state therein a material fact required to be stated therein or
necessary to make the statements therein not misleading and the Company shall, and it hereby agrees
to, reimburse each such Holder or any such director or officer or agent or underwriter for any legal
or other expenses reasonably incurred by than in connection with investigating or defending any
such action or claim as such expenses are incurred; provided, however, that the Company shall not
be liable to any such person in any such case to the extent that any such loss, claim, damage or
liability arises out of or is based upon an untrue statement or alleged untrue statement or omission or
alleged omission made in such registration statement, or preliminary or final prospectus, or
amendment or supplement thereto, or document incorporated by reference therein, in reliance upon
and in conformity with written information furnished to the Company by such Holder or such
director or officer or any agent, underwriter or representative of such Holder expressly for use
therein, or by such Holder's failure to furnish the Company, upon request; with the information with
respect to such Holder, such Holder's directors and officers, or any agent, underwriter or
representative of such Holder, or such Holder's intended method of distribution, that is the subject of
the untrue statement or omission or if the Company shall sustain the burden of proving that such
Holder, such Holder's directors and officers, or such agent or underwriter sold securities to the
person alleging such loss, claim, damage or liability without seanding or giving, at or prior to the
written confirmation of such We, a copy of the applicable prospectus (excluding any documents
incorporated by reference therein) or of the applicable prospectus, as then amended or supplemented
(excluding any documents incorporated by reference therein) if the Company had previously
furnished copies thereof to the such Holder or such agent or underwriter, and such prospectus
corrected such untrue statement or alleged untrue statement or omission or alleged omission made in
such Registration.




(b) Indemnification by the Holder and Any Agent or Underwriters. Each Holder
requesting or joining in a Registration severally and not jointly shall indemnify and hold harmless
the Company, each of its directors and officers, each person, if any, who controls the Company
within the meaning of the Securities Act, and each agent and any underwriter for the Company
(within the meaning of the Securities Act) against any losses, claims, damages or liabilities, joint or
several, to which the Company or any such director, officer, controlling person, agent or underwriter
may became subject, under the Securities Act or otherwise, insofar as such losses, claims, damages
or liabilities (or actions or proceedings in respect thereof) arise out of or are based upon an untrue
statement or alleged ubntrue statement of any material fact contained in such registration statement,
or any preliminary or final prospectus contained therein, or any amendment or supplement thereto,
or any document incorporated by reference therein, or arise out of or are based upon the omission or
alleged omission to state therein a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the
statements therein not misleading, in each case to the extent, but only to the extent, that such untrue
statement or alleged untrue statement or omission or alleged omission was made in any registration
statement, preliminary or final prospectus, or amendments or supplements thereto, or documents
incorporated by reference therein, in reliance upon and in conformity with written information
furnished to the Company by or on behalf of such Holder expressly for use therein; and each such
Holder shall reimburse any legal or other expenses reasonably incurred by the Company or any such
director, officer, controlling person, agent or underwriter in connection with investigating or
defending any such action or claim as such expenses are incurred.

(c) Notice of Claims, Etc. Promptly after receipt by an indemnified party under subsection (a)
or (b) above of notice of the commencement of any action, such indemnified party shall, if a claim in
respect thereof is to be made against an indemnifying party pursuant to the indemnification

provisions of, or as contemplated by, this Section 3.05, notify the indemnifying party in writing of
the commencement thereof; but the omission so to notify the indemnifying party shall not relieve it
from any liability which it may have to any indemnified party otherwise than pursuant to such
provisions. In case any such action or proceeding shall be brought against any indemnified party and
it shall notify the indemnifying party of the commencement thereof the indemnifying party shall be
entitled to participate therein and to the extent that it shall wish, jointly with any other indemnifying
party similarly notified, to assume the defense thereof with counsel reasonably satisfactory to such
indemnified party (which shall not, except with the consent of the indemnified party, be counsel to
the indemnifying party), and, after notice from the indemnifying party to such indemnified party of
its election so to assume the defense thereof the indemnifying party shall not be liable to such
indemnified party for any legal of other counsel or any other expenses, in each case subsequently
incurred by such indemnified party, in connection with the defense thereof other than reasonable
costs of investigation If the indemnifying party is not entitled to, or elects not to, assume the defense
of a claim, it will not be obligated to pay the fees and expenses of more than one counsel (in addition
to local counsel) for each indemnified party with respect to such claim. The indemnifying party will
not be subject to any liability for any settlement made without its consent, which consent shall not be
unreasonably withheld or delayed. No indemnifying party shall, without the written consent of the
indemnified party, effect the settlement or compromise of or consent to the entry of any judgment
with respect to, any pending or treated action or claim in respect of which indemnification or
contribution may be sought unless such settlement, compromise or judgment (i) includes an
unconditional release of the indemnified party from all liability arising out of such action or claim
and (ii) does not include a statement as to or an admission of fault; culpability or a failure to act, by
or behalf of any indemnified party.

(d) Contribution. Each Holder requesting or joining in a Registration and the Company agree
that it, for any reason, the indemnification provisions contemplated by Section 3.05(a) or Section



3.05(b) hereof are unavailable to or are insufficient to hold harmless an indemnified party in respect
of any losses, claims, damages or liabilities (or actions or proceedings in respect thereof) referred to
therein, then each indemnifying party shall contribute to the amount paid or payable by such
indemnified party as a result of such losses, claims, damages or liabilities (or actions or proceedings
in respect thereof) in such proportion as is appropriate to reflect the relative fault of, and benefits
derived by, the indemnifying party and the indemnified party, as well as any other relevant equitable
considerations. The relative fault of such indemnifying party and indemnified party shall be
determined by reference to, among other things, whether the untrue or alleged untrue statement of a
material fact or omission or alleged omission to state a material fact relates to information supplied
by such indemnifying party or by such indemnified party, and the parties' relative intent, knowledge,
access to information and opportunity to correct or prevent such statement or omission. The parties
hereto agree that it would not be just and equitable if contributions pursuant to this Section 3.05(d)
were determined by pro rata allocation (even if the Holder or any agents for, or underwriters of the
Registrable Shares, or all of them, were treated as one entity for such purposes); or by any other
method of allocation which does not take account of the equitable considerations referred to in this
Section 3.05(d). The amount paid or payable by an indemnified party as a result of the losses,
claims, damages or liabilities (or actions or proceedings in respect thereof) referred to above shall be
doomed to include (subject to the limitations set forth in Section 3.05(c) hereof) any legal. or other
expenses reasonably incurred by such indemnified party in connection with investigating or
defending any such action or claim. No person guilty of fraudulent misrepresentation (within the
meaning of Section 11(f) of the Securities Act) shall be entitled to contribution from any person who
was not guilty of such fraudulent misrepresentation.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, an
indemnifying party shall not be required to contribute under this Section 3.05(d) except under such
circumstances as such indemnifying party would have been liable pursuant to Section 3.05(a) or (b)
had such indemnification been enforceable under applicable law.

(e) Beneficiaries of Indemnification. The obligations of the Company under this Section 3.05
shall be in addition to any liability that it may otherwise have and shall extend, upon the same terms
end conditions, to each officer, director and partner of each Holder requesting or joining in a
Registration and each agent and underwriter of the Registrable Shares and each person, if any, who
controls such Holder or any such agent or underwriter within the meaning of the Securities Act; and
the obligations of such Holder and any agents or underwriters contemplated by this Section 3.05
shall be in addition to any liability that such Holder or its respective agent or underwriter may
otherwise have and shall extend, upon the same terms and conditions, to each officer and director of
the Company (including any person who, with his consent, is named in any registration statement as
about to become a director of the Company) and to each person, if any, who controls the Company
within the meaning of the Securities Act.

SECTION 3.06. Underwriters. If any of the Registrable Shares are to be sold pursuant to an
underwritten offering, the investment banker or bankers and the managing underwriter or
underwriters thereof shall be selected by the Company except in the case of a Demand Registration,
in which case the managing underwriter or underwriters shall be selected by the Holder requesting
such Registration after consultation with the Company and any other Holder who elects to
participate in the registration (if known at the time of such selection) and taking into account the
Company's and such other Holder's reasonable requests, provided that such managing underwriter or
underwriters must be of recognized international standing.

SECTION 3.07._Lockups. (a) Each Holder shall, in connection with any registration of the
Company's securities pursuant to Section 3.01 or 3.02, upon the request of the Company or the
underwriters managing any underwritten offering of the Company's securities, agree in writing not to
effect any sale, disposition or distribution of any Registrable Shares (other than that included in the



registration) without the prior written consent of the Company or the representatives of such
underwriters, as the case may be, for such period of time not to exceed 180 days from the
effective date of such registration as the Company or the underwriters may specify.

(b) The Company shall, if so required by the managing underwriters in connection with an
underwritten offering of Registrable Shares pursuant to Section 3.01 or 3.02, agree in writing not to
effect any sale, disposition or distribution of any Ordinary Shares or securities convertible into or
exchangeable or exercisable for Ordinary Shares (other than that included in the registration) without
the prior written consent of the representatives of such underwriters for such period of time not to
exceed 180 days from the effective date of such registration as the underwriter may specify, except
in connection with a stock option plan, stock purchase plan, savings or similar plan, or an
acquisition, merger or exchange offer.

SECTION 3.08.  Qver-allotment Options. It is understood that in any underwritten
offering of Registrable Shares in addition to the shares (the “initial shares™) the underwriters have
committed to purchase, the underwriting agreement may grant the underwriters an option to
purchase a number of additional shares (the "option shares™) equal to up to 15% of the initial shares
(or such other maximum amount as the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority may then permit),
solely to cover over-allotments, if any. In the absence of agreement to the contrary, the number of
initial shares and option shares to be sold by the Company and the Holders participating in
such offering shall be allocated pro rata among such persons an the basis of the relative
number of Registrable Shares each person has requested to be included in such registration.

SECTION 3.09. Preparation: Reasonable Investigation. In connection with the
preparation and fling of each registration statement registering Registrable Shares under the
Securities Act, the Company will give the Holders participating in such registration and its
underwriters, if any, and its counsel and accountants, the opportunity to participate in the
preparation of such registration statement, each prospectus included therein are filed with the
Commission, and each amendment thereof or supplement thereto, and will give it such access
to its books and records and such opportunities to discuss the business of the Company with its
of cars and the independent public accountants who have issued a report on its financial
statements as shall be necessary, in the opinion of such Holders and such underwriters or their
respective counsel to conduct a reasonable investigation within the meaning of the Securities
Act.

ARTICLE IV
MISCELLANEOUS

SECTION 4.01. Terms of Agreement: Termination. The term of this Agreement shall
terminate with respect to a Holder on the earlier of: (i) sevenfive (75) years from the Effective Date;
and (ii) when the Registrable Shares held by such Holder can be sold in the United States public
market pursuant to an exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act and
without regard to holding period, volume or manner-of-sale limitations.

SECTION 4.02. Effective Date. This Agreement shall become effective subject to and only
after the fulfillment of each of the following conditions (the date on which this Agreement shall
become effective, the "Effective Date"):

(@) A resolution at a general meeting of the shareholders of the Company to approve and
adopt this Agreement shall have been dully passed; and



(b) The consummation of the transactions contemplated by the Share Purchase Agreement
shall have been occurred.

SECTION 4.03. Specific Performance _and Other Equitable Rights. Each of the parties
hereto recognizes and acknowledges that a breach by a party or by any assignee thereof of any
covenants or other commitments contained in this Agreement will cause the other party to sustain
injury for which it would not have an adequate remedy at law for money damages. Therefore, each
of the parties hereto agrees that in the event of any such breach, the aggrieved party shall be entitled
to the remedy of specific performance of such covenants or commitments and preliminary and
permanent injunctive and other equitable relief in addition to any other remedy to which it may be
entitled, at law or in equity, and the parties hereto hereby waive any requirement for the securing or
posting of any bond in connection with the obtaining of any such injunctive or other equitable relief.

SECTION 4.04._Notices. All notices, requests, demands and other communications hereunder
shall be deemed to have been duly given and made if in writing and if served by personal delivery
upon the party for whom it is intended or delivered by registered or certified mail, return receipt
requested, or if sent by telecopier, upon receipt of oral confirmation that such transmission has been
received, to the person at the address set forth below, or such other address as may be designated in
writing hereafter, in the same manner, by such person:

@ If to the Company, addressed as follows:
Partner Communications Company Ltd.
8 Amal Street
Afeq Industrial Park
Rosh-Ha'ayin 48103
Israel

Attention: Roly Klinger
Telecopier: 054-7814193

with copies to:
Shearman & Sterling
Broadgate West
9 Appold Street
London EC2A 2AP England
Attention: Richard Price

George Karafotias
Telecopier: 44-207 655 5500

(b) If to the Shareholder, addressed as follows:

S.B. Israel Telecom Ltd.

Segula tndustrial Park;



Petach-TFikvalsrael- 49277

Attention:

GEO

or to such other address as the relevant party may from time to time advise by notice in writing
given pursuant to this Section 4.04. The date of receipt of any such notice, request, consent,
agreement or approval shall be deemed to be the date of delivery thereof.

SECTION 4.05. Survival. The several indemnities, agreements, representations,
warranties and each other provision set forth in this Agreement or made pursuant hereto shall
remain in full force and effect regardless of any investigation (or statement as to the results
thereof) made by or on behalf of any party, any director or officer of such party, or any
controlling person of any of the foregoing, and shall survive the transfer of any Registrable
Shares by the Shareholder, and the indemnification and contribution provisions set forth in
Section 3.05 hereof shall survive termination of this Agreement.

SECTION 4.06. Severability. If any term or other provision of this Agreement is
invalid, illegal or incapable of being enforced by any law or public policy, all other terms and
provisions of this Agreement shall nevertheless remain in full force and effect so long as the
economic or legal substance of the transactions contemplated hereby is not affected in any
manner materially adverse to any party. Upon such determination that any term or other
provision is invalid, illegal or incapable of being enforced, the parties hereto shall negotiate in
good faith to modify this Agreement so as to effect the original intent of the parties as closely
as possible in an acceptable manner in order that the transactions contemplated hereby are
consummated as originally contemplated to the greatest extent possible.

SECTION 4.07. Transfer of Reqgistration Rights. The registration rights of the
Shareholder in this Agreement with respect to any Registrable Shares may be transferred to
any person acquiring all of the Registrable Shares held by the Holder or a part of the
Registrable Shares held by a Holder comprising at least 4.99% of the outstanding Ordinary
Shares and the transferee acquires the right to nominate a representative to the board of directors of
the Company at the time the transferee acquires such shares; provided, however, that the Company
may deny the transfer of such registration rights in any such case if (i) such transfer relates to a
sale or other transfer of all of the Registrable Shares to a person who is a competitor of the
Company or its subsidiaries in the industry or (ii) any conditions in the last sentence of this
Section 4.07 are not met. Each such transfer is contingent on the Shareholder or the
transferring person satisfying the following: (i) the Shareholder or transferring person shall
have given the Company written notice at or prior to the time of such transfer stating the name
and address of the transferee and identifying the securities with respect to which the rights
under this Agreement are being transferred; (ii) such transferee shall have agreed in writing, in
form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Company, to be bound by the provisions of
this Agreement; and (iii) immediately following such transfer the further disposition of such
securities by each transferee shall be restricted under the Securities Act.

SECTION 4.08. Successors and Assigns. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, the
terms and conditions of this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the




respective successors and assigns of the parties hereto. Except as expressly provided in this
Agreement, nothing in this Agreement, express or implied, is intended to confer upon any person
other than the parties hereto or their respective successors and assigns any rights, remedies,
obligations, or liabilities under or by reason of this Agreement.

SECTION 4.09. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed
in accordance with the laws of the State of New York.

SECTION 4.10. Entire Agreement: Amendments. This Agreement and the other
writings referred to herein or delivered pursuant hereto which fore a part hereof contain the
entire understanding of the parties with respect is to its subject matter. This Agreement
supersedes all prior agreements and understanding among the parties with respect to its subject
matter. This Agreement may be amended and the observance of any term of this Agreement
may be waived (either generally or in a particular instance and either retroactively or
prospectively) only by a written instrument duly executed by each of the parties, which shall
be binding on all of the parties

SECTION 4.11. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in two or more
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shat
constitute one and the same instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date
first above written.

PARTNER COMMUNICATIONS COMPANY LTD.

By:

Name:
Title:

SCAHEX-CORPORATHON
S.B. ISRAEL TELECOM LTD.

By:

Name:
Title:



Annex “F”

Partner Communication Company Ltd.

Legal Department

8 Amal Street

Afeq Industrial Park

P.O.Box 435

Rosh Ha'ayin 48103

Israel

Tel 972-54-7814191
Fax 972-54-7814193

www.orange.co.il

Dear Mr.

Date:

Letter of Indemnification

1. Partner Communications Company Ltd. (“Partner”) hereby undertakes to indemnify
you for any liability or expense that you incur or that is imposed on you in
consequence of an action or an inaction by you (including prior to the date of this
letter), in your capacity of an officer or director in Partner or as an officer or director
on behalf of Partner in a company controlled by Partner or in which Partner has a
direct or indirect interest (such companies being referred to herein as “Subsidiaries”),
as follows:

1.1

1.2.

1.3.

Financial liability that you incur or is imposed on you in accordance with a
judgment, including a judgment given in a settlement or a judgment of an
arbitrator approved by the court; provided, that such liability pertains to one or
more of the events set out in Schedule | hereto, which, in the opinion of the
Board of Directors of Partner, are anticipated in light of Partner's activities at
the time of granting this undertaking and are at the sum or measurement of
indemnification determined by the Board of Directors to be reasonable given
the circumstances set forth herein;

Reasonable litigation expenses, including legal fees, that you may incur or for
which you will be ordered to pay by a court in the context of proceedings filed
against you by or on behalf of Partner or by a third party, or in a criminal
proceeding in which you are acquitted or if you are convicted, for an offense
which does not require criminal intent; and

Reasonable litigation expenses, including legal fees that you may incur due to
an investigation or proceeding conducted against you by an authority
authorized to conduct such investigation or proceeding and which has ended
without the filing of an indictment against you and either (i) no financial
liability was imposed on you in lieu of criminal proceedings, or (ii) financial
liability was imposed on you in lieu of criminal proceedings but the alleged
criminal offense does not require proof of criminal intent, within the meaning
of the relevant terms in or in the law referred to in the Israeli Companies Law
of 1999 (the “Israeli Companies Law”), or in relation to a financial sanction
("itzum caspi").



1.4, Payment to the harmed party as a result of a violation set forth in Section
52.54(a)(1)(a) ((mr2)x)7252) of the Israeli Securities Law of 1968 (the "lIsraeli
Securities Law"), including by indemnification in advance.

1.5.  Expenses incurred in connection with a Procedure ("halich™), as defined in
Section 56.8(a)(1) #z)xnsé) of the Israeli Securities Law (a "Procedure™), in
connection with any of your affairs including, without limitation, reasonable
litigation expenses, including legal fees, including by indemnification in
advance.

1.6.  Any other liability or expense indemnifiable under any applicable law.

Partner may not indemnify you for your liability for: (i) a breach of duty of loyalty
towards Partner unless you have acted in good faith and had reasonable grounds to
assume that the action would not harm Partner's best interest; (ii) a breach of duty of
care done intentionally or recklessly (“pzizut™) except for negligence; (iii) an act
intended to unlawfully yield a personal profit; (iv) a fine, a civil fine ("knass ezrahi"),
a financial sanction ("itzum caspi®) or a penalty ("kofer") imposed upon you; and (v) a
Procedure ("halich™).

Upon the occurrence of an event for which you may be entitled to be indemnified,
subject to the terms of this letter (including the limitations as to amount in Section
3.13) and any laws applicable at such time, Partner shall provide you with the
necessary payments to cover all your expenses in respect of the legal proceedings in
question, so that you will not have to pay for or finance them yourself.

Indemnification pursuant to this letter will be subject to applicable law and to the
following terms and conditions:

3.1.  That you notify Partner within a reasonable time of your learning of any legal
proceedings instigated against you in connection with any event that may give
rise to indemnification and that you provide Partner, or anyone specified by
Partner, with any documents connected to the proceeding in question.

3.2.  That Partner reserves the right to represent you in the proceedings or to appoint
legal counsel of its choice for this purpose (unless its choice of legal counsel is
unacceptable to you on reasonable grounds). Partner or such legal counsel will
take all necessary steps to bring the matter to a close and will keep you
informed of key steps in the process. The appointed counsel will be bound by
a fiduciary duty to you and to Partner. If a conflict of interests should arise
between the appointed counsel and yourself, counsel will inform Partner and
you will be entitled to appoint a different counsel reasonably acceptable to
Partner and the terms of this indemnification agreement shall apply to the new
appointment. If Partner should decide to settle by arbitration or by mediation
or by settlement, it shall be allowed to do so; provided, that you do not incur
any additional expense or liability due to such arbitration, mediation or
settlement or that you have otherwise agreed to such arbitration, mediation or
settlement. If Partner so requests, you will sign any document that will
empower it or any appointed counsel to represent you and defend you in any



3.3.

3.4.

3.5.

3.6

3.7

3.8

proceeding as stated above. You will cooperate as reasonably demanded of you
with Partner and any appointed legal counsel. Partner shall cover all related
expenses so that you will not have to make any payments or incur any
expenses yourself.

That whether or not Partner shall operate in accordance with section 3.2 above,
indemnification shall still cover all and every kind of expense incurred by you
that is included in section 1 of this letter so that you will not have to pay or
finance them yourself. You will not be indemnified for any expenses arising
from a settlement, mediation or arbitration unless Partner has agreed to the
settlement, mediation or arbitration.

That upon your request for payment in connection with any event according to
this indemnification letter, Partner shall complete all the necessary
arrangements required by the law for payment and shall act to receive all
necessary authorizations, if demanded. If any authorization should be required
for payment, and the payment is not authorized for any reason, this payment or
part of it will be subject to the approval of the court (if relevant) and Partner
shall act in order to receive authorization.

That in the event that you are paid for any sums in accordance with this letter
of indemnification in connection with a legal proceeding, and later it becomes
clear that you were not entitled to such payments, the sums will be considered
as a loan given to you by Partner subject to the lowest interest rate for purposes
of Section 3(9) of the Income Tax Ordinance (or any other legislation
replacing it) which does not cause a taxable benefit. You shall be required to
repay such amounts in accordance with the payment arrangements fixed by
Partner, and at such time as Partner shall request in writing.

That you shall remain entitled to indemnification by Partner as provided in this
letter of indemnification even when you are no longer an officer or director in
Partner or in a Subsidiary on Partner’s behalf, as long as the events that led to
the payments, costs and expenses for which indemnification is being sought are
a result of an action or an inaction taken by you as such officer or director.

The terms contained in this letter will be construed in accordance with the
Israeli Companies Law and in the absence of any definition in the Israeli
Companies Law, pursuant to the Israeli Securities Law. Schedule | hereto
constitutes an integral part hereof.

The obligations of Partner under this letter shall be interpreted broadly and in a
manner that shall facilitate its implementation, to the fullest extent permitted by
law, including, ipso facto, as further expanded in the future, and for the
purposes for which it was intended. Without derogating from the generality of
the foregoing, it is clarified that with respect to any expansion of
indemnification that is currently, or will in the future be, permitted by law
following incorporation of specific provisions in Partner’s Articles of
Association, such expansion be in effect ipso facto even prior to such
incorporation, based on Article 34.1 of the Articles of Association, which
allows indemnification to the fullest extent permitted by law. In the event of a



3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

3.13

conflict between any provision of this letter and any provision of the law that
cannot be superseded, changed or amended, said provision of the law shall
supersede the specific provision in this letter, but shall not limit or diminish the
validity of the remaining provisions of this letter.

The indemnification under this letter will enter into effect upon your signing a
copy of the same in the appropriate place, and the delivery of such signed copy
to Partner. It is hereby agreed that your agreement to accept this letter
constitutes your irrevocable agreement that any previous undertaking of
Partner for indemnification towards you, to the extent granted, shall become
void automatically upon your signing this letter. Notwithstanding the above, if
this letter shall be declared or found void for any reason whatsoever, then any
previous undertaking of Partner for indemnification towards you, which this
letter is intended to replace, shall remain in full force and effect.

Partner may, in its sole discretion and at any time, revoke its undertaking to
indemnify hereunder, or reduce the Maximum Indemnity Amount (as defined
in section 3.13 below) thereunder, or limit the events to which it applies, either
in regard to all the officers or to some of them, to the extent such change or
revocation relates solely to events that occur after the date of such change;
provided, that prior notice has been given to you of its intention to do so, in
writing, at least 60 days before the date on which its decision will enter into
effect. No such decision will have a retroactive effect of any kind whatsoever,
and the letter of indemnification prior to such change or revocation, as the case
may be, will continue to apply and be in full force and effect for all purposes in
relation to any event that occurred prior to such change or revocation, even if
the proceeding in respect thereof is filed against you after the change or
revocation of the letter of indemnification. In all other cases, this letter may not
be changed unless Partner and you have agreed in writing.

This undertaking to indemnify is not a contract for the benefit of any third
party, including any insurer, and is not assignable nor will any insurer have the
right to demand participation of Partner in any payment for which an insurer is
made liable under any insurance agreement that has been made with it, with the
exception of the deductible specified in such agreement. For the avoidance of
any doubt in the event of death this letter will apply to you and your estate.

No waiver, delay, forbearance to act or extension granted by Partner or by you
will be construed in any circumstance as a waiver of the rights hereunder or by
law, and will not prevent any such party from taking all legal and other steps as
will be required in order to enforce such rights.

The aggregate indemnification amount payable by Partner to all directors,
officers and other indemnified persons (including, inter alia, officers and
directors nominated on behalf of Partner in Subsidiaries) pursuant to all letters
of indemnification issued erthat-may-be-issued-to them by Partner on or after

_ 2013in—the—fuwre—{inclucing—inter—aha—to—officers—and—directors
nominated-on-behalf-of Partnerin-Subsidiaries), which indemnification letters

include a maximum indemnity amount substantially similar to the Maximum
Indemnity  Amount under this Section 3.13 (the “Maximum Indemnity
Amount™), for any occurrence of an event set out in Schedule | hereto (each,




an_“Event”), will not exceed the-higherof{1}-25% of shareholders equity

(according to the latest reviewed or audited financial statements approved by
Partner's Board of Directors prior to approval of the indemnification

payment)eneb G bl o propeer contializating ook ac peccpracl ordhe tiene of
indemnification{the “Maximum—tndemnity-Amount™).; provided, however,

that under the circumstances where indemnification for the same Event is to be
made in parallel to you under this letter and to one or more indemnified
persons under indemnification letters issued (or to be issued) by Partner
containing a _maximum indemnity amount which is the higher of 25% of
shareholders equity and 25% of market capitalization (the "Combined
Maximum Indemnity Amount™), the Maximum Indemnity Amount for you
hereby shall be adjusted so it does not exceed the Combined Maximum
Indemnity Amount to which any other indemnified person is entitled under any
other indemnification letter containing the Combined Maximum Indemnity
Amount.

3.14 The Maximum Indemnity Amount shall not be affected in any way by the
existence of, or payment under, insurance policies. Payment of the
indemnification shall not affect your right to receive insurance payments, if
you receive the same (either personally or through Partner or on your behalf)
and Partner will not be required to indemnity you for any sums that were, in
fact, already paid to you or for you in respect of insurance or any other
indemnification obligations made to you by any third party. In the event there
is any payment made under this letter and such payment is covered by an
insurance policy, Partner shall be entitled to collect such amount of payment
from the insurance proceeds._You will return to Partner any amount that you
may receive pursuant to this letter, which is based on data or financial results
that will later on be found to be erroneous and will be restated in Partner's
financial statements, as will be implemented by Partner's Board of Directors.

3.15 In-theevent-If the indemnification amount Partner is required to pay to its
directors and other indemnified persons, as mentioned in section 1 above,
exceeds at any time the Maximum Indemnity Amount or the balance of the
Maximum Indemnity Amount in accordance with section 3.13 above after
deducting any indemnification amounts paid or payable by Partner to any of its
directors or other indemnified persons at such time_(all, as determined and
clarified in Section 3.13 above or in the other applicable indemnification
letters), such Maximum Indemnification Amount or steh-remaining balance
will be allocated among the directors and the other indemnified persons
entitled to indemnification, in the same ratio as with respect to any eEvent the
amount for which each individual directors or other indemnified persons may
be indemnified is to the aggregate amount that all of the relevant directors and
other indemnified persons involved in the eEvent may be indemnified.

3.16 The foregoing does not derogate from Partner's right to indemnify you
retroactively in accordance with that permitted by the Articles of Association
of Partner and applicable law.

You should be aware that, insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the United
States Securities Act of 1933 (the “U.S. Securities Act”) may be permitted to Partner’s
directors and officers, Partner has been advised that in the opinion of the U.S. Securities and



Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) such indemnification is against public policy as
expressed in the U.S. Securities Act and is, therefore, unenforceable. In the event of a claim
for such indemnification, Partner will (in accordance with an undertaking given to the SEC),
unless in the opinion of its counsel the matter has been settled by controlling precedent,
submit to a court of appropriate jurisdiction the question whether such indemnification is
against public policy as expressed in the U.S. Securities Act and will be governed by the final
adjudication of such issue.

[INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]



The law of the State of Israel shall govern this Letter of Indemnification and all issues related
thereto, without giving effect to any conflicts of law principles. The courts in Tel Aviv, Israel
shall have the exclusive local and international jurisdiction, in connection with this Letter of
Indemnification, except if an indemnification claim is related to a legal proceeding, already
filed by a third party in a different court.

Respectfully,

On behalf of
Partner Communications Company Ltd.

| accept the terms and conditions of the above. | am aware that Partner has granted (and may
grant) indemnification letters with maximum indemnity amounts different from the Maximum
Indemnity Amount under this letter (including, without limitation, the Combined Maximum
Indemnity Amount) and consequently, the beneficiaries of those indemnification letters may
receive higher indemnification amounts than me, and | will have no claim against Partner in
that respect. | am also aware that my agreement to accept this letter constitutes my irrevocable
agreement that any previous undertakings of Partner for indemnification, to the extent
granted, should become void automatically upon my signing this letter. Notwithstanding the
above, if this indemnification letter shall be void for any reason whatsoever, then, any
previous undertaking of Partner for indemnification towards me shall remain in full force and
effect.

Signature:

Name:

Date:




Schedule |

Subject to the provisions of the law, the following are the events referred to in section 1.1 of
the Letter of Indemnification:

1.

Any offering of Partner’s securities to private investors and/or to the public and listing
of such securities, and/or the offer by Partner to purchase securities from the public
and/or from private investors or other holders, and any undertakings, representations,
warranties and other obligations related to any such offering and Partner’s status as a
public company or as an issuer of securities.

Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Partner's public offering of equity in
1999, public offering of debt securities in 2000, public offering of debt securities in
2005 (including any subsequent offer and sale of the debt securities of that class),
redemption of debt securities in 2005, shelf registration in 2009, private offering of
debt securities in 2009, public offering of debt securities in 2010, private offering of
debt securities in 2011, public offering of debt securities in 2011 and shelf registration
in 2012.

All matters relating to Partner’s status, obligations and/or actions as a public company,
and/or the fact that Partner’s securities were issued to the public or to private investors
and/or are or were traded on a stock exchange (including, without limitation, Nasdaq
stock market, the Tel Aviv Stock Exchange and the London Stock Exchange), whether
in Israel or abroad.

The erection, construction and operation of Partner’s mobile telephone network,
including the erection and operation of antennas and other equipment and
environmental issues, including undertakings, activities and communications with
authorities regarding the foregoing and including the work performed by Partner’s
subcontractors in connection therewith.

The purchase, distribution, marketing and sale of handsets, other terminal equipment
and any other of Partner’s products and/or any marketing plans and/or publications.

A Transaction, Extraordinary Transaction, or an Activity within the meaning of
Section 1 of the Israeli Companies Law, including negotiations for entering into a
Transaction or an Activity, the transfer, sale, acquisition or charge of assets or
liabilities (including securities) or the grant or acceptance of a right in any one of
them, receiving credit and the grant of collateral, as well as any act directly or
indirectly involving such a Transaction or Activity.

Investments which Partner and/or its Subsidiaries and/or its affiliates make in other
entities whether before and/or after the investment is made, entering into the
transaction, the execution, development and monitoring thereof, including actions
taken or alleged omissions by you in the name of Partner and/or any subsidiary thereof
and/or any affiliates thereof as a director, officer, employee and/or a board observer of
the entity which is the subject of the transaction and the like.

The merger acquisition or other business combination or restructuring, or any such
proposed transaction and any decision related to it (by Partner or another person) of



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

Partner, any subsidiary thereof and/or any affiliate thereof with, of or into another
entity and/or the sale or proposed sale of the operations and/or business, or part
thereof, or any dissolution, receivership, creditors' arrangement, stay of proceeding or
any similar proceeding, of Partner, any of its Subsidiaries and/or any of its affiliates.

Tender offers for Partner's securities, including in connection with Partner's Board of
Directors’ opinion regarding a Special Tender Offer as defined in the Israeli
Companies Law or refraining from such opinion.

Labor relations and/or employment matters in Partner, its Subsidiaries and/or its
affiliates and trade relations of Partner, its Subsidiaries and/or its affiliates, including
with independent contractors, customers, suppliers and service providers.

The testing of products developed and/or marketed by Partner, its Subsidiaries and/or
its affiliates and/or in connection with the distribution, sale, license or use of such
products.

The intellectual property of Partner, its Subsidiaries and/or its affiliates, and its
protection, including the registration or assertion of rights to intellectual property and
the defense of claims relating to intellectual property infringement.

Actions taken (or alleged omissions) pursuant to or in accordance with the policies and
procedures of Partner, its Subsidiaries and/or its affiliates, whether such policies and
procedures are published or not.

The borrowing or other receipt of funds and any other financing transaction or
arrangement, or any such proposed transaction or arrangement, whether or not
requiring the imposition of any pledge or lien.

Any Distribution (“haluka” - as defined in the Israeli Companies Law).

Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, any share repurchase and distribution
of dividends, including, without limitation, in 2005 and distribution of dividends
during the calendar years of 2006, 2007, 2008, 2009, 2010 (including the special
dividend distribution as of March 2010, approved by the District Court), 2011 and
2012.

Taking part in or performing tenders.

The making of any statement, including a representation or opinion made by an officer
or director of Partner in such capacity whether in public or private, including during
meetings of the Board of Directors or any committee thereof.

An act in contradiction to the Articles of Association or Memorandum of Partner.

Any action or omission in connection with voting rights in Partner.

Any action or decision in relation to work safety and/or working conditions.

Actions taken pursuant to any of Partner’s licenses, or any breach thereof.



21.

22.

23.
24.

25.

26.

217.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

Decisions and/or actions pertaining to the environment and/or the safety of handsets,
including radiation or dangerous substances.

A payment to the harmed party as a result of a violation set forth in Section
52.54(a)(1)(a) (wixy152) of the Israeli Securities Law.

Negotiation for, signing and performance or non-performance of insurance policies.

Events associated with the drawing up and/or approval of financial statements,
including the acts or omissions relating to the adoption of financial reports (including
International Financial Reporting Standards IFRS), preparation and signing Partner's
financial statements, consolidated or on a sole basis, as applicable, as well as the
editing or approval of the Directors' report or business plans and forecasts, providing
an estimate of the effectiveness of Partner's internal controls and other matters in
connection with the financial statements and Directors' report and provision of
statements relating to the financial statements.

Events associated with business plans, including pricing, marketing, distribution,
directives to employees, customers and suppliers and collaborations with other parties.

Reporting and/or filing of applications or reports, under any applicable law (including
immediate reports, periodic or other), disclosure, messaging, providing (or failure to
provide) information, statements, declarations, evaluations, presentations, opinions,
reviews, requests for approval, or otherwise to any governmental or quasi-
governmental authority, stock exchange or regulatory body whether in lIsrael or
abroad.

Actions and any legal process, whether in Israel or abroad, relating, directly or
indirectly, to any governmental or quasi-governmental authority, including with
respect to trade restrictions, restrictive arrangements, mergers and monopolies.

Investigations conducted against you by any governmental or quasi-governmental
authority.

Class actions, including class actions in respect of the environment, consumer
protection or complaints, roaming, content services, the Communications Law of
1982, any of Partner’s licenses, Partner’s contracts, and anti-trust, derivative actions or
any other legal proceedings against you and/or Partner and/or any of its Subsidiaries in
connection with your role and/or activities in Partner or on its behalf.

All matters relating to the change of control transaction, entered into on August 12,
2009, between Advent Investments Pte. Ltd. and Scailex Corporation Ltd. (“Scailex”),
under which Scailex agreed to acquire 78,940,104 Ordinary Shares of Partner.

All matters relating to a potential sale of Partner’s securities by Scailex Corporation
Ltd., any affiliates thereof or any other Material Shareholder (“ba’al menaya mahuti”)
of Partner.

Transactions or agreements entered into between Partner and any of its shareholders or
between shareholders of Partner.



33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

Transfer of information to shareholders or potential shareholders of Partner, including
Interested Parties.

All matters relating to breach of Partner contracts.

Activities Partner may pursue in new areas such as transmission services, access to
high-speed Internet services, fixed line and long-distance telephony services, cable
television and other communication services to subscribers.

Establishment, registration, administration, or making use of registries and
information databases, including as required by the provisions of the Protection of
Privacy Law of 1981 (including regulations, orders, directives, rules or provisions and
instructions) issued by any competent authority or by virtue of those authorities and
any decision or other action relating to said law.

A suspicion as to perpetration of an offence and/or breach of a statutory obligation
under any law because of an action taken by Partner and that, according to any law,
can also be attributed to you and/or because of an action taken by you by virtue of
your function as officer or director in Partner and/or that was taken for the sake of
Partner and/or on its behalf.

A payment or non-payment to any governmental authority under any applicable law,
including the payment of income tax, sales tax, betterment tax on real estate, transfer
taxes, excise, value added tax, stamp tax, customs, National Insurance payments,
municipal levies, royalty fees or any other fees, levies, financial sanction ("itzum
caspi”) in connection with any of Partner’s licenses, and including any kind of fines,
interest and linkage increments.

Any other actions which can be anticipated for companies of the type of Partner, and
which the Board of Directors may deem appropriate.

Any of the foregoing events, relating to your service as an officer or director in any of
Partner's Subsidiaries on Partner's behalf.

Any of the foregoing events, as it may relate to 012 Smile Telecom Ltd. or to any
company in which it has a direct or indirect interest.

In each of the events specified above, including, without limitation, in connection with
documents relating to these matters, and in connection with actions or decisions relating to
these matters, and in connection with representations and undertakings made relating to these
matters, including, without limitation, such representations and undertakings made towards
third parties (including, without limitation, governmental authorities) or towards Partner or
anyone on its behalf (including, without limitation, advisors, such as accountants, lawyers,

etc.).

In each of the events specified above, reference to any action includes also failure to perform
an action (omission) or performing it poorly (including, without limitation, non- performance
of an action required under law or performing it in a poor manner that does not comply with
the legal requirements), and including, without limitation, making a decision; in each case,
unless the context in a specific item above does not allow this interpretation.

E I



Annex “G”
Translation of Sections 21-24 of the License

Transfer of Means of Control

21.1

21.2

21.3

21.4

215

21.6

A holding of ten percent (10%) or more of any of the Means of Control in the
Licensee will not be transferred, either directly or indirectly, either all at once
or in parts, unless given the Minister’s prior written consent.

Non of the said Means of Control, or a part of them, in the Licensee, may be
transferred in any way, if as a result of the transfer, control in the Licensee will
be transferred from one person to another, unless given the Minister’s prior
written consent.

No control shall be acquired, either direct or indirect, in the Licensee, and no
person, whether on his/her own or together with his/her relative or with those
acting with him/her on a regular basis, shall acquire in it ten percent (10%) or
more of any of the Means of Control in the Licensee, whether all at once or in
parts, unless given the Minister’s prior written consent.

YCancelled

?Despite the provisions of sub-clauses 21.1 and 21.3 above, should there occur
a transfer or purchase of a percentage of Tradable Means of Control in the
Licensee requiring consent under clauses 21.1 and 21.3 (other than a transfer
of purchase that results in a transfer of control), without the Minister’s consent
having been sought, the Licensee shall report this to the Minister in writing,
and shall make an application to the Minister to approve the said transfer or
purchase of the Means of Control in the Licensee, within 21 days of the date
on which the Licensee became aware of such.

In this Clause 21, “Tradable Means of Control” — Means of Control,
including Global or American Depository Shares (GDR’s or ADR’s), or
similar certificates, registered for trading on the securities exchange in Israel or
overseas, and offered to the public by prospectus, or held by the public in
Israel or overseas.

Neither the entry into an underwriting agreement relating to the issue or sale of
securities to the public, the registration for trading on the securities exchange
in Israel or overseas, nor the deposit or registration of securities with a
registration company or with a depository agent or a custodian for the purpose
of registration of GDRs or ADRs or similar certificates relating to the issue or

! Amendment No. 52

2 Amendment No. 3



21.7

sale of securities to the public shall in and of themselves be considered as a
transfer of Means of Control in the Licensee®.

(@)

(b)

Irregular Holdings shall be noted in the Licensee’s members register (the
list of shareholders) stating the fact that they are irregular, immediately
upon the Licensee’s becoming aware of this, and a notice of the
registration shall be given by the Licensee to the holder of such Irregular
Holding and to the Minister.

Irregular Holdings, noted as aforesaid in clause 21.7(a), shall not provide
the holder with any rights, and shall be “dormant shares” as defined in
Section 308 of the Companies Law 5759-1999, expect in the case of the
receipt of a dividend or any other distribution to shareholders (especially
the right to participate in an allotment of rights calculated on the basis of
holdings of Means of Control in the Licensee, although holdings
accumulated as aforesaid shall also be considered as Irregular Holdings),
and therefore no action or claim of the activation of a right by virtue of the
Irregular Holdings shall have any force, except in the case of the receipt of
a dividend or any other distribution as aforesaid.

Without derogating form the generality of the above:

(1) A shareholder who takes part in a vote during a meeting of
shareholders shall advise the Licensee prior to the vote, or in the case
of documentary voting on the voting document, whether his holdings
in the Licensee or his voting require consent under clauses 21 and 23
of the License or not; where a shareholder does not so advise, he may
not vote and his vote shall not count.

(2) No director of the Licensee shall be appointed, elected or transferred
from office by virtue of an Irregular Holding; should a director be
appointed, elected or transferred from office as aforesaid, the said
appointment, election or transfer, as the case may be, shall be of no
effect.

(3) Irregular Holdings shall not provide voting rights in the general
meeting;

For the purposes of this clause:

“Irregular Holdings” - the holding of Tradable Means of Control
without the Minister’s consent as required under clause 23, and all
holdings of a person holding Tradable Means of Control acting contrary to
the provisions of clause 24; for so long as the Minister’s consent under
clause 21 has been sought but not yet granted, or whilst there is a situation
of breach of the provisions of clauses 23 or 24.

® Amendment No. 4



21.8

21.9

(c) The provisions of clause 21.7 shall be included in the Articles of
Association of the Licensee, including the provisions of clause 21.9,
mutatis mutandis.

For so long as the Articles of Association of the Licensee provide as set out in
clause 21.7, and the Licensee acts in accordance with the provisions of clauses
21.5 and 21.7, and for so long as none of the holdings of Founding Shareholders
or their Substitutes® reduces to less than 26% ° °  of all Means of Control in the
Licensee immediately prior to the listing of the shares for trade, and for so long
as the Articles of Association of the Licensee provide that a majority of the
voting power in the general meeting of the Licensee may appoint all members
of the Board of Directors of the Licensee, other than external directors required
by any law and/or the relevant Exchange Rules, the Irregular Holdings shall not,
in and of themselves, give rise to a cause for the cancellation of the Licensee.
'For the purpose of this article: "Founding Shareholders or their Substitutes"-
Matbit Telecommunications Systems Ltd., Advent Investment Pte Limited,
Matav Investments Ltd and Tapuz Cellular Systems limited Partnership as well
as any other entity that one of them has transferred the Means of Control in the
Licensee to, with the Minister's consent, before 4.7.2004 (each of the above
entities shall be termed "Founding Shareholder™), as well as any other entity that
a Founding Shareholder will transfer Means of Control in the Licensee to after
4.7.2004, provided that the Minister gave his written consent that the transferree
be considered for this matter as the Founding Shareholder's substitute from the
date to be determined by the Minister, including anyone that is an Israel Entity
as defined in Article 22A.2, that purchased Means of Control from the Licensee
and received the Minister's approval to be considered a founding shareholder or
their substitute from the date set by the Minister®. Such consent under this
article does not exempt the Licensee from the obligation to receive the
Minister's consent for every transfer of the Means of Control in the Licensee
that req%ires the Minister's consent in accordance with any other article in the
License.

The provisions of clauses 21.5 through 21.8 shall not apply to the founding
shareholders or their substitutes.'
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22.

22A.

Placing a Charge on Means of Control

Any shareholder in the company that holds the License, or a shareholder in an

Interested Party in the same company, is not allowed to encumber his/her
shares, in a way that the realization of the charge would cause a change in the
ownership in ten percent (10%) or more of any of the Means of Control in the
Licensee, unless the charge agreement includes a constraint, according to which
the charge cannot be realized without prior consent, in writing, by the Minister.

Israeli Requirement and Holdings of Founding Shareholders or their

Substitutes?

22A.1. The total cumulative holdings of the "Founding Shareholders or their

22A.2

Substitutes", as defined in Article 21.8, (including anyone that is an “Israeli
Entity” as defined in Article 22.2A below, that purchased Means of Control
from the Licensee and received the Minister’s approval to be considered a
founding shareholder or their substitute from the date set by the Minister), and
are bound by an agreement for the fulfillment of the provisions of Article 22A
of the License (in this Article they will all be considered “Founding
Shareholders or their Substitutes”) shall not be reduced to less than 26% of
each of the Means of Control in the Licensee.

The total cumulative holdings of "Israeli Entities”, one or more, that are
considered as one of the Founding Shareholders or their Substitutes, from the
total holdings of Founding Shareholders or their Substitutes as set forth in
Article 22A.1 above, shall not be reduced at all times to less than 5% of the
total issued share capital and from each of the Means of Control in the
Licensee. For this matter, the issued share capital of the Licensee shall be
calculated by deducting the number of “Dormant Shares” held by the
Licensee.

In this Article-

"Israeli Entity*'- for an individual-an Israeli citizen or resident of Israel,
For a corporation- a corporation that was incorporated in Israel and an
individual that is a citizen and a resident of Israel, controls the
corporation either directly or indirectly, as long as the indirect control
shall be only through a corporation that was incorporated in Israel, one
or more. However, for the matter of indirect holdings, the Prime
Minister and the Minister of Communications may approve holdings
through a corporation that has not been incorporated in Israel, as long
as the corporation does not directly hold shares in the Licensee, and
only if they are convinced that this will not derogate from the
provisions of this article. For this matter, “Israeli citizen”- as defined

1 Amendment No. 31-Amendment No. 31 will come into effect upon completion of all of the

obligations set forth in article 22A and no later than 30 June 2005, in accordance with the
Ministry of Communications document 62/05-4031 dated 13 March 2005



22A.3

22A4

22A.5

in the Nationality Law, 5712-1952; “resident”-as defined in the
Inhabitants Registry Law, 5725-1965.

For this matter, "Dormant Shares"- as defined in Article 308 of the
Companies Law, 5759-1999.

At least one tenth (10%) of the members of the Board of Directors of the
Licensee shall be appointed by the Israeli Entities as set forth in Article 22A.2.
Notwithstanding the above-mentioned, for this matter- if the Board of Directors
of the Licensee shall consist of up to 14 members — at least one director shall be
appointed by the Israeli entities as set forth in Article 22.2A above, if the Board
of Directors of the Licensee shall consist of between 15 and 24 members-at least
2 directors shall be appointed by the Israeli entities as set forth in Article 22.2A
above and so on and so forth.

The Licensee's Board of Directors shall appoint from among its members that
have security clearance and security compatibility to be determined by the
General Security Service (hereinafter: “ Directors with Clearance”) a
committee to be designated "the Committee for Security Matters", or CSM.
The CSM shall consist of at least 4 Directors with Clearance including at least
one External Director. Security matters shall be discussed, subject to Article
22A.5, solely by the CSM. A resolution that was adopted or an action that was
taken by the CSM, shall have the same effect as a resolution that was adopted or
an action that was taken by the Board of Directors and shall be discussed by the
Board of Directors only if necessary in accordance with Article 22A.5 and
subject to Article 22A.5.

In this article-“security matters”-as defined in the Bezeq Order (Determination
of Essential Service Provided by “Bezeq”, the lIsraeli Telecommunications
Company Ltd), 5757-1997, as of March 9, 2005.

Security matters that the Board of Directors or the Audit Committee of the
Licensee shall be required to consider in accordance with the mandatory
provisions of the Companies Law, 5759-1999, or in accordance with the
mandatory provisions of any other law that applies to the Licensee shall be
discussed, if they need to be discussed by the Board of Directors or the Audit
Committee, only in the presence of Directors with Clearance. Directors that do
not have security clearance shall not be allowed to participate in this Board of
Directors or Audit Committee meeting and shall not be entitled to receive
information or to review documents that relate to this matter. The legal quorum
for such meetings shall include only Directors with Clearance.

The Licensee may set out in its Articles of Association that an Office Holder,
who in the capacity of his position or based on the provisions of the law or the
Articles of Association, should have received information or participate in
security matter meetings and this was denied him due to Article 22A.5, will be
released from any liability for any claim of breach of duty of care towards the
Licensee, if the breach of duty of care was a result of his or her inability to
participate in the meetings or receive information.



22A.6

22A.7

The shareholders at a general meeting shall not be entitled to assume, delegate,
transfer or exercise any of the authorities granted to another organ in the
company, regarding security matters

(@) The Minister shall appoint an observer for the Board of Directors and
committee meetings, who has security clearance and security compatibility that
will be determined by the General Security Services.

(b) The observer shall be a government employee, qualified to serve as a
director, in accordance with Chapter C of the Government Companies Law,
5735-1975.

(c) In addition, and without derogating from any duty imposed on him by any
law, the observer shall be bound by confidentiality towards the Licensee, except
as the matter may be required to fulfill his responsibilities as an observer. The
observer shall not act as an observer or in any other capacity for any entity that
deals with the provision of telecommunication services and directly competes
with the Licensee, and shall refrain from any conflict of interest between his
position as an observer and between the Licensee, excluding conflicts of interest
that result from his being a government employee that is fulfilling his
responsibilities as an observer with the Licensee. The observer shall undertake
towards the Licensee not to serve as an observer or an office holder, and not to
fulfill a position or be employed, directly or indirectly by any entity that
directly competes with the Licensee or has a conflict of interest with the
Licensee, excluding a conflict of interest that results from his being a
government employee that is fulfilling his responsibilities as an observer with
the Licensee throughout the duration of his position as an observer with the
Licensee and for eighteen months after he completes this term.

In any case of a dispute regarding a conflict of interest of the observer, the
matter shall be decided by the State Attorney General or a person on his behalf.

(d) Notices to Board of Director and committee meetings, including the CSM,
shall be sent to the observer and he shall be entitled to participate as an observer
in each such meeting.

(e) The observer's entitlement to receive information from the Licensee, shall be
the same as a director. If the Licensee believes that certain information that is
sensitive business information is not required by the observer in order to fulfill
his duties, the Licensee may delay delivery of such information to the observer
and shall inform him accordingly. If the observer believes that he should receive
such information, the matter shall be decided by the head of the General
Security Services.

() If the observer believes that the Licensee adopted or is about to adopt a
resolution regarding security matters, contrary to the provisions of the License,
contrary to Article 13 of the Law or contrary to the provisions of Article 11 of
the General Security Services Law, 5762-2002, he shall immediately notify the
Licensee in writing. Such a notice shall be sent to the chairman of the Board of
Directors and to the chairman of the CSM and adequate time shall be given,



under the circumstances of the case, to remedy the breach or to change the
resolution, if possible.

22A.8 The provisions of Article 22A of the License shall be adopted in the Articles of
Association of the Licensee.

Section C: Cross-Ownership and Conflict of Interests

23. Prohibition of Cross-Ownership

23.1 The Licensee, an Office Holder or an Interested Party in the Licensee, as well
as an Office Holder in an Interested Party in the Licensee, shall not hold, either
directly or indirectly, five percent (5%) or more of any Means of Control in a
Competing MRT Operator, and shall not serve as an Office Holder in a
Competing MRT Operator or in an Interested Party in a Competing MRT
Operator; for this matter, “Holding” includes holding as an agent.

23.2 Notwithstanding the provisions of Paragraph 23.1, the Minister may, based
upon written request, permit an Office Holder in the Licensee to serve as an
Office Holder in an Interested Party in a Competing MRT Operator, or permit
an Office Holder in an Interested Party in the Licensee to serve as an Office
Holder in a Competing MRT Operator or in an Interested Party in a Competing
MRT Operator, if he is satisfied, that this will not harm the competition in
MRT Services; the Minister may condition the granting of such permit on
conditions that the Office Holder must fulfill for prevention of harm to the
competition as aforesaid.

23.3 Notwithstanding the provisions of Paragraph 23.1, an Interested Party in the
Licensee, which is a trust fund, an insurance company, an investment company
or a pension fund, may hold up to ten percent (10%) of the Means of Control
in a Competing MRT Operator, and an Interested Party in a Competing MRT
Operator, which is a trust fund, an insurance company, an investment company
or a pension fund, may hold up to ten percent (10%) of the Means of Control
in the Licensee, provided it does not have a representative or an appointee on
its behalf among the Office Holders of a Competing MRT Operator or of the
Licensee, as the case may be, unless it is required to do so by law.

23.4 The Licensee, an Office Holder or an Interested Party in the Licensee, as well
as an Office Holder in an Interested Party in the Licensee, will not control a
Competing MRT Operator, and will not cause it, by any act or omission, to be
controlled by a Competing MRT Operator or by an Office Holder or an
Interested Party in a Competing MRT Operator, or by an Office Holder in an
Interested Party in a Competing MRT Operator, or by a person or corporation
that controls a Competing MRT Operator.



23.5 The rate of indirect holding in a corporation will be a product of the percentage
of holdings in each stage of the chain of ownership, subject to what is set out
in Paragraph 23.6; for example:

(A) ‘A’ holds 40% in Company ‘B’;

(B) Company ‘B’ holds 40% in Company ‘C’;

(C) Company ‘C’ holds 25% in Company ‘D’;

(D) Therefore, Company ‘A’ holds, indirectly, 4% of Company ‘D’.

23.6  For the matter of this Paragraph and Paragraphs 14.1 (G) (6), (7), (8), (8a), (9)
and 21.4, if a certain body (hereinafter: “the Controlling Body”) controls
another body that has holdings, directly or indirectly, in the Licensee
(hereinafter: “the Controlled Body”), the Controlling Body, and also any other
body controlled by the Controlling Body, will be attributed with the rate of
holdings in the Licensee that the Controlled Body has, directly or indirectly;
according to the following examples:

A. Direct holdings:
(1) ‘A’ holds 50% in Company ‘B’, and controls it;
(2) Company ‘B’ holds 50% in Company ‘C’, and controls it;
(3) Company ‘C’ holds 10% in the Licensee and does not control it;

(4) Therefore, notwithstanding that ‘A’s’ holdings in the Licensee in
accordance with the instructions of Paragraph 5.6 are 2.5%, ‘A’ and
also any body controlled by ‘A’ will be deemed as an Interested
Party holding 10% in the Licensee.

B. Indirect holdings:
(1) “A’ holds 50% of Company ‘B’ and controls it;
(2) Company ‘B’ holds 40% of Company ‘C’ and controls it;
(3) Company ‘C’ holds 40% of Company ‘D’ and does not control it;

(4) Company ‘D’ holds 40% of the Licensee and does not control it;

(5) Therefore, ‘A’ and any body controlled by ‘A’ will be regarded as
having a holding in the Licensee at the rate of holdings of Company
‘C’ in the Licensee, which is holdings of 16% (according to the
method set out in Paragraph 23.5 for the calculation of the rate of
indirect holdings in the absence of control), and in this manner, ‘A’
and any body controlled by ‘A’ is an Interested Party in the
Licensee.

23.7 If a certain body has indirect holding in the Licensee, through two or more
Interested Parties, then for the purpose of its definition as an Interested Party,
and for the purpose of determining the rate of holding with regard to this
Paragraph, the greatest indirect rate of holding will be taken into account, and
also any rate of holding that derives from the chain of holdings through which
the said holding body is attributed with the holdings of corporations controlled
by it in accordance with the provisions of Paragraph 23.6; the rates of holdings



that derive from two or more chains that will be taken into account as stated
above, will be cumulative for the purpose of calculating the rate of holdings.

23.8 The Minister may, in response to a written request, permit an Interested
Party in the Licensee to hold, either directly or indirectly, five percent
(5%) or more in any of the Means of Control of a Competing MRT
Operator, if the Minister is satisfied that this will not harm competition in
the MRT field; '?the Minister may condition the granting of the said
permit on a condition that the Interested Party in the Licensee or
competing MRT Operator is an Interested Party merely by virtue of the
provisions of Article 23.6 .

24. Prohibition of Conflict of Interests

The Licensee, any body in which the Licensee is an Interested Party, an Office
Holder in the Licensee or an Interested Party in the company holding the
License or an Office Holder in an Interested Party therein, will not be party to
any agreement, arrangement or understanding with a Competing MRT Operator,
or an Interested Party or an Office Holder in it, or an Office Holder in an
Interested Party in a Competing MRT Operator, or any other body in which a
Competing MRT Operator is an Interested Party, which are intended to or might
reduce or harm competition in anything that pertains to MRT Services, MRT
Terminal Equipment or any other Telecommunications Services.

12 Amendment No. 10
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SN XY .NIINND NIPN MIINN PINA NNINXD OXNNA AN DTN OTPOIN DOND> DN
ANT 12 2N N HY NN ,THDIN YIRS NVPPTI I TIDN /) HY NNNNDA MDY

A870T) INN NOPITI DN ORI T DY INNNDDY (X7N°T) NN NVPPTI (NDADN)

910 ,ANT 12 0IND I, 2712 1PN M LONN YR T, AT INDY I 2D AR PINVPITN
,)P0WUPIN AR 9N P NION /2) DINTINDIND UMD N ,19PI2) TI9 9,90V DTN
PIN HO9-5Y TPDINAY THRNIVN NPNNIN OOY2 DN HIPMLY PIN I INY I N
VLY INT PYT /2 L(PIDATN) ANT J2 N 2N T 1P DY NPIINY INPNM MI2ND
MPNM NMIANN PIN 29 DY ORPMINND PTD 29Y OMYN HNDa ONVPPT O) DIN

19 Dy NpMnY

SV DNINNNN DINOVPPTN DY OWIRN PIYN DX DM 1Y )PNVPIT ININN NI
NN OOYIAT DN IR IPNVPPT DINHNN NTY ,9012 DT NYUNI P NIDN 1)
ND) DMNNNN DMNVPIPTY IWINY 192 NPY N> XD (N) 9D TUND MMVYN N9ONI
DNY DLW 21N)HN 7)1 ,0TPAN MNP DY TYPA LI NIONX /DY (AT NNIOY N H9D
SY DOV (2) -y 180,000 NAMNA XMW DIID (1) -5 MV PP, PNV NOONN OINND DNN
IUND 1Y DI1DDN 100%) MV THYINRND NN NN LN ManNnvnd 4,000
TN ,(AN52 MONNWND 50%-1 NNYPN SYNNNI MANNYND 60% 1P NOTT MONNYNN
5515 YMY DIDDN MND XY X ,2007 T208T YTIN P2 DDV 108D DN TT0D
922 WINY 19D (DIDVWNN TN 1NN WD 29-5Y ODIWNN) 27NN 91T 50,000-5 Nnnwn
DY WP MPIADN MRINND ITNNL MDY 5N KD (3) ; ("9MANN7) NN Hoya »P-oy
MON 72 DY) (AT NNYY 0 551D XD) DNINNNN DMNVPITIN TN D3 DY OTPIN NN
MI MION /AN OINNNN DXNVPPTI ,NPINN OHYI ST DY 2¥3 IWIRY 19D ()-) PN

.192NN YY NIWNN IR NIV MDA NNPY 1Y

MY NONI NPIND DYDY INTNI NITIYUNRY IR PPNVPITM 2INNN DTV 9002
NYOY AND IPIWY 0N 7 NVONNA SVINDIN PONN NIIRD 9D 1D [ IIUND) TUND
M NIDN 723 DY) DY MWD FANOY )IVY TPIN TN LYND) DINNNN DINVPPTD

L(NDD I9INA DIND 1w

NYNIND DIIND NPPTNRD ONNN D 172NN DY DINVPITI YXINN DIINN 2D, PINDd
Y WPN2 DPYY Y MNaNN PINY 20 YON PPND ONRNNAY PNY 5 9Pyoa vNOND
9010 THDNA VNN DM L(20 7O NPPNY DXNNA) D1VIAYIN DINPIVN

9N DT PARNN SNM 2013 AN 29 DN INN DVID PNVPPTY INN - 2319 LY
Y72 NN .(Security Committee) YNVIAN NTYA 1IN NI AT I . PNVPPTN I7PD
SV MPINN. NIAPA NOPPTI 2007 INDY PNOVPPTN 7P 2007 T 1990 Mvn
ORIV 192NN ,(2011 MV TY NN NIINT) N7YA NN NPYYN )Y Y NIAN-NTNIND
91 2011 MW Y 1994 MWK DY NINY T¥A NN NVPVT N7Y2 NPIDN MDY
2003 1w Y 2000 MwM Waste Management Israel Ltd.-2 572311 MVPIT 1720 27
2005 MW TV 2003 MHWN .InirU Wireless Inc.-2) InirU Israel Ltd.-2 9721 MOPPTD
DNYN P 97910) NIYA PN MY DD D7D YPNOVPPTA P AT M D
TPONIYIN NI2NN PIA DY )NPNVPITN 171D 171D XN 2007-2011 ©7wWN P2 .(2004-2005
JON 20T 0783 PIDIN P ,07Y2 NG PIAL,07YA ITNYPN NOND Nya nNWpnD
9193 1712 2717 910 2012 MY Y 2011 MHIWN .H1YA NONN-Y (D) 1Y (1998) PNID ST DY
199951 PYUNRIY NN 2T MY .00V NN MIaM NUYA NANN OV PONOPPIN
YT 20NY AP NVIOIDNNRND OOPDY NI MY NN DIAN-IN NVIDIDIND
DOXNNN NITHND) 7PIY HY2”7 DY "NNAYN 127 IR AT NNROY I ,DNVPTM NIIND
NN SY3a ;27.10.1949 PAINN TN 2T NNOY TN .1IANA NN (TIY M) PN YN

20,5 DXNPIN DI 1IN INND ; ORIV MNNIN DY ;030596860 NI9DNY MM



1 DY YPNOVPPTN 71D 1771791 2009 1IVPIND NDVID PNVPITY NN - 29-12 I19PN
OPYMPO YW PNVPPTN 71D 1NN 27-)2 N 2013 INWA 29 DY TYY 2009 920N
19D 39 2997 ,197¥2 NPIIOVPON MIND DY YPNOVPPTN 971D D) 1NN NIYI WHNINP
27-32 9N NON ,90N2 (2009 XN TY) DNV NIYY YNNI TN NIND SY 9Mmwn 97ond
IND ,N7¥2 DI DNIDT 07V DIVION TIT L,N7¥a DOVIN SN NHaN VPRI
JA7Y2 (27-)2) PPN N7V MYPYN 27-12 X ,07Y2 MYPYN 27-12,97¥2 1797 MIXWN
2005 H7Y2 MNIVD IND DY PPNVPITN 7P 1710 27-12 90 DIND DY NN MIIND)
NITIND) 7PIY HYAr DY /NNAYN 127 IR 2T-12 ION D ,DNOPPTM NI1ANN YT
S¥a ;16.1.1957 PIRNA 19N 2T 12 PR 0 .1NI2AN2 INK (TIY M) PIN2 WX DNNN
,14 91201 9MWN 21092 9INNN ; MORIY MNNIN DY ;054676168 NI9DNY MNT NTIVN

AN YN

5191 NOWID 19N NIN 22013 AN 29 DY SNN NVID PNVPITO NN - N 0N
IMIY PMYPYN 2y MP297 YNINNY Saban Capital Group, Inc. DV YWNIN 2yann
MIIN NVPPTI N NV D ONDIN PIYY 120 PN MYPYN D95 NPPOYN
-2),27NINA MHTIV0N NOWA N1 NYYTIN N>THN NI2N ,Univision Communications Inc.
Y1072 DIZYN NPYNOL NNINN DY DXD¥aNM 09Y¥AN ,Celestial Tiger Entertainment Ltd.
TN 7TH NN ,MNC Ltd. D¢ DNPONND NSV 92N N0 RITS 0 1 119D .7PON
JPVTPNI NP2 AN DPYNI PYNOLN NYYan  ,MNC Sky Vision Ltd. n92m
ProSiebenSat.1 ¥ YMOPTN 971 PO 2007 MV T 2003 TIVN )P GOV 0,901
TOORIVIT NIIND P2 NOPPTI 1D NIN 2010 MY TV 2005 MWN .Media AG
MY ININ DIAN-DN NVIDININD DI NYIYID PYNI ININ GNV'S 190 .H7Ya NNYPND
NYT 20999 .UCLA NVXDIIN DY DPOY D1NY NOITIN 990N Nd¥aN OXPoY HN»Na
DOXNNN NITHND) PPIY H¥27 HY /NNAYN 127 IPX GNVY DTN 9,0 NVPITM NIIND
MNT PTIYN 5Ya;15.11.65 TIANRNA T2 GNVY OTN 1 NN INN (TIY N1 PN N
NNNNND NMYN) 27NIN,TINDYPA 1INNND ; TPONRIY MNIIN DY ;022113567 NN190NY
Saban Capital Group, 10100 Santa Monica blvd.,, »n P72 »>1nd

(LA, CA 90067

91931D5 119N KN 2013 NI 29 OPH HNN NV YPONVPPTY NN - PMIYY 199
VP M NN PPN q9INa L(79vr9p yav”) Saban Capital Group, Inc. Yv 05N
GNNYN WM DVXAP 120 HY NMMDNT NPXRNAYNN ,NPDIAN NPIPNNI D HY ININN
TVPIPTI 0N NIN .2003 MY HV9P 120Y IMOIVNN INND NYY MYPYNN NN DY
99 Y770 190 ONIP .NDY ANMPPaN N oM Celestial Tiger Entertainment Ltd. n1ana
D7) PIY2 VMYT DY DXTIVNI OOPMPN) DPMINDDI WP IPPONa IPID)
DYMIPN DNPNVPIT DN YN NINP DOYY 19IND 2NN PPV I .IINIOP
mM3an NYI553 NPYNRI INIM NAYN NMNXIT ININ PPPIDY D .APTY NNIN DY DONINY
NYT 2090 .DOVIPI NMIAYN NVIDININ THY NXIN )0 1N .PVIMN DPOYY 190N
DXNNN NITHND) 7PIY HYA” DY 7PNWN 1277 1OR IPIDY TI9 1,0 NVPIPTN NIIND
NOIT Yy¥a ;18.1.1971 PINNA THN NPIZY TI9 TN .N72N2 NN (TIY MM PN YN
NIYN) 2NN ,TPINDOPA IIMNNN ; TIRPIIN MNITNX DY ;476328008 17900V IRPIININ
Saban Capital Group, 10100 Santa Monica blvd., LA, CA N 7->2 »2N5 NXNNNY

.(90067

19N NN L2013 INIMA 29 OPN HNN NV PNVPITI NN - NIRNNPDIN/) VIND
Mypwnn nm»ya Yy 'RINN ,(79vrap jav”) Saban Capital Group, Inc.-a MVPPTO
97 OV ININID G0N NAPDL DTIVA NN DN MONL HVXIP 12D HY NPIPOVN
Celestial Tiger Entertainment 19202 7VPYYTI 1191 XN,V NOPPTI NINMPOIN')
NN PPN PN MIRTMPODONY Y . Taomee Hv YPNOPPTI Ppwnd (CTE) Ltd.
MNC Sky Vision ,Media Nusantara Citra 77202y )V191 HYVY9P 12D DY PNMYPYNI
51097 120 HY NVYOWN NYPYNA 27N 7PN INNIPDIN I )0 M5 . Taomee-y CTE ,Ltd.
INPITD TAY MINTMPOIN) 99,2097 120D IMATVNN 795 2010 H>I19N82 NNPHONY TY Praa
ANIN NINMPOIND Y P M2 J.P. Morgan 5¥ myraam 0mdNn NPoNn Mypen
JINTIN NVIDIDINND P OXPOY DN 190N NN (MIMVINI) DINN NN NYNI



S¥27 HY NNAYN 127 1R OINMIPODIND VN I ,DXNVPITN NIANN DY 209D
TON MINMPOOND VMO I .NIINA NN (TIY MM PINA PN DNNN NITIND) 7YY
S TONPINN MNNN DY ;480408618 171900V INPINN )1O7T Dya ;1.10.1984 TINN2A
Saban Capital Group (Asia) Pte. Ltd., 12 17 17->2 5205 INYNND NYN) N0 TINNN

.(Marina Boulevard, #17-01, Marina Bay Financial Centre, Tower 3, Singapore 018982

SHL -9 99081 X1 .2013 AN 29 DN SN IV YPNOPPTY NN - 1PP0WI*299 ANY)
01773 ,)9 295 .2012 XN 0 OPOY MNP DN 93 NOWI POO Telemedicine Ltd.
Saban Capital -2 9722 \¥1°2) D)V YW TUNI Apax Partners-2 mypwn Ny Powvan
PONINT YMINNAN 1DINNN DXPOY DN NYRI NN POV Y .Group, Inc.
PPIY DY YW INNAYN 127 1PN POV AN D ,DONVPIT NIINN YT 2VMNY
TIANND TON PPOWHIN AN D NN INX (TIY M PINT PR DN NITHND)
2IN92 IMNNN ; TORIY MNNN DY ;016447153 17900 MDY ATV YY1 ;7.5.1973

VN DRI L4 YNNN

2010 MV TN 1NN NIN .2013 NI 29 DY NN NVI YPNVPPTY NN - 12D NN
575335 13 XIN 2002 MY TV 1983 MHIUN DY HNIY DNNI 120 JPNVPIPT PO
STO» KDY PPV MY 7T NNOND MDD N7 JWHOINONP INIY IRYII-INOTIN
DY GMYN DN ,HNIY DTP DP9 1PNVPPT 7P 171D NN 2002 THY TV 2000 MHwN
NYP O NTY MNINA NVPITI )20 1 171D 2012 MY TYY 2005 THIYN .NNPN DTP D9
N72NN P12 ,(0%) Prya (1998) PND STPY .ON 2 DT D71 NMVYPN NANDD vyl
I ,0MNVPPTN NIANN NYT 20D D7V MNP N7YA NNYPND ORIV
NN (TIY M) PIN WX DXNNND NITHND) 7PIY Dya” DY »NNAYN 127 117 12D PN
TN YY1 ;064902083 NIGDNY MINT NTIVN DY ;1947 MY 191 120 MIX I .172N2

MNP MYX¥IN,59 1997 1IN NN ; ORI

POLXIN NI I2ND JNONMY 2009 IVPINT PV PNVPPTY N - NY N’
DYN I8N YW NIV TWININP OPI»PO 57230 1121 NV M .(Security Committee)
DNYN YIYYI 119N PYRI 0290 Y715 2001 920872 OPYPPOY 90NN NIN) NINKND
AN NN 1PNVPPT 7P JNON INY I .A7YA NPINTOVPIN NIRD 5793195 O) MNINND
BVR N12N2 YWRIN 2NN DN INY 90 17103 ,0p0»P0Y 1IMSI0NN 190 101y DIVIN
NVIOINNN (LL.B) D20AWNI PNWNI ININ INY 107 .D0IY YIDY TN 17y1 NPNINO0
THY NOWO1 92N NI PRVHIVY NVOOIDNIND (LL.B) DX0awna MY INIM AN ON
SV NNAYN 127 1R INY DD 91 ,DNOPITN NI2AND NYT 20HY .PIY 1) DRIV
TIAINN TN INY D N .NI2NA NN (TIY M) PINA DR ONNN NITHND) Py Hyar
2IN92 FIMND ; THPORIY MNNIN DY ;057484826 NIODNY MINT NTIVN DYa ;15.3.1962

N AP L,9 TV

15 3091 NN .2013 NI 29 OVN INN NIVID PNVPPTI NN - PHY ON
71 .Saban Capital Group, Inc.-> 7722 \¥12) SHL Telemedicine Ltd. ¥ 90PN
MYN 97505 N2 311D 1995 MW Y 1993 MwNI 2 1Y DY MVTNN NIaN NN TO» »Yov
TV 2000 DIV P2 VAINN M DY SWURIN TNV PHY TN 112D 1999 Mv T 1996
My T 2004 MV .IDB NXIAPN N7y MYPYN ONPDIT NN NOWI PO D 2001
.D»I000 121N MNIND NS NIAN N7V 7PN DY \PNOVPPTI 1P 1P NI ,2012
DN .22 T ,)07y2 NNWPNY TIONIYN NIINN P12 MIIN2 NVPITI 72¥2 YD YOY N
NPTHN OYTNI PYRI ININ POY D .07V NI P32) (D) 1N7ya (1998) PND >mdy
SV "NNAYN 127 IPN POY I ,DINOPITM NI2ND NYT 20DHY . DIAN-DN NVIDIDIND
TINNA TON POV NN I .7192N2 NN (TIY M) PIN DR ONNN NITIND) 7Py Dyar
21N IMNNN ; OUNIY MNINX Y3 ;050705276 NI9DHNY MNT NTIVN Dya ;26.7.1951

AN YN L70 I 12 Vi

NTYIA 92ND 1NMY 2012 NN NV PNOVPPTY NN - HIHAMVY (PPIN) IPIN
™A NN PNVPPT 7P )P NIN 2010 Ty 2006 NIVN DIHDNN NI NNPIAN
TPPOYN NMNHVIVONRN DY IRINK 7PN D211 ,NNDS NXIAPA MADN MIANT,N7YA MYPYN



WO NN L,q90M2 York Capital byvn 9713 3703 X3120VY N NNDI NP LY
TV 1999 DOIVN 92 11D DI H1230VY 1N .IAR-HNA TIY MDY NONIAN DY PPNVPIPT
N72N2 NUVPPTY YW qoND IDB NXIPNn MYpYn 102 nMLYa NN Y7915 2003
571 MNOLPITI IOV N YD ,19 7N9Y (S&P H¥ >PDY GMVY) MDYN NOUNRIWIT NN
NN JPD NIN 1D IND SN P12 HY DY MYPYN PN MY 192N - NNNa
Novatrans -y Mobileye Technologies m1ann Sw (Advisory Board) nxy»nn 0¥mnn
792NN DY 20D AN YN NVIDIDNIND NYIYO MY MaVY M .Group SA
PIN2 ION DXNNN NITHIND) 7PIY DY DY #PNVWN 127 1PN IIAMVY I ,DNOPPT
199010Y MNT NTIVN YY2 ;28.1.1965 TINNA TN X12MVLY N .NIANA INX (TIY MM

VN NN L8 NN 1IN INNNI ; MONIY MNNN DY ;059222661

:MININ MOINNT NINPIRD TPMIVN NOONIY YN

”

DTN 1 ,27-12 12N 9N ,2T NNYY 0 HY UTNHD DMPN DX IWURY : 09Mn (i)
TPIN TN ,PPOYIT ANY N PINTIPDIN/ VDD N ,)IPI12) TI9 I ,G0v
172N2 DXNVPIPTI MMVY MIN I POY NOXR N ,INY D> 9 ,)20
DTPON OX NON ,INAN DPNIVN NOYON NONN DINA OPNONY NNPND

; 112NN MIPN NIANN PIN NIRNND DRNNA 192-0TP OPND?

LN DTN D ,27-12 190N I DY 512 MW N> KD (K) 1D IUNY omn (i)

20 PIN N0 ,POVWIT AN 1D INTIPDIND VIO N )IPID) TI9 N

MPADN MINSINN NN NINPY DI XD (2) ;100 NON 99 INY D N

O)FY ;2000 ANRY DNVPPTIN TNX DD DY OPPIN NN DY WP

ML NNV NNPY 1DOWD ATV NNOY DY DY 1ININY D NOPPTN
.192NN DY MYNN IRV

IR D) P MON 723 Y 91002 MW 9N KY (X)) D AWRD vvmn (i)
NI DY WP MPIADN MXNIND NN MY 9IM NY (2) ;MY
TPIN D) N MON 72) () ;HI12M0VY PIN I 1N MON 72) DY OTPIN
(-1 ;D72NN DY NIYNN OXYL MY NDD9N NN 1DV YI12MVY
19INI DINT 127U 1I2IMVY PIN D) 1N MON /DT PNV NPYN ’and

NON

NPV 19N 7 VNN PVINTIN PINN YINRD NI ,ITURD IWNY : vIMA (iV)
JRPI2) TI9 0,90V DTN 9N ,27-12 19N AN 2T NHNYY 0 NPW H*aNd
99 INY 57 3,520 MOIX I ,PIVYI ANRY TN OINTIPDIRD VIO I

-5 POV ON

7.7192NN NVY 1PN NON MOONN : V9NN (V)

193N NN INYIY 91NN 11939710 NYIN

NN TPMYRYR PV (720 PP307) 20 9900 PPN NNONI ANINKD JPINY MI2NN PIN
("W SRW MININN PINT TTNND) DINK NIV ORWI DINVPPT HW 910N 19IN
172NM 192 NPYHXIY MIAN ST-9Y

TN NDNA NN NIVNN IRYND DN NPOTH ,20 PNPIND ONNNA ,NHDNRD NN YSIN
PN THOND GNXY L (7APIINAY N 9NN 9»17) Annex "'C'-D nominn
YH¥a MNNY (719N HO1R7) DY NYANN AN D¥apna XOMN (Proxy Statement) NOOND
2NN NNDN DY TPLIND MNN ONIN Annex ""D'-5 NN TRDND 9NNND ,NPINN
NYTHN NN PN THDNA NINND NI PNY DIDDN .DIINN NPPTH DY NIyl
DYONMNNN DXNND .SINNN NPITH NDIN PNITN THDN NX INT DD DOVIIY .NINN



DNY MMV MYNWNN DX 1DAP> N NYASNH ansa DTN DPNY SINN NP INY
DONN YNT DIWPN DX KON, 51NN NP1TNI IN )RR THONA

(7993550 $%5957 N 79NN NPOYNM NNNON ONIN WAP 21NN NPT DIDI-DY
TMYOND ,ONY YD) 1PNOPPTN ,ONNNN DT NYIRD INIPY 192N NIWHNN ORYD DY
.N2NN PIN 29-9Y YATID  NYY NIND Yoya

NVPTHN .NI2N2 NIYHN IRYI DININ 19IND DN DMP NYIAP NN NPPTHN NIVN
,AML NN NPINRIT NAPYTNI NNTIAY NPION ,NI2NN MIVH NN DTPY TN DY NI
NPYTNA AN P2 ,AVNNNA L,NI2NT NIVNN ORYNY DMINTY DI NHY J9IND)
NN NY2P NI2NN DMV IND) YDIVAN NANNA ,NYTNA ,NIIND DY DNDON-N)
MSMNNY OPPOYN D¥IOHNNA NDY TTIYY TNV JOINI NIVNN ORVID DININD 1IN
IVIVOND DRIVY I9IND NYAPI NPT I3 THXD DINPANIY NOTHIM PPOYN
NIYNN INY MINTIN NYIND NY TNV IDINDY NIV XN ,N12NN Y NIPOYN
NIYN ONYD YD DNOY IXDVINM PXIN NIV PNT ,NMDOY NIaNn DY
955 51N D200 NYIAPS MNIPY INNN NYIP NPITHN AT THIRD NIIND ONNNN
VNN DM (DINI) XTIV PIVN G0V 1O - MTID NYIDYNI YD NINNN NIV KUY
21751 NIDNY ANNNT MNIPYN 223D G0N YN .NPITHI DXONMNN MNIPYY ONNNA

NPPTHI VNN DMV TIDIN 12397 NIV IRV TPYN

5555 DXWIANN (DHY DMNIVP DINN) DPIMPD) 2.0 ,0P9"PD Y1-DY 2012-1 DONIY 295
(D132 2171 9-YY) TN 19INA

Y25 9NN INDNN NPT NN NIND (i) (T79)2) HYOIINN PNOVPIPTM 2NN NN
2N NNIN P2 NN NHNR IVANY MNIPY DY NNV NPTHNVY (ii) ; NIURD NN
192NN N2V NN ONIN DNNNN MANY MVIND TNSN PAD 0NN DY NIYN IRV
192NN MIVHN OIPPY VN NPITHIN NN T TR MDY NO5ION NMIVIVONMN
N PN NOX MOONNVY (iii)-1;ORIVIN NNYPNN PIYVA NNDNNND NPNIA LIIT TIND

.Mann

Y RYNL DNOPPTN 9 DY OWONN PIYN IR DPIAY 1YW TPNOPPT 910N NIV

s MININ MOONNN MINDIND NPNIVN NPONRIY YXIN

”

ANNEX-Y TPMINN NNITN NDI NIVNN INRYIID DIDNN NPPTH NN IUND : V9NN
=35 10010 THonY NNy "C"

”7.1792N1N NIV NN N NVYNN : VNN

Registration ) n”7ya @1pHo Yx9WS 2.0 2% 1930N P2 DY NN 0IDN NN
(Rights Agreement

Advent Investments Pte. Ltd.-n n9an2 NVOWN NIAYN M1PYa ,2009 12I0VPINA 28 D12
Registration ) D¢ NMST 030N OPY»PO DY NIANN NIYPNN ,OPY»PYY (7Advent”)
oy N72NN NIYPNN 12 DIWIN NMDT 050N NON Yy poann (Rights Agreement
090177 :PNY) PMINN Y NMITM 1999 MIVA DINKRND DXTOM»NN MMNN Yoyay Advent
NYONN YT Y NIVIN DPPN DIIVIN DIDN2 NHIAND TMIYPNN (78PN DIYIN

NN YOy DY MOYON

DODN2 TN DT NNNY 193) DXPIINND NPNIYN NIaNN 0PN DIYIN DIDNY DRNNA
NPIND NN THERPIINND DDA INDNY DIWVID NIINNN YITTD MDY (O»PN DN
Y793 2N YoND) 1933 MVYN ONPINRD TIY M PIND OXNNA DT Yy MPININn
NYPA VINY P NI2ND DY NN NIPN (NHRNND ,7AYMITH MO IRPIYNINN



PPN IMN T DY MPIMNT MDD NN NIY INPIIIND Y7 PIND DRNNA DI
MADN MYNT DI MY YNNI OYS INPN D0 WMNN NYIITN MY TIY 1932 NN
.D»PN DIYIN DODN NNN NYITN MOT YINNY DNYIN 190N Yy NYIN PN .ININN
NN OWH HO5M5 MAYNY NI DY MONNDI1NN MNON ,0MPn DN DooN 19D
mMOT DPPINNY NPNIYN NIANN 90N .PANN NN PN 2.65% NPN DI NUpa

PNMN NN DIVAY YPAN NIINNY NIPN DIV DIMMMN NYYIN NN Ypad

(N) : DMWY PAN DTPIN ,DPPTNNHNN TR Y55 DN VP OYPN DIVIIN DO0N 99N
DIVAIT INNIN MMND NN NOND 105V O INNN IWND (2)-) 2014 120OPINI 27
INDNN PIN IAY DIV 10NN TNV DNNNA ,TINPINND NDNIAL DT> DY MPIMNN
OIN DY MINN MDD IN MND ,NPIND AT DY 19230 XD 1934 MWD RPN Y2

100N

2.0 DY WPNN 1IN YD YN L,.2.0) OPYYPO PA NVYYN NHAYN NPDY Mapya
Sy MINNNM DNINN ("¥HNN DIYIHN 05DN”) DIV NMDT .2.0Y NIPHN DOONA
DMPYO VI 1D DT DPPN DIWIN DIDN DY DOV YN DIV DION
TN 9NKY Annex "E'-2 ymDm 1719091 )N THDNI WNI TYUN DIINIDN

AN THDNA XOND NNONY 9195 191D DIPDN NI

,-1.0) DPYYPO PaY NMIND NYDT DODN NN 29 YY D ,N1IND YN DPY»PD
TYIN TYA YIANND IPNNN OXTINNN TOX 9 ,PT 95 NMINNND 91992 %9 1XODN DITTINN
YD YN YWY Y8, DIWIN DODN

DOVTNN DNOPPTN DY SWND PN NIN OMIY 1NYI PPNOPPTM ANPAIAN DTN
I 27-12 IR D) OPOOPD MY MNY DINVPITN DY .2.0 YT DY N YD NINNOY
M RV (N D

DIVAIN DODN NN AWNY NPIND OHYAD IHHRM IWYOXR YPNOPPT NNPXAN DTN
DODNM D>NIN NI1ANN N2IVY NN YXINN DIYIIN DIDNI MIWPNNN 7D IDIINM YINN
,DIYIN 050N YN POY IUNR NN DY T-DY NIANN NMN DY NITIDN NN IWIND
YT DY NN DY 10N DY MIPIS 1INN N172ND PRY 19),N72NN DY MNYINN DINN N
N72nNY 1 (“blackout periods™) N©122 INDN MSN DY MMPN KOV NN Mya

NNTP2 NXY PNMIN NN NYNN

:MININ MOONNN MINDIND NOPNIVN NONRIY YN
"

;D7Y2 DIPYL YNNI 2.0 PAY NIAND P2 MMDTN DY) DODN NN IWUND : VIMNN
-

192NN NAVY NN R NVYNN : VNN

,27-92 9198 M (i) , 219 NNOY 9 (i) :09NVPITY MDY AN NPIN NIYN) NYN
AN 91 (Vi) PINDIPOTINY UMD D (V) J0PIY) 199 M (iv) ,9nvy 01X M (iii)
"aPN” 119nY) POV POX M (iIX)-) ,9NW 9N M (Viii) 130 NPIN M (Vii) ,1POWIN

{"m9run

NV DMNVPIT MOAYY UNIND PNNND NIIND D PNN 192NN NP MIND PN
27NN N DYYNN IRNIND IRY 1DONY NMIRHN X NPINK I NN OINKR NIYN
.192N2 NAYN IRYI IX DINOVPITI DTPINT WY
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[THIS DEED OF VOTE IS A CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF THE BINDING
HEBREW VERSION OF THE DEED OF VOTE (KTAV HATZBA'A) REQUIRED BY
ISRAELI LAW]

Date: June 20, 2013

Partner Communications Company Ltd.
Deed of Vote

R

art |
In accordance with the Companies Regulations (Deeds of VVote and Position Notices)
(2005)

Name of the Company: Partner Communications Company Ltd. (the “Company”).
Type, date and place of meeting: Annual General Meeting (the “AGM”) will be held on
Thursday, July 25, 2013 at 10:00 am. (Israel time), at the Company's offices, 8 Ha’amal
Street, Rosh Ha’ayin, Israel or at any adjournment thereof. The telephone number for
inquiries is +972-54-781-4191.

Pursuant to the Israeli Companies Law (1999) (the “Israeli Companies Law”)
and the Israeli Companies Regulations (Deeds of VVote and Position Notices) (2005) (the
“Deed of Vote Regulations”), shareholders who will not attend the meeting in person
may vote with respect to items no. 4-7 on the agenda by a Hebrew form of deed of vote
(ktav hatzba'a) and these items are subject to provisions set forth in the Israeli
Companies Law and the Deed of VVote Regulations (the “Regulations Procedure”). For
the shareholder’s convenience, items no. 1-3 on the agenda are also included in this
document although said items are not subject to the Regulations Procedure.

For the Shareholders’ convenience, below are the items 1-3 on the agenda, which
are not subject to the Requlations Procedure:

1. Approval of the re-appointment of Kesselman & Kesselman, independent certified
public accountants in Israel and a member of PricewaterhouseCoopers
International Limited group, as the Company's auditor for the period ending at the
close of the next annual general meeting;

2.  Discussion of the auditor’s remuneration for the year ended December 31, 2012,
as determined by the Audit Committee and by the Board of Directors, and the
report of the Board of Directors with respect to the remuneration paid to the
auditor and its affiliates for the year ended December 31, 2012; and

3. Discussion of the Company’s audited financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2012 and the report of the Board of Directors for such period.



The items on the agenda, which are subject to the Regulations Procedure:

Set forth below is a summary of the proposed resolutions that may be voted on by the
Deed of Vote:

4.

Aprroval of the re-election of the following directors to the Company’s Board
of Directors until the close of the next annual general meeting: Mr. Shlomo
Rodav, Mr. llan Ben-Dov, Mr. Adam Chesnoff, Mr. Fred Gluckman, Mr.
Sumeet Jaisinghani, Mr. Yoav Rubinstein, Mr. Arieh Saban, Mr. Yabhel
Shachar, Mr. Elon Shalev and Mr. Arie (Arik) Steinberg (collectively, the
“Appointed Directors”); approval that no change will be made to the
compensation terms of the Appointed Directors (not including Mr. Shlomo
Rodav) and of Ms. Osnat Ronen and that the Appointed Directors and Ms.
Osnat Ronen will continue to benefit from the Company's D&O insurance
policy; approval and ratification (subject to the adoption of Resolution 7
below) of indemnification of the Appointed Directors (not including Mr. Arie
Steinberg) and approval that the indemnification letters granted to Ms. Osnat
Ronen and Mr. Arie Steinberg will continue in full force and effect.

Under the Israeli Companies Law, the directors of the Company (other than the
external directors (Dahatzim) who generally serve for three year terms) shall be
appointed at the annual general meeting unless otherwise provided in the
Company’s Articles of Association, and shall serve in office until the close of the
next annual general meeting, unless their office becomes vacant earlier in
accordance with the provisions of the Israeli Companies Law and the Company’s
Avrticles of Association.

In accordance with Section 22.3A of the Company’s General License for the
Provision of Mobile Radio Telephone Services using the Cellular Method in Israel
dated April 7, 1998, as amended (the “License”), and with Article 23.2.6 of the
Company’s Articles of Association, and notwithstanding any other provision of
the Articles of Association, a Qualified Israeli Director (as defined in the Articles
of Association) shall be appointed as a member of the Board of Directors, and
may be removed from such office, only upon written notice to the Company
Secretary of his or her appointment or removal by Founding Israeli Shareholders
holding Minimum lIsraeli Holding Shares (as both terms are defined in the Articles
of Association) (the "Founding Israeli Shareholders™). The Founding lIsraeli
Shareholders have appointed Ms. Osnat Ronen as a Qualified Israeli Director on
or prior to December 8, 2009. Ms. Ronen has been a director in the Company
since December 2009 and is currently a member of the Security Committee. Ms.
Ronen served as a General Partner of Viola Private Equity from January 2008
until March 2013. From 2001 until 2007, Ms. Ronen was the Deputy Chief
Executive Officer of Leumi Partners Ltd., the investment banking services arm of
the Leumi Group, where she was responsible for the Group’s Private Equity
portfolio. Between 2004 and 2007, Ms. Ronen led the strategic planning,
deployment and execution of the Bachar Reform, one of Israel’s largest financial
reforms, at Leumi Group. As part of the implementation, Ms. Ronen managed the
sale of Leumi’s holdings in mutual, provident and training funds. Prior to these
positions, Ms. Ronen served as Deputy Head of the Subsidiaries Division of The
Leumi Group from 1999 until 2001. Ms. Ronen served on the Boards of Directors



of the following companies: the Paz Group, Direct-1.D.l. Insurance Company
Ltd., Leumi Card Ltd., Arab Israeli Bank, Leumi Mortgage Bank and more.
Currently Ms. Ronen serves as a director on the Board of Directors of the
following companies: Orad Hi-tech Ltd.,, Amiad Filtration Systems Ltd.,
Aeronautics Ltd., Degania Medical Ltd., Matomy Media Group Ltd. and Fox-
Wizel Ltd. Ms. Ronen holds a B.Sc. degree in mathematics and computer science
and an M.B.A. degree, both from Tel Aviv University.To the best knowledge of
the Company and the Company's Directors, Ms. Ronen is not a Family Member of
another Interested Party (as both terms are defined in the Israeli Securities Law
(1968) (the“lIsraeli Securities Law”) in the Company. Ms. Ronen was born on
29.11.1962; 1.D No. 057972077; Citizenship: Israeli; Residing at: 13 Z'
Be'heshvan Street, Ramat Hasharon.

Under the Company's Articles of Association, the Board of Directors has the right
to elect any person as a director and to fill an office which becomes vacant. Any
director elected in such manner shall serve in office until the coming annual
meeting and may be re-elected. Accordingly, in accordance with the Share
Purchase Agreement entered into on November 30, 2012 between Scailex
Corporation Ltd. (“Scailex”), and S.B. Israel Telecom Ltd. (“S.B.”; the “Share
Purchase Agreement”), the Board of Directors has elected Mr. Shlomo Rodav,
Mr. Adam Chesnoff, Mr. Fred Gluckman, Mr. Sumeet Jaisinghani, Mr. Yoav
Rubinstein, Mr. Arieh Saban and Mr. Elon Shalev, as of January 29, 2013, as
directors of the Company (the “New Directors”). The service of the New
Directors was recommended by S.B. As reported in 2012 by Scailex, S.B. and
Scailex (and their respective affiliates) are generally voting in a unified manner
(according to a majority vote among them). Additionally, subject to the provisions
of any law, S.B. and Scailex agreed to take all action, including their voting power
in the shareholders meetings of Partner, to ensure that the composition of Partner's
Board of Directors will generally be: a majority of candidates recommended by
S.B. and two candidates recommended by Scailex (as long as the cumulative
holdings of Scailex and its related parties in Partner is equal to 10% or more of
Partner's share capital, or one candidate if such holdings are less than 10% but
equal to or greater than 5%, or no candidate if such holdings are less than 5%).

All the directors listed below will terminate their office as directors of the
Company as of the end of the AGM. It is proposed that these directors be re-
elected until the close of the next annual general meeting, unless their office
becomes vacant earlier in accordance with the provisions of the Israeli Companies
Law and the Company's Articles of Association. No change is hereby made to the
service of Ms. Osnat Ronen as a Qualified Israeli Director, to the service of Mr.
Barry Ben-Zeev (Woolfson) as an external director (Dahatz) of the Company and
to the service of Dr. Michael Anghel as an external director (Dahatz) of the
Company.

Mr. Shlomo Rodav, Dr. Michael Anghel, Mr. llan Ben-Dov, Mr. Barry Ben-Zeev
(Woolfson), Mr. Adam Chesnoff, Mr. Fred Gluckman, Mr. Sumeet Jaisinghani,
Ms. Osnat Ronen, Mr. Yoav Rubinstein, Mr. Yahel Shachar and Mr. Arie
Steinberg were determined by the Board of Directors to be *“accounting and
financial experts” under the Israeli Companies Law and regulations promulgated
thereunder. Dr. Anghel, Mr. Ben-Zeev (Woolfson), Ms. Ronen and Mr. Steinberg



also qualify as independent directors according to U.S. law and under the Israeli
Companies Law and regulations promulgated thereunder (bilty taluy).

The Compensation Committee and Board of Directors have noted the respective
personal interests of the Appointed Directors and of Ms. Osnat Ronen in this
matter. In addition, the Compensation Committee and Board of Directors have
resolved and recommended to the shareholders at the AGM to approve that (a) no
change will be made to the compensation of the Appointed Directors (not
including Mr. Shlomo Rodav) and Ms. Osnat Ronen, commencing from the close
of the AGM, for their respective services to the Company as directors, which is
equal to: (i) an annual fee of NIS 180,000 (one hundred and eighty thousand NIS);
and (ii) an attendance fee of NIS 4,000 (four thousand NIS) per meeting,
applicable from the fifth meeting per year (100% thereof for participation in
person, 60% thereof by means of communication, or 50% thereof in writing), in
each such case, linked to the Israeli Consumer Price Index published for
December 2007, but in any event no less than an aggregate amount per annum
equal to U.S. $50,000 (U.S. Dollars fifty thousand, payable according to the
representative exchange rate on the payment date) as previously approved by the
shareholders, (the “Compensation”); (b) no change will be made to the
reimbursement of reasonable expenses in connection with the performance of ther
role of each of the Appointed Directors (not including Mr. Shlomo Rodav) and
Mr. Osnat Ronen; and (c) as previously approved by the shareholders, the
Appointed Directors and Ms. Oshat Ronen will continue to benefit from the
Company's D&O insurance policy.

In addition, the Compensation Committee and Board of Directors have approved
and ratified, and recommended to the shareholders at the AGM, to approve and
ratify that subject to the adoption of the pertinent part of Resolution 7 below,
indemnification letters will be granted to the Appointed Directors (except for Mr.
Arie Steinberg whose indemnification letter and that of Ms. Osnat Ronen will
continue in full force and effect).

It should be noted that the proposed compensation for the Company's directors is
in accordance with the proposed Compensation Policy, as set out in clause 5
below, and is in line with Amendment No. 20 to the Israeli Companies Law and
that several factors were considered (in line with Amendment No. 20), all as
detailed in the Proxy Statement.

Shlomo Rodav was appointed to the Board of Directors of Partner effective as of
January 29, 2013, following which he was appointed as Chairman of the Board of
Directors and is currently a member of the Security Committee. Mr. Rodav has
served since 1990 and until 2007 as Chairman of the Board of Directors and as of
2007 as a director of Kerur Holdings Ltd., Jafora-Tabori Ltd., Tapugan Industries
Ltd. (in Tapugan until 2011) and Israel Lighterage & Supply Co. Ltd. and as a
director on the Board of Directors of Metzad Ateret Ltd. From 1994 until 2011
Mr. Rodav served as a director and CEO of Waste Management Israel Ltd. and
from 2000 until 2003 as a director and CEO of InirU Israel Ltd. and InirU
Wireless Inc. From 2003 to 2005, Mr. Rodav served as Chairman of the Board of
Directors and CEO (CEO during 2004-2005) of Gilat Satellite Networks Ltd.
Between 2007 and 2011, he served as Chairman of the Board of Directors of



Bezeq Israel Telecommunication Company Ltd., Pelephone Communications
Ltd., Bezeq International Company Ltd., Bezeq Online Ltd., DBS Satellite
Services (1998) Ltd. (yes), and Walla Ltd. and between 2011 and 2012 as
Chairman of the Board of Directors of Tnuva Ltd., and its subsidiaries. Mr. Rodav
holds a B.A. in Economics from Tel-Aviv University and an M.B.A. degree from
Columbia University. To the best knowledge of the Company and the Company's
Directors, Mr. Rodav is not a Family Member of another Interested Party (as both
terms are defined in the Israeli Securities Law) in the Company. Mr. Shlomo
Rodav was born on 27.10.1949; I.D. No. 030596860; Citizenship: Israeli;
Residing at: 5 Kerem Hazaitim Street, Savion.

Ilan Ben-Dov was appointed to the Board of Directors of Partner in October 2009
and served as Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company since
November 1, 2009 until January 29, 2013. Mr. Ben-Dov serves as Chairman of
the Board of Directors of Scailex Corporation Ltd. and Suny Electronics Ltd. and
previously had served as Suny's Joint Chief Executive Officer for approximately
fifteen years (until May 2009). He also currently serves as a director of Tapuz
Anashim Ltd., Derech HalLotus Ltd., Refuat Halotus Ltd., Tao Tsuot Real Estate
Ltd., Ben-Dov Investments Ltd., I. Ben-Dov Investments Ltd., Harmony (Ben-
Dov) Ltd., and of subsidiaries of Suny. Mr. Ben-Dov served as Chairman of the
Board of Directors of Tao Tsuot Ltd. To the best knowledge of the Company and
the Company's Directors, Mr. Ben-Dov is not a Family Member of another
Interested Party (as both terms are defined in the Israeli Securities Law) in the
Company. Mr. Ben-Dov was born on 16.1.1957; 1.D. No. 054676168;
Citizenship: Israeli; Residing at: 14 Mishmar ha-Gvul Street, Tel Aviv.

Adam Chesnoff was appointed to the Board of Directors of Partner effective as of
January 29, 2013. Mr. Chesnoff serves as the President and Chief Operating
Officer of Saban Capital Group, Inc., responsible for overseeing its investment
and business activities, including private equity and public market investments.
Mr. Chesnoff is a member of the Board of Directors of Univision
Communications Inc., the largest Spanish-language media company in the United
States; a member of the Board of Directors of Celestial Tiger Entertainment Ltd.,
an owner and operator of pay television channels across Asia; a member of the
Board of Commissioners of MNC Ltd., an Indonesian media company; and of
MNC Sky Vision Ltd., Indonesia’s largest pay television operator. In addition,
Mr. Chesnoff served as Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors of
ProSiebenSat.1 Media AG from 2003 until 2007. From 2005 to 2010, Mr.
Chesnoff served on the Board of Directors of Bezeq Israel Telecommunication
Company Ltd. Mr. Chesnoff holds a B.A. in Economics and Management from
Tel-Aviv University and an M.B.A from UCLA’s Anderson School of Business.
To the best knowledge of the Company and the Company's Directors, Mr.
Chesnoff is not a Family Member of another Interested Party (as both terms are
defined in the Israeli Securities Law) in the Company. Mr. Adam Chesnoff was
born on 15.11.65; I.D. No. 022113567; Citizenship: Israeli; Living in California,
USA (His address for service of process is Saban Capital Group, 10100 Santa
Monica blvd., LA, CA 90067).

Fred Gluckman was appointed to the Board of Directors of Partner effective as
of January 29, 2013. Mr. Gluckman serves as the Chief Financial Officer of



Saban Capital Group, Inc. In this position, Mr. Gluckman is responsible for all
financial, accounting and tax functions of the firm, and has been an active member
of the firm’s investment team since joining the firm in 2003. Mr. Gluckman is a
member of the Board of Directors of Celestial Tiger Entertainment and serves on
its Audit Committee. Mr. Gluckman’s experience prior to joining Saban Capital
Group includes international and domestic advisory work in the London and
Southern California practices of Deloitte. Mr. Gluckman is actively engaged in
the community, serving on multiple boards of national and local charitable
organizations. Mr. Gluckman is a CPA and holds a BS in Economics from
Wharton Business School and studied at the Hebrew University in Jerusalem. To
the best knowledge of the Company and the Company's Directors, Mr. Gluckman
is not a Family Member of another Interested Party (as both terms are defined in
the Israeli Securities Law) in the Company. Mr. Fred Gluckman was born on
18.1.71; US Passport. No. 476328008; Citizenship: American; Living in
California, USA (His address for service of process is Saban Capital Group,
10100 Santa Monica blvd., LA, CA 90067.

Sumeet Jaisinghani was appointed to the Board of Directors of Partner effective
as of January 29, 2013. Mr. Jaisinghani is a Director at Saban Capital Group, Inc.
(“SCG”), is responsible for its principal investment activities in Asia and is head
of its Singapore office. In addition to being on the Board of Directors of Partner,
Mr. Jaisinghani is a member of the Board of Directors of Celestial Tiger
Entertainment (CTE) and an observer on the Board of Directors of Taomee. Mr.
Jaisinghani played a key role in SCG’s investments in Partner, Media Nusantara
Citra, MNC Sky Vision, CTE and Taomee. Mr. Jaisinghani was also involved
with SCG’s controlling investment in Bezeq Telecommunications Company Ltd.
until its sale in April 2010. Prior to joining SCG, Mr. Jaisinghani worked as an
investment banker in the Mergers & Acquisitions Group of J.P. Morgan in New
York. Mr. Jaisinghani holds a B.S. in Finance and Management, with high
distinction, from Indiana University's Kelley School of Business. To the best
knowledge of the Company and the Company's Directors, Mr. Sumeet Jaisinghani
is not a Family Member of another Interested Party (as both terms are defined in
the Israeli Securities Law) in the Company. Mr. Sumeet Jaisinghani was born on
1.10.84; US Passport. No. 480408618; Citizenship: American; Living in
Singapore (His address for service of process is Saban Capital Group (Asia) Pte.
Ltd., 12 Marina Boulevard, #17-01, Marina Bay Financial Centre, Tower 3,
Singapore 018982).

Yoav Rubinstein was appointed to the Board of Directors of Partner effective as
of January 29, 2013. Mr. Rubinstein joined SHL Telemedicine Ltd. as Senior Vice
President, Head of Global Business Development in March 2012. Previously, Mr.
Rubinstein served as an investment professional at Apax Partners for nine years
and as Senior Advisor to Saban Capital Group. Mr. Rubinstein holds a B.A. in
Business Administration from the Interdisciplinary Center in Herzliya. To the best
knowledge of the Company and the Company's Directors, Mr. Yoav Rubinstein is
not a Family Member of another Interested Party (as both terms are defined in the
Israeli Securities Law) in the Company. Mr. Yoav Rubinstein was born on 7.5.73;
I.D. No. 016447153; Citizenship: Israeli; Residing at: 4 Hatziporen Street, Ramat
Hasharon.



Arieh Saban was appointed to the Board of Directors of Partner effective as of
January 29, 2013. Mr. Saban has served since 2010 as Chairman of the Board of
Directors of Saban Brands Israel Ltd. From 1983 until 2002 Mr. Saban served as
the CEO of Israel Audio-Visual Corporation, a media distribution, licensing and
merchandising agency that he founded. From 2000 until 2002 he served as
Chairman of the Board of Directors of Fox Kids Israel, a joint venture with Fox
Kids Europe. From 2005 until 2012, Mr. Saban served on the Board of Directors
of the following companies: Keshet Broadcasting Ltd., Pelephone
Communications Ltd., DBS Satellite Services (1998) Ltd. (yes), Bezeq Israel
Telecommunication Company Ltd. and Bezeq International Company Ltd. To the
best knowledge of the Company and the Company's Directors, Mr. Saban is a
Family Member of another Interested Party (as both terms are defined in the
Israeli Securities Law) in the Company. Mr. Arieh Saban was born in 1947; 1.D.
No. 064902083; Citizenship: Israeli; Residing at: 59 Kaplan Street, Herzaliya.

Yahel Shachar was appointed to the Board of Directors of Partner in October
2009 and is currently a member of the Security Committee. Mr. Shachar has
served for the last six and a half years as Chief Executive Officer of Scailex
Corporation Ltd. (he joined Scailex in December 2001 as Chief Financial Officer)
and for the last three years as the Chief Executive Officer of Suny Electronics Ltd.
Mr. Shachar serves as Chairman of the Board of Directors of Tapuz Anashim Ltd.
Before joining Scailex, Mr. Shachar served as Chief Operating Officer at BVR
Technologies Ltd. for three years. Mr. Shachar holds an LL.B. degree from Tel-
Aviv University, an LL.M. degree from Georgetown University in Washington,
D.C. and he is a member of the Israeli and New York bar associations. To the best
knowledge of the Company and the Company's Directors, Mr. Shachar is not a
Family Member of another Interested Party (as both terms are defined in the
Israeli Securities Law) in the Company. Yahel Shachar was born on 15.3.1962;
I.D. No. 057484826; Citizenship: Israeli; Residing at: 9 Rothschild Street, Kiryat-
Ono.

Elon Shalev was appointed to the Board of Directors of Partner effective as of
January 29, 2013. Mr. Shalev serves as Chairman of the Board of Directors of
SHL Telemedicine Ltd. and as a senior advisor to Saban Capital Group. Mr.
Shalev was the founder of Channel 2 news and from 1993 to 1995 served as its
Chief Executive Officer. From 1996-1999, he served as Editor in Chief of "Yediot
Aharonot”, and from 2000-2001 he served as Executive Vice President of
Discount Investment Corporation Ltd. of the IDB group. From 2004-2012, Mr.
Shalev served as Chairman of the Board of Directors of Logia Ltd., a mobile
content solutions provider. Mr. Shalev served in the past on the Board of
Directors of Bezeq Israel Telecommunication Company Ltd., DBS Satellite
Services (1998) Ltd. (yes) and Bezeq International Company Ltd. Mr. Shalev
holds a B.A. degree in Political Science from Tel Aviv University. To the best
knowledge of the Company and the Company's Directors, Mr. Shalev is not a
Family Member of another Interested Party (as both terms are defined in the
Israeli Securities Law) in the Company. Mr. Elon Shalev was born on 26.7.51;
I.D. No. 050705276; Citizenship: Israeli; Residing at: 70 Yeshua Ben Nun Street,
Tel-Aviv.



Arie (Arik) Steinberg was appointed to the Board of Directors of Partner in
January 2012 and is currently a member of the Audit Committee and the
Compensation Committee. Mr. Steinberg served from 2006-2010 as Chairman of
the Board of Directors of Psagot Investment House, Ltd., as well as other
companies in the Psagot Group, leading and overseeing the business strategies of
the Psagot Group. Mr. Steinberg served as Chairman on behalf of York Capital. In
addition, he served on the Board of Directors of the Tel-Aviv Stock Exchange.
Mr. Steinberg also served between 1999 - 2003 as Chief Executive Officer of
Ilanot Batucha Investment House from the IDB Group as well as a director of
Maalot - Israel’s rating company (business partner of S&P). Prior to that, Mr.
Steinberg served as Managing Director of Etgar- Portfolio Management Trust Co.,
owned by Bank Mizrahi. He also served on the Advisory Boards of Mobileye
Technologies and Novatrans Group SA. Mr. Steinberg studied Economics at Tel-
Aviv University. To the best knowledge of the Company and the Company's
Directors, Mr. Steinberg is not a Family Member of another Interested Party (as
both terms are defined in the Israeli Securities Law) in the Company. Arie
Steinberg was born on 28.1.1965; 1.D. No. 059222661; Citizenship: Israeli;
Residing at: 8 Yiftach Street, Ramat Hasharon.

It is proposed that at the AGM the following resolutions be adopted:

(i) “RESOLVED: to re-elect Mr. Shlomo Rodav, Mr. llan Ben-
Dov, Mr. Adam Chesnoff, Mr. Fred Gluckman, Mr. Sumeet
Jaisinghani, Mr. Yoav Rubinstein, Mr. Arieh Saban, Mr. Yahel
Shachar, Mr. Elon Shalev and Mr. Arie Steinberg, to serve as
directors of the Company until the close of the next annual
general meeting, unless their office becomes vacant earlier in
accordance with the provisions of the Israeli Companies Law
and the Company’s Articles of Association;

(i) RESOLVED: to approve that (A) no change will be made to the
Compensation of Mr. llan Ben-Dov, Mr. Adam Chesnoff, Mr.
Fred Gluckman, Mr. Sumeet Jaisinghani, Mr. Yoav Rubinstein,
Mr. Arieh Saban, Mr. Yahel Shachar and Mr. Elon Shalev; (B)
no change will be made to the reimbursement of reasonable
expenses of the directors listed above; and (C) the directors
listed above and Mr. Shlomo Rodav will continue to benefit
from the Company's D&O insurance policy;

(ili) RESOLVED: to approve that (A) no change will be made to the
Compensation of Ms. Osnat Ronen and Mr. Arie Steinberg; (B)
no change will be made to the reimbursement of reasonable
expenses of Ms. Osnat Ronen and Mr. Arie Steinberg; (C) Ms.
Osnat Ronen and Mr. Arie Steinberg will continue to benefit
from the Company's D&O insurance policy; and (D) the
indemnification letters granted to Ms. Osnat Ronen and Mr. Arie
Steinberg will continue in full force and effect;

(iv) RESOLVED: to approve and ratify, subject to the adoption of
the pertinent part of Resolution 7 below, the grant of an



indemnification letter to Mr. Shlomo Rodav, Mr. llan Ben-Dov,
Mr. Adam Chesnoff, Mr. Fred Gluckman, Mr. Sumeet
Jaisinghani, Mr. Yoav Rubinstein, Mr. Arieh Saban, Mr. Yahel
Shachar and Mr. Elon Shalev; and

(v) RESOLVED: these resolutions are in the best interest of the
Company.”

Approval of a compensation policy for the Company's office holders.

The Israeli Companies Law, which was recently amended by Amendment No. 20
(“Amendment 20”), has substantially altered the manner in which directors and
other Office Holders are compensated (as such term is defined in the lIsraeli
Companies Law, each an "Office Holder™) by Israeli companies, such as the
Company.

It is hereby proposed to adopt, pursuant to Amendment 20, a compensation policy
for the Company's Office Holders, substantially in the form attached to the Proxy
Statement, distributed with this Deed of Vote (the "Proxy Statement™) as Annex
“C” (the "Compensation Policy” or the "Policy”). For the shareholders'
convenience, attached to the Proxy Statement as Annex “D” is an English
convenience translation of the binding Hebrew Policy. The summary below is
qualified in its entirety by reference to the description in the Proxy Statement and
the full text of the Compensation Policy. For further details, refer to the Proxy
Statement and the Compensation Policy. Capitalized terms referring to the
Compensation Policy that are not defined herein, shall have the respective
meanings ascribed to them in the Proxy Statement or the Compenation Policy,
unless the context requires otherwise.

The Terms of Office and Employment of the Company's Office Holders are to be
determined on the basis of the Compensation Policy (the “Compensation” or the
“Compensation Plan”) and shall be submitted for approval by the Compensation
Committee, the Board of Directors and, if applicable, shall be submitted for
approval by the General Meeting of shareholders, as required under the Israeli
Companies Law.

The purpose of the Policy is to set guidelines for the manner of compensation of
the Company's Office Holders. The Policy was formulated with the aim of
advancing the Company’s objectives, its work plans and its policies with a long-
term perspective, and in a manner that creates appropriate incentives for the
Company’s Office Holders, while taking into account, inter alia, the Company’s
risk-management policy, its size, its financial position and the nature of activities.
The Company designed the compensation mechanism for Office Holders in a
manner intended to encourage improvement in the Company’s business processes
and mode of operation and to encourage the increase of the Company’s
profitability over time. The Policy was set in a manner that will be congruent with
the Company’s business strategy and will constitute an incentive to implement it,
and in a manner designed to enhance the Office Holders’ sense of identification



with the Company and its activities, increase their satisfaction and motivation and
ensure that the Company can retain those Office Holders who have been
contributing to the Company over time. The Policy prescribes an outline of
principles whereby a Compensation Plan shall be defined for each of the Office
Holders, which is generally comprised of three components — Ongoing
Remuneration, annual Bonus and Equity Compensation, all pursuant to the
principles specified in the Policy. Further details regarding the principles for and
outline of Office Holders' personal Compensation Plans and of various
Compensation components are detailed in the Policy.

As reported in 2012 by Scailex, S.B. and Scailex (and their respective affiliates)
are generally voting in a unified manner (according to a majority vote among
them).

The Compensation Committee and Board of Directors have respectively resolved:
(i) to adopt the Compensation Policy and to recommend to the shareholders to
approve it; (ii) that the Policy is based on principles that will enable a proper
balance between the desire to reward Office Holders for their achievements and
the need to ensure that the structure of the Compensation is in line with the
Company's benefit and overall strategy over time and that adoption of the Policy
is important to advance the Company’s objectives, with a long-term perspective,
at a challenging time in the Israeli communication market; and (iii) that these
resolutions are in the best interest of the Company.

The Compensation Committee and Board of Directors have noted the respective
personal interests of all the directors in this matter.

It is proposed that at the AGM the following resolutions be adopted:

RESOLVED: to approve the Compensation Policy for Office Holders
substantially in the form attached to the Proxy Statement as Annex
“C”; and

RESOLVED: this resolution is in the best interest of the Company.”

Approval of a Registration Rights Agreement between the Company and S.B.
Israel Telecom Ltd.

On October 28, 2009, following the change of control in the Company from
Advent Investments Pte. Ltd. (“Advent”) to Scailex, the Company entered into a
Registration Rights Agreement with Scailex, based on and substantially similar to
the Registration Rights Agreement that the Company entered into with Advent
and other principle founding shareholders in 1999 (the “Existing RRA”). The
Existing RRA was approved by the general meeting of shareholders.

According to the Existing RRA, the Company granted its Holders (as this term is
defined in the Existing RRA) a right to require the Company to register Ordinary
Shares held by them under the US Securities Act of 1933 (the “US Securities
Act”). According to the Existing RRA, upon request from any of the Holders (the



"Demand Right"), the Company will file a registration statement under the US
Securities Act to register the Ordinary Shares held by them, subject to a maximum
request of one Demand Right in any six-month period and to certain other
limitations. There is no limit to the number of registrations that can be requested
under the Existing RRA. The minimum amount of shares that must be included in
any registration that can be requested under the Existing RRA is 2.65% of the
outstanding shares. The Company has also granted to the Holders the right to
request to include their Ordinary Shares for registration should the Company
request to register its Ordinary Shares.

The Existing RRA will terminate, with respect to each of the Holders, upon the
earlier of (i) October 27,2014 and (ii) when the Registerable Shares held by such
Holders can be sold in the United States public market pursuant to an exemption
from the registration requirements of the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
without regard to a holding period, volume or manner-of-sale limitations.

Following the change of control transaction between Scailex and S.B., it is
proposed that the Company will enter into an agreement that will provide S.B.
registration rights (the “Proposed RRA”). The terms and conditions of the
Proposed RRA are based on the Existing RRA and are similar to it, except for
certain amendments set out in the Proxy Statement and in Annex "E" to the
Proxy Statement. This summary is qualified in its entirety by reference to the
description in the Proxy Statement.

Scailex informed the Company, that under the terms of the Share Purchase
Agreement between Scailex and S.B., the parties agreed that subject to any
applicable law, each of Scailex and S.B. undertakes at all times to affirmatively
vote all of their shares for the approval of the Registration Rights Agreement, as
may be amended from time to time.

The Audit Committee and Board of Directors have noted the respective personal
interests of the New Directors that, as stated above, were nominated by S.B. and
of the directors nominated by Scailex (Mr. llan Ben-Dov and Mr. Yahel Shachar)
in this matter.

The Audit Committee and the Board of Directors approved, and recommended to
the shareholders to approve, the Proposed RRA and resolved that the Proposed
RRA is in the best interest of the Company since it will help to facilitate an
orderly disposal of the Company's shares by the shareholder who will become a
beneficiary of the Proposed RRA in consultation and coordination with the
Company and will allow the Company to regulate disposals by such a shareholder
not during "blackout” periods, as well as when the Company offers shares in the
market at its initiative.

It is proposed that at the AGM the following resolutions be adopted:

“RESOLVED: to approve the Registration Rights Agreement between
the Company and S.B. Israel Telecom Ltd.; and

RESOLVED: this resolution is in the best interest of the Company.”



Approval and ratification of the grant of Indemnification Letters to the
following directors: (i) Mr. Shlomo Rodav, (ii) Mr. llan Ben-Dov, (iii) Mr.
Adam Chesnoff, (iv) Mr. Fred Gluckman, (v) Mr. Sumeet Jaisinghani, (vi)
Mr. Yoav Rubinstein, (vii) Mr. Arieh Saban, (viii) Mr. Yahel Shachar and (ix)
Mr. Elon Shalev (**Indemnified Persons™).

The Israeli Companies Law and the Company’s Articles of Association authorize
the Company to undertake in advance to indemnify directors and other office
holders of the Company for liabilities or expenses they will incur, as a result of an
action or inaction by them in their capacity as a director or office holder of the
Company.

On October 22, 2009, the shareholders of the Company approved the grant of an
indemnification letter to each of the Company's then current and future directors.
On May 8, 2012, the shareholders of the Company approved the grant of a revised
indemnification letter (the “New Indemnification Letter”), to certain directors
currently serving on the Board of Directors. The grant of the New Indemnification
Letter to the directors affiliated with Scailex (the controlling shareholder) was not
approved by the required majority.

At the Extraordinary General Meeting held on April 11, 2013 (the “EGM?”), the
Company proposed to issue the New Indemnification Letter (to which a number
of clarifications were added) to the New Directors and the directors on behalf of
Scailex. In light of reservations raised at the EGM, the grant of the New
Indemnification Letter to the said directors was not approved by the required
majoritiy.

In light of the above, the Company is hereby proposing to grant to each of the
Appointed Directors (not including Mr. Arie Steinberg) serving as the Company's
director, or as a director or office holder on behalf of the Company in other
companies ("Indemnified Persons”) a revised indemnification letter,
substantially in the form attached to the Proxy Statement as Annex “F” (the
“Revised Indemnification Letter”), effective as of January 29, 2013, except
with respect to the indemnification letters of Mr. Ilan Ben-Dov and Mr. Yahel
Shachar, which will be effective as of April 28, 2013 (the date of expiration of
their previous indemnification letters).

According to the Revised Indemnification Letter, the aggregate indemnification
amount payable by the Company to the Indemnified Persons and all other
indemnified persons pursuant to all letters of indemnification to be issued by the
Company on or after July 25, 2013, which indemnification letters include a
maximum indemnity amount substantially similar to the Maximum Indemnity
Amount in the Revised Indemnification Letter, for any occurrence of an event set
out in Schedule 1 to the Revised Indemnification Letter, will not exceed 25% of
shareholders equity according to the latest reviewed or audited financial
statements approved by Partner's Board of Directors prior to approval of the
indemnification payment (“Maximum Indemnity Amount”).



The Revised Indemnification Letter is annotated to show changes made from the
version of the New Indemnification Letter that was approved by the shareholders
in May 2012,

It should be noted that the relevant factors in line with Amendment No. 20 were
considered in this matter. This summary is qualified in its entirety by reference to
the description in the Proxy Statement.

The Compensation Committee and the Board of Directors have approved and
ratified, and recommended to the shareholders to approve and ratify, the grant of
the Revised Indemnification Letter to each Indemnified Person, resolved that the
Maximum Indemnity Amount is reasonable given the circumstances and that the
indemnification events listed in Schedule | of the Revised Indemnification Letter
are anticipated in light of the Company's current activities, and resolved that such
resolutions are in the best interest of the Company. The Compensation Committee
and the Board of Directors have noted that the directors who are Indemnified
Persons have a Personal Interest in this matter.

It is proposed that at the AGM the following resolutions be adopted:

(i) “RESOLVED: to approve and ratify the Company’s
undertaking to indemnify Mr. Shlomo Rodav and to provide him
with the Revised Indemnification Letter;

(i) RESOLVED: to approve and ratify the Company’s undertaking
to indemnify Mr. Ilan Ben-Dov and to provide him with the
Revised Indemnification Letter;

(ili) RESOLVED: to approve and ratify the Company’s undertaking
to indemnify Mr. Adam Chesnoff and to provide him with the
Revised Indemnification Letter;

(iv) RESOLVED: to approve and ratify the Company’s undertaking
to indemnify Mr. Fred Gluckman and to provide him with the
Revised Indemnification Letter;

(v) RESOLVED: to approve and ratify the Company’s undertaking
to indemnify Mr. Sumeet Jaisinghani and to provide him with
the Revised Indemnification Letter;

(vi) RESOLVED: to approve and ratify the Company’s undertaking
to indemnify Mr. Yoav Rubinstein and to provide him with the
Revised Indemnification Letter;

(vii) RESOLVED: to approve and ratify the Company’s undertaking
to indemnify Mr. Arieh Saban and to provide him with the
Revised Indemnification Letter;

(viii) RESOLVED: to approve and ratify the Company’s undertaking
to indemnify Mr. Yahel Shachar and to provide him with the
Revised Indemnification Letter; and



(ix) RESOLVED: to approve and ratify the Company’s undertaking
to indemnify Mr. Elon Shalev and to provide him with the
Revised Indemnification Letter.

RESOLVED: with respect to each item above, that the Maximum Indemnity
Amount is reasonable given the circumstances and that the indemnification events
listed in Schedule | of the Revised Indemnification Letter are anticipated in light
of Partner's current activities.

RESOLVED: that these resolutions are in the best interest of the Company.”

For further details in respect of the items above and the complete wording of the
proposed resolutions, kindly see the Proxy Statement distributed with this Deed of VVote
by the Company on June 20, 2013.

Place and time for review of the full wording of the proposed resolutions:

The Proxy Statement, distributed with this Deed of Vote, contains the full text of the
proposed resolutions and will be available for review at the Company offices, 8
Ha’amal Street, Rosh Ha’ayin, Israel, Sunday-Thursday, from 9a.m. to 5p.m. (Israel
time) following prior coordination at telephone number +972-54-7814191, until the
time of the EGM, convened to approve the item on the agenda. In addition, the Proxy
Statement is available on the websites: www.magna.isa.gov.il and www.maya.tase.co.il;
and on the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission’s EDGAR System
http://www.sec.gov/edgar.shtml. The Proxy Statement includes additional information
on the content of this Deed of Vote and it is important that the shareholders will also
review it.

The required majority for each of the items on the agenda:

The required majority required for the approval of item no. 1 on the agenda, which is
not subject to the Regulations Procedure, and for items 4(i) and 4(iii) on the agenda,
which are subject to the Regulations Procedure, is the majority of the Ordinary Shares,
par value NIS 0.01 per share (the “Ordinary Shares”) participating in the AGM and
voting on the matter. No vote is required in connection with the discussion of items 2-3
on the agenda.

The required majority required for the approval of items no. 4(ii), 4(iv), 5, 6 and 7(i)-
7(ix) on the agenda, which are subject to the Regulations Procedure, is a majority of the
Ordinary Shares participating in the AGM and voting on the matter; provided, that one
of the following conditions is fulfilled: (i) the majority of votes in favor of the matter
shall include at least a majority of the votes of shareholders not constituting Controlling
Parties (as stated in the Israeli Companies Law), “Controlling Parties”) in the
Company, or those having a Personal Interest (as defined in the Israeli Companies Law,
a “Personal Interest”) in the approval of the pertinent item, participating in the vote;
which votes shall not include abstaining votes; or (ii) the total number of objecting
votes of the shareholders mentioned in clause (i) does not exceed 2% of the total voting
rights in the Company.



Notice of disclosure in respect of a Controlling Party Interest or a Personal
Interest and Restrictions under the License:

In the second part of this Deed of Vote there is a designated space for marking and
detailing whether the shareholder is a Controlling Party or has a Personal Interest in the
resolution. If a shareholder does not so mark or detail, the shareholder’s vote shall not
be counted in respect of items no. 4(ii), 4(iv), 5, 6 and 7(i)-7(ix)on the agenda.

A shareholder is required to indicate if any of the shareholder’s holdings in Partner or
vote requires the consent of the Minister of Communications pursuant to Partner’s
License. If a shareholder does not so mark, the shareholder’s vote shall not be counted.

Validity of the Deed of Vote:

A Deed of Vote submitted by shareholders who hold their shares through a member in
the Tel-Aviv Stock Exchange (the “Exchange”) will be valid only if accompanied by an
ownership certificate. A Deed of Vote submitted by registered shareholders shall be
valid only if accompanied by a copy of 1.D., passport or incorporation certificate.

A Deed of Vote shall be submitted to the Company or mailed by registered mail, so
it arrives to the Company’s office no later than 72 hours prior to the time of the
AGM.

The Company’s address for submission of Deeds of Vote and Position Notices is:

Roly Klinger, Adv., Company Secretary, Partner Communications Company Ltd., 8
Ha’amal Street, Rosh Ha’ayin, 48103 Israel (kindly mark clearly "deed of vote" or
“position notice” on the envelope).

The deadline for submission of Position Notices and the Board’s response to such
Notices are:

The deadline for submission of Position Notices by the shareholders in respect of items
no. 4-7 on the agenda is: July 6, 2013.

The deadline for submission of the Board of Directors’ response to Position Notices (if
any) is: July 13, 2013.

The Deed of Vote and Position Notices (if any) are available at the following
websites:

Israel Securities Authority website: www.magna.isa.gov.il

Tel Aviv Stock Exchange website: www.maya.tase.co.il

U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission’s EDGAR System (only a convenience
translation into English): http://www.sec.gov/edgar.shtml

Receipt of ownership certificates, Deeds of Vote and Position Notices:

A shareholder, whose shares are being held through a stock exchange member, is
entitled to receive the ownership certificate in the branch of that stock exchange



member or by the mail, if the shareholder requested. Such request shall be made in
advance for a particular securities account.

A shareholder, whose shares are being held through an Exchange member, is entitled to
receive from the stock exchange member who holds the share in the shareholder’s
behalf, by e-mail, with no charge, a link to the text of the Deed of Vote and to the
Position Notices posted on the Israel Securities Authority website, unless the
shareholder notified the Exchange member that the shareholder is not interested in
receipt of such link or he is interested in receipt of Deeds of Vote by mail (for charge).
Shareholder’s notice in respect of Deeds of Vote shall apply to Position Notices as well.

One or more shareholders holding shares conferring in the aggregate at least five
percent of the Company’s voting rights and shareholders holding the same rate of the
Company’s voting rights not held by the Company’s "Controlling Party" (as stated in
Section 268 of the Israeli Companies Law), are entitled to review the Deeds of Votes as
detailed in Regulation 10 of the Deeds of VVote Regulations.

As of June 19, 2013 the amount of shares equivalent to five percent of the Company’s
voting rights is: 7,782,627 Ordinary Shares (excluding treasury shares).

As of June 19, 2013, the amount of shares equivalent to five percent of the Company’s
voting rights not held by the Company’s Controlling Party (as stated in Section 268 of
the Israeli Companies Law) is: 4,047,691 Ordinary Shares (excluding treasury shares).

Marking of Vote in the Deed of Vote:

Shareholder shall mark the shareholder's vote regarding each item on the agenda which
is subject to the Regulations Procedure (items no. 4-7), in the second part of this Deed
of Vote. For the shareholder’s convenience, the shareholder’s vote regarding item no. 1
on the agenda, which is not subject to the Regulations Procedure, may be marked in the
second part of this document. No vote is required in connection with the discussion of
items 2-3 on the agenda.



Partner Communications Company Ltd.

Date: , 2013
Addendum

Deed of Vote - Part |1

In accordance with Regulation 5(a) of the Companies Regulations
(Deeds of Vote and Position Notices) of 2005

Name of the Company: Partner Communications Company Ltd. (the “Company”)

The Company’s address (for submitting and sending Deeds of Vote and Position
Papers): Roly Klinger, Adv., Company Secretary, Partner Communications Company
Ltd., 8 Ha’amal Street, Rosh Ha’ayin, 48103 Israel (kindly mark clearly "deed of vote"
or "position paper" on the envelope)

Company’s registration number: 52-004431-4

Time of the meeting: Thursday, July 25, 2013 at 10:00 Israel time.

Type of meeting: Annual general meeting

The Record Date: June 26, 2013

Note:

In parallel to distribution of this Deed of Vote, a Hebrew version of a Deed of Vote
(ktav hatzba'a) per Israeli requirements will be distributed among the
shareholders. The shareholders are requested to send only one version of a Deed of
Vote (an English version or a Hebrew version, but not both). If both versions will
be sent by shareholders, in case of contradiction between the two versions (as
determined by the Company’s secretary), the vote shall be disqualified.

Shareholder’s Details:
Name of shareholder:
I.D. number:

In case the shareholder does not hold an Israeli I.D.:
Passport number:
The country issuing the passport:
In effect until:

In case the shareholder is an entity:
Entity registration number:
Country of organization:




Item No. Subject of the Resolution Vote® In respect of
transaction’s
approval
pursuant to
sections 255,
267A and 275 -
do you have a
“Personal
Interest” in the
resolution or
constitute a
“Controlling
Party”"?

Fo

=

Against Abstain | Yes® No

1) Approval of the re-appointment of the Company’s Irrelevant
auditor, Kesselman & Kesselman, as the auditor of
the Company for the period ending at the close of
the next annual general meeting.

This item is not subject to the Regulations Procedure.

2) Discussion of the auditor’s remuneration for the Irrelevant Irrelevant
year ended December 31, 2012, as determined by
the Audit Committee and by the Board of
Directors, and the report of the Board of Directors
with respect to the remuneration paid to the
auditor and its affiliates for the year ended
December 31, 2012.

This item is not subject to the Regulations Procedure.

3) Discussion of the Company’s audited financial Irrelevant Irrelevant
statements for the year ended December 31, 2012
and the report of the Board of Directors for such
period.

This item is not subject to the Regulations Procedure.

4) (i) | Approval of the re-election of Mr. Shlomo Rodav, Irrelevant
Mr. llan Ben-Dov, Mr. Adam Chesnoff, Mr. Fred
Gluckman, Mr. Sumeet Jaisinghani, Mr. Yoav
Rubinstein, Mr. Arieh Saban, Mr. Yahel Shachar,
Mr. Elon Shalev and Mr. Arie Steinberg, to serve
as directors of the Company until the close of the
next annual general meeting, unless their office
becomes vacant earlier in accordance with the
provisions of the Israeli Companies Law and the
Company’s Articles of Association.




Item No. Subject of the Resolution Vote® In respect of
transaction’s
approval
pursuant to
sections 255,
267A and 275 -
do you have a
“Personal
Interest” in the
resolution or
constitute a
“Controlling
Party”"?

For | Against Abstain| Yes* No

(it) | Approval that (A) no change will be made to the
Compensation of Mr. Ilan Ben-Dov, Mr. Adam
Chesnoff, Mr. Fred Gluckman, Mr. Sumeet
Jaisinghani, Mr. Yoav Rubinstein, Mr. Arieh
Saban, Mr. Yahel Shachar and Mr. Elon Shalev;
(B) no change will be made to the reimbursement
of reasonable expenses of the directors listed
above; and (C) the directors listed above and Mr.
Shlomo Rodav will continue to benefit from the
Company's D&O insurance policy.

(iii) | Approval that (A) no change will be made to the Irrelevant
Compensation of Ms. Oshat Ronen and Mr. Arie
Steinberg; (B) no change will be made to the
reimbursement of reasonable expenses of Ms.
Osnat Ronen and Mr. Arie Steinberg; (C) Ms.
Osnat Ronen and Mr. Arie Steinberg will continue
to benefit from the Company's D&O insurance
policy; and (D) the indemnification letters granted
to Ms. Osnat Ronen and Mr. Arie Steinberg will
continue in full force and effect.

(iv) | Approval and ratification, subject to the adoption
of the pertinent part of Resolution 7 below, of the
grant of an indemnification letter to each of the
following directors: Mr. Shlomo Rodav, Mr. llan
Ben-Dov, Mr. Adam Chesnoff, Mr. Fred
Gluckman, Mr. Sumeet Jaisinghani, Mr. Yoav
Rubinstein, Mr. Arieh Saban, Mr. Yahel Shachar
and Mr. Elon Shalev.

This item is subject to the Regulations Procedure.

5)

Approval of a compensation policy for the
Company's Office Holders.

This item is subject to the Regulations Procedure.




Item No. Subject of the Resolution Vote® In respect of
transaction’s
approval
pursuant to
sections 255,
267A and 275 -
do you have a
“Personal
Interest” in the
resolution or
constitute a
“Controlling
Party”"?

For | Against Abstain| Yes* No
6) Approval of a Registration Rights Agreement
between the Company and S.B. Israel Telecom
Ltd.
This item is subject to the Regulations Procedure.
7) Approval and ratification of the grant of
Indemnification Letters to the following directors:
(i) Shlomo Rodav
(i) Ilan Ben-Dov
(iii) | Adam Chesnoff
(iv) | Fred Gluckman
(V) Sumeet Jaisinghani
(vi) | Yoav Rubinstein
(vii) | Arieh Saban
(viii) | Yahel Shachar
(ix) | Elon Shalev
This item is subject to the Regulations Procedure.

Regarding the resolution on items no. 4(ii), 4(iv), 5, 6 and 7(i)-7(ix) why do | have a
“Personal Interest” in the resolutions, or why do | constitute a “Controlling Party” in the
Company?




Deeds of Vote submitted by shareholders who hold their shares through an Exchange
member (under section 177(1) of the Israeli Companies Law) will be valid only if
accompanied by an ownership certificate.

Deeds of Vote submitted by shareholders registered in the Company’s Shareholders
Register will be valid only if accompanied by a copy of 1.D., passport or organization
certificate.

You must mark one of the following two boxes (if an X is not marked in either column,
or if an X is marked in both columns, or if an X is marked in the NO box but no number
of shares is provided, the vote may be disqualified, the vote shall be disqualified):

g
u

Yes. | approve the declaration below.
No. | do not approve the declaration below. | hold, together with others,
Ordinary Shares of Partner.

I declare that my holdings and my vote DO NOT require the consent of the
Israeli Minister of Communications pursuant to (i) Sections 21 (Transfer of
Means of Control) or 23 (Prohibition of Cross-Ownership) of the Company’s
General License for the Provision of Mobile Radio Telephone Services using the
Cellular Method in Israel dated April 7, 1998, as amended (the “License”); or
(i) any other license granted, directly or indirectly, to Partner®.

For your convenience, a translation of sections 21-24 to the License is attached as
Annex “G” to the Proxy Statement distributed with this Deed of Vote.

Signature
Name (Print):
Title:
Date:

If an X is not marked in either column, or if an X is marked in more than one column, the vote shall be considered as an abstention on the relevant
item.

Kindly provide details regarding the nature of your Personal Interest in the resolution, or why you constitute a Controlling Party in the Company,
at the designated space after the table. “Personal Interest” is defined in Section 1 of the Israeli Companies Law as a person’s personal interest in
an act or a transaction of a company, including, without limitation, the personal interest of a person's relative and the personal interest of an entity
in which the person or the person's relative is an interested party. Holding shares in a company does not give rise to a “Personal Interest.”
“Personal Interest” includes, without limitation, a personal interest of a person voting by proxy which was given by another person, even if the
other person does not have a personal interest, and a person voting on behalf of a person having a personal interest will be deemed as having a
personal interest, whether the voting discretion is in the voter’s hands or not. The Israeli Companies Law refers to the definition of “Control” in
Section 1 of the Israeli Securities Law (1968), defining "Control" as the ability to direct the activity of a company, except for ability stemming
only from being a director or holding another position in that company, and it is presumed that a person is controlling a company if said person
holds half or more of a of certain type of means of control in a company (the right to vote in the shareholders general meeting or in a similar organ
in another corporation or the right to appoint directors of the company or its general manager).

If an X is not marked in either column, or if an X is marked in the “Yes” column and the shareholder does not provide details regarding the nature
of the Personal Interest or the Controlling Party Interest, or an X is marked in both columns, the vote shall be disqualified.

In the event that the shareholder is an “Interested Party”, as defined in the License, voting in a different manner with respect to each part of the
shareholder's Ordinary Shares, a separate Deed of Vote should be filed for each quantity of Ordinary Shares in respect of which the shareholder
intends to vote differently.

Under certain licenses granted, directly or indirectly, to Partner, approval of, or notice to, the Minister of Communications of the State of Israel
may be required for holding of 5% or more of Partner's means of control.



To:

DEED OF AUTHORIZATION

Partner Communications Company Ltd. (the “Company”)

Attn: Roly Klinger, Adv., Company Secretary

Re:  Annual General Meeting of Shareholders to be held on
Thursday, July 25, 2013 (the ""Meeting"")

, the undersigned®, , (Identification No./Registration No.
), of , being a
registered holder of 2 Ordinary Shares, par value NIS 0.01 per

share (the "Ordinary Shares") of the Company, hereby authorize

Identification No. ®  to participate and vote in my stead and on my behalf
at the Meeting and in any adjournment thereof, until I shall otherwise notify you.

| declare and detail in the designated space below, in connection with the resolution on items

no.

res

4(ii), 4(iv), 5, 6 and 7(i)-7(ix) whether | have a “Personal Interest” in the pertinent
olution, or whether | am a “Controlling Party” in the Company:*

Name of shareholder.

A shareholder is entitled to give several Deeds of Authorization, each of which refers to a different quantity of Ordinary Shares of the
Company held by the shareholder, so long as the shareholder shall not give Deeds of Authorization with respect to an aggregate number
of Ordinary Shares exceeding the total number of shares held by him.

In the event that the proxy does not hold an Israeli Identification number, indicate a passport number, if any, and the name of the
country in which the passport was issued.

Kindly provide details regarding the nature of your Personal Interest in the resolution, or why you constitute a Controlling Party in the
Company, at the designated space after the table (on page 4). “Personal Interest” is defined in Section 1 of the Israeli Companies Law
(1999) (the “Israeli Companies Law”) as a person’s personal interest in an act or a transaction of a company, including, without
limitation, the personal interest of a person's relative and the personal interest of an entity in which the person or the person's relative is
an interested party. Holding shares in a company itself does not give rise to a “Personal Interest”. “Personal Interest” includes, without
limitation, a personal interest of a person voting by proxy which was given by another person, even if the other person does not have a
personal interest, and a person voting on behalf of a person having a personal interest will be deemed as having a personal interest,
whether the voting discretion is in the voter’s hands or not. The Israeli Companies Law refers to the definition of “Control” in Section 1
of the Israeli Securities Law (1968), defining "Control" as the ability to direct the activity of a company, except for ability stemming
only from being a director or holding another position in that company, and it is presumed that a person is controlling a company if said
person holds half or more of a of certain type of means of control in a company (the right to vote in the shareholders general meeting or
in a similar organ in another corporation or the right to appoint directors of the company or its general manager).



Item No. Subject of the Resolution Vote® In respect of

transaction’s
approval
pursuant to
sections 255,
267A and 275 -
do you have a
“Personal
Interest” in the
resolution or
constitute a
“Controlling
Party”*?

For |Against| Abstain | Yes® No

1)

Approval of the re-appointment of Kesselman & Irrelevant
Kesselman, independent certified public accountants in
Israel and a member of PricewaterhouseCoopers
International Limited group, as the Company's auditor
for the period ending at the close of the next annual
general meeting.

This item is not subject to the Regulations Procedure.”

2)

Discussion of the auditor’s remuneration for the year Irrelevant Irrelevant
ended December 31, 2012, as determined by the Audit
Committee and by the Board of Directors, and the report
of the Board of Directors with respect to the
remuneration paid to the auditor and its affiliates for the
year ended December 31, 2012.

This item is not subject to the Regulations Procedure.

3)

Discussion of the Company’s audited financial Irrelevant Irrelevant
statements for the year ended December 31, 2012 and
the report of the Board of Directors for such period.

This item is not subject to the Regulations Procedure.

If an X is not marked in either column, or if an X is marked in more than one column, the vote shall be considered as an abstention on the relevant item.

If an X is not marked in either column, or if an X is marked in the “Yes” column and the shareholder does not provide details regarding the nature of the
Personal Interest or the Controlling Party Interest, or an X is marked in both columns, the vote shall be disqualified.

Pursuant to the Israeli Companies Law and the Israeli Companies Regulations (Deeds of Vote and Position Notices) (2005), shareholders who will not
attend the meeting in person may vote with respect to items no. 4(ii), 4(iv), 5, 6 and 7 on the agenda by the Hebrew form of deed of vote (ktav hatzba'a)
and these items are subject to provisions set forth in the Israeli Companies Law and these regulations (the “Regulations Procedure”).




Item No. Subject of the Resolution Vote® In respect of
transaction’s
approval
pursuant to
sections 255,
267A and 275 -
do you have a
“Personal
Interest” in the
resolution or
constitute a
“Controlling
Party”*?

For | Againstl Abstain| Yes® No

4) | (i) Approval of the re-election of Mr. Shlomo Rodav, Mr. Irrelevant
llan Ben-Dov, Mr. Adam Chesnoff, Mr. Fred
Gluckman, Mr. Sumeet Jaisinghani, Mr. Yoav
Rubenstein, Mr. Arieh Saban, Mr. Yahel Shachar, Mr.
Elon Shalev and Mr. Arie (Arik) Steinberg to serve as
directors of the Company until the close of the next
annual general meeting, unless their office becomes
vacant earlier in accordance with the provisions of
the Israeli Companies Law and the Company’s
Avrticles of Association.

(i) Approval that (A) no change will be made to the
Compensation of Mr. llan Ben-Dov, Mr. Adam
Chesnoff, Mr. Fred Gluckman, Mr. Sumeet Jaisinghani,
Mr. Yoav Rubenstein, Mr. Arieh Saban, Mr. Yahel
Shachar and Mr. Elon Shalev; (B) no change will be
made to the reimbursement of expenses of the directors
listed above; and (C) the directors listed above and Mr.
Shlomo Rodav will continue to benefit from the
Company's D&O insurance policy.

(iii) | Approval that (A) no change will be made to the Irrelevant
Compensation of Ms. Osnat Ronen and Mr. Arie
Steinberg; (B) no change will be made to the
reimbursement of expenses of Ms. Oshat Ronen and Mr.
Avrie Steinberg; (C) Ms. Osnat Ronen and Mr. Arie
Steinberg will continue to benefit from the Company's
D&O insurance policy; and (D) the indemnification
letters granted to Ms. Osnat Ronen and Mr. Arie
Steinberg will continue in full force and effect.




(iv) | Approval and ratification, subject to the adoption of the
pertinent part of Resolution 7 below, of the grant of an
indemnification letter to each of the following directors:
Mr. Shlomo Rodav, Mr. llan Ben-Dov, Mr. Adam
Chesnoff, Mr. Fred Gluckman, Mr. Sumeet Jaisinghani,
Mr. Yoav Rubenstein, Mr. Arieh Saban, Mr. Yahel
Shachar and Mr. Elon Shalev.

This item is subject to the Regulations Procedure.

5)

Approval of a compensation policy for the Company's office
holders.

This item is subject to the Regulations Procedure.

6)

Approval of a Registration Rights Agreement between the
Company and S.B. Israel Telecom Ltd.

This item is subject to the Regulations Procedure.

7)

Approval and ratification of the grant of Indemnification Letters
to the following directors:

(i) Shlomo Rodav

(i) Ilan Ben-Dov

(iii) | Adam Chesnoff

(iv) | Fred Gluckman

(v) Sumeet Jaisinghani

(vi) | Yoav Rubinstein

(vii) | Arieh Saban

(viii) | Yahel Shachar

(ix) | Elon Shalev

This item is subject to the Regulations Procedure.

In connection with the resolutions on items no. 4(ii), 4(iv), 5, 6 or 7(i)-7(ix) why do | have a
“Personal Interest” in the resolutions, or why do | constitute a “Controlling Party” in the
Company?




You must mark one of the following two boxes (if an X is not marked in either box, or if an
X is marked in both boxes, or if an X is marked in the NO box but no number of shares is
provided, the vote may be disqualified)®

O Yes. | approve the declaration below.
O No. | do not approve the declaration below. | hold, together with others,
Ordinary Shares of Partner.

| declare that my holdings and my vote DO NOT require the consent of the Israeli
Minister of Communications pursuant to (i) Sections 21 (Transfer of Means of
Control) or 23 (Prohibition of Cross-Ownership) of the Company’s General License
for the Provision of Mobile Radio Telephone Services using the Cellular Method in
Israel dated April 7, 1998, as amended (the “License”)’; or (ii) any other license
granted, directly or indirectly, to Partner.

Date:

Signature

Name (print):
Title:

In the event that the shareholder is an “Interested Party,” as defined in the License, voting in a different manner with respect to each part
of the shareholder's Ordinary Shares, a separate Deed of Authorization should be filed for each quantity of Ordinary Shares in respect of
which the shareholder intends to vote differently.

A translation of sections 21-24 of the License is attached as Annex “G” to the Proxy Statement distributed with this Deed of
Authorization.

10 Under certain licenses granted, directly or indirectly, to Partner, approval of, or notice to, the Minister of Communications of the State

of Israel may be required for holding of 5% or more of Partner's means of control.
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